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May 19, 2025 

 
To, 
BSE Limited, 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, 
Mumbai - 400 001, 
Maharashtra, India. 
 
Sub.: Outcome of the meeting of Board of Directors of EnCap Investment Manager Private Limited (Formerly 

known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) (“Company”) (Investment Manager of 
Energy Infrastructure Trust) held on May 19, 2025 

Ref.:   (1) Energy Infrastructure Trust (Formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) (Scrip Code 542543) 
      (2) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 read with 

applicable SEBI circular(s) 
 
Sir/Madam, 
 
Pursuant to Regulation 23(6) and other applicable provisions, if any, of Securities Exchange Board of India 
(Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 (“SEBI InvIT Regulations”) as amended, read with circulars and 
guidelines issued thereunder from time to time and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“LODR Regulations”) and other applicable laws, we wish to inform you that the Board of Directors 
(“Board”) of EnCap Investment Manager Private Limited (Formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager 
Private Limited) (“Company”), acting as an Investment Manager to Energy Infrastructure Trust (“Trust”) at its meeting 
held on Monday, May 19 , 2025, has, inter-alia, considered the following matters 
 

1. basis the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board considered and approved the Audited 
Standalone and Consolidated Financial Information of the Trust for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 
and the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Results of the Trust for the half-year and financial year ended 
March 31, 2025, alongwith the Auditor’s Reports thereon (“Financial Information”) (enclosed as Annexure-1) 

 
2. noted the Valuation Report dated May 19, 2025, as prepared by Mr. S. Sundararaman, Independent Valuer 

bearing IBBI Registration Number IBBI/RV/06/2018/10238, for the period ended March 31, 2025, in 
accordance with the provisions of Regulation 21 of the SEBI InvIT Regulations (enclosed as Annexure-2). 
 

3. declared Net Asset Value of Rs. 88.35 per Unit for the Trust as on March 31, 2025, as per Regulation 10(22) of 
the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulation, 2014 read along with SEBI Master Circular 
SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/44 dated May 15, 2024,based on the valuation report dated May 19, 2025 
issued by Valuer of the Trust. 
 

We further wish to inform that there is no erosion in the net worth of the Company- the Investment Manager to 
Trust, as per the financial statements for the period ended on March 31, 2025, as compared to the financial 
statements for the period ended on March 31, 2024. 
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ENCAP INVESTMENT MANAGER PRIVATE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) 

CIN: U67190MH2010PTC202800 
Registered Office: Seawoods Grand Central, Tower-1, 3rd Level, C Wing - 301 to 304,  

Sector 40, Seawoods Railway Station, Navi Mumbai, Thane, Maharashtra - 400706, India 
Tel No.: 91 22 3501 8000     Email: compliance@pipelineinvit.com 

The meeting commenced at 3:55 p.m. and concluded at 4:44 p.m. 

The same is also available on the website of the Trust i.e. www.pipelineinvit.com. 

You are requested to kindly take the same on record. 

Thanking you, 

Yours faithfully, 

For Energy Infrastructure Trust (Formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
EnCap Investment Manager Private Limited  
(Formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited)   
(acting in its capacity as the Investment Manager of Energy Infrastructure Trust) 

Ankitha Jain 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Membership No.: A36271 

CC: Axis Trustee Services Limited (“Trustee of the Trust”) 
2nd Floor, SW, The Ruby, 29, Senapati Bapat Marg, 
Dadar West, Dadar - 400028, Mumbai,  
Maharashtra, India 

mailto:compliance@pipelineinvit.com
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Deloitte Chartered Accountants 
Commerz Ill, 30th & 31st f loors 
Int ernational Business Park 
Oberoi Garden City Haskins & Sells LLP 
Off. West ern Express Highway 
Goregaon (East) 
Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra. India 

Independent Auditors' Report on Audit of Annual Standalone Financial Information and 
Review of Six Monthly Standalone Financial Information 

To 
The Board of Directors 
Encap Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly known as "Brookfield India 
Infrastructure Manager Private Limited") 
(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Energy Infrastructure Trust) 

Opinion and Conclusion 

We have (a) audited the Standalone Financial Information for the year ended March 31, 2025 and 
(b) reviewed the Standalone Financial Information for the six months ended March 31, 2025 (refer 
'Other Matters' section below), which were subject to limited review by us, both included in the 
accompanying "Statement of Standalone Financial Information for the six months and year ended 
March 31, 2025" of Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as 'India Infrastructure Trust') 
("the Trust"), consisting of the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, explanatory notes thereto 
and the additional disclosures as required by SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2024/44 dated May 15, 2024 ("SEBI Circular"), {"the Statement"), being submitted by the 
Trust pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment 
Trusts} Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time read with the SEBI Circular ("the InvIT 
Regulations"). 

(a) Opinion on Annual Standalone Financial Information 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the Standalone Financial Information for the year ended March 31, 2025: 

i. is presented in accordance with the InvIT Regulations in the manner so required; and 

ii. gives a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement 
principles laid down in the Indian Accounting Standards and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the InvIT 
Regulations, of the standalone net profit (including other comprehensive income), its 
net assets at fair value as at March 31, 2025, total returns at fair value and net 
distributable cash flows for the year ended on that date and other financial information 
of the Trust. 

(b) Conclusion on Unaudited Standalone Financial Information for the six months ended 
March 31, 2025 

With respect to the Standalone Financial Information for the six months ended March 31, 
2025, based on our review conducted as stated in paragraph (b) of 'Auditor's Responsibilities' 
section below, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the 
Standalone Financial Information for the six months ended March 31, 2025, prepared in 
accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the Indian 
Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the 
extent not inconsistent with the InvIT Regulations, has not disclosed the information required 
to be disclosed in terms of the InvIT Regulations, including the manner in which it is to be 
disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement. 

Regd. Office: One I ntemational Center, Tower 3, 31st floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai-400 013, Maharashtra. India. 

Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP is registered with Limited Uabi lity having LLP identification No: AAB-8737 

Annexure-1
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Basis for Opinion on the Audited Standalone Financial Information for the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in paragraph .(a) of the 'Auditors' Responsibilities' section below. We are independent of 
the Trust in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India ("the ICAI") and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ICAI's 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to Note 5 of the Standalone Financial Information, which describes the 
presentation of "Unit Capital" as "Equity" to comply with InvIT Regulations. Our opinion and 
conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Management and Board of Director's Responsibilities for the Statement 

This Statement, which includes the Standalone Financial Information is the responsibility of the 
Board of Directors of the Investment Manager (the "Board") and has been approved by them for 
the issuance. The Statement has been compiled from the related audited standalone financial 
statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, This responsibility includes the preparation and 
presentation of the Standalone Financial Information for the six months and year ended March 31, 
2025 that give a true and fair view of the net profit (including other comprehensive income), its 
net assets at fair value as at March 31, 2025, its total returns at fair value and its net distributable 
cash flows for the six months and / or year ended on that date and other financial information of 
the Trust in accordance with the requirements of the InvlT Regulations; recognition and 
measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(l)(a) of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the InvIT Regulations. 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding of 
the assets of the Trust and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial 
Information that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Standalone Financial Information, the Board is responsible for assessing the 
Trust's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board either intends to 
liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board is also responsible for overseeing the Trust's financial reporting process. 

Auditors' Responsibilities 

(a) Audit of the Annual Standalone Financial Information for the year ended March 31, 
2025 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial 
Information for the year ended March 31, 2025 as a whole is free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
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could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
the Standalone Financial Information. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Annual Standalone Financial 
Information, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material ·misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness and reasonableness of disclosures made by the Board in terms 
of the requirements specified under the InvIT Regulations. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence. obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Trust to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the Statement or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Annual Standalone Financial 
Information, including the disclosures, and whether the Annual Standalone Financial 
Information represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Annual Standalone Financial Information that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the Annual Standalone Financial Information may be influenced. We 
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the Annual Standalone Financial Information. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

(b) Review of the Standalone Financial Information for the six months ended March 31, 
2025 

We conducted our review of the Standalone Financial Information for the six months ended March 
31, 2025 in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements ("SRE") 2410 'Review of 
Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity', issued by the 



Deloitte 
Haskins & Sells LLP 

ICAI. A review of Interim Financial Information consists of making inquiries, primarily of the 
entity's personnel responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and 
other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and 
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant 
matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 

Other Matters 

The Statement includes the information for the six months ended March 31, 2025 being the 
balancing figure between audited figures in respect of the full financial year and-the published year 
to date figures up to the six months ended September 30, 2024, which were subject to limited 
review by us. Our report on the Statement is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Place: Navi Mumbai 
Date: May 19, 2025 

For Deloitte Haskins &. Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) 

Rajendra ·Sharma 
Partner 

(Membership No. 119925) 
(UDIN:2.5°1J'l~J..5"8"1PIBZC 1,00 ) 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 

Principal place of business: Seawoods Grand Central, Tower-1, 3rd Level, C Wing- 301 to 304, 

Sector 40, Seawoods Railway Station, Navi Mumbai, Thane, Maharashtra - 400706, India 
Phone No: 022-35018001. E-mail: compliance@pipelineinvit.com Website : www.pipelineinvit.com 

(SEBI Registration Number: IN/lnvlT/18-19/00008) 

STATEMENT OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE SIX MONTHS AND YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

INR in Crore, except per unit data) 

Sr. 
Six months ended Six months ended Six months ended 

Year ended Year ended 
Particulars March 31, 2025 September 30, March 31, 2024 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 No, 
(Refer Note 3) 2024 (Refer Note 3) 

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Audited Audited 

I. INCOME AND GAINS 
Interest 254.17 ·294.80 283.82 548.97 574.49 

Profit on sale of Mutual Funds 0.14 0.65 0.28 0.79 0.42 

Other Income# 0.02 - 1.35 0.02 1.37 

Fair value Gain/ (Loss) on Non- 384.52 (85.69) 623.54 298.83 533.82 
convertible debentures measured at 

FVTPL 

Total Income and gains 638.85 209.76 908.99 848;61 1110.10 

11. EXPENSES AND LOSSES 
Valuation Expenses 0.15 0.12 0.16 0.27 0.23 
Audit Fees 1.09 1.11 1.28 2.20 2.62 
Project Management Fees 0.88 0.89 0.88 1.77 1.77 
Investment Management Fees 1.41 1.42 1.41 2.83 2.83 
Trustee Fee 0.10 0.11 0.10 0.21 0.21 
Custodian Fees 0.18 0.17 0.18 0.35 0.38 
Fair value loss/ (gain) of put option 0.12 (0.11) 0.33 O.Dl 1.00 
Fair value loss/ (gain) of call option 9.60 8.40 7.50 18.00 14.46 
Other Expenses • 0.96 0.16 5.54 1.12 5.93 

Total Expenses and losses 14.49 12.27 17.38 26.76 29.43 

Ill. Profit/ (Loss) for the period before 624,36 197.49 891.61 821,85 1,080.67 

Income Tax (1-11) 
IV. Tax Expenses 

Current Tax 0.01 0.96 0.80 0.97 1.44 
Deferred Tax O.Ql - - O.Dl -

Total Tax Expenses 0.02 0.96 0.80 0.98 1.44 

v. Profit/ (Loss) for the period after 624,34 196.53 890.81 820,87 1,079.23 
Income Tax (Ill-IV} 

VI. Items of other Comprehensive Income - - - - -
VII. Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) 624.34 196.53 890.81 820.87 1,079.23 

for the period (V+VI} 

VIII, Earnings Per Unit (Refer Note D) 

- Basic (in Rs.) 9.40 2.96 13.42 12.36 16.25 
- Diluted (in Rs.I 9.40 2.96 13.42 12.36 16.25 

# Other Income includes unrealised gain on mutual funds. 
* Other expenses mainly includes professional fees and other miscellaneous expenses. _ .. _ 

. ,.,..sKINs ~ 
1/''('r· -..; 

MW BAI 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to Standalone Financial Information 

1 Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) ("Trust"/"lnvlT"/"EIT") is registered as a 
contributory irrevocable trust set up under the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 on November 22, 2018, and registered as an 
infrastructure investment trust under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) 
Regulations, 2014, on January 23, 2019 having registration number IN/lnvlT/18-19/00008. Investors can view the Standalone 

Financial Information of Energy Infrastructure Trust on the Trust's website (www.pipelineinvit.com) or on the website of BSE 
(www.bseindia.com). 

The above standalone financial information has been reviewed by Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors 

of Encap Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited), 
acting in its capacity as Investment Manager of Energy Infrastructure Trust, at their meeting held on May 19, 2025. 

The name of the Trust changed from "India Infrastructure Trust" to "Energy Infrastructure Trust" w.e.f. November 18, 2024 

i.e. the date of unitholders' approval. Further, SEBI issued the fresh registration certificate giving effect to the name change 
on December 09, 2024. 

The Sponsor of the Trust is Rapid 2 Holdings Pte. Ltd. , a Company registered in Singapore. The Trustee to the Trust is Axis 
Trustee Services Limited (the "Trustee"). 

The principal place of Business of the Trust is Seawoods Grand Central, Tower-1, 3rd Level, C Wing - 301 to 304, Sector 40, 

Seawoods Railway Station, Navi Mumbai, Thane, Maharashtra - 400706, India. 

The name of the Investment Manager changed to Encap Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly known as Brookfield 

India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) w.e.f. June 211 2024. The registered office of the Investment Manager is 
changed from "Unit 1, 4th Floor, Godrej BKC, Bandra Kurla Complex, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400051, India" to "Seawoods 

Grand Central, Tower-1, 3rd Level, C Wing - 301 to 304, Sector 401 Seawoods Railway Station, Navi Mumbai, Thane, 
Maharashtra - 400706, India" w.e.f April 29, 2024. 

2 The Standalone Financial Information comprises of the Standalone Statement of profit and loss, explanatory notes thereto 
and additional disclosures as required by Paragraph 4.6 of Chapter 4, Section A of the SEBI Master Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/44 dated May 15, 2024 ("the SEBI Master circular") of Energy Infrastructure Trust 
(formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) for the six months and year ended March 31, 2025 ("Standalone Financial 
Information"). 

3 The Standalone Financial Information for the six months ended March 31, 2025, and corresponding six months ended March 

31, 2024, are the balancing figures between the audited figures in respect of full financial year and the published year to date 
figures upto the six months ended September of the respective financial years which were subject to limited review. 

4 The Standalone Financial Information has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Infrastructure 
Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time read with the Paragraph 3.21 of Chapter 3 of the SEBI 

Master circular nnvlT Regulations"); recognition and measurement principles laid down in the Indian Accounting Standards, 
as defined in Rule 2(1) (a) of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting 

principles generally accepted in India to the extent not inconsistent with the lnvlT Regulations (refer note 5 below on 
presentation of "Unit Capital" as "Equity" instead of compound instruments under Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: 
Presentation). 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 

Notes to Standalone Financial Information 

5 Under the provisions of the lnvlT Regulations, Trust is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than 90% of the net 
distributable cash flows of the Trust for each financial year. Accordingly, a portion of the Unit Capital contains a contractual 

obligation of the Trust to pay to its Unitholders cash distributions. Hence, the Unit Capital is a compound financial 
instrument which contains equity and liability components in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: 

Presentation. However, in accordance with Chapter 3 and Chapter 4 of the SEBI Master circular, the Unit capital have been 
presented as "Equity" in order to comply with the requirements of Section Hof Chapter 3 to the SEBI Master circular, dealing 

with the minimum presentation and disclosure requirements for key financial statements. Consistent with Unit Capital being 
classified as equity, the distributions to Unitholders is also presented in Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity when 

the distributions are approved by the Board of Directors of Investment Manager. 

6 The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager have declared four distributions during the period ended March 31, 2025 
as follows: 

Amount in lNR 
Date of declaring Date of Payment Return of Capital Return on Capital Other Income (Per Total Distribution 
Di~rih•~ian IPer unit I IPer unltl unit) {Per Unit) 
Aoril 08 2024 April 18, 2024 1.9298 3.7357 0.0214 5.6869 
Julv 05 2024 July 16, 2024 1.6059 2.5761 - 4.1820 
October 07 2024 October 16, 2024 1.9162 2.1894 - 4.1056 
Januarv 09, 2025 January 15, 2025 1.8985 1.3056 - 3.2041 

After the closure of the year ended March 31, 2025 and as on the date of this information, following distribution(s) 

were declared and made by the Investment Manager of the Trust: 

(Amount in INR) 

Date of declaring Date of Payment Return of Capital Return on Capital Other Income (Per Total Distribution 
Distribution (Per unit) (Per unit) unit) (Per Unit) 

April 10, 2025 April 16, 2025 2.0222 2.0528 - 4.0750 

7 The Trust had obtained a Corporate Credit Rating ("CCR") from CRISIL Ratings Limited ("CRISIL"), which had assigned "CRISIL 
AAA/Stable" (pronounced as CRISIL Triple A rating with Stable outlook) to the Trust. The aforesaid rating has been re­

affirmed by CRISIL on March 11, 2025, which was reviewed by CRISIL on April 15, 2025. 

The Trust had also obtained a Credit Ratings from CARE Ratings Limited ("CARE"), which had assigned "CARE AAA/Stable" to 

the Trust on February 26, 2024. The aforesaid rating has been re-affirmed by CARE on January 24, 2025, which was reviewed 
by CARE on April 21, 2025. 

8 There is no change in the accounting policy during the period under consideration. 

9 Previous period/ year figures have been regrouped, whatever necessary to make them comparable with those of current 
period/ year. 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to Standalone Financial Information 

Additional Disclosures as required by Paragraph 4.6 of Chapter 4 of the SEBI Master Circular 

A) Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFs) as at the Standalone Trust level 

Net Distrlbutable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-PoD/P/CIR/2023/184 dated December 06, 2023 (lJ 

Particulars Six months ended Six months ended 

March 31, 2025 September 30, 

2024 

Unaudited Unaudited 

Cashflows from operating activities of the Trust (5.76) (6.44) 
(+) Cash flows received from SPV's / Investment entities which represent distributions of NDCF computed as per 

relevant framework • 492.62 524.30 
(+) Treasury income/ income from investing activities of the Trust (interest income received from FD, any investment 

entities as defined in Regulation 18(5), tax refund, any other income in the nature of interest, profit on sale of Mutual 
funds, investments, assets etc., dividend income etc., excluding any Ind AS adjustments. Further clarified that these 
amounts will be considered on a cash receipt basis) 0.15 2.13 
(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure investments, infrastructure assets or shares of SPVs/Holdcos or Investment - -
• Applicable capital gains and other taxes - -

• Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds - -
• Directly attributable transaction costs - . 
• Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7) of lnvlT Regulations or any other relevant - -

(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure investments, infrastructure assets or sale of shares of SPVs/ Hold cos or 
Investment Entity not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest as per Regulation 18(7) of lnvlT Regulations or 
any other relevant provisions of the I nvlT Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently - -

{-) Fina nee cost on Borrowings, excluding amortisation of any transaction costs as per Profit and Loss account of the 
Trust - -

(-) Debt repayment at Trust level (to include principal repayments as per scheduled EMl's except if refinanced through 

new debt including overdraft facilities and to exclude any debt repayments/ debt refinanced through new debt in any 
form or funds raised through issuance of units) - . 

INR in Crore -- - - -

Year ended 

March 31, 2025 

Audited 

(12.20) 

1,016.92 

2.28 
. 
-
-
-

-

-

-

-



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to Standalone Financial Information 

(-) any reserve required to be created under the terms of, or pursuant to the obligations arising in accordance with, 
any: 

(i) loan agreement entered with financial institution, or 

(ii) terms and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable to debt securities issued by the Trust or any of 
its SPVs/ HoldCos, or 

(iii) terms and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable to external commercial borrowings availed by 
the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or 

!iv) agreement pursuant to which the Trust operates or owns the infrastructure asset, or generates revenue or 
cashflows from such asset (such as, concession agreement, transmission services agreement, power purchase 
agreement, lease agreement, and any other agreement of a like nature, by whatever name called); or 
(v). statutory, judicial, regulatory, or governmental stipulations; or 
(-) any capital expenditure on existing assets owned/ leased by the lnvlT, to the extent not funded by debt/ equity or 
from contractual reserves created in the earlier years 
Net Distributable Cash Flows at Trust Level 

Particulars 

Net Distributable Cash Flows at Trust Level 
Add: 10% of NDCF withheld in line with the Regulations in earlier years 

Add: Surplus cash on account of maturity of deposits# 
Net Distributable Cash Flows including Surplus Cash at Trust Level 

-

-
487.01 

Six months ended 

March 31, 2025 

Unaudited 
487.01 

-

-
487.01 

- -

- -
519.99 1,007.00 

.. ··-·· . -INR in Crore 
Six months ended Vear ended 

September 30, March 31, 2025 

2024 

Unaudited Audited 
519.99 1,007.00 

90.31 90.31 

45.04 45.04 
655.34 1,142.35 

ff These deposits were restricted upto March 22, 2024, pursuant to loan covenant of debt raised by SPV. These restrictions were removed subsequent to debt refinancing at SPV in ,., 

1/f.J. 

The Net distributable Cash Flows (NDCFs) as above is distributed as follows in the respective manner: I~ 
INR in Cro1 aC 

Particulars Return of Capital Return on Capital Other Income Total ~~ April 18, 2024 128.14 248.05 1.42 377.61 
July 16, 2024 106.63 171.05 - 277.68 
For the half year ended September 30; 2024 (a) 234.77 419.10 1.42 655.29 ~ 

October 16, 2024 127.24 145.38 - 7 272.62 
1 January 15, 2025 126.06 86.69 - 212.75 / • 

For the half year ended March 31, 2025 (bl 253.30 232.07 - 485.37 \ 
Total for the year ended March 31, 2025 (a+b) 488.07 651.17 1.42 1,140.66 I\ 

~ 

) 
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111 
In order to promote standardisation of framework for computing NDCF, a revised framework was defined by SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-PoD/P/CIR/2023/184 

dated December 6, 2023 ("Revised NDCF Framework") (earlier SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 6, 2023 was being followed for NDCF).This 

framework is applicable with effect from April 01, 2024. Accordingly, Energy Infrastructure Trust has computed the NDCF for the period ended September 30, 2024 and March 31, 

2025 as per the revised NDCF framework. Comparative information have been provided as per the framework applicable for the previous year. 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 6, 2023 

INR in Crore -- -- - -- . -- -- -

Six months ended Year ended 
Description March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 

Unaudited Audited 

Cash flows received from Portfolio Assets in the form of Interest 302.21 591.53 
Any other income accruing at the Trust level and not captured above, including but not limited to interest/return on surplus cash invested 4.96 5.10 
by the Trust 

Cash flows/ Proceeds from the Portfolio Assets towards the repayment of the debt issued to the Portfolio Assets by the Trust* 238.93 479.85 

Total cash flow at the Trust level (A) 546.10 1076.48 

Less: Any payment of fees, interest and expense incurred at the Trust level, including but not limited to the fees of the Investment (7.88) (12.74) 
Manager, Trustee, Project Manager, Auditor, Valuer, credit rating agency and the Debenture Trustee 
Less: Income tax (if applicable) at the standalone Trust level and payment of other statutory dues (0.67) (1.19) 

Total cash outflows/retention at the Trust level (Bl (8.55) (13.93) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (C) = (A+B) 537.55 1062.55 

The Net distributable Cash Flows (NDCFs) as above is distributed as follows in the respective manner: 

For the year ended March 31, 2024 Return of Capital Return on Capital I Other Income 
April 18, 2023 121.74 138.15 
July 19, 2023 119.17 144.08 
For the half year ended September 30, 2023 (a) 240.91 282.23 

October 18, 2023. 118.21 143.78 - 261.99 
January 17, 2024 120.72 62.53 4.68 187.93 
For the half year ended March 31, 2024 (b) 238.93 206.31 4.68 449.92 
!Total for the year ended March 31, 2024 (a+b) 479.84 488.54 4.68 973.06 
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* Includes advances from Pipeline Infrastructure Limited (SPV) as below 
Particulars 

Advance from SPV 

Six months ended 

March 31, 2025 

64.62 

Six months ended 

September 30, 

2024 

62.48 

INR in Crore ··-·· ............... 
Six months ended Vear ended Vear ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

68.65 127.10 138.10 

Expenditure Component Sweep (ECS) is the amount being paid by Pipeline Infrastructure Limited (SPV) as advance, in accordance with the Debenture Trust Deed and is adjusted 
against Non Convertible Debentures, which is measured at FVTPL. This will be adjusted from the future NCD payments by SPValong with interest at the rate of 6.04% p.a. 

B) Pursuant to Investment Management Agreement, the Investment Manager is entitled to an Investment Management fee of INR 0.20 Crore per month (exclusive of GST). 

Investment Manager is also entitled to reimbursement of any cost incurred in relation to activity pertaining to Trust such as administration of Trust, appointment of staff, director, 
transaction expenses incurred with respect to investing, monitoring and disposing off investment of Trust. 

C) Pursuant to Project Management Agreement, the Project Manager is entitled to an Project Management fee of INR 0.125 Crore per month (exclusive of GST). 

D) Statement of Earnings per unit 

!NR in Crore .. ~-- ............... -
Six months ended Six months ended Six months ended Vear ended Year ended 

Particulars March 31, 2025 September 30, March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
2024 

Profit/ (Loss} for the oerlod {Rs.in Crore) 624.34 196.53 890.81 820.87 1,079.23 
Number of units outstanding for computation of basic and diluted earnings 66.40 66.40 66.40 66.40 66.40 
Iner unit !No. in Crorel 
Earnings oer unit [Basic and Diluted] (in Rs. Per unit) 9.40 2.96 13.42 12.36 16.25 

E) Contingent liabilities and commitments as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are NIL. 
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Fl Statement of Related Party Disclosures 

As per SEBI lnvlT regulations and as per Ind AS 24, disclosure of transactions with related party are given below: 

List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships: 

I. List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind AS 24 - "Related Party Disclosuresn 

Ultimate Controllling Party 

Parent and Sponsor 

Subsidiary 

Key Managerial Personnel of the Investment Manager (En cap 

Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly known as Brookfield 
India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited)] 

Brookfield Corporation 

Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd. 

Pipeline 1 nfrastructu re Limited 

Ms. Pooja Aggarwal - Chief Executive Officer (from June 01, 2023 to December 12, 2023) 

Mr. Darshan Vora - Chief Financial Officer (from June 01, 2023 to December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Suchibrata Banerjee - Chief Financial Officer (effective December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Akhil Mehrotra - Managing Director (effective December 12, 2023) 

II. List of additional related parties as per Regulations Z(l)lzv) of the SEBI lnvlT Regulations 

A) Parties to Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) with whom there were transactions 
Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd. (Sponsor) (as per Paragraph 4 ofSEBI (lnvlT) Regulations, 2014, as amended) 

Encap Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) (Investment Manager) (as per Paragraph 
4 of SEBI (I nvlT) Regulations, 2014, as a mended) 

ECI India Managers Private limited (Project Manager) (as per Paragraph 4 of SEBI (lnvlT) Regulations, 2014, as amended) 

Axis Trustee Services Limited {Trustee) (as per Paragraph 4 of SEBI (lnvlT) Regulations, 2014, as amended) 

B) Directors of the parties to the Trust specified in ll(A) Above 

(i) ECI India Managers Private Limited 
Mr. Darshan Vora 
Ms. Sukanya Viswanathan (from August 26, 2022 to August 11, 2023) 
Ms. Megha Ashok Dua (from August 10, 2023 to July 10, 2024) 
Ms. Puja Tandon (effective July 10, 2024) 

M~ BAI/ ,... 
0 ! \. ,.,__ I/ 

'~"---- ~ o"-.. ,J 
0 * // 
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(ii) Encap Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) 
Mr. Sridhar Rengan (upto December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Chetan Desai {upto May 31, 2023) 
Mr. Narendra Aneja (upto May 31, 2023) 
Ms. Swati Mandava (from June 28, 2022 to May 25, 2023) 
Mr. Prateek Shroff (Effective May 26, 2023) 
Ms. Radhika Haribhakti (from June 01, 2023 upto December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Jagdish Kini (from June 01, 2023 upto December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Arun Balakrishanan (Effective June 01, 2023) 
Ms. Rinki Ganguli (from June 1, 2023 upto December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Akhil Mehrotra (Effective December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Chaitanya Pande (Effective December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Varun Saxena (Effective December 12, 2023) 
Ms. Kavita Venugopal (Effective December 12, 2023) 

(iii) Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd 
Mr. Liew Yee Foong 
Ms. Ho Yeh Hwa (upto November 18, 2024) 
Mr. Tan Aik Thye Derek 
Ms. Tay Zhi Yun 
Ms. Talisa Poh Pei Lynn 
Tan Jin Li, Alina (effective November 18, 2024) 

(iv) Axis Trustee Services Limited 

Ms. Deepa Rath (upto February 5, 2025) 
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Dahiya (upto January 15, 2024) 
Mr.Ganesh Sankaran (upto January 15, 2024) 
Mr. Sumit Bali (from January 16, 2024 to August 16, 2024) 
Mr. Prashant Joshi (effective January 16, 2024) 
Mr. Arun Mehta (effective May 3, 2024) 
Mr. Parmod Kumar Nagpal (effective May 3, 2024) 
Mr. Rahul Choudhary (effective February 06, 2025) 
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F) Statement of Related Party Disdosures 
Ill. Transactions with related parties during the period 

Sr. 
Pa rti cu la rs Relations No 

1 Interest Income 
Pipeline Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary 

2 Trustee Fee 
Axis Trustee Services Limited Trustee 

3 Investment Manager Fee 

Encap Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly known 

as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private limited) Investment Manager 
4 Return of Unit Capital 

Rapid Holdings 2 pte, Ltd Sponsor 
S Legal/Professional fees/reimbursement of expenses 

Encap Investment Manager Private limited (formerly known 
as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) Investment Manager 

5 Project Management fee 
ECI India Managers Private Limited Project Manager 

7 Return on Unit Capital 
Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd. Sponsor 

8 Other Income Distributed 
Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd. Sponsor 

9 Amount received towards Expenditure Component Sweep 

(ECSJ 
Pipeline Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary 

10 Repayment of NCD 
Pipeline Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary 

11 Shared Services - Rent 

Pipeline Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary 
12 Interest on Expenditure Component Sweep 

Pipeline Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary 

Six months ended 

March 31, 2025 

Unaudited 

254.17 

0.10 

1.4] 

189.97 

0.43 

0.88 

i74.06 

-

64.62 

188.68 

0.03 

-

INR in Crore ......... --

Six months ended Six months ended Year ended Year ended 
September 30, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Unaudited Unaudited Audited Audited 

294.68 282.22 548.8~ 571.S~ 

0.11 0.10 0.2l 0.2J 

1.42 1.4] 2.8 2.83 

176.08 179.19 366.05 359.SE 

0.29 1.57 0.7; 1.7' 

0.89 0.88 1.7, 1.7, 

314.32 154.73 488.3f 366.4( 

1.06 3.51 1.0E 3.Sl 

62.48 68.65 127.1( 138.1( 

172.2' 170.2~ 360.9i 341.7~ 

0.0' 0.0 0.01 O.OE 

1.3] 1.3 
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IV. Outstanding balances as at period end 

Sr. 
Pa rt i cul a rs 

No 

1 Reimbursement of Expense payable 

Encap Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager 
Private Limited ) 

2 Interest on debentures received in advance 
Pipeline Infrastructure Limited 

3 Interest on Expenditure Component Sweep payable 
Pipeline Infrastructure Limited 

4 Units value 
Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd. 

5 Investment in NCD at fair value• 
Pipeline Infrastructure Limited 

6 Investment in Equity Shares 
Pipeline Infrastructure Limited 

Relation 

Investment Manager 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Sponsor 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

INR in Crore --- - --- ~- ~- -
Asat Asat Asat 

March 31, 2025 September 30, 2024 March 31, 2024 

Audited Unaudited Audited 

- 0.28 0.69 

- - 20.00 

- - 1.31 

2,805.16 2,995.14 3,171.22 

5,861.93 5,715.86 6,051.16 

50.00 50.00 50.00 

* ECS Rs. 1006.50 Crore as on March 31, 2025 (previous year Rs. 879.40 Crore as on March 31, 2024) being amount received by Trust in accordance with the Debenture Trust Deed, ls adjusted 
against Investments in Non-Convertible Debentures measured at FVTPL, which will be adjusted in the future NCO repayments. 
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Dlsclosures pursuant to Section H of Chapter 3 of the SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/44 dated May 15, 2024 
issued under the SE Bl (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulatlons, 2014. 

G) Standalone Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value 

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 

Book value 
A. Assets131 5,915.25 
B. Liabilities(ll 116.35 
C. Net Assets {A-B) 5,798.90 
D. Number of Units (No. in Crore) 66.40 
E. NAV (C/D) per unit in Rs. 87.33 

(ll The book value and fair value of liabilities are as reflected in the Balance Sheet. 

(Z) Breakup of Fair value of assets 

Particulars 

Fair Value of Investment in Equity shares and NCDs of SPV 
Add: Other Assets 

Fair value of lnvlT assets 

HJ Standalone Statement ofTotal Returns at Fair Value 

Particulars 

Total Comprehensive Income/ {Loss) (As per the Statement of Profit and Loss) 

Fair value121 

5,982.52 

116.35 
5,866.17 

66.40 
88.35 

Add/(less): Other ChanRes in Fair Value not recognized in Total Comprehensive Income 131 

Total Return 

INR in Crore except per unit data 
As at March 31, 2024 

Book value Fair va lue!2> 

6,239.35 6,694.04 

120.66 120.66 
6,118.69 6,573.38 

66.40 66.40 
92.15 99.00 

INR in Crore 
Asat Asat 

March 31 2025 March 31, 2024 

5,980.61 6,555.85 
1.91 138.19 

5 982.52 6 694.04 

INR inCrore 

Year Ended Vear Ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

820.87 1,079.23 
{387.42) (318.47) 

433.45 760.76 

!
3
l Fair value of assets as at the balance sheet dates and other changes in fair value for the year then ended, as disclosed in the above tables, 

are derived based on the fair valuation reports issued by the 'tndepen<;lent_ex_ternal registered valuer appointed under the lnvlT Regulations. 

Ns 
cf 

A\ 
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Date : May 19, 2025 
Place : Navi Mumbai 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 
(formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) 

(as an Investment Manager of Energy Infrastructure Trust (Formerly known as India Infrastructure 
Trust) 

~~ 
Akhil Mehrotra 
Managing Director of Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 
DIN : 07197901 

~ 
Suchlbrata Banerjee 
Chief Financial Officer of Encap Investment Manager ?rivate Limited 
PAN: AIGPB7900G 

~d!: 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 
ACS No. 36271 

Date : May 19, 2025 
Place : Navi Mumbai 
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Goregaon (East) 
Mumbai-4-00 063 
Maharashtra, India 

Independent Auditors' Report on Audit of Annual Consolidated Financial Information and 
Review of Six Monthly Consolidated Financial Information 

To 
The Board of Directors 
EnCap Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly known as "Brookfield India 
Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) 
(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Energy Infrastructure Trust) 

Opinion and Conclusion 

We have (a) audited the Consolidated Financial Information for the year ended March 31, 2025 and 
(b) reviewed the Consolidated Financial Information for the six months ended March 31, 2025 (refer 
'Other Matters' section below), which were subject to limited review by us, both included in the 
accompanying "Statement of Consolidated Financial Information for the six months and year ended 
March 31, 2025" of Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as "India Infrastructure 
Trust") ("the Trust") and its subsidiary, Pipeline Infrastructure Limited, (together referred to as "the 
Group") consisting of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, explanatory notes thereto and 
the additional disclosures as required by SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2024/44 dated May 15 , 2024 ("SEBI Circular"), ("the Statement"), being submitted by the 
Trust pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) 
Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time read with the SEBI Circular ("the InvIT 
Regulations"). 

(a) Opinion on Annual Consolidated Financial Information 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Consolidated Financial Information for the year ended March 31, 2025: 

i. is presented in accordance with the InvIT Regulations in the manner so required; and 

ii. gives a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles 
laid down in the Indian Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the InvIT Regulations, of the 
consolidated net profit (including other comprehensive income), its net assets at fair value 
as at March 31, 2025, total returns at fair value and net distributable cash flows for the 
year ended on that date and other financial information of the Trust. 

(b) Conclusion on Unaudited Consolidated Financial Information for the six months ended 
March 31, 2025 

With respect to the Consolidated Financial Information for the six months ended March 31, 2025, 
based on our review conducted as stated in paragraph (b) of 'Auditor's Responsibilities' section below, 
nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the Consolidated Financial 
Information for the six months ended March 31, 2025, prepared in accordance with the recognition 
and measurement principles laid down in the Indian Accounting Standards and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the InvIT Regulations, has 
not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of the Iiwrr Regulations, including the 
manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement. 

Basis for Opinion on the Audited Consolidated Financial Information for the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). Our responsibilities under· those Standards are further 

Regd. Office: One International Center, Tower 3, 31st floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai-400 013, Maharashtra, India. 

Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP is registered with limited Lial:lil ity having LLP identification No: MB-8737 
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described in paragraph (a) of the 'Auditors' Responsibilities' section below. We are independent of the 
Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
("the ICAI") and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ICAI's Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to Note 5 of the Consolidated Financial Information, which describes the 
presentation of "Unit Capital" as "Equity" to comply with Inv IT Regulations. Our opinion and conclusion 
is not modified In respect of this matter. 

Management and Board of Director's Responsibilities for the Statement 

This Statement, which includes the Consolidated Financial Information, is the responsibility of the 
Board of Directors of the Investment Manager (the "Board") and has been approved by them for the 
issuance. The Statement has been compiled from the related audited consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended March 31, 2025. This responsibility includes the preparation and 
presentation of the Consolidated Financial Information for the six months and year ended March 31, 
2025 that give a true and fair view of the net profit (including other comprehensive income), its net 
assets at fair value as at March 31, 2025, its total returns at fair value and its net distributable cash 
flows for the six months and/ or year ended on that date and other. financial information of the Group 
in accordance with the requirements of the InvIT Regulations; recognition and measurement 
principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the InvIT Regulations. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Information that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for 
the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Information by the Board of the Investment 
Manager, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Information, the respective Board of Directors of the 
Investment Manager and the subsidiary are responsible for assessing the ability of the Trust and the 
subsidiary to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors of the Investment 
Manager and Board of Directors of the subsidiary either intends to liquidate their respective entities 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the Investment Manager and the Subsidiary included in the Group 
are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group. 

Auditors' Responsibilities 

(a) Audit of the Annual Consolidated Financial Information for the year ended March 31, 
2025 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial 
Information for the year ended March 31, 2025 as a whole is free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the Consolidated 
Financial Information. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
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• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Annual Consolidated Financial 
Information, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

, Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board. 

, Evaluate the appropriateness and reasonableness of disclosures made by the Board in terms of 
the requirements specified under the InvIT Regulations. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the Statement or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to 
cease to continue as a going concern .. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Annual Consolidated Financial 
Information, including the disclosures, and whether the Annual Consolidated Financial 
Information represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the Standalone Financial Information of 
the entities within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Information. 
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial 
information of such entities included in the Consolidated Financial Information of which we are 
the independent auditors. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Annual Consolidated Financial Information that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the Annual Consolidated Financial Information may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in 
the Annual Consolidated Financial Information. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Trust and such other entities included in 
the Consolidated Financial Information of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

{b) Review of the Consolidated Financial Information for the six months ended March 31, 
2025 

We conducted our review of the Consolidated Financial Information for the six months ended March 
31, 2025 in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements ("SRE") 2410 'Review of Interim 
Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity', issued by the ICAI. A 
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review of Interim Financial Information consists of making inquiries, primarily of the entity's personnel 
responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. 
A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with SAs issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and consequently does not enable us to obtain 
assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. 
Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 

Other Matters 

The Statement includes the information for the six months ended March 31, 2025 being the balancing 
figure between audited figures in respect of the full financial year and the published year to date 
figures up to the six months ended September 30, 2024, which were subject to limited review by us. 
Our report on the Statement is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Place: Navi Mumbai 
Date: May 19, 2025 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) 

'½'wlp _ 
Rajendra Sharma 

Partner 
(Membership No. 119925) 

(UDIN:,Z5'1J l:l'f 2 . .5BMMBZ 1)2..3L+ S"' ) 
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Principal place of Business: Seawoods Grand Central, Tower-1, 3'd Level, C Wing - 301 to 304, 

Sector 40, Seawoods Railway Station, Navi Mumbai, Thane, Maharashtra - 400706, India 

Phone No: 022-35018001. E-mail: compliance@pipelineinvit.comWebsite:www.pipelineinvit.com 

(SEBI Registration Number: IN/lnulT/18-19/00008} 
STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE SIX MONTHS AND YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

INRin Crore ( )( exce :it Per u n lt data 
Sr. Particulars Six months Six months Slx months Year Year 
No. ended ended ended ended ended 

March September March March March 
31,2025 30,2024 31, 2024 31,2025 31,2024 

(Refer Note 3) (Refer Note 3) 

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Audited Audited 
I. INCOME AND GAINS 

Revenue from Operations 1,923.14 1,969.79 2,001.34 3,892.93 3,666.36 
Interest 38.55 14.28 24.47 52.83 37.30 
Profit on sale of investments 16.11 18.60 15.51 34,71 20.39 
Gain on sale of assets 5.65 20.73 112.39 26.38 -
Other Income• 19.85 9.53 (0.04) 29.38 118.65 
Total Income and gains 2 003.30 2 032.93 2,153.67 4 036.23 3,842.70 

II. EXPENSES AND LOSSES 
Valuation Expenses 0.15 0.12 0.16 0.27 0.23 
Audit Fees 1.81 2.06 2.36 3.87 4.49 
Insurance and Security Expenses 26.97 27.47 28.42 54.44 53.51 
Employee Benefits Expenses 17.94 16.77 19.22 34.71 36.01 
Project Management Fees 0.88 0.89 0.88 1.77 1.77 
Investment Management Fees 1.41 1.42 1.41 2.83 2.83 
Trustee Fees 0.10 0.11 0,10 0.21 0.21 
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 403.83 406.59 405.62 810.42 810.97 
Amortization of Intangible Assets 57.13 53.80 53.06 110.93 106.07 
Finance Costs 257.96 259.51 308,50 517.47 603.22 
Custodia ri Fees 0.18 0.17 0.18 0.35 0.38 
Repalrs and Maintenance 70.16 26.34 109.47 96.50 141.96 
Loss on sale of assets - 0.02 - 0.02 
Fair value loss on put option 0.12 (0.11) 0.33 0.01 1.00 
Fair value loss on ca II option 9.60 8.40 7.50 18.00 14.46 
Other Expenses** 1,122.67 1251.84 908.33 2 374.51 1242.11 
Total Expenses and losses 1.970.91 2.055.38 1,845.56 4 026.29 3 019.24 

m. Profit/ (Loss) for the period before tax (1-11) 32.39 (22.45) 308.11 9.94 823.46 
IV. Tax Expenses 

Current Tax 0.01 0.96 0.80 0.97 1.44 
Deferred Tax 0.01 - 0.01 -
Total Tax Expense 0.02 0.96 0.80 0.98 1.44 

v. Profit for the period after tax {Ill-IV) 32.37 (23.41) 307.31 8.96 822.02 
VI. Items of other Comprehensive Income/ {Loss) 

(al Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Actuarial gain/ {loss) during the period (0.68} 0.03 0.32 (0.65) 0.06 

(bl Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to - - . - -

profit or loss 

Other Comprehensive Income/ [Loss) f0.68) 0.03 0.32 f0.651 0.06 
VII. Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the period (V+VI) 31.69 (23.38) 307.63 8.31 822.08 

Profit for the year attributable to: 
Unit holders of the Trust 32.37 (23.41} 307.31 8.96 822.02 
Non• Controlling Interest - - - - -

Total Comprehensive Income/ (loss) attributable to 
Unit holders of the Trust 31.69 (23.38} 307.63 8.31 822.08 
Non- ControllinR Interest - - - - -

Earnings per unit (Refer Note El 
- Basic (jn Rs.) 0.49 (0.35) 4.63 0.13 12.38 
- Diluted {in Rs.l 0.49 (0.35\ 4.63 0.13 12.38 

*Other Income mainly includes rental income, supervision charges and other miscellaneous income. 

*' Other Expenses mainly includes RIL upside expense of Rs. 716.73 Crore, Rs. 954.78 Crore and Rs. 472.79 Crore for the six months ended March 31, 

2025, September 30, 2024 and March 31, 2024, respectively and Rs. 1,671.51 Crore and Rs. 472. 79 Crore for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 
2024, respectively, to Reliance Industries Limited (RIL), in lieu of RIL providing certainty of cash flows in accordance with the terms of the Pipeline Usage 

Agreement. Apart from this, other expenses include electricity, power and fuel, stores and spares consumption, professional fees, and other 
miscellaneous expenses. 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to Consolidated financial Information 

1 Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) ("Trust"/"lnvlT") is registered as a contributory irrevocable 
trust set up under the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 on November 22, 2018, and registered as an infrastructure investment trust under the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, on January 23, 2019 having registration 
number IN/lnvlT/18-19/00008. Investors can view the Consolidated Financial Information of Energy Infrastructure Trust on the Trust's 
webs·1te (www.pipelineinvit.com) or on the website of BSE (www.bseindia.com). 

The above Consolidated Financial Information has been reviewed by Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of 
Enca p Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited), acting in its 
capacity as Investment Manager of Energy Infrastructure Trust, at their meeting held on May 19, 2025. 

The name of the Trust changed from "India tnfrastructure Trust" to "Energy Infrastructure Trust" w.e.f. November 18, 2024 i.e. the 
date of unitholders' approval. Further, SEBI issued the revised registration certificate giving effect to the name change on December 
09, 2024. 

The Sponsor of the Trust is Rapid 2 Holdings Pte. Ltd. , a Company registered in Singapore. The Trustee to the Trust is Axis Trustee 
Services Limited (the "Trustee''). 

The Consolidated Financial Information comprises of the Financial Information of Energy Infrastructure Trust (Formerly known as India 
Infrastructure Trust) ("Trust"/"lnvlT") and its subsidiary Pipeline Infrastructure Limited ("PIL"/ "SPV") (collectively, the Group). 

The principal place of business of the Trust is Seawoods Grand Central, Tower-1, 3rd Level, C Wing - 301 to 304, Sector 40, Seawoods 
Railway Station, Navi Mumbai, Thane, Maharashtra - 400706, India. 

The name of the Investment Manager changed to Encap Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly known as Brookfield India 
Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) w.e.f. June 21, 2024. The registered office of the Investment Manager is changed from "Unit 1, 
4th Floor, Godrej BKC, Bandra Kurla Complex, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400051, India" to "Seawoods Grand Cent ral, Tower-1, 3rd Level, 
C Wing· 301 to 304, Sector 40, Seawoods Railway Station, Navi Mumbai, Thane, Maharashtra - 400706, India" w.e.f April 29, 2024. 

2 The Consolidated Financial Information of Trust and its Subsidiary, Pipeline Infrastructure Limited {"PIL" or "SPV") (together referred to 
as the "Group"} comprises of the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss, explanatory notes thereto and additional disclosures as 
required by Paragraph 4.6 of Chapter 4, Section A of the SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD•2/P/CIR/2024/44 dated May 15, 
2024 nhe SEBI Master Circular") for the six months and year ended March 31, 2025 ("Consolidated Financial Information"). 

3 The Consolidated Financial Information for the six months ended March 31, 2025, and corresponding six months ended March 31, 
2024, are the balancing figures between the audited figures in respect of full financial year and the published year to date figures upto 
the six months ended September of the respective financial years which were subject to limited review. 

4 The Consolidated Financial Information has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of SEBI {Infrastructure Investment 
Trusts) Regulations, 2014 (NlnvlT Regulations"), as amended from time to time read with the Paragraph 3.21 of Chapter 3 of the SEBI 
Master Circular; recognition and measurement principles laid down in the Indian Accounting Standards, as defined in Rule 2(1) (a) of 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India to the 
extent not inconsistent with the lnvlT Regulations (Refer Note 5 below on presentation of "Unit Capital" as "Equity" instead of 
compound instruments under Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation). 

5 Under the provisions of the lnvlT Regulations, Trust is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than 90% of the net distributable 
cash flows of the Trust for each financial year. Accordingly, a portion of the Unit Capital contains a contractual obligation of the Trust 
to pay to its Unitholders cash distributions. Hence, the Unit Capital is a compound financial instrument which contains equity and 
liability components in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation. However, in accordance with Chapter 3 and 
Chapter 4 of the SEBI Master Circular, the Unit capital have been presented as "Equity" in order to comply with the requirements of 
Section H of Chapter 3 to the SEBI Master Circular, dealing with the minimum presentation and disclosure requirements for key 
financial statements. Consistent with Unit Capital being classified as equity, t he distril:\utions to Unitholders is also presented in 
Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity when the distributions are approved by the Board of Directors of Investment Manager. 

2 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Information 

6 The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager have declared four distributions during the year ended March 31, 2025 as follows: 

(Amount in INR' 
Date of declaring Date of Payment Return of Capital Return on Capital Misc. distribution Total Distribution 
Distribution {Per unit) (Per unit) (Per unit) (Per Unit) 

April 08 2024 April 18, 2024 1.9298 3.7357 0.0214 5.6869 
Julv os 2024 July 16, 2024 1.60S9 2.5761 - 4.1820 
October 07, 2024 October 16, 2024 1.9162 2.1894 - 4.1056 
Janua rv 09, 2025 January 15, 2025 1.8985 1.3056 - 3.2041 

After the closure of the year ended March 31, 2025 and as on the date of this information, following distribution(s) were declared and 
made by the Investment Manager of the Trust: 

(Amount in INR 
Date of declaring Date of Payment Return of capital Return on Capital Other Income (Per Total Distribution 
Distribution (Per unit) (Per unit) unit) (Per Unit) 

APril 10, 2025 April 16, 202S 2.0222 2.0528 - 4.0750 

7 The Trust had obtained a Corporate Cred'tt Rating (uCCR") from CRISIL Ratings Limited ("CRISIL"), which had assigned "CRISIL 

AAA/Stable" (pronounced as CRISIL Triple A rating with Stable outlook) to the Trust. The aforesaid rating has been re-affirmed by 
CRISILon March 11, 2025 which was reviewed by CRISIL on April 15, 2025. 

The Trust had also obtained a Credit Ratings from CARE Ratings Limited ("CARE"), which had assigned "CARE AAA/Stable" to the Trust 

on February 26, 2024. The aforesaid rating has been re-affirmed by CARE on January 24, 2025, which was reviewed by CARE on April 
21, 2025. 

Further, SPV had obtained Credit ratings of "CRISIL AM/Stable" from CRISIL Ratings Limited and "CARE AAA/Stable" from CARE Ratings 

Limited for its Listed Non-Convertible Debentures issued on March 11, 2024. As on date, CRISIL Ratings Limited and CARE Ratings 

Limited have reaffirmed the rating on March 11, 2025, and October 23, 2024, respectively. There is no revision in the cred'tt ratings. 

8 Debenture Redemption Reserve (ORR) is not required to be created due to absence of profits available for payment of dividend in it s 
subsidiary. The Group has accumulated losses as at March 31, 2025. 

9 The Group's activities comprise of transportation of natural gas through pipel'tne in certain states in India. Based on the guiding 

principles given in Ind AS 108 on "Segment Reportingu, since this activity falls within a single operating segment, segment-wise 
position of business and its operations is not applicable to the Group. 

10 The Group has 6,45,200 secured, rated, listed, redeemable Non- Convertible Debentures ("Listed NCDs") and the amount outstanding 
as on March 31, 2025 including interest payable is Rs. 6,578.63 Crore (Rs. 6,479.58 Crore as at March 31, 2024). 

11 The Listed Secured, Redeemable Non - Convertible Debentures (NCDs) referred to above are secured by way of first ranking charge 
(pari passu) in favour of the Debenture Trustee {for benefit of the Debenture holders): 

(a) Assignment of the Pipeline Usage Agreement ("PUA") and Operation & Maintenance Contract; 

(b) First ranking charge by Usted NCDs on all assets of the SPV, including all rights, title, interest, and benefit of the SPV in respect of 
and over the 'East West Pipeline', the escrow account of the SPV and all receivables of the SPV (including under the PUA); 

(c) The security creation and perfection on the movable and immovable assets as specified 'in the Deed of Hypothecation, the 
Indenture of Mortgage along with Memorandum of Entry has been completed. 

(d} The Security cover exceeds hundred percent of the principa I amounts of the said NCDs. 

12 There is no change in the accounting policies during the period under consideration. 

13 Previous period/ year figures have been regrouped, whatever necessary to make them comparable with those of current period/ year. 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerlv known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to consolidated Financial Information 

Additional Disclosures as required by Paragraph 4.6 of Chapter 4 of the SEBI Master Circular 
A) Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFsJ of PIL (SPV) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows ~<:F) pursuant to guidance under SEBI Circ1.1lilr No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS•PoD/P/CIR/2023/184 dated D~mber 6, 2023 (Refer Note 4 below) 
Pa rticu la rs 

, Cash fl ow from ope rating a cti 11ities as per Cash Flow Statement of SPV 
Adjustments:-

Add: Treasury income/ income from investing activities (interest income received from FD, tax refund, any other income in the nature of interest, profit on sale of 

Mutual funds, investments, assets etc., dividend income etc., excluding any Ind AS adjustments. Further clarffied that these amounts will be considered on a cash 
receipt basis). 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infra,tructure investments, infrastructure assets or shares of SPVs or Investment Entity adjusted for the follow;ng 
• Applicable capital gains and other taxes 

• Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
• Directly attributable transaction costs 

• Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7) of lnvlT Regulations or any other relevant provisions of the lnvlT Regulations (Refer 
Note 3). 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure investments, infrastructure assets or sale of shares of SPVs or Investment Entity not distributed pursuant to an earlier 

plan to re-invest as per Regulation 18(7) of ln11IT Regulations or any other relevant provisions of the lnvlT Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended to be 
invested subsequently. 

Less: Finance cost on Borrowings, excluding amortisation of any transaction costs as per Profit and Loss Account and anv shareholder debt/ loan from Trust. 

Less: Debt repayment (to include principal repayments as per scheduled EMl's except if refinanced through new debt including overdraft facilities and to exclude 

any debt repayments/ debt refinanced through new debt, in any form or equity raise as well as repayment of any shareholder debt/ loan from Trust). 

Less: any reserve required to be created under the terms of, or pursuant to the obligations arising in accordance with, any: 

(i). loan agreement entered with banks/ financial institution from whom the Trust or any ofits SPVs/ Hold Cos have availed debt, or 
(ii}. terms and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable to debt securities issued by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ Hold Cos, or 

(iii). terms and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable to external commercial borrowings availed by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, 

(iv). agreement pursuant to which the SPV / HoldCo operates or owns the infrastructure asset, or generates revenue or cashflows from such asset {such as, 

concession agreement. transmission services agreement, power purchase agreement, lease agreement, and any other agreement of a like nature, by whatever 
name called); or (Refer Note 1 & 2) 

(v). statutory, judicial, regulatory, or governmental stipulations; or 

Less: any capital expenditure on existing assets owned / leased by the SPV or Holdco, to the extent not funded by debt/ equity or from reserves created in the 
earlier years. 

Net Distributable Cash Flows 

!
Add: 10% of NDCF withheld in line with the Regulations in earlier years 

Net Distributable Cash Flows including Surplus Cash at SPV Level 

Six months 
ended 

March 

31,2025 
Unaudited 

331.76 

56.73 

15.15 

(256.09) 

287.17 

(40.58) 

Six months 

ended 

September 
30,2024 

Unaudited 
883.27 

27.96 

66.89 

(257.49) 

(484.79) 

(5.53) 

394.14 I 230.31 
98.47~ .oo 

492 . .«l>-~ ~~1 

((~tv MLQFs>AI ~ ~ )) 

~ 0 

~o * a"" 

{INR in Crore) 

Year 
ended 

March 
31 2025 
Audited 

1,215.03 

84.69 

82.04 

(513.581 

(197.62) 

(46.11) 

624.45 

;~i ll ~~ ,, 
• :(..)nu.1.~ 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to consolidated Financial Information 

Notes: 

1. The retention amount of Rs. 197 .62 Crore comprises of Rs. 672.94 Crore upside payable by Pl L to Reliance Industries Limited (RIL) under the Pipeline Usage Agreement ( PUA), in lieu of RIL providing certainty of cash 
flows to Pll ("RIL Upside") and Rs. 31.42 Crore towards Expenditure Component Sweep to be paid to the Trust as per the terms of the Debenture Trust Deed. The retention amount is net of amount retained in previous 
year ended March 31, 2024 of Rs. 506. 74 crore, which has been utilised during the current year. 

2. The net distributable cash flows available to the Trust and consequently to the u nitholders is after considering the RIL Upside amount payable in accordance with the PUA. 
3. This pertains to proceeds on sale of Property, plant and equipment. 

4. In order to promote standardisation of framework for computing NDCF, a revised framework was defined by SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-PoD/P/CIR/2023/184 dated December 6, 2023 ("Revised NDCF 

Framework") (earlier SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 6, 2023). Energy Infrastructure Trust {Including the SPV) has computed the NDCF for the period ended September 30, 2024 
and March 31, 2025 as per the Revised N DCF Framework applicable with effect from April 01, 2024. Comparative information have been provided as per the framework applicable for the previous year. 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/1!5 dated Jul.'L!,_ 2023 
Description 

iProfit /(loss) after tax as per Statement of profit and loss (standalone) (A) 
Adjustments:-

Add: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation as per statement of profit and loss. In case of impairment reversal, same needs to be deducted from profit and loss. 
Add: Interest and Additional Interest (as defined in the NCO terms) debited to Statement of profit and Joss in respect of loans obtained / debentures issued to Trust (net of any 
reduction or interest chargeable by Project SPV to the Trust). 

Add/ (Less): Increase/ decrease in net working capital deployed in the ordinary course of business. 
Add/ ( Less): Net Contracted Capacity Payment (CCP). 
Less: Capital expenditure, if any. 

Add/ ( Less): Any other item of non-cash expense/ non cash income { net of actual cash flows for these items), if deemed necessary by the Investment Manager, including but not 
limited to 

(a) Any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in statement of profit and loss and·expenditure on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair 
value. 

(b) Interest cost as per effective interest rnte method (difference between accrued and actual paid). 
(c) Deferred tax 

(d) Lease rent recognised on straight line.basis. 

Less: Amount reserved for expenditure/ payments in the intervening period till next proposed distribution, if deemed necessary by the Investment Manager, invested in permitted 
investments including but not limited to 

(a) Amount reserved for major maintenance whlch has not been provided in statement of profit and loss 

(b) Amount retained /reserved for specified purposes including working capital requirements. 

I

Total Adjustments {B) 
Net Distributable Cash Flows (C)=(A+B) 
Notes: 

1. The difference between SPV NDCF and the Cash flows/ Proceeds received by Trust from SPV is primarily on account of utilization of opening Funds at the S PV level for the six 
2024. 

INR in Crore) 
Six months Year 

ended ended 
March March 

31,2024 31,2024 
Unaudited Audited 

(575.05) (239.12) 

453.39 905.31 
302.21 591.53 

664.68 586.00 
(527.78) (824.97) 

(37.45) (56.77) 
623.54 533.82 

(472.41) (506.74) 

1,006.18 1,228.18 
431.13 I 9s9.o& 

ended March 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Information 

Amount paid by SPV to lnvlT is as per table below: . - ·-

Particulars 

Amount paid to lnvlTtowards principal repayment of debentures 
Amount paid to lnvlTtowards Advance 
Amount paid to lnvlT towards Interest 
Total 

Bl Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFsJ of the Trust 

Six months 

ended 

March 

31, 2025 
188.68 
64.62 

239.31 
492.61 

Six months Six months Vear 
ended ended ended 

September March March 
30 2024 31,2024 31, 2025 
172.29 170.28 360.97 
62.48 68.6S 127.10 

289.S4 302.21 S28.85 
524.31 541.14 1,016.92 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFJ pursuant to guidance under SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/ODHS/DDHS-PoD/P/CIR/2023/184 dated December 6, 2023 (Refer note 4 in section A above: 
Particulars 

I

Cashflows from operating activities of the Trust 

(+) Cash flows received from SPV's / Investment entities which represent distributions of NDCF computed as per relevant framework* 

,(+I Treasury income/ income from investing activities of the Trust (interest income received from FD, any investment entities as defined in Regulation 

18(5), tax refund, any other income in the nature of interest, profit on sale of Mutual funds, investments, assets etc., dividend income etc., excluding any 

Ind AS adjustments. Further clarified that these amounts will be considered on a cash receipt basis}. 

( +) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure investments, infrastructure assets or shares of SPVs/Holdcos or Investment Entity adjusted for the following: 
• Applicable capital gains and other taxes. 

• Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds. 
• Directly attributable transaction costs. 

• Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7) of lrwlT Regulations or any other relevant provisions of the lnvlT Regulations. 
(+I Proc"eeds from sale of infrastructure investments, infrastructure assets or sale of shares of SPVs/ Hold cos or Investment Entity not distributed pursuant 

to an earlier plan to re-invest as per Regulation 18(7) of lnvlT Regulations or any other relevant provisions of the lnvlT Regulations, if such proceeds are 
not intended to be investec:I subsequently. I 

(-1 Finance cost on Borrowings, excluding amortisation of any transaction costs as per Profit and Loss account of the Trust. 

(-) Debt repayment at Trust level (to include principal repayments as per scheduled EM l's except if refinanced through new debt including overdraft 
(-) any reserve required to be created under the terms of, or pursuant to the obligations arising in accordance with, any: 
(i). loan agreement enterec:I with financia I institution, or 

(ii). terms and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable to debt securities issued by the Trust or a11y of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or (iii). terms 

and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable to external commercial borrowings availed by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ Hold Cos, or 

(ivl. agreement pursuant to which the Trust operates or owns the infrastructure asset, or generates revenue or cashflows from such asset (such as, 
concession agreement, transmission services agreement, power purchase agreement, lease agreement, and any other agreement of a like nature, by 
whatever name called); or 

(v). statutory, judicial, regulatory, or governmental stipulations; or, 

(-) any capital expenditure on existing assets owned/ leased by the lnvll, to the extent not funded by debt/ equity or from contractual reserves created 
in the earlier years. 

Net Distributable cash flow at Tnist level 

Six months, 
ended 

Marchi 

n. 20251 
Unaudited 

(5.76) 
492.62 

0.15 

487.01 

Six months 

ended 

September 
30, 2024 

Unaudited 

(6.44} 

524.30 

2.13 

(IN R in Crorej '· 
Vear 

ended 

March 

31,2024 
341.75 
138.10 
S91.S3 

1,071.38 

{INR in Crorel 
Vear 

ended 
March 

31,_202S 
Audited 
(12.20) 

1,016.92 

2.28 

Y

-~ 

I 

~-
; 

./ 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Information 

Particulars 

Net Distributable Cash Flows of Trust (as calculated above) 

Add: 10% of NDCF withheld in line with the Regulations in earlier year 

Add : Surolus Cash on account of maturity of deposits# 

Net Distributable cash Flows including Surplus Cash at Trust Level 

Six months 

ended 
March 

31,2025 
Unaudited 

487.01 

-

487.01 

_{INR in Crore) I 

Six months Year 
ended ended 

September March 
30,2024 31 2025 

Unaudited Audited 
519.99 1,007.00 

90.31 90.31 
45.04 45.04 

655.34 1,142.35 

n These deposits were restricted upto March 22, 2024, pursuant to Joan covenant of debt raised by SPV, These restrictions were removed subsequent to debt refinancing at SPV in year ended March 31, 2024. 
Further, these deposits were not made out of any debt raised at Trust or SPV level. 

The Net dlstributable Cash Flows (NDCFs) as above is distributed as follows in the respective manner: 

For the year ended March 31, 2025 Return of Capital 

April 18, 2024 
July 16, 2024 
For the half year ended September 30, 2024 (a) 

October 16, 2024 
January 1S, 2025 

For the half year ended March 31, 2025 (b) 
Total for the year ended March 31, 2025 (a+b) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated Jul1 6, 2023 
Pa rtlcu la rs 

Cash flows recefved from Portfolio Assets in the form of Interest. 
Cash flows received from Portfolio Assets in the form of Dividend. 

Any other income accruing at the Trust level and not captured above, including but not limited to interest/return on surplus cash invested by the Trust. 

Cash flows/ Proceeds from the Portfolio Assets towards the repayment of the debt issued to the Portfolio Assets by tne Trust* 

Proceeds from the Portfolio Assets for a capital reduction by way of a buy back or any other means as permitted, subject to applicable law. 
Total cash flow at the Trust level (A). 

128.14 

106.63 
234.77 

127.24 
126.06 
253.30 

488.07 

Return on capital 

248.05 
171.0S 

419.10 

145.38 
86.69 

232.07 

651.17 

Less: Any payment of fees, interest and expense incurred at the Trust level, including but not limited to the fees of the Investment Manager, Trustee, Project Manager, Auditor, 
Valuer, credit rating agency and the Debenture Trustee. 

Less: Income tax (if applicable) at the standalone Trust level and payment of other statutory dues. 
[Total cash outflows/retention at the Trust level (B; 
!Net Distributable cash Flows (CJ=: (A+B) 

(INR in Crorel 
Miscellaneous Total 

Income 
1.42 377.61 

- 277.68 
1.42 655.29 

- 272.62 
- 212.75 

- 485.37 
1.42 1,140.66 

flNR in Crore) 
Six months Year 

ended ended 
March March 

31,2024 31 2024 
Unaudited Audited 

302.21 591.53 

4.96 5.10 

238.93 479.85 

1,076.48 
{12.74) 

(1.19) 

1,062.SS 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Information 

111c 1'11cL ur.)u 1uu1.L1u•~ '-'"'.::," rtuw:, \l'iU\..r-!lil d:'.) dUove 1.s u1stnou1ea as 1011ows 1n tne respective manner: 

For the year ended March 31, 2024 

April 18, 2023 
July 19, 2023 
For the half year ended September 30, 2023 (al 

October 18, 2023 
January 17, 2024 
For the half year ended March 31, 2024 lb) 
Total for the year ended March 31, 2024 (a+bl 

~ Includes advances from Pipeline Infrastructure Limited lSPV) ---~--~-~--·-.. --~ ··-···.' 
Pa rticula rs 

Adva nee from SPV (Expenditure Component Sweep) 

Return of Ca pita I 

121.74 
119.17 
240.91 

118.21 
120.72 
238.93 
479.84 

Six months Six months 

ended ended 

March September 

31 2025 30 2024 
64.62 62.48 

(INR in Crorel 
Return on capital Miscellaneous Total 

Income 
138.15 259.89 
144.08 - 263.25 
282.23 - 523.14 

143.78 - 261.99 
62.53 4.68 187.93 

206.31 4.68 449.92 
488.54 4.68 973.06 

(INR in Crorel 
Six months Year Year 

ended ended ended 

March March March 

31 2024 31 2025 31 2024 
68.65 127.10 138.10 

Expenditure Component Sweep (ECS) is the amount being paid to Energy Infrastructure Trust by the SPV as an advance in accordance with the Debenture Trust Deed and is adjusted against Non Convertible 
Debentures, whfch is measured at FVTPL. This will be adjusted from the future NCO payments to lnvlT along with interest at the rate of 6.04%. 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to ConsolJdated Financial Information 

C) Pursuant to Investment Management Agreement, the Investment Manager is entitled to an Investment Management fee of Rs. 0.20 Crore per month (exclusive of GST). Investment Manager is also 
entitled to reimbursement of any cost incurred in relation to activity pertaining to Trust such as admlnistration of Trust, appointment of stoff, director, transaction expenses incurred with respect to 
investing, monitoring and disposing off investment of Trust. 

DJ Pursuant to Project Management Agreement, the Project Mon ager is entitled to a Project Management fee of Rs. 0.125 Crore per month (exclusive of GST). 

E) Statement of Earnings per unit - . 
Sr.No. Partfculars Six months ended Six months ended Six months ended Year ended 

Marth September March March 
31,2025 30,2024 31,2024 31,2025 

1 Profit/ {Loss) for the period (INR in Crore) 32.37 (23.41} 307.31 8.96 
2 Number of units outstanding for computation of basic and diluted 66.40 66.40 66.40 66.40 

earnings per unit (No. in Crore} 

3 Earnings per unit 0.49 (0.35) 4.63 0.13 
[Basic and Diluted] (in IN R Per Unit.) 

F) Statement of Contingent liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments 

Sr.No. Particulars As at March 31, 2025 

1 Contingent Liabilities -
2 Commitments 2.85 

G) Statement of Related Party Disclosures 

As per SEBI lnvlT regulations and as per Ind AS 24, disclosure oftransactions with related party are given below. 

List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationshlps: 

I. list of related parties as per the requirements of Ind AS 24 - uRelated Party Disclosures" 

(A} Ultimate Controlling Party 

(Bl Parent and Sponsor 

(Cl Members of same group with whom there were transactions 

(D) Joint Venture of Parent with whom there were transactions 

(El Post-employment benefit plan 

Brookfield Corporation 

Rapid Ho!dings 2 Pte. Ltd. 

Summit Digitel Infrastructure Umited 

Pipeline Management Services Private Limited 

Pipeline Infrastructure Umited Employees Gratui1 

Year ended 
March 

31, 2024 

822.02 
66.40 

12..38 

(INR in Crore) J 
As at March 31, 202~ 

-
15.42. 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to Consolidated Finandal Information 

(Fl Key Managerial Personnel of the Investment Manager {Encap Investment Manager Private Limited) 

{G) Key Managerial Personnel of the SPV 

II. List of additional related parties as per Regulations 2(1)(z:v) of the SEBI lnvlT Regulations 

A) Parties to Energy Infrastructure Trust with whom there were transactions 

Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd. (Sponsor) (as per Paragraph 4 of SEBI {lnvlT) Regulations, 2014, as amended) 

Ms. Pooja Aggarwa I - Chief Executive Officer (from June 01, 2023 to 
December 12, 2023) 

Mr. Darshan Vora - Chief Financial Officer (from June 01, 2023 to 
December 12, 2023) 

Mr. Akhil Mehrotra - Managing Director (effective December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Suchibrata Banerjee - Chief Financial Officer (effective December 12, 
2.023) 

Mr. Akhil Mehrotra - Managing Director (MD) {redesignated from MD & 
Chief Executive Officer to MD w .e.f. November 07, 2023) 

Mr. Mahesh Iyer- Chief Financial Officer 

Ms. Neha Jalan - Company Secretary (upto September 9, 2023) 
Ms. Astrid Lobo- Company Secretary (from November 7, 2023 to May 22, 
2024) 

Ms. Suneeta Mane- Company Secretary (effective May 23, 2024) 

En cap Investment Manager Private limited (formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) (Investment Manager) (as per Paragraph 4 of SEB I (lnvlTI Regulations, 
2014, as amended) 

ECI India Managers Private Limited (Project Manager) (as per Paragraph 4 of SEBI (lnvlT) Regulations, 2014, as amended) 

Axis Trustee Services limited (Trustee) (as per Paragraph 4 of SEBI {lnvll") Regulations, 2014, as amended) 

8} Promoters of parties to Energy Infrastructure Trust with whom there were transactions 
Axis Bank Limited ( Promoter of Axis Trustee Services Limited} 

C} Directors of the parties to the Trust specified in l{B) and ll{A) Above 

(i) ECI India Managers Private Limited 

Mr. Darshan Vora 

Ms. Sukanya Viswanathan (from August 26, 2022 to August 11, 2023) 
Ms. Megha Ashok Dua (from August 10, 2023 to July 10, 2024) 
Ms. Puja Tandon (effective July 10, 2024) 

10 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to ConsolJdated Financial Information 

(ii} Encap Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Umlted) 
Mr. Sridhar Rengan {upto December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Chetan Desai (upto May 31, 2023) 
Mr. Narendra Aneja (upto May 31, 2023) 
Ms. Swati Mandava (from June 28, 2022 to May 25, 2023) 
Mr. Prateek Shroff (Effective May 26, 2023) 
Ms. Radhika Haribhakti (from June 01, 2023 upto December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Jagdish Kini (from June 01, 2023 upto December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Arun Bala krishanan (Effective June 01, 2023) 
Ms. Rinki Ganguli (from June 1, 2023 upto December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Akhil Mehrotra (Effective December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Chaitanya Pan de (Effective December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Varun Sa>eena (Effective December 12, 2023) 
Ms. Kavita Venugopal (Effective December 12, 2023) 

(iii) Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd 
Mr. Liew Yee Foong 

Ms. Ho Yeh Hwa {upto November 18, 2024) 
Mr. Tan Aik Thye Derek 
Ms. Tay Zhi Yun 
Ms. Talisa Poh Pei Lynn 

Tan Jin Li, Alina - (effective November 18, 2024) 

(iv) Axis Trustee Services Limited 
Ms. Deepa Rath (upto February 5, 2025) 

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Dahiya (upto January 15, 2024) 
Mr.Ganesh Sankaran (upto January 15, 2024) 

Mr. Sum it Bali (from January 16, 2024 to August 16, 2024) 
Mr. Prashant Joshi (effective January 16, 2024) 
Mr. Arun Mehta (effective May 3, 2024) 
Mr. Parmod Kumar Nagpal (effective May 3, 2024) 
Mr. Rahul Choudhary (effective February 06, 2025) 

(D) List of additional related parties as per Section 2(76){iv) of the Companies Act, 2013, with whom there were transactions: 

Private company In whfch a director or his relative is a member or a director 
Sanmarg Projects Private limited 
India Gas Solutions Private Limited 

\ 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Information 

G) Statement of Related Party Disclosures 

HI. Transactions with related parties during the period 

Sr. Particulars 
No 

1 Trustee Fee 

Axis Trustee Services Limited 
2 Investment Manager Fee 

Encap Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly known as 
Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited I 

3 Return of Unit Capital 
Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. ltd 

4 Legal/Professional fees/reimbursement of expenses 
Encap Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly known as 
Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) 

5 Project Manc1gement fee 
ECI India Managers Private Limited 

6 Return on Unit Capital 
Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd. 

7 Other Income Distributed 
Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd. 

8 Pipeline Maintenance Expenses 
Pipeline Management Services Private Limited 

9 Income from Support Services 

Pipeline Management Services Private Limited 
10 Rental and O&M reimbursement Income 

Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited 
11 Income from Support Services 

ECI India Managers Private Limited 

12 Income from Support Services 
Encap Investment Manager Private Limited {formerly known as 
Brookfield India Infrastructure M anager Private Limited) 

13 Salary cost reimbursement (for KMPs) 
Encap Investment Manager Private limited (formerly known as 
Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) 

Relationship 

Trustee 

Investment Manager 

Sponsor 

Investment Manager 

Project Manager 

Sponsor 

Sponsor 

Joint Venture of Parent 

Joint Venture of Parent 

Members of same group 

Project Ma nag er 

Investment Manager 

Investment Manager 

Six months Six months 
ended ended 
March September 

31,202S 30,2024 

Unaudited Unaudited 

0.10 0.11 

1.41 1.42 

189.97 176.08 

0.43 0.29 

0.88 0.89 

174.06 314.32 

- 1.06 

30.64 27.56 

2.75 1.98 

0.12 0.18 

0.02 0.03 

0.05 0.05 

1.28 1.26 

Six months Year 
ended ended 
March March 

31, 2024 31,2025 

Unaudited Audited 

0.10 0.21 

1.41 2.83 

179.19 366.05 

1.57 0.72 

0.88 1.77 

154.73 488.38 

3.51 1.06 

3D.97 58.20 

2.61 4.73 

(0.02) 0.30 

0.02 0.05 

- 0.10 

~ 

/fj-~ 
7 

KINs 2.54 

-;;;/.(jl 

l(s~UMBAr;:: } 
o> V) 

~o * 6-<:--
--

(INR in Crore) l 

Year 
ended 

March 
31,2024 

Audited 

0.21 

2.83 

359.88 

1.75 

1.77 

366.40 

3.51 

57.43 

4.48 

0.19 

0.05 

-

-

' ~I 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Information 

GJ Statement of Related Party Disclosures 

Ill. Transactions with related parties during the period ' -, 
Sr. Particulars 
No 

14 Bank charges paid 

Axis Bank Limited 
15 Interest on NCDs 

Axis Bank Limited 

16 Arranger Fees 

Axis B,rnk Limited 

17 Purchase of gift cards 

Axis Bank Li m ited 

18 SUG Purchase 

India Gas Solutions Private Limited 

19 Income from gas transportation 

India Gas Solutions Private Limited 

20 other income 

India Gas Solutions Private Limited 

21 Repairs & maintenance expenses 

Sanmarg Projects Private Limited 

22 Repayment of NCOs 

Axis Bank Limited 
2.3 Investment in NCDs 

Axis Bank Limited 
24 Contribution to Gratuity Fund 

Pipeline Infrastructure Limited Employees Gratuity Fund 

Relationship Six months 

ended 

March 

31,202S 
Unaudited 

Promoter of the Trustee 0.02 

Promoter of the Trustee 4.72 

Promoter of the Trustee -

Promoter of the Trustee -

Private company in which a director or his 65.02 
relative is a member or a director 

Private company in which a director or his 95.97 
relative is a member or a director 

Private company in which a director or his . 

relative is a member or a director 

Private company in which a director or his 5.61 
relative is a member or a director 

Promoter of the Trustee 

Promoter of the Trustee . 

Post-employment benefit plan 

(INR in Crorel 
Six months Six months Year Year 

ended ended ended ended 
September March March March 

30, 2024 31, 2024 31,2025 31, 2024 
Unaudited Unaudited Audited Audited 

0.04 O.D2 0.06 0.04 

11.18 42.71 15.90 83.10 

- 10.17 . 10.17 

- 0-07 . 0.07 

56.57 70.52 121.59 125.99 

104.16 112.78 200.13 207.45 

- - - 0.01 

6.59 7.07 12.20 10.08 

. 900.00 - 900.00 

- 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 

0.24 0.24 0.24 0.24 ---

~ ~ ~ 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Information 

G) Statement of Related Party Disdosures 

Sr. Particulars 
No 

25 Managerial Remuneration 

Akhil Mehrotra 
Mahesh Iyer 
Neha Jalan 

(Resie:ned w.e.f. Seotember 9, 2023) 
Astrid Lobo 

(from November 7, 2023 to May 22, 2024) 
Suneeta Mane 

'Aooointed w.e.f. Mav 23 20241 
26 Sitting Fees 

Mr. Arun Balakrishnan 
Mr. Chaitanya Pande 
Ms. Radhika Haribhakti 
Ms. Kavita Venugopal 

IIA noointed w.e.f. Aue:ust 9 20231 

IV. Outstanding balances as at .e_eriod end ' - - ---- --
Sr. Particulars 
No 

1 Reimbursement of Expense payable 
Encap Investment Manager Private Umited (formerly known as 
Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) 

2 Units value 
Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd. 

3 Other Current Financial Assets 
Pipeline Management Services Private Limited 

4 Other Current Financial Assets 

Summit Digitel lnfrastructu re Limited 
5 Other Current Financial Assets 

ECI India Managers Private Limited 
6 Advance given 

Pipeline Management Services Privat e Limited 

Relationship Sill months 
ended 
March 

31,2025 
Unaudited 

Key Managerial Personnel of SPV 1.85 

Key Managerial Personnel of SPV 0.69 

Key Managerial Personnel of SPV -

Key Managerial Personnel of SPV -

Key Managerial Personnel of SPV 0.13 

Independent Director of SPV 0.09 

Independent Director of SPV 0.08 

Independent Director of SPV -
Independent Director of SPV 0.07 

Relations 

lnvestment Manager 

Sponsor 

Joint Venture of Parent 

Members of same gro-ip 

Project Manager 

Joint Venture of Parent 

I (INR in Crorel 
Six months Six months Year Yecir 

ended ended ended ended 
September March March March 

30,2024 31, 2024 31,2025 31, 2024 
Unaudited Unaudited Audited Audited 

2.45 1.59 4.30 3.69 
1.30 1.15 1.99 2.02 

- - - 0.59 

- 0.04 - 0.04 

0.16 0.29 

0.06 0.06 0.15 0.10 
0.06 0.05 0.14 0.08 

- - - O.o3 
0.07 0.06 0.14 0.07 

{INR in Crore) I 

Asat As at As at 
March 31, September 30, March 31, 

2025 2024 2024 
Audited Unaudited Audited 

- 0.28 0.69 

2,805.16 2,995.14 3,171.22 

1.95 1.17 0.62 

0.40 ~ - t.... 1.17 

t'f'~~ ~~ ~ 

- -

~ (= M~ BA 1t )f ) - o , \ 0.19 -

~ ,-;;-9, ·· 
~~ 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Information 

GJ Statement of Related Party Disclosures 

Sr. Pa rtic u la rs 
No 

7 Sundry Creditors 
Pipeline Management Services Private Limited 

8 Sundry Creditors 

Sanmarg Projects Private Limited 
9 Sundry Creditors 

India Gas Solutions Private Limited 
10 Sundry Creditors 

Encap Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly known as 
Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) 

11 Sundry Debtors 
India Gas Solutions Private Limited# 

12 NCDs principal payable 

Axis Bank ltd* 

I {INR in Crore) 
Relations Asat As at Asat 

March 31, September 30, March 31, 
202S 2024 2024 

Audited Unaudited Audited 

Joint Venture of Parent 16.44 - 4.43 

Private company in which a director or his relative is a member or a director 1.18 1.02 0.52 

Private company in which a director or his relative is a member or a director 3.39 3.63 6.87 

Investment Manager 0.18 0.90 -

Private company in which a director or his relative is a member or a director 8.93 9.58 9.10 

Promoter of Trustees 75.00 100.00 650.00 

• Axis Bank Ltd had subscribed to NCDs of Rs.1,000 Crore on March 11~ Bank Ltd held NCDs of Rs. 75 Crore as at March 31, 2025, Rs. 100 Crore as at September 30, 2024 and Rs. 650 Crore as at March 31, 
2024 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as Ind la Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to Consolidated Flnanclal Information 

Dlsclosures pursuant to Section Hof Chapter 3 of the SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/44 dated May 15, 2024 
Issued under the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulatlons, 2014. 

H) Consolldated Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value 

As at March 31, 2025 
Particulars Book Value Fair Value 
A. Assetsn 13,659.91 14,090.80 
B. Liabilities (Refer Note 1) 8,224.63 8,224.63 
C. Net Assets {A-B) 5,435.28 5,866.17 
D. Number of Units (No. in Crore) 66.40 66.40 
E NAV {C/Dl UN R Per unit) 81.86 88.35 

Note 1. The book value and fair value of liabilities are as reflected in the Balance Sheet. 

I) Consolidated Statement ofTotal Returns at Fair Value 

Particulars 

Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) 

{As per the Statement of Profit and Loss). 
Add/(less): Other Changes in Fair Value (if cost model is followed) not recognized in Total ,_ 

n''"~ f nr~m .. # 

Total Return 

IIN R in Crore) (excePt oer unit data 

As at March 31, 2024 
Book Value Fair Value 

14,683.80 14,689.55 

8,116.17 8,116.17 
6,567.63 6,573.38 

66.40 66.40 
98.91 99.00 

IINR in Crore' 
Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31. 2024 
8.31 822.08 

425.14 (61.32) 

433.45 760.76 

# Fair value of assets as at the balance sheet dates and other changes in fair value for the year then ended, as disclosed in the above tables, are 

derived based on the fair valuation reports issued by the independent external registered valuer appointed under the lnvlT Regulations. 

The Trust has only one Project i.e. PIL. Hence separate project-wise breakup of fair value of assets are not given. 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Information 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 

(formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private 
Limited) 

(as an Investment Manager of Energy Infrastructure Trust {formerly 
known as India Infrastructure Trust) 

~~ 
Akhll Mehrotra 

Managing Director of Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 
DJN: 07197901 

Chief Financial fficer of Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 

PAN: AIGPB7900G 

1/1 
~ Jain 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of Encap Investment 
Manager Private Limited 

ACS No. 36271 

Date: May 19, zozs 

Place: Navi Mumbai 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Chartered Accountants 
Comrnerz Ill, 30th & 31st floors 
International Business Park 
Oberoi Garden City 
Off. Western Express Highway 
Goregaon (East) 
Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra. India 

To The Unitholders of Energy Infrastructure Trust {formerly known as "India Infrastructure Trust") 

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Energy Infrastructure Trust 
{formerly known as "India Infrastructure Trust") ("the Trust"), which comprise the Standalone 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), Standalone Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity, Standalone 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, Standalone Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value 
as at March 31, 2025, Standalone Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value and Net Distributable Cash 
Flows for the year ended on that date as an additional disclosure in accordance with Securities Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI) Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/44, dated May 15, 2024 and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other 
explanatory information {together he~einafter referred as the "standalone financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from 
time to time including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder read with the SEBI master 
Circular number SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/44, dated May 15, 2024 (the "InvIT 
Regulations") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 (as amended), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not 
inconsistent with the InvIT Regulations, of the state of affairs of the Trust as at March 31, 2025, and 
its profit (including other comprehensive income), its changes in unitholders' equity, its cash flows 
for the year ended March 31, 2025, its net assets at fair value as at March 31, 2025, its total returns 
at fair value and net distributable cash flows for the year ended on that date and other financial 
information of the Trust. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing {''SAs") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "ICAI"). Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibility for the 
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Trust 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI and have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial 
statements. 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to Note 11.2 of the standalone financial statements, which describes the presentation 
of "Unit Capital" as "Equity" to comply with InvIT Regulations. Our opinion is not modified in respect of 
this matter. 

Regd. Office: One International Center, Tower 3, 31st floor, Senapati Sapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai-400 013. Maharashtra, India. 

Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP is registered with Limited Liability having LLP identification No: AAB-8737 
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Key Audit Matter 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matter described 
below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report. 

Sr. 
No. 

Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response 

1 Fair valuation of Investment in Non- Principal audit procedures performed included the 
convertible debentures ("NCDs"): following: 

The valuation of investment in Non­
convertible debentures (NCDs) of 
Pipeline Infrastructure Limited, the SPV 
of the Trust ("InvIT NCDs), was a key 
area of audit focus due to degree of 
complexity and judgement Involved in 
valuing the NCDs. 

As at March 31, 2025, fair value of these 
InvIT NCDs was Rs. 5,861.93 crores. 
These NCDs are measured at fair value 
and classified as "Level 3" of the fair 
value hierarchy. 

The fair value of these InvIT NCDs is 
determined by an independent valuer 
using discounted cash flow method. 

While there are several assumptions that 
are required to determine the fair value 
of InvIT NCDs, the assumptions with the 
highest degree of estimate, subjectivity 
and impact on fair value are the discount 
rates and the interest rate at which the 
SPV will be able to refinance its external 
listed NCDs. Auditing these assumptions 
required a high degree of auditor 
judgment as the estimates made by the 
independent valuer contain significant 
measurement uncertainty. 

Refer Note 27 to the standalone financial 
statements. 

Our audit procedures related to the discount rates and 
the Interest rate at which the SPV will be able to 
refinance its external listed NCDs, used to determine 
the fair value of the investment in NCDs included the 
following, among others: 

• We obtained the independent valuer's valuation 
report to obtain an understanding of the source of 
information used by the independent valuer in 
determining the assumption. 

• We tested the reasonableness of inputs, shared by 
management with the independent valuer, by 
comparing it to source information used in 
preparing the inputs such as schedule of Equated 
Yearly Instalments. 

• We evaluated the Trust's fair valuation specialist's 
competence to perform the valuation. 

• We also involved our internal fair valuation 
specialists to independently determine fair value of 
the InvIT NCDs on the balance sheet date, which 
included assessment of the reasonableness of the 
discount rates and the interest rate at which the 
SPV will be able to refinance Its external listed 
NCDs, used by management in valuation. 

• We compared the fair value determined by the 
Trust with that determined by our internal fair 
valuation specialists to assess the reasonableness 
of the fair valuation. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

• Encap Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly known as "Brookfield Investment 
Infrastructure Manager Private Limited") ('Investment Manager') acting in its capacity as an 
Investment Manager of the Trust is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the 'Report of the Investment Manager' 
but does not include the standalone financial statements, consolidated financial statements 
and our auditor's report thereon. The Report of the Investment Manager is expected to be 
made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 
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• Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and 
we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

• In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone 
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

• When we read the Report of the Investment Manager, if we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance 
as required under SA 720 'The Auditor's responsibilities Relating to Other Information'. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Standalone Financial Statements 
The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager ("the Board") is responsible for the preparation 
of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance including other comprehensive income, changes in unitholders' equity, cash flows for the year 
ended March 31, 2025, net assets at fair value as at March 31, 2025, total returns at fair value and net 
distributable cash flows for the year ended on that date and other financial information of the Trust in 
conformity with the InvIT Regulations and accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 (as amended), to the extent not inconsistent with InvIT Regulations. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding the assets of the Trust and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board is responsible for assessing the Trust's 
ability to continue as a going concern( disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board either intends to liquidate the 
Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board is also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Trust. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain r_easonable assurance about whether the standalone financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
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error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Trust to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
induding the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 
individually or_ in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in 
the standalone financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal financial controls that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
·relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current year 
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless 
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit and as required by InvIT Regulations, we report that: 

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 
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b) The Standalone Balance Sheet1 Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), Standalone Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity, Standalone Statement 
of Cash Flows, Standalone Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value, Standalone Statement of Total Return at 
Fair Value and the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the relevant books of account of the Trust; 

c) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as 
amended), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with 
the InvIT Regulations. 

Place: Navi Mumbai 
Date: May 19, 2025 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/ W100018) 

Rajendra Sharma 
Partner 

(Membership No. 119925) 
(UDIN:)..51J9q 2-E;°'S/\lM)ZFCJ 77 'J.. ) 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 

Standalone Balance Sheet 

Particulars 
Notes 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 
Investment in Subsidiary 3 
Financial Assets 

Investments 4 
Other Financial Assets 5 

Assets for current tax (net) 6 
Total Non-Current Assets 

Current Assets 
Financial Assets 

Investments 7 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 
Other Bank balances 9 

Other Current Assets 10 
Total Current Assets 

Total Assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 
Unit Capital 11 
other Equity 

Retained earnings 12 
Total Unit Holders' Equity 

Liabilities 
Non-Current Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

Other Financial Liabilities 13 
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 14 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

Trade Payables 15 
Small Enterprises and Micro enterprises 
Others 

Other Financial Liabilities 16 
Other Current Liabilities 17 
Total Current Liabilities 

Tota I Liabilities 

Total Equity and Liabilities 

See accompanying Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 1-38 

INR in Crore 

Asat As at 
March 31 2025 March 31, 2024 

Audited Audited 

S0.00 50.00 

5,448.43 5,673.66 
1.41 1.42 
0.20 0.04 

5,500.04 5,725.12 

415.0S 469.03 
0.1S 0.15 
. 45.04 

0.01 0.01 
415.21 514.23 

5,915.25 6,239.35 

3,740.22 4,228.29 

2 058.68 1,890.40 

S 798.90 6118.69 

115.26 97.26 
0.01 -

115.27 97.26 

- -

0.80 1.82 
. 21.31 

0.28 0.27 
1.08 23.40 

116.35 120.66 

5,915.25 6,239.35 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 

Standalone Balance Sheet 

As per our report of even date 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No.117366W /W-100018) 

Rajendra Sharma 
Partner 
Membership No. 119925 

Date : May 19, 2025 

Place : Navi Mumbai 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 

(formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) 

(as an Investment Manager of Energy Infrastructure Trust !Formerly known as India 
Infrastructure Trust) 

Akhil Mehrotra 
Managing Director of Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 
DIN: 07197901 

~~ Suchibr nerjee 

Chief Financia Officer of Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 
PAN: AIGPB7900G 

~ .1l;.1. 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of Encap Investment Manager Private 
Limited 
ACS No. 36271 

Date : May 19, 2025 
Place: Navi Mumbai 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 

Particulars 

INCOME 

Interest 
Profit on sale of Mutual Funds 
Other Income 

Fair value gain on Non convertible debentures measured at FVTPL 

Total Income 

EXPENSES 

Valuation Expenses 
Audit Fees 
Project Management Fees 

Investment Management Fees 
Trustee Fee 
Custodian Fees 
Fair value loss of put option 
Fair value loss of call option 
Other Expenses 

Total Expenses 

Profit for the period before Income tax 

Tax Expenses 

Current Tax 
Deferred Tax 

Total Tak Expenses 

Profit for the period after Income tax 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 

Earnings per unit of unit value 

- For Basic (Rs.) 
- For Diluted (Rs.I 

See accompanying Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

Notes 

18 

19 

20 

21 
22 
23 

24 

30 
14 

25 
25 

1-38 

INR in Crore 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31 2025 March 31 2024 
Audited Audited 

548.97 574.49 
0.79 0.42 
0.02 1.37 

298.83 533.82 

848.61 1,110.10 

0.27 0.23 
2.20 2.62 
1.77 1.77 
2.83 2.83 

0.21 0.21 
0.3S 0.38 

0.01 1.00 

18.00 14.46 

1.12 5.93 

26.76 29.43 

821.85 1,080.67 

0.97 1.44 

0.01 -

0.98 1.44 

820.87 1,079.23 

- -

820.87 1.079.23 

12.36 16.25 
12.36 16.25 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 

As per our report of even date 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

{Firm's Registration No.117366W/W-100018) 

Rajendra Sharma 
Partner 
Membership No. 119925 

Date : May 19, 2025 
Place: Navi Mumbai 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 

(formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) 
(as an Investment Manager of Energy Infrastructure Trust (Formerly known as 
India Infrastructure Trust) 

Akhil Mehrotra 
Managing Director of Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 
DIN : 07197901 

Q~ . Suchibrat erjee 
Chief Financial icer of Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 
PAN: AIGPB7900G 

1i ~ 
Ankitha Jain 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of Encap Investment Manager Private 
Limited 
ACS No. 36271 

Date : May 19, 2025 
Place : Navi Mumbai 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows 

Particulars 

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net Profit Before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 
Adjusted for: 

Fair Value loss/(gain) on Non Convertible Debenture measured at FVTPL 
Fair value measurement loss on put option 
Fair value measurement loss on call option 

Interest income on Non convertible debentures (Net) 
Interest income on Fixed Deposit 
Gain on sale of Current Investments (Net) 

Fair value gain on valuation of Current Investments (Net) 
Operating profit before working capital changes 

{lncrease)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Finanacial liabilities 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 
Cash Generated from Operations 

Less : Taxes paid 

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Redemption/ Principal repayment received on Non convertible debentures of SPV 

Expenditure Component Sweep (ECS) received from SPV 
Interest received on investment in debentures (Net) 
Sale proceeds of Mutual Funds 
Investment in Mutual Funds 
Redemption of DSRA BG Fixed Deposit 
Interest income received on Fixed Deposit with banks 
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Return of Capital to Unit holders 
Return on Capital to Unit holders 
Distribution of Other income to Unit holders 
Net Cash Flow used In Ffnancing Activities 

Net lncrease/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 

INR in Crore 
Vear ended Year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
Audited Audited 

821.8S 1,080.67 

{298.83) (533.82) 
0.01 1.00 

18.00 14.46 
(548.85) (571.54) 

(0.12) (2.95) 
(0,79) (0.42) 
(0,02) 11.371 
(8,75) (13.97) 

0.00 0.04 
(1.02) (0.19) 
(1.31) 1.32 
0.01 0.06 

(11.07) (12.74) 

(1.13) 11.421 
(12.20) 114.161 

360.97 341.75 

127.10 138.10 
528.85 591.53 
117.63 42.50 
(26.85) (131.70) 
45,04 -

0.12 4.98 
1,152.86 987.16 

{488.07) (479.84) 
(651.17) (488.54) 

(1.42) (4.68] 
(1140.66) (973.061 

(0,00) (0.07) 

0.15 0.22 

0.15 0.15 

1-38 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows 

As per our report of even date 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm's Registration No.117366W/W-100018) 

Rajendra Sharma 
Partner 
Membership No. 119925 

Date ; May 19, 2025 
Place: Navi Mumbai 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 

(formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) 

(as an Investment Manager of Energy Infrastructure Trust (Formerly known 
as India Infrastructure Trust) 

Akhil Mehrotra 

Managing Director of Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 
DIN : 07197901 

. 
Suchibrata Ba eriee 
Chief Financial Officer of Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 
PAN: AIGPB7900G 

-~ 

V/ 
Ankitha Jain 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of Encap Investment Manager 
Private Limited 
ACS No. 36271 

Date : May 19, 2025 
Place: Navi Mumbai 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Statement of Changes in Unitholder's Equity 

A. UNIT CAPITAL 

Particulars Balance at the beginning of Changes in unit capital 
previous reporting year i.e. during the year 2023-24 * 

April 1, 2023 

Unit Caoital 4,708.15 (479.86) 

* Return of capital as per NDCF is approved by Investment Manager. Refer NDCF Note 29. 

B. OTHER EQUITY 

Particulars 

Balance as at the beginning of the reporting year i.e. April 1, 2023 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Return on Capital# 

Other Income Distribution# 
Balance as at the end of the reporting year i.e. March 31, 2024 

Balance as at the beginning of the reporting year i.e. April 1, 2024 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Return on Capital# 

Other Income Distribution# 

Balance as at the end of the reporting year i.e. March 31, 2025 

INR in Crore - . - . 
Balance at the end of Changes in unit capital Balance as at 

previous reporting year during the year 2024-25* March 31, 2025 
i.e. March 31, 2024 

4,228.27 {488.05) 3,740.22 

INR in Crore 
Retained Earnings Other comprehensive Total 

Income 

1,304.39 - 1,304.39 
1,079.23 - 1,079.23 
(488.54) - (488.54) 

(4.68) - (4.68) 

1,890.40 - 1,890:40 

1,890.40 - 1,890.40 
820.87 - 820.87 

(651.17) - (651.17) 

(1.42) - (1.42) 

2 058.68 - 2 058.68 

# Return on capital and other income distributed during the year as per NDCF duly approved by Investment Manager which include interest and other income. Refer NDCF Note 
29. 

See accompanying Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 1- 38 
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For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm's Registration No.117366W/W-100018) 

Rajendra Sharma 
Partner 

Membership No. 119925 

Date : May 19, 2025 
Place : Navi Mumbai 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 
(formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) 
(as an Investment Manager of Energy Infrastructure Trust (Formerly known as 

India Infrastructure Trust) 

Akhil Mehrotra 
Managing Director of Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 
DIN: 07197901 

,., ... ,:tr: 
Chief Financial Officer of Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 
PAN: AIGPB7900G 

~ 
~ '"" Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of Encap Investment Manager Private 

Limited 
ACS No. 36271 

Date : May 19, 2025 

Place : Navi Mumbai 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value and Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value 

Disclosures pursuant to Section H of Chapter 3 of the SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/44 dated May 15, 
2024 Issued under the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, 

A. Standalone Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value 

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 

Book value Fair valuec21 

A. Assets131 5,915.25 5,982.52 
B. Liabilities(11 

116.35 116.35 
C. Net Assets (A-B) 5,798.90 5,866.17 
D. Number of Units (No. in Crore) 66.40 66.40 
E. NAV (C/D) oer unit in Rs. 87.33 88.35 

(l) The book value and fair value of liabilities are as reflected in the Balance Sheet. 

'
21 Breakup of Fair value of assets 

Particulars 

Fair Value of Investment in Equity shares and NCDs of SPV 
Add: Other Assets 

Fair value of lnvlT assets 

B. Standalone Statement ofTotal Returns at Fair Value 

Particulars 

Total Comprehensive Income (As per the Statement of Profit and Loss) 

Add/{less): Other Changes in Fair Value not recognized in Total Comprehensive Income l3) 

Total Return 

INR in Crore, except oer unit data 
As at March 31, 2024 

Book value Fair value(2
) 

6,239.35 6,694.04 

120.66 120.66 
6,118.69 6,573.38 

66.40 66.40 
92.15 99.00 

INR in Crore 
Asat As at 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

5,980.61 6,555.85 
1.91 138.19 

5,982.52 6 694.04 

INR in Crore 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31 2025 March 31 2024 

820.87 1,079.23 

(387.42) (318.47) 

433.45 760.76 

<
3
l Fair value of assets and other changes in fair value for the year then ended as disclosed in the above tables are derived based on the 

fair valuation reports issued by the independent external registered valuer appointed under the lnvlT Regulations. 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust} 
Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value and Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value 

As per our report of even date 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No.117366W/W-100018} 

Rajendra Sharma 
Partner 
Membership No. 119925 

Date : May 19, 2025 
Place: Navi Mumbai 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 

(formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited} 
(as an Investment Manager of Energy Infrastructure Trust (Formerly known as 
India Infrastructure Trust) 

~~ --­Akhil Mehrotra 
Managing Director of Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 
DIN: 07197901 

SU<hl3 II ::,;., 
Chief ~~ ;~cer of Enc a p Investment Manager Private Limited 
PAN: AIGPB7900G 

fl 
~ Jal, 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of Encap Investment Manager Private 
Limited 
ACS No. 36271 

Date : May 19, 2025 
Place : Navi Mumbai 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

1 Corporate Information 

Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) ('Trust'/ 'lnvlT') is registered as a contributory 

irrevocable trust set up under the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 on November 22, 2018, and registered as an infrastructure 
investment trust under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, 

on January 23, 2019 having registration number IN/lnvlT/18-19/0008. The registered office of the Trust is Seawoods 
Grand Central, Tower-1, 3rd Level, C Wing - 301 to 304, Sector 40, Seawoods Railway Station, Navi Mumbai, Thane, 

Maharashtra - 400706, India. The name of the Trust changed from "India Infrastructure Trust" to "Energy Infrastructure 
Trust" w.e.f. November 18, 2024 i.e. the date of unitholders' approval. Further, SEBI issued the fresh registration 
certificate giving effect to the name change on December 09, 2024. 

Effective April 1, 2020, the "Investment Manager" of the Trust is Encap Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly 

known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private limited) . The Name of the Investment manager changed from 
Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited to Encap Investment Manager Private Limited w.e.f June 21, 

2024. The registered office of the Investment Manager has been changed from Unit 1, 4th Floor, Godrej BKC, Sandra 
Kurla Complex, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400051 India to Seawoods Grand Central, Tower-1, 3rd Level, C Wing - 301 to 

304, Sector 40, Seawoods Railway Station, Navi Mumbai, Thane, Maharashtra - 400706, India effective April 29, 2024. 

The investment objectives of the Trust are to carry on the activities of an infrastructure investment trust, as permissible 

under the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended and the circulars issued thereunder 
("SEBI lnvlT Regulations") by raising funds and making investments in accordance with the SEBI lnvlT Regulations and 
the Trust Deed. The lnvlT has received listing and trading approval for its Units w.e.f March 20, 2019 from the Stock 
Exchange vide BSE notice dated March 19, 2019. 

On March 22, 2019 Trust acquired 100% controlling interest in Pipeline Infrastructure Limited ('PIL' / 'SPV') from Reliance 

Industries Holding Private Limited (RIHPL). PIL owns and operates the ~1,4go km natural gas transmission pipeline, 
including dedicated lines, {together with compressor stations and operation centres) (the "Pipeline") from Kakinada in 
Andhra Pradesh to Bharuch in Gujarat. 

2 Material Accounting Policies 

2.1 Basis of Accounting and Preparation of Standalone Financial Statements 

The Standalone Financial Statements of Trust comprises the Standalone Balance Sheets as at March 31, 2025; the 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows and the Standalone Statement of 

Changes in Unitholders' Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025 and a summary of material accounting policies and 
other explanatory information and Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFs) at Trust Level for the year ended 

March 31, 2025. Additionally, it includes the Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value as at March 31, 2025, the Statement 
of Total Returns at Fair Value for year then ended and other additional disclosures as required by in Paragraph 4.6 of 
Chapter 4, Section A of the SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/44 dated May 15, 2024 ("the 
SEBI Master circular"). 

The Standalone Financial Statements were authorized for issue in accordance with resolutions passed by the Board of 
Directors of the Investment Manager on behalf of the Energy Infrastructure Trust {formerly known as India 
Infrastructure Trust) on May 19, 2025. 

The standalone Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) 

Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time read with the Paragraph 3.21 of Chapter 3 of the SEBI Master circular 
("lnvlT Regulations"); Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2{l)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015 ('Ind AS'), to the extent not inconsistent with the lnvlT Regulations (refer note 11.2 on 
presentation of "Unit Capital" as "Equity" instead of compound instruments under Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: 

Presentation), read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting rinciples generally accepted in India. 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Trust's Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its functional currency and all values are 
rounded to the nearest Crore upto two decimal places, except when otherwise indicated. 

Statement of compliance to Ind AS: 

These Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 have been prepared in accordance with 
Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 ('Ind 

AS'), to the extent not inconsistent with the lnvlT regulations as more fully described above and Note 11.2 to the 
standalone financial statements. 

2.2 Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation uncertainties 

The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of 
Ind AS requires the management of the Trust to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of 

assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of income and expense for the periods presented. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected. 

The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and 
reasonable. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of standalone financial statements, which may cause a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are in respect of fair value 
measurements of financial instruments, these are discussed below: 

a) Fair valuation 

The investment in non-convertible debentures and call and put options related to the investment in subsidiary are 
measured at fair value. Since the inputs to the valuation are dependent on unobservable market data, the Trust engages 

third party qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques, inputs and assumptions to the 
valuation model to determine fair value of these fin a ncia I instruments (Refer Note 27). 

2.3 Summary of Material Accounting Pollcies 

a) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash at banks and escrow account. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, 

cash and cash equivalents consist of cash as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts, if any, as they are 
considered an integral part of the Trust's cash management. 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

b) Provisions and Contingent liabilities 

A provision is recognised when there is present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which 
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within 

the control of the Trust or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise. 
When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements. Contingent 
liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. 

c) Tax Expense 

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the comprehensive income or in equity. In this case, the tax is 
also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity. 

Current tax 

The current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in profit or loss 

because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes 
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Trust's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

A provision is recognised for those matters for which the tax determination is uncertain but it is considered probable 
that there will be a future outflow of funds to a tax authority. The provisions are measured at the best estimate of the 

amount expected to become payable. The assessment is based on the judgement of tax professionals within the Trust 
supported by previous experience in respect of such activities and in certain cases based on independent tax specialist 
advice. 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 

financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the 

liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
by the end of the reporting year. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of 

each reporting year. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be available 
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax losses can be utilised. The Trust 

uses judgement to determine the amount of deferred tax that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the 
level of future taxable profits and business developments. 

d) Revenue Recognition 

The specific recognition criteria described below must be met before revenue is recognised: 

i) Interest Income : 

Interest income from a financial assets is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Trust 
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the 

principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that as.set's net carrying amount on initial 
recognition. 

ii) Dividend : 

Dividend is recognised when the right to receive is established. 

e) Current and non-current classification 

Assets and liabilities are presented in Balance Sheet based on current and non-current classification. 

An asset is classified as current when it is 

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, 
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading, 

c) Expected to be realised with in twelve months after the reporting period, or 
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months 

after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when it is 

a) Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, 
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading, 

c) Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 
period. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and lia bi I ities are classified as non-current assets and I ia bilities. 
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f) Fair value measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 

between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured 
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 

participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic 
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the 

asset in its highest and best use. 

Valuation techniques used are those that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 

available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within 

the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole: 

Level 1: fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 

assets or liabilities; 
Level 2: fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 

observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and 
Level 3: fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or 

liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based 
on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash 

Flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not 

feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such 
as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value 
of financial instruments. The policy has been further explained under note 27. 

gj Off-setting financial instrument 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally 

enforceable rights to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable rights must not be contingent on future events and must 

be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the trust or 
counterparty. 
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h) Earnings per unit 

Basic earnings per unit is computed using the net profit for the period attributable to the unitholders' and weighted 
average number of units outstanding during the period. 

Diluted earnings per unit is computed using the net profit for the period attributable to unitholder' and weighted 

average number of units and potential units outstanding during the period, except where the result would be anti­
dilutive. Potential units that are converted during the period are included in the calculation of diluted earnings per unit, 

from the beginning of the period or date of issuance of such potential units, to the date of conversion. There are no 
dilutive units issued bv the Trust. 

i) Investment in subsidiaries 

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where 

an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to 
its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds and 

carrying amounts are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

j) Statements of net assets at fair value 

The disclosure of Net Assets at Fair Value comprises of the fair values of the total assets and fair values of the total 
liabilities as reflected in the Balance Sheet. The fair value of the assets are reviewed annually by Investment manager, 

derived based on the fair valuation reports issued by the independent valuer appointed under the lnv!T Regulations. The 

independent valuers are leading valuers with a recognized and relevant professional qualification as per lnvlT regulations 
and valuation assumptions used are reviewed by Investment Manager at least once a year. 

k) Statements of Total Returns at Fair Value 

The disclosure of total returns at fair value comprises of the total Comprehensive Income as per the Standalone 
Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Changes in Fair Value not recognized in Total Comprehensive Income. Other 

changes in fair value is derived based on the fair valuation reports issued by the independent valuer appointed under 
the lnvlT Regulations. 

I) Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDFC) to unit holders 

The Trust recognises a liability to make cash distributions to unit holders when the distribution is authorised and a legal 
obligation has been created. As per the lnvlT Regulations, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Board 

of Directors of the Investment Manager. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity. 
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m) Financial instruments 

i) Financial Assets 

A. Initial recognition and measurement: 

Financial assets are recognised when the Trust becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair 

value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial 
asset or financial liability. 

B. Subsequent measurement 

a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost (AC) 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to 

hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a 

business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

c) Ffnancial assets at fair value through profit or loss IFVTPL) 

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss. 

d) Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Trust uses 'Expected Credit Loss' (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of financial 
assets other than those measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). 
Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to: 

- The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial 
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or 

- Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life of 
the financial instrument) 

The Trust uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is 
significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used. 
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ii) Financial liabilities 

A. Initial recognition and measurement: 

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable 
cost. 

B Subsequent measurement: 

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other 
payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the 
short maturity of these instru rnents. 

{iii) Derecognltlon of financial instruments 

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it 

transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of 
a financial liability) is derecognized from the Trust's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged or cancelled or expired. 

(iv) Effective interest method 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating 

interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future 

cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period. 
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NOTE 3. lNVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY 

Equity investments, at cost (unquoted) 
5,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each of Pipeline 
Infrastructure Limited held by Energy Infrastructure Trust 
along with its nominee 

TOTAL 

3.1 Additional Information 

Aggregated Value of Unquoted Investments 

Aggregated Value of Quoted Investments 

Aggregate provision for increase/ diminution in the value of 
Investments 

Note: The Trust holds 100% equity ownership in Pipeline 
Infrastructure Limited 

INR in Crore 

Asat Asat 
March 31 2025 March 31 2024 

50.00 50.00 

50.00 50.00 

50.00 50.00 

- -

- -

3.2 In April 2024, 2,54,99,997 Equity Shares of Pipeline Infrastructure Limited (amounting to Rs. 25.50 Crore) have 

been pledged towards 6,45,200 External Non-Convertible Listed Debentures issued by Pipeline Infrastructure 
Limited ('External NCDs'). Further, for 2,44,99,997 Equity Shares of Pipeline Infrastructure Limited (amounting 

to Rs. 24.50 Crore), non-disposal undertaking has been created by Trust in the favour of External NCDs. 

INR in Crore 
NOTE 4. NON CURRENT FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS Asat As at 

March 31 2025 March 31 2024 

Investments in Non Convertible Debenture (NCD) (at FVTPL) 

649,80,000 (Previous Year 649,80,000) Secured, Unlisted NCDs 5,448.43 5,673.66 
of Rs. 722.76 each (Previous Year Rs. 778.31) issued by PIL 
(Refer Note 7.1 and 27\ 

TOTAL 5,448.43 5 673.66 

4.1 In April 2024, a non•disposal undertaking has been created for the Investments in Non-Convertible Debenture 
issued by PIL in the favour of External NCDs. 

4.2 On March 22, 2019, the SPV had issued and allotted 12,95,00,000 Unlisted, Secured, Redeemable NCDs of face 

value of Rs. 1,000 each aggregating to Rs. 12,950 Crore, at par, to the Trust, on private placement basis 
("Unlisted NCDs / lnvlT NCDs"), at the Annual Interest rate ("AIR") as set out in t he Debenture Trust Deed 

{"DTD") dated March 19, 2019, entered into between the SPV and I DBI Trusteeship Services Limited. The said 
Unlisted NCDs have been issued for a term of 20 years from the date of allotment. 

On April 23, 2019, the SPV had issued 64,520 Listed, Secured, Rated, Redeemable NCDs of face value of 
10,00,000 each, aggregating to Rs. 6,452 Crore, at par, on a private placement basis ("2019 Listed NCDs") and 

utilised this proceeds to redeem 6,45,20,000 Unlisted NCDs of Rs. 1,000 each aggregating to Rs. 6,452 Crore, at 
par, out of the aforesaid 12,95,00,000 lnvlT NCDs issued on March 221 2019. 
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The said 2019 Listed NCDs carried a fixed interest @ 8.9508% p.a. payable quarterly and were listed on Debt 

Segment of BSE Limited with effect from April 26, 2019. The said 2019 Listed NCDs were issued for a term of 4 
years 10 months and 28 days. The said 2019 Listed NCDs were redeemed in full on the date of maturity i.e. 
March 22, 2024. 

On March 11, 2024, the SPV issued fresh 6,45,200 Listed, Secured, Rated, Redeemable NCDs of face value of Rs. 

1,00,000 each aggregating to Rs. 6,452 Crore, at par, in three series, on a private placement basis ("2024 Listed 
NCDs") at the fixed interest@ 7.96% p.a. payable quarterly and are listed on Debt Segment of BSE Limited with 

effect from March 13, 2024. The details of 2024 Listed NCDs are as under: 

Series, ISIN & Tenure Date of Issuance Date of Maturitv 
Series 1: INE01X.X07059: 3 vears March 11, 2024 March 11 2027 
Series 2: INE01X.X07042: 4 years March 11 2024 March 11, 2028 
Series 3: INE01X.X07034: 5 years March 11 2024 March 11, 2029 

The proceeds of the issue of 2024 Listed NCD's have been utilized towards redemption of 2019 Listed NCDs 
issued by the SPV on April 23, 2019, as detailed above. 

From interest component on Total NCDs (Listed and Unlisted NCDs) of the SPV, first the payment will be made 
towards interest payable to the Listed NCDs and balance interest shall be paid to lnvlT NCDs. 

The payment of interest and principal component of the lnvlT NCDs is provided in the Debenture Trust Deed 

('DTD') wherein interest component at the Annual Interest Rate ("AIR") will be computed on the outstanding 

principal of Total NCDs (i.e. lnvlT NCDs + NCDs issued to External lenders). For first five years upto March 22, 
2024, the AIR was fixed at 9.7% p.a .. For the balance period the AIR is computed in the block of every 5 years as 
Benchmark Rate + 100 bps (Benchmark Rate = the average of the previous 7 trading days as per Fixed Money 

Market and Derivatives Association of India ("FIMMDA") Corporate AAA 5 year yield). For the second block of a 
period of 5 years from March 23, 2024 to March 22, 2029, the AIR is fixed at 9.50% p.a. The AIR shall be subject 

to a minimum to 9.5% p.a. and a maximum of 10.5% p.a .. Accordingly, the coupon rate for balance period after 
the March 22, 2029 is considered at 9.5% p.a. The AIR is grossed-up with a factor of 1.004 in accordance with 
the DTD. 

As at March 31, 2025, in terms of Schedule 7 of the OTO and in line with the terms of issuance of the aforesaid 
remaining 6,49,80,000 Unlisted NCDs, the SPV has made repayment of an aggregate amount of Rs. 1,801.53 

Crore as Principal, from time to time; towards partial re-payment of Unlisted NCDs of 1,000 each, thereby 
proportionately reducing the face value of the Unlisted NCD from Rs. 1,000 to Rs. 722.76 each. 

Further, the Interest and principal amount (together termed as EYI) are being withdrawn quarterly by EIT 
instead of annually which attracts interest termed as 'EYI interest'. This EYI interest is determined on the early 

amount swept at the rate of AIR - 350 bps and the same is settled against the interest receipt towards Unlisted 

NCDs as per the DTD, in last quarter of the financial year. Presently, EYI Interest rate is (AIR less 3.50%) i.e. 
6.04% p.a. (grossed-up) for the period March 23, 2024 to March 22, 2029. 
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4.3 Other Terms 

a) In addition to above rate of interest, lnvlT NCDs are also eligible for upside payments determined in 
accordance with the Pipeline Usage Agreement ('lnvlT Upside Share') entered into between Reliance Industries 

Limited and PIL, when the cumulative Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) earned by the SPV is in the range of 
15% - 18%. Such PIL upside share is subject to clawback provision, if the cumulative ROCE goes below 15% in 
any subsequent year. 

b) Expenditure Component Sweep {ECS) is the amount being paid to Energy Infrastructure Trust as advance and 
is netted off against Non Convertible Debentures investment measured at FVTPL. This will be adjusted from the 
future NCD payments by PIL along with interest at the rate of 6.04%. 

Further, the total cumulative Expenditure Component Sweep (ECS) received by the Trust from the SPV is Rs. 

1,006.50 Crore as on March 31, 2025 and Rs. 127.10 Crore during the year ended March 31, 2025 (Rs. 138.10 

during the year ended March 31, 2024), which is treated as advance and will be settled against the future 
repayments of the principal of Unlisted NCDs as per the agreernent(s). 

The cumulative ECS outstanding as on March 22, 2024, and the ECS paid thereafter shall carry interest 

determined at the rate of interest as set out in the Debenture Trust deed dated March 19, 2019 ("ECS Interest 
Rate"). This interest will be settled against the future interest receipts from SPV towards Unlisted NCDs as per 
DTD. 

Presently, ECS Interest rate is (AIR less 3.50%) i.e. 6.04% p.a. (grossed-up) for the period March 23, 2024 to 
March 22, 2029. The ECS interest shall be applied on the amount outstanding and the number of days 

commencing March 23, 2024 (the first day following the 5th Anniversary). 

INR in Crore 
NOTE 5. NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS Asat Asat 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Put option on PIL shares (Refer Note 5.1) 1.41 1.42 

TOTAL 1.41 1.42 

5.1 As per the terms agreed by the Trust, the Investment Manager, Pipeline Infrastructure Limited (Pill, Reliance 
Industries Holdings Private Limited (RIHPL) and Reliance Industries Limited (RIL), wherein the Trust has right, 

but not the obligation, to sell its entire stake of the Trust in PIL to RIL after a specific term or occurrence of 
certain events for a consideration of Rs. 50 Crore or such other amount determined by the option valuer, 
whichever is lower. 

INR in Crore 
NOTE 6. ASSETS FOR CURRENT TAX (Net) As at Asat 

March 31 2025 March 31 2024 

Advance tax (Net of Provision for Income Tax of Rs.2.41 crore, 0.20 0.04 
Previous year Rs. 1.44 crore) 

TOTAL ·0:20 0.04 
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NOTE 7, INVESTMENTS 

Investments measured at Fair Value through_ Profit and Loss 

In Mutual Funds - Unquoted 

Current portion of Investments in Non Convertible Debenture 
(NCD) (at FVTPL) (Refer Note 7.1) 

TOTAL 

INR in Crore 
As at As at 

March 31, 202S March 31 2024 

1.55 91.53 

413.50 377.50 

415.05 469.03 

7.1 Investments in Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of the SPV are repaid in quarterly instalments. Hence, we 

have classified the principal component of NCDs expected to be realised within twelve months after the 
reporting date as 'Current Investments'. Correspondingly, the previous year amount has also been re-classified. 

This reclassification does not have any impact on Total Assets or Equity presented in the financial statements. 

INR in Crore 
NOTE 8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Asat As at 

March 31, 2025 March 31 2024 

Balance with Banks 0.15 0.15 

TOTAL 0.15 0.15 

INR in Crore 
NOTE 9. OTHER BANK BALANCES As at As at 

March 31 2025 March 31, 2024 

Fixed Deposit with Banks with original maturity of more than 3 - 45.04 
months and balance maturity upto 12 months 

TOTAL - 45.04 

INR in Crore 

NOTE 10. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS Asat Asat 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Prepaid expenses 0.01 0.01 

TOTAL 0.01 0.01 
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NOTE 11. UNIT CAPITAL As at March 31, 2025 
No. of Units INR In Crore 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up: 
Opening Balance 66,40,00,000 4,228.29 
Less : Distribution of Return of Ca pita I to 
unitholders . {488.07) 

Closiniz Balance 66 4000000 3 740.22 

11.1 Rights and Restrictions of Unitholders 

As at March 31, 2024 
No. of Units INR in Crore 

66,40,00,000.00 4,708.15 

. (479.86) 

6640 00 000 4 228.29 

The Trust has only one class of units. Each unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust. Each holder of unit is 

entitled to one vote per unit. The Unitholders have the right to receive at least 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of 
the Trust at least once in each financial year in accordance with the lnvlT Regulations. The Investment Manager approves 
distributions. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of units held by the unitholders. The Trust declares and 

pays distributions in Indian rupees. The distributions can be in the form of return of capital, return on capital and Other 
income. 

A Unitholder has no equitable or proprietary interest in the Trust Assets and is not entitled to transfer Trust Assets (or any 
part thereof) or any interest in the Trust Assets (or any part thereof). A Unitholder's right is limited to the right to require 

due administration of Trust in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed and the Investment Management 
Agreement. 

The unit holders(s) shall not have any personal liability or obligation with respect to the Trust. 

11.2 Under the provisions of the lnvlT Regulations, Trust is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than 90% of the net 

distributable cash flows of the Trust for each financial year. Accordingly, a portion of the Unit Capital contains a contractual 
obligation of the Trust to pay to its Unitholders cash distributions. Hence, the Unit Capital is a compound financial 
instrument which contains equity and liability components in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: 

Presentation. However, in accordance with the SEBI Master Circular, the Unit Capital have been presented as "Equity" in 

order to comply with the requirements of the Section H of Chapter 3 of the SEBI Master Circular dealing with the minimum 
presentation and disclosure requirements for key financial statements. Consistent with Unit Capital being classified as 
equity, the distributions to Unitholders is also presented in Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity when the 
distributions are approved by the Board of Directors of Investment Manager. 

11.3 Information on unitholders holding more than 5% of Unit Capital 

Name of Unltholder Relationshlp As at Man:h 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

No of Unit held Percenta e No of Unit held Percenta e 
Ra id Holdin 2 Pte. Ltd S onsor 49 80 00,000 75.00"/4 49,80,00 000 75.00% 
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11.4 The details of Units held by the Sponsor 

nsorName No.of Units 
id Holdin s 2 Pte. Ltd 49 0 00 000 

%held % Chan e durin the ear 
75% 0% 

11.5 Reconciliation of the units outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year 

Particulars Asat Asat 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
No. of Units No. of Units 

Units at the beginning of the year 66,40,00,000 66,40,00,000 

Issued during the year - -
Units at the end of the year 66,40,00,000 66,40,00,000 

INR in Crore 
NOTE 12. OTHER EQUITY Asat Asat 

March 31, 2025 March 31 2024 

Retained earnings 
Opening Balance 1,890.40 1,304.39 
Add : Profit for the year 820.87 1,079.23 
Less: Distribution of Return on capital to Unit holders (651.17) (488.54) 
Less : Distribution of Other income to Unit holders (1.42) {4.68) 

TOTAL 2 058.68 1 890.40 

12,l Return on capital and other income as per NDCF is duly approved by Investment Manager. Refer Statement of Net 
Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) in Note 29. 
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NOTE 13. OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

call Option with RIL for PIL Shares (Refer Note 13.1) 

TOTAL 

INR in Crore 
As at Asat 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

115.26 97.26 

115.26 97.26 

13.1 As per the terms agreed by the Trust, the Investment Manager, Pipeline Infrastructure Limited (PIL), Reliance Industries 

Holdings Private Limited (RIHPL) and Reliance Industries Limited (RIL), wherein RIL has the right, but not the obligation, 
to purchase the entire equity stake of the Trust in PIL after a specific term or occurrence of certain events for a 

consideration of Rs. 50 Crore or such other a mount determined by the option valuer, whichever is lower. 

INR in Crore 
NOTE 14. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET) As at As at 

March 31, 2025 March 31. 2024 

On Mutual Funds (Refer Note 14.1) 0.01 -

TOTAL 0.01 -

INR in Crore 
14.1 Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Liability Asat Asat 

March 31 2025 March 31, 2024 

Opening deferred tax liability, net - -

Deferred tax charge recorded in profit and loss account 0.01 -
Deferred tax charge recorded in other comprehensive 
income - -

CloslnJ! Deferred Tax Liability 0.01 -
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NOTE 15. TRADE PAYABLES 

Small Enterprises and Micro enterprises 

(Refer Note 15.1 & 15.2) 
Others 

TOTAL 

Of the above Trade Payables amounts due to related 
parties are as below: 

Trade Payables due to related parties 

Total due to related party 

Asat 
March 31 2025 

-

0.80 

0.80 

-

-

15.1 Dues to micro, small & medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 

INR in Crore 
As at 

March 31, 2024 

-

1.82 

1.82 

0.69 

0.69 

The Trust does not have any overdues outstanding to the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises as defined in Micro, Small 

and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 as on March 31, 2025 and on March 31, 2024. The identification of 
Micro and Small Enterprises is based on information available with the management. 

15.2 Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 

As at March 31, 2025 Notdue Less than 1-2 years 2- 3 years 
1 year 

MSME - - - -
Others* 0.80 - - -
Total 0.80 . . -

As at March 31, 2024 Not due Less than 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years 
1 year 

MSME - . . . 

Others* 1.07 0.75 . . 
Total 1.07 0.75 . . 

*Includes unbilled amount of Rs. 0.80 Crore (Previous year Rs. 1.07 Crore payable to other creditors) 

NOTE 16. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Payable to related party 

TOTAL 

NOTE 17. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Statutory liabilities payable (TDS payable) 

TOTAL 

Asat 
March 31, 2025 

-

-

Asat 
March 31, 2025 

0.28 

INR in Crore 
More than Total 

3 years 

- -
- 0.80 
- 0.80 

INR in Crore 
More than Total 

3 years 

- . 

- 1.82 
- 1.82 

INR in Crore 
As at 

March 31 2024 

21.31 

21.31 

INR in Crore 
Asat 

March 31, 2024 

0.27 
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NOTE 18. INTEREST 

Income from Interest on Investment in Non Convertible 
Debentures of SPV, Pipeline Infrastructure Limited (Net) (Refer 
note 20 for Fair Valuation Gain on Non-Convertible 
Debentures) 

Interest on Fixed deposits 

TOTAL 

NOTE 19; OTHER INCOME 

MTM gain on valuation of Investments in Mutual Funds 

TOTAL 

NOTE 20. FAIR VALUE GAIN ON NON CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES 

Gain on investment in Non Convertible Debentures at fair 

value through profit or loss 
(Refer Note 18 for interest income on NCDs) 

TOTAL 

NOTE 21. AUDIT FEES 

Statutory audit fees (Refer Note 21.1) 
Other audit fees (Refer Note 21.2) 
Other Certification fees (Refer Note 21.3) 

TOTAL 

INR in Crore 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

548.85 571.54 

0.12 2.95 

548.97 574.49 

INR in Crore 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31 2025 March 31 2024 

0.02 1.37 

0.02 1.37 

INR in Ctore 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31 2025 March 31 2024 

298.83 533.82 

298.83 533.82 

INR in Crore 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31 2025 March 31 2024 

0.75 1.26 
1.42 1.36 
0.03 -

2.20 2.62 

21.1 In the previous year, statutory audit fees include an amount of Rs. 0.41 Crore far the audit of special purpose 

financial statements. 

21.2 Represents audit fees paid for audit of group reporting package as per group referral instructions under the 
PCAOB auditing standards. 

21.3 This includes Book Value Certification fees paid to statutory auditors amounting to Rs. 0.03 Crore. 
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NOT£ 22. PROJECT MANAGEMENT FEES 

Project Management Fees (Refer Note 22.1) 

TOTAL 

For the year ended 

March 31 2025 

1.77 

1.77 

INR in Crore 
For the year ended 

M;irrh 31 2024 

1.77 

1.77 

22.1 Pursuant to Project Management Agreement, the Project Manager is entitled to an Project Management fee of 
Rs. 0.125 Crore per month exclusive of GST. 

INR in Crore 
NOTE 23. INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT FEES For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31 2025 March 31 2024 

Investment Management Fees (Refer Note 23.1) 2.83 2.83 

TOTAL 2.83 2.83 

23.1 Pursuant to Investment Management Agreement, the Investment Manager is entitled to an Investment 

Management fee of Rs. 0.20 Crore per month exclusive of GST. Investment Manager is also entitled to 
reimbursement of any cost incurred in relation to activity pertaining to Trust such as administration of Trust. 

appointment of staff, director, transaction expenses incurred with respect to investing, monitoring and disposing 
off investment of Trust. 

INR in Crore 
NOTE 24. OTHER EXPENSES For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31 2025 March 31 2024 

Bank Charges 0.01 0.01 
Duties, Rates and Taxes 0.20 0.01 
Legal & Professional fees 2.01 4.32 
Shared Services expenses 0.06 0.06 
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.03 0.10 
Listing Fee 0.12 0.12 
Interest on Expenditure Compenent Sweep (1.31) 1.31 

TOTAL 1.12 5.93 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

NOTE 25. EARNINGS PER UNIT (EPU) 

The following reflects the income and unit data used in the basic and diluted 
EPU computations: 

i) Net Profit as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Unlt 

Holders 

ii) Weighted Average number of Units used as denominator for calculating 

Basic EPU 

Reporting period 

Units allotted 

iii) Weighted Average number of Potential Units 

iv) Total Weighted Average number of Units used as denominator for 

calculating Diluted EPU 

v) Earnings per unit of unit value of Rs.56.3287 each 

(Previous year unit value Rs. 63.6791 each) 
- For Basic 

- For Diluted 

NOTE 26. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

For the year 

ended 

March 31, 2025 

INR in Crore 820.87 

No. of units 66,40,00,000 

in days 365 

in days 365 

No. of units -

No. of units 66,40,00,000 

Rs. Per unit 12.36 
Rs. Per unit 12.36 

As per SEBI lnvlT regulations and as per Ind AS 24, disclosure of transactions with related party are given below: 

For the year 

ended 
March 31, 2024 

1,079.23 

66,40,00,000 

366 

366 

-

66,40,00,000 

16.25 
16.25 

List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships: 

I. List of Related Parties as per the requirements of Ind AS 24 - "Related Party Disclosures" 

Ultimate Holding Company Brookfield Corporation 

Entity which exercise control on the Trust Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd. 

Subsidiary Pipeline Infrastructure Limited 

Key Managerial Personnel of the Ms. Pooja Aggarwal• Chief Executive Officer (from June 01, 2023 to December 12, 
Investment Manager [Encap Investment 2023) 

Manager Private Limited (formerly known Mr. Darshan Vora - Chief Financial Officer (from June 01, 2023 to December 12, 
as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager 2023) 

Private Limited)] 
Mr. Akhil Mehrotra • Managing Director (effective December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Suchibrata Banerjee• Chief Financial Officer (effective December 12, 2023) 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
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II. List of addltional related parties as per Regulations 2(1)(zv) of the SEBI lnvlT Regulations 

A) Parties to Energy Infrastructure Trust with whom there were transactions 

Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd. {Sponsor) (as per Paragraph 4 of SEBI (lnvlT) Regulations, 2014, as amended) 

Encap Investment Manager Private Umited (formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) 

(Investment Manager) (as per Paragraph 4 of SEBI (lnvlT) Regulations, 2014, as amended) 

ECI India Managers Private Limited (Project Manager) (as per Paragraph 4 of SEBI (lnvlT) Regulations, 2014, as amended) 
Axis Trustee Services Limited (Trustee) (as per Paragraph 4 of SEBI (lnvlT) Regulations, 2014, as amended) 

B) Directors of the parties to the Trust specified in ll(A) Above 

(i) ECI lndla Managers Private Limited 

Mr. Darshan Vora 

Ms. Sukanya Viswanathan (from August 26, 2022 to August 11, 2023) 
Ms. Megha Ashok Dua (from August 10, 2023 to July 10, 2024) 
Ms. Puja Tandon (effective July 10, 2024) 

(ii) Encap Investment Manager Prfvate Limited (formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) 
Mr. Sridhar Rengan (upto December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Chetan Desai (upto May 31, 2023) 
Mr. Narendra Aneja {upto May 31, 2023) 
Ms. Swati Mandava (from June 28, 2022 to May 25, 2023) 
Mr. Prateek Shroff (Effective May 26, 2023) 

Ms. Radhika Haribhakti (from June 01, 2023 upto December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Jagdish Kini (from June 01, 2023 upto December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Arun Balakrishanan (Effective June 01, 2023) 
Ms. Rinki Ganguli (from June 1, 2023 upto December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Akhil Mehrotra (Effective December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Chaitanya Pande (Effective December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Varun Saxena (Effective December 12, 2023) 
Ms. Kavita Venugopal (Effective December 12, 2023) 

(iii) Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd 
Mr. Liew Yee Foong 
Ms. Ho Yeh Hwa (upto November 18, 2024) 
Mr. Tan Aik Thye Derek 
Ms. Tay Zhi Yun 
Ms. Talisa Poh Pei Lynn 

Tan Jin Li, Alina (effective November 18, 2024) 

(Iv) Axis Trustee Services Limited 
Ms. Deepa Rath (upto February 5, 2025) 
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Dahiya (upto January 15, 2024) 
Mr. Ganesh Sankaran (upto January 15, 2024) 
Mr. Sum it Bali (from January 16, 2024 to August 16, 2024) 
Mr. PrashantJoshi {effective January 16, 2024) 

Mr. Arun Mehta (effective May 3, 2024) 
Mr. Parmod Kumar Nagpal (effective May 3, 2024) 
Mr. Rahul Choudhary (effective February 06, 2025) 
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Ill. Transactions with the related Parties during the year 

Sr. Particulars Relations 
No 

1 Interest Income 

Pipeline Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary 

2 Repayment of NCO 
Pipeline Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary 

3 Amount received towards interest bearing expenditure 

component sweep 

Pipeline Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary 

4 Interest on Expenditure Component Sweep 
Pipeline Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary 

S Return of Unit Capital 

(Rs. 7.3504 per unit paid out of unit value of 63.6791) 
Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd. Sponsor 

6 Return on Unit capital 
Rapid Holdings 2 Pte.Ltd. Sponsor 

7 Other Income Distributed 
Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd. Sponsor 

8 Trustee Fee 
Axis Trustee Services Limited Trustee 

9 Project Management fee 
ECI India Managers Private Limited Project Manager 

10 Investment management fee 

Encap Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly Investment Manager 
known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private 

Limited) 

11 Legal/Professional fees/reimbursement of expenses 

Encap Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly Investment Manager 
known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private 

Limited) 

12 Shared Services - Rent 

Pioeline Infrastructure Limited Subsidfarv 

INR in Crore 
Year ended Year ended 

March 31 2025 March 31 2024 

548.85 571.54 

360.97 341.75 

127,10 138.10 

- 1.31 

366.05 359.88 

488.38 366.40 

1.06 3.51 

0.21 0.21 

1.77 1.77 

2.83 2.83 

0.72 1.75 

0.06 0.06 
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IV. Balances at the end of year 

Sr. rticulars Relations 
No 

1 Reimbursement of Expense payable 
Encap Investment Manager Private Limited Investment Manager 
(formerly known as Brookfield India 

Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) 

2 Investment in Equity Shares 
Pipeline Infrastructure limited Subsidiary 

3 Non Convertible Debentures at Fair value 
through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)"' 

Pipeline Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary 

4 Interest on debentures received In advance 

Pipeline Infrastructure Limited . Subsidiary 

5 Interest on Expenditure Component Sweep payable 
Pipeline Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary 

6 Units value 
Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd. Sponsor 

INR in Crore 
As at As at 

March 31 2025 March ~1 2024 

- 0.69 

50.00 50.00 

5,861.93 6,051.16 

- 20.00 

- 1.31 

2,805.16 3,171.22 

* ECS Rs. 1006.50 Crore as on March 31, 2025 (previous year Rs. 879.40 Crore as on March 31, 2024) being amount received by 
Trust in accordance with the Debenture Trust Deed, is adjusted against Investments in Non-Convertible Debentures measured 
at FVTPL, which will be adjusted in the future NCD repayments. 
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NOTE 27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Financial assets and liabilltles 

The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2025 
and March 31. 2024 

INR in crore 
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31 2024 

Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value 
Financial Assets 

At Amortised Cost• 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 
Other Bank Balance - - 45.04 45.04 

At FVTPL 
Investments in Mutual Funds 1.55 1.55 91.53 91.53 
Investments in Non 5,861.93 5,861.93 6,051.16 6,051.16 
Convertible Debentures (NCD) 

Other Financial Assets - Put 1.41 1.41 1.42 1.42 
option on PIL shares 

Financial Liabilities 

At Amortised Cost• 

Trade payables 0.80 o,so 1.82 1.82 
Other Financial Liabilities . - 21.31 2.1.31 

At FVTPL 

Other Financial Liabilities - Call 115.26 115.26 97.26 97.26 
Option on PIL shares 

•Fair value approximates the carrying value as per management. 

Fair Value Measurement Hierarchv INR in crore 
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31 2024 

Carrying Level of input used in Carrying Levelofinputusedin 
Amount Amount 

Level 1 Level2 Levell Level 1 Level2 Level3 
Financial Assets 

Investments in Mutual Funds 1.55 1.55 91.53 91.53 
Investments in Non- 5,861.93 5,861.93 6,051.16 6,051.16 
Convertible Debentures (NCD) 

Put option on PIL shares 1.41 1.41 1.42 1.42 

Financial Liabilities 

call Option on PIL shares 115.26 115.26 97.26 97.26 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

The financial instruments are categorized into three levels based on the inputs used to arrive at fair value measurements as described 
below: 

Level 1: fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

Level 2: fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and 

Level 3: fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not 
based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

Fair value measurements using unobservable market data (level 3): 

1. NCO Valuation 

The following table presents the changes in level 3 items related to Investment in NCDs for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 
2024 

INR in Crore 
Particulars Amounts 

As at April 1, 2024 6,051.16 

Add: Fair Value Gain recognized in Profit & Loss (Refer note 20) 298.83 

Add: Interest Income (Refer note 18) 548.86 

Less: Repayment of principal and interest component of debentures (909.BZ) 

Less: Expenditure Component Sweep received during the year* (127.10) 
As at March 31, 2025 5,861.93 

As at April 11 2023 5,997.19 

Add: Fair Value Gain recognized in Profit & Loss (Refer note 20) 533.82 

Add: Interest Income (Refer note 18) 571.54 

Less: Repayment of principal and interest component of debentures (913.29) 

Less: Expenditure Component Sweep received during the year* (138.10) 
As at March 31, 2024 6,051.16 

*Expenditure Component Sweep is treated as an advance and will be settled against the future repayments as per the Debenture Trust 
Deed (DTD). 

The investment made by Energy Infrastructure Trust (lnvlT) in Non Convertible Debentures (lnvlT NCD) are classified as a Financial Asset 
according to the Ind AS 32 and 109. The lnvlT NCDs are held with an intention to collect contractual cash flows over the tenure of the 

instrument and not held with an intention to sell. However, the cash flows flowing to lnvlT are not solely in the nature of payment of 
principle and interest due to various variable cash flows attached to the instrument including additional interest aher servicing the 

interest on Listed Secured, Redeemable Non - Convertible Debentures (NCDs) issued by the SPV {external debt) . Hence, lnvlT NCDs are 
classified at Fair Value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL). 

Income from Interest on Investment in lnvlT NCO amounting to Rs. 548.85 Crore (Previous year Rs. 571.54 Crore) is included under 

"Interest". Other Fair value gain on this NCD amounting to Rs. 298.83 Crore (Previous year Rs. 533.82 Crore) is included under "Fair value 
gain on Non convertible debentures measured at FVTPL". 

The discounted cash flow method has been applied for deriving the fair value of the debentures which requires determining the present 
value of all cash flows. 
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The significant assumptions considered In the valuation are: 

1. Discount rate considered for valuation: The discount rate for discounting the cash flows of NCDs (other than /nvlT Upside Share; Refer 
note 4.3) is computed as Zero Coupon FIMMDA 14 Year spread as on the Valuation Date for AM rated bond, for maturity corresponding 

to the cash flows and a spread of 1% for additional risk perceived at the time of issue of lnvlT NCDs primarily since lnv/T NCDs shall be 

paid after the Listed NCDs. The discount rate for discounting the estimated cash flows of lnvlT Upside Share is the Cost of Equity, which is 
computed as risk free rate of return on the basis of zero coupon yield curve for government securities having maturity of 10 years, equity 
risk premium, beta and company specific risk premium. If the discount rates for each year increases by 0.5% then the fair value of the 

debentures will reduce by Rs. 115.18 Crore (previous year Rs. 102.90 Crore). If the discount rates reduce by 0.5% then the fair value of 
the debentures will increase by Rs. 119.80 Crore (previous year Rs. 107.17 Crore). 

2. The rate at which the SPV will be able to re-finance the external debt: The interest rate at which the SPV will be able to refinance 
external NCDs is considered based on expected future interest rate for a AAA rated bond using a spread of 1.04% for additional risk. If this 

rate increases by 0.5% then Fair value of the debentures will decrease by Rs. 92.32 Crore (previous year Rs. 87.87 Crore) and if this rate 
reduces by 0.5% then Fair value of the debentures will increase by Rs. 92.32 Crore (previous year 87.87 Crore). 

Z, Options Valuation 

The following table presents the changes in level 3 items related to Options Valuation for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 
2024 

Call option INR in Crore 
Particulars Amounts 
As at April 1, 2024 97.26 
Add: Fair Value Loss recognized in Profit & Loss 18.00 
As at March 31, 2025 115.26 

As at April 1, 2023 82.80 
Add: Fair Value Loss recognized in Profit & Loss 14.46 
As at March 31, 2024 97.26 

Put Option INR in Crore 
Particulars Amounts 
As at April 1, 2024 1.42 
Less: Fair Value Loss recognized in Profit & Loss (0.01) 
As at March 31, 2025 1.41 

As at April 1, 2023 2.42 
Less: Fair Value Loss recognized in Profit & Loss (1.00) 
As at March 31 2024 1.42 
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The fair value of call option and put option written on the shares of SPV is measured using Black Scholes Model. Key inputs used in the 
measurement are: 

U) Stock Price: It is estimated based on the stock price as of the date of the transaction {March 22, 2019) of Rs. 50 crores, as increased for 

the interim period between March 22, 2019 and March 31, 2025 by the Cost of Equity as this would be expected return on the 
investment for the acquirer. 

(ii) Exercise Price: Rs. 50 crores 

(iii) Option Expiry: 20 years from March 22, 2019 i.e., March 22, 2039. 

(iv) Risk free rate as on date of valuation 6.7% (Previous year 7.1%) and cost of equity 17 .9% (Previous year 17.9%). 
The significant assumption considered in the valuation is volatility of comparable company as per Black Scholes Model. The valuation of 
Call and Put Option is computed using the volatility of comparable company as 33% (Previous year 32.4%). 

Call Option: If the volatility of comparable company increases by 5% then fair value of the Call option will increase by Rs. 1.08 crore 
(Previous year increase by Rs. 1.05 crore), if the volatility of comparable company reduces by 5% then fair value of the Call option will 
decrease by Rs. 0.78 crore (Previous year decrease by Rs. 0.78 crore). 

Put Option: If the volatility of comparable company increases by 5% then fair value of the Put option will increase by Rs. 1.08 crores 
(Previous year increase by Rs. 1.05 crore), if the volatility of comparable company reduces by 5% then fair value of the Put option will 
decrease by Rs. 0.78 crore (Previous year decrease by Rs. 0.78 crore). 

NOTE 28: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK MANAGEMENT 

Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk arises from the Trust's inability to meet its cash flow commitments on time. Trust's objective is to, at all times, maintain 

optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Trust closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a 
disciplined cash management system. 

Maturitv Profile of Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost as on March 31 2025 INR in Crore 
Particulars Carrying Below 3 3-6 6-12 1-3 3-5 Above Total 

Value Months Months Months Years Ye.irs 5 Years 
Trade Pavable 0.80 0.80 - - - - - 0.80 

Maturitv Profile of Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost, as on March 31 2024 INR in Crore 
Particulars Carrying Below 3 3-6 6-12 1-3 3-5 Above Total 

Value Month~ Mnnths Months y,,,,.,.,5 Years 5 y.,,.r~ 
Trade Payable 1.82 1.82 - - - - 1.82 
Other Current Financial 21.31 21.31 - - - - 21.31 
Liabilities 

The only financial liability at Fair Value through Profit and Loss is in respect of Call Option with RIL for PIL shares, amounting to Rs. 115.26 
crores as at March 31, 2025 (Previous year Rs. 97.26 crores as at March 31, 2024). Maturity profile is not relevant for this financial 
liability. Refer note 13.1. 
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NOTE 29. Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NOCFs) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHSPoD/P/CIR/2023/184 

dated December 06, 2023 <1> 

INR incrore 
Particulars Vear ended 

March 31, 2025 

Cashflows from operating activities of the Trust {12.20) 
(-+-) Cash flows received from SPV's / Investment entities which represent distributions of NDCF computed as per 
relevant framework • 

1016.92 

(-+-) Treasury income/ income from investing activities of the Trust (interest income received from FD, any 2.28 
investment entities as defined in Regulation 18(5), tax refund, any other income in the nature of interest, profit 

on sale of Mutual funds, investments, assets etc., dividend income etc., excluding any Ind AS adjustments. 
Further clarified that these amounts will be considered on a cash receipt basis) 

(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure ·investments, infrastructure assets or shares of SPVs/Holdcos or 
Investment Entity adjusted for the following 
• Applicable capital gains and other taxes -
• Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds -
• Directly attributable transaction costs -
• Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7) of lnvlT Regulations or any other 
relevant provisions of the lnvlT Regulations 
(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure investments, infrastructure assets or sale of shares of SPVs/ Hold cos or 

-
Investment Entity not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest as per Regulation 18(7) of lnvlT 

Regulations or any other relevant provisions of the I nvlT Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended to be 
invested subsequently 
(-) Finance cost on Borrowings, excluding amortisation of any transaction costs as per Profit and Loss account of 
the Trust 
(-) Det>t repayment at Trust level (to include principal repayments as per scheduled EMl's except it retinanced 

-
through new debt including overdraft facilities and to exclude any debt repayments / debt refinanced through 
new debt in any form or funds raised through issuance of units) 

(-) any reserve required to be created under the terms of, or pursuant to the obligations arising in accordance -
with, any: 

(i} loan agreement entered with fina ncia I institution, or 

(ii) terms and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable to debt securities issued by the Trust or 
any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or 

(iii) terms and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable to external commercial borrowings 
availed by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or 

(iv) agreement pursuant to which the Trust operates or owns the infrastructure asset, or generates revenue or 

cashflows from such asset (such as, concession agreement, transmission services agreement, power purchase 

agreement, lease agreement, and any other agreement of a like nature, by whatever name called); or 
(v). statutory, judicial, regulatory, or governmental stipulations; or 
(-) any capital expenditure on existing assets owned/ leased by the lnvlT, to the extent not funded by debt/ 

-
equity or from contractua I reserves created in the earlier years 
NDCF at Trust Level 1007.00 

ILi In order to promote standardisation of framework for computing NDCF, a revised framework was defined by SEBI vide circular 

no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-PoD/P/CIR/2023/184 dated December 6, 2023 ("Revised NDCF Framework") (earlier SEBI Master 

Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 6, 2023 was being followed for NDCF). This framework is applicable 

with effect from April 01, 2024. Accordingly, Energy Infrastructure Trust has computed the NDCF for the year ended March 31, 

2025 as per the revised NDFC framework. Comparative information have been provided as per the framework applicable for the 
previous year. 
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Net Distributable Cash Flows {NDCF) pursuant to guidance under SEBI Master Circular No, SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 6, 2023 

Particulars 

Cash flows received from Portfolio Assets in the form of interest 

Any other income accruing at the Trust level and not captured above, including but not limited to interest/return 
on surplus cash invested by the Trust 

Cash flows/ Proceeds from the Portfolio Assets towards the repayment of the debt issued to the Portfolio Assets 
by the Trust• 

Total cash flow at the Trust level (Al 

Less: re-imbursement of expenses in relation to the Transaction undertaken by the Sponsor on behalf of the 
Trust and payment of arranger fee. 

Less: Any payment of fees, interest and expense incurred at the Trust level, including but not limited to the fees 

of the Investment Manager, Trustee, Project Manager, Auditor, Valuer, credit rating agency and the Debenture 
Trustee 

Less: Income tax {if applicable) at the standalone Trust level and payment of other statutory dues 

Total cash outflows/ retention at the Trust level !Bl 
Net Distributable Cash Flows ICl = IA+Bl 

INR in Crore 
Year ended 

March 31, 2024 

591.53 
5.10 

479.85 

1,076.48 

-

(12.74) 

(1.19) 

113.931 
1062.55 

• Includes Rs. 127.10 Crore received as ECS advance from SPY (previous period Rs. 138.10 Crore) ln accordance with the 

Debenture Trust Deed, which is adjusted against Investments in Non-Convertible Debentures measured at FVTPL 

INR in Crore 
Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2025 

Audited 

Net Distributable Cash Flows at Trust Level 1,007,00 
Add: 10% of NDCF withheld in line with the Regulations in earlier years 90.31 
Add : Surplus Cash on account of maturity of deposits# 45.04 

Net Distributable Cash Flows including Surplus Cash at Trust Level 1,142.35 

• These deposits were restricted upto March 22, 2024, pursuant to loan covenant of debt raised by SPV. These restrictions were 
removed subsequent to debt refinancing at SPV in year ended March 31, 2024. Further, these deposits were not made out of any 
debt raised at Trust or SPV level. 
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The Net Distributable Cashflows (NDCF) as above is distributed as follows in the respective manner: 

For the year ended March 31, 2025 Return of Return on Other Income 
Capital capital 

April 18, 2024 128.14 248.05 1.42 
July 16, 2024 106.63 171.05 . 
October 16, 2024 127.24 145.38 . 
January 15, 2025 126.06 86.69 . 

Total 488.07 651.17 1.42 

For the year ended March 31, 2024 Return of Capital Return on Other Income 

Capital 

April 18, 2023 121.74 i38.15 -
July 19, 2023 119.17 144.08 . 
October 18, 2023 118.21 143.78 . 
January 17, 2024 120.72 62.53 4.68 

Total 479.84 488.54 4.68 

NOTE 30. TAXES 

INR in Crore 
Total 

377,61 

277.68 
272.62 

212.75 

1,140.66 

INR in Crore 
Total 

259.89 
263.25 

261.99 
187.93 
973.06 

In accordance with section 10 {23FC) of the Income Tax Act, the income of business Trust in the form ·of interest received or 

receivable from Project SPV is exempt from tax. Accordingly, the Trust is not required to provide any current tax liability. However, 

for the income earned by the Trust, it will be required to provide for current tax liability, 

Reconciliation of tax exoenses and book profit multlolied bv Tax rate INR in Crore 
Particulars Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Profit before Tax 821.85 1,080.67 
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 42.74% (Including 37 % surcharge & 4% cess) 351.29 461.92 
Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible/ (taxable) in calculating taxable income 

Interest Received and FV Loss/gain on NCD (measured at FVTPL), considered as pass through (362.33} (472.48) 
Permanent Difference due to Expenses Disallowed since related interest income is exempt 12.02 12.00 

Income Tax expense 0.98 1.44 

NOTE 31, Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for) are Nil as at March 31, 2025 (Previous year Nil) 

NOTE 32. LONG TERM CONTRACT 

The Trust has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year end, 
the Trust has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under any law/ accounting standard has been made in 
the books of accounts. 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as lndla Infrastructure Trust) 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

NOTE 33. SEGMENT REPORTING 

The Trust's activities comprise of owning and investing in Infrastructure SPVs to generate cash flows for distribution to 
unitholders. Based on the guiding principles given in Ind AS - 108 "Operating Segments", since this activity falls within a single 
operating segment, segment-wise position of business and its operations is not applicable to the Trust. 

NOTE 34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

The Trust adheres to a disciplined Capital Management framework which is underpinned by the following guiding principles: 
a) Maintain financial strength to ensure AAA or equivalent ratings at individual Trust and subsidiary level. 
b) Ensure financlal flexibility and diversify sources of financing and their maturities to minimize liquidity risk while meeting 
investment requirements. 

c) leverage optimally in order to maximize unit holder returns while maintaining strength and flexibility of the Balance sheet. 
This framework is adjusted based on underlying macro-economic factors affecting business environment, financial market 
conditions and interest rates environment. 

As at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 the Trust has no borrowings, hence net gearing ratio is zero. 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

NOTE 35. RATIOS - The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 

Particulars Numerator Denominator Year ended Year ended Variance 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Current Ratio Current Assets Current 384.46 21.98 1649.41% 
Liabilities 

Debt- Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's NA NA NA -
[Refer Note 35.1.(i)l Equity 

Debt Service Coverage Earnings Debt service NA NA NA· 
Ratio available for 
[Refer Note 35.1.{i)] debt services 

Return on Equity ratio Net profit/ {loss) Average 13.78"..£ 17.79% -22.58% -
after tax Shareholder's 

Equity 

Inventory Turnover Cost of goods Average NA NA NA · 
ratio sold Inventory 

Trade Receivables Revenue from Average Trade NA NA NA -
Turnover ratio operations Receivables 
[Refer Note 35.1.(iii)] 

Trade Payables Total Purchases Average Trade 6.68 7.28 -8.35% • 
Turnover ratio• of services & Payables 

other expenses 

Net Capital Turnover Revenue from Working Capital NA NA NA· 
ratio operations 

Net Profit Margin Net Profit Revenue from NA NA NA -
operations 

Return on Capital Earnings before capital 14.17% 17.66% -19.76% • 
Employed Interest & Tax Employed 

Return on Investment Income Time weighted 

On Mutual Fund generated from average 7.49% 6.98% 7.31% -
On Fixed Deposit investments investments 6.51% 6.51% 0.00% -
,. Total Purchases of services & other expenses does not include Fair value of NCD measured at FVTPL. 

35.1 Applicability of ratio 

i) The Trust does not have any debt, therefore Debt-Equity ratio and Debt-Service Coverage ratio is not applicable. 

ii) The Trust is into service industry, hence inventory turnover ratio is not applicable. 

iii) The Trust does not have any Trade receivables. Therefore, Trade receivable turnover ratio is not appllcable. 

35.2 Reason for variance 

Reason for 

variance 

[Refer Note 

35.2.(i)) 

i) Current liabilities were significantly lower as at March 31, 2025 due to discharge of Other Financial Liabilities outstanding as 

at March 31, 2024. Current Assets as at March 31, 2025 were lower because Debt Service Reserve Account Bank Gaurantee 

{DSRA BG) Fixed deposit was redeemed and distributed to unitholders during the year which was part of Current asset in l.ist 

year. These deposits were restricted upto March 22, 2024, pursuant to loan covenant of debt raised by SPV. These 
restrictions were removed subsequent to debt refinancing at SPV in year ended March 31, 2024. 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

NOTE 36. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

On a review of the business operations of the Trust, review of minutes of meetings, review of the trial balance of the period 
subsequent to March 31, 2025, no subsequent events requiring reporting in the financials of financial year 2024-25 have been 
identified, other than as disclosed below: 

The Net Distributable Cashflows (NDCF) is distributed as follows in the respective manner after March 31, 2025: 

INR in Crore 

Particulars Return of Return on 
Other Income Total Caoital Caoital 

April 16, 2025 134.27 136.31 - 270.58 
Total 134.27 136.31 - 270.58 

NOTE 37. The previous year figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to make them comparable with those of current 
year. 

NOTE 38, APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of Investment Manager to the Trust, at their meeting held 
on May 19, 2025. 

Date : May 19, 2025 
Place: Navi Mumbai 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 

(formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) 

(as an Investment Manager of Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India 
Infrastructure Trust) 

~~ --­Akhil Mehrotra 

Managing Director of Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 
DIN : 07197901 

S,<t,;b~ 

Chief Financial Officer of En cap Investment Manager Private Limited 
PAN: AIGPB790OG 

~ 

.~~ 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 
ACS No. 36271 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Chartered Accountants 
Commerz Ill, 30th & 31st f loors 
International Business Park 
Oberoi Garden City 
Off. Western Express Highway 
Goregaon (East) 
Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra, India 

To The Unitholders of Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as "India Infrastructure Trust") 

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Energy Infrastructure Trust 
(formerly known as "India Infrastructure Trust") ("the Trust") and its subsidiary, Pipeline Infrastructure 
Limited ("SPV"), (together referred to as the "Group") which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet 
as at March 31, 2025, Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year 
ended on that date, Consolidated Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value as at March 31, 2025, Consolidated 
Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value and Net Distributable Cash Flows at SPV and Trust Level for the 
year ended on that date as an additional disclosure in accordance with Securities Exchange Board of India 
(SEBI) Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/44, dated May 15, 2024 and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(together hereinafter referred as the "consolidated financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time 
including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder read with the SEBI Master Circular number 
SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/44, dated May 15 2024 (the "InvIT Regulations") in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 
2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the InvIT Regulations, of the 
consolidated state of affairs of the Trust as at March 31, 2025, its consolidated profit (including other 
comprehensive income), its consolidated changes in unitholders' equity, its consolidated cash flows for the 
year ended March 31, 2025, its consolidated net assets at fair value as at March 31, 2025, its consolidated 
total returns at fair value and its net distributable cash flows for the year ended on that date and other 
financial information of the Group . 

. Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing ("SAs") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "ICAI"). Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibility for the 
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the 
Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI and have fulfilled our ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements. 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to Note 11. 5 of the consolidated financial statements which describes the presentation 
of "Unit Capital" as "Equity" to comply with InvIT Regulations. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this 
matter. 

Regd. Office: One International Center, Tower 3, 31st floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mu mbai-400 013, Maharashtra, India. 

Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP is registered with Limited Liaoility having LLP identification No: AAB-8737 
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Key Audit Matter 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matter described 
below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report. 

Sr. No. Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response 

1 
Fair Value of net assets of the Trust: 

In accordance with InvlT Regulations, the 
Trust discloses Consolidated Statement of 
Net Assets at Fair Value, which requires fair 
valuation of net assets. As at March 31, 
2025, fair value of net assets was Rs. 
5,866.17 crores. 

The fair value of net assets of the Trust is 
determined by an independent valuer using 
discounted cash flow method. 

Principal audit procedures performed 
included the following: 

Our audit procedures related to the discount 
rates used in the computation of fair value of 
Net Assets of the Trust included the following, 
among others: 

• We obtained the independent valuer's 
valuation report to obtain an understanding 
of the source of information used by the 
independent valuer in determining the 
assumption. 

We tested the reasonableness of inputs and 
business assumptions, shared by 
management with the independent valuer, 
by comparing it to source information used 
and judgement exercised in preparing the 
inputs. 

While there are several assumptions that are 
required to determine the fair value of net • 
assets of the Trust, assumption with the 
highest degree of estimate, subjectivity and 
impact on fair value is the discount rates. 
Auditing this assumption required a high 
degree of auditor judgment as the estimate 
made by the independent valuer contain 
significant measurement uncertainty. • We evaluated the Trust's fair valuation 

specialist's competence to perform the 
valuation. Refer Consolidated Statement of Net assets 

at Fair Value in the consolidated financial 
statements. • We also involved our internal fair valuation 

specialists to independently determine fair 
value of the Net Assets of the Trust as at 
the balance sheet date, which included 
assessment of reasonableness of the 
discount rates used by management in 
valuation. 

• We compared the fair value determined by 
the Trust with that determined by our 
internal fair valuation specialist to assess 
the reasonableness of the fair valuation. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

• En cap Investment Ma nag er Private Limited (formerly known as "Brookfield India 
Infrastructure Manager Private Limited") ('Investment Manager') acting in its capacity as an 
Investment Manager of the Trust is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the 'Report of the Investment Manager' but 
does not include the standalone financial statements, consolidated financial statements and 
our auditor's report thereon. The Report of the Investment Manager is expected to be made 
available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 

• Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information 
and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
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• In connection with our·audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other Information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially Inconsistent with the consolidated 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

• When we read the Report of the Investment Manager, if we conclude that there is a material 

misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance 

as required under SA 720 'The Auditor's responsibilities Relating to Other Information'. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager ("the Board") is responsible for the preparation 
of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 
position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes 
in unithotder's equity, consolidated cash flows of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2025, consolidated 
net assets at fair value as at March 31, 2025, total returns at fair value and net distributable cash flows 
for the year ended on that date and other financial information of the Group in conformity with the InvIT 
Regulations and accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as 
amended), to the extent not inconsistent with InvIT Regulations. 

The Board and the Board of Directors of the subsidiary included in the Group are responsible for 
maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for 
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of the Investment 
Manager, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the 
Investment Manager and subsidiary included in the Group are responsible for assessing the Trust's and 
subsidiary's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either 
intends to liquidate their respective entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the Investment Manager and subsidiary included in the Group 
are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives a re to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
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professional-scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Board's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements repres.ent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities within the 
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the 
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial information of such entities included in 
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and {ii} to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in 
the consolidated financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Trust and subsidiary included in the 
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current 
year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
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-circumstances, we determirre-that·a matter should not·lJecommunicated in our repon:··15ecause·the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit and as required by InvIT Regulations, we report that: 

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

b) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Statement of Cash 
Flows, Consolidated Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value, Consolidated Statement of Total Return at Fair 
Value and the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust and its subsidiary dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of 
consolidated financial statements; 

c) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as 
amended), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with 
the InvIT Regulations. 

Place: Navi Mumbai 
Date: May 19, 2025 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

{Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) 

Rajendra Sharma 
Partner 

(Membership No. 119925) 
<uo1N:}.SUq'fl.5"8MfrlSzE:4'18' ) 



Energy Infrastructure Trust {formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 

Notes 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 
Property, Plant and Equipment 1 
Capital Work-in-Progress 1 
Goodwill 1 
Other Intangible Assets 1 
Intangible Assets Under Development 1 
Financial Assets 
Other Financial Assets 2 

Assets for current tax (net) 
Other Non-Current Assets 3 
Total Non-Current Assets 
Current Assets 
Inventories 4 
Rnanciat Assets 

Investments 5 
Trade Receivables 6 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 
Other Bank Balances 8 
Other Financial Assets 9 

Other Current Assets 10 
Total Current Assets 
Total Assets 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Eauitv 
Unit Capital 11 
Other Equity 12 
Total Equity attributable to the unit holders of the Trust 

Non- Controlling Interest 13 
Total Equity 
Lia b iii ties 
Non-Current Liabilities 
Financial Liabil it ies 

Borrowings 14 
Lease Liabilities 15 
Other Financial Liabilities 16 

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 17 
Other Non-Current Liabilities 18 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 
Current liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

Lease Liabilities 15.4 
Borrowings 20 
Trade Payables 19 
Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small 

Enterpr ises 

Others 
Other Financial Liabilities 21 

Other Current liabilities 22 
Provisions 23 
Total Current liabilities 
Total liabilities 
Total Equity and Liabilities 

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial 1-43 
Statements 

(INR in Crorel 
Asat As at 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Audited Audited 

10,324.18 11,153.56 
41.88 46.59 
40.40 40.40 

1,407.63 1,514.88 
1.15 3.48 

9.12 119.79 
27.63 40.78 

9.03 9.42 
11,861.02 12 928.90 

2S0.39 208.21 

229.90 414.85 
182.05 197.52 
647.10 602.94 
162.93 164.36 
30.24 29.96 

296.28 137.06 
1798.89 1 754.90 

13 659.91 14 683.80 

3,740.22 4,228.29 
(2 350.11) {I 705.83) 
1,390.11 2,522.46 

4 045.17 4 045.17 
5A3S.28 6 567.63 

6,460.44 6,459.69 
13.91 16.96 

115.26 97.26 
0.01 -

26.21 22.52 
6,615.83 6 596.43 

3.06 2.82 
126.63 27.58 

0.78 1.39 

107.52 162.79 
1,302.96 1,249.42 

65.60 74.36 
2.25 1.38 

1608.80 1.519.74 
8 224.63 8 116.17 

13 659.91 14 683.80 

~ 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 

As per our report of even date 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No. 

117366W /W-100018 

Rajendra Sharma 

Partner 

Membership No. 119925 

Date: May 19, 2025 
Place : Navi Mumbai 

For and on behalf of the Board 
Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 
(formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager 

Private Limited) 

(as an Investment Manager of Energy Infrastructure Trust 

(formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 

~~ 
Akhll Mehrotra 
Managing Director of Encap Investment Manager Private 

Limited 

DIN: 07197901 

Suchib,~ 
Chief Financial Officer of Encap Investment Manager Private 

Limited 

PAN: AIGPB7900G 

1/ 
A~ alo 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of Encap 

Investment Manager Private Limited 

ACS No. 36271 

Date: May 19, 2025 
Place : Navi Mumbai 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust {formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

Notes 

INCOME 
Revenue from Operations 24 
Interest 25 
Profit on sale of investments 
Gain on sale of assets 
Other Income 26 
Total Income 
EXPENSES 
Valuation Expenses 
Audit Fees 29.2 
Insurance and Security Expenses 
Employee Benefits Expense 27 
Project Management Fees 
Investment Management Fees 
Trustee Fee 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment l 
Amortization of intangible assets 1 
Finance Costs 28 
Custodian fees 
Repairs and maintenance 
Loss on sale of assets 
Fair value loss on put option 
Fair value loss on call option 
Other Expenses 29 
Total Expenses 

Profit Before Tax 

Tax Expenses 
Current Tax 32 
Deferred Tax 17 
Total Tax Expense 

Profit for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) 
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss 
Actuarial gain/ (loss) during the period 
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Statement of 

Profit and Loss 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Profit for the year attributable to: 
Unit holders of the Trust 
Non- Controlling Interest 

Total Comprehensive Income attributable to 
Unit holders of the Trust 
Non- Controlling Interest 

Earnings per unit 
- For Basic (Rs.) 30 
- For Diluted (Rs.) 30 

See accomPanvinR Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 1-43 

For the year 

ended 

March 31, 2025 

Audited 

3,892.93 
52.83 
34.71 
26.38 
29.38 

4,036.23 

0.27 
3.87 

54.44 
34.71 

1.77 
2.83 
0.21 

810.42 
110.93 
517.47 

0.35 
96.50 

-
0.01 

18.00 
2 374.51 
4026.29 

9.94 

0.97 
0.01 
0.98 

8.96 

(0.65) 

-

8.31 

8.96 

-

8.31 
-

0.13 
0.13 

~
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lJJ ~ 
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0 0 
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(INR in Crorel 
For the year 

ended 

March 31, 2024 

Audited 

3,666.36 
37.30 
20.39 

-
118.65 

3 842.70 

0.23 

4.49 
53.51 
36.01 

1.77 

2.83 
0.21 

810.97 
106.07 
603.22 

0.38 
141.96 

0.02 
1.00 

14.46 

1242.11 
3 019.24 

823.46 

1.44 

-
1.44 

822.02 

0.06 
-

822.08 

822.02 

-

822.08 
-

12.38 
12.38 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

As per our report of even date 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No. 

117366W/W-100018 

Rajendra Sharma 
Partner 

Membership No.119925 

Date: May 19, 202S 

Place : Navi Mumbai 

For and on behalf of the Board 
Encap Investment Manager Private limited 
(formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager 
Private Limited) 
(as an Investment Manager of Energy Infrastructure Trust 
(formerlv known as India Infrastructure Trust) 

~~ 
Akhil Mehrotra 

Managing Director of Encap Investment Manager Private 
Limited 
DIN: 07197901 

s,dolb~ 

Chief Financial Officer of Encap Investment Manager Private 
Limited 
PAN: AIGPB7900G 

~~ 
A~ Jain 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of Encap 
Investment Manager Private Limited 
ACS No. 36271 

Date: May 19, 2025 
Place : Navi Mumbai 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 

A. UNIT CAPITAL 
_IBefer note 11) 
Particulars 

Unit Capital 

Particulars 

Unit Capital 

Balance as at 

1st April, 2024 
4 228.29 

Balance as at 
1st April, 2023 

4,708.15 

• Return of capital as per NDCF is approved by Investment Manager. Refer NDCF Note 38. 

B. OTHER EQUITY 
_IBefer Note 12 and 13) 

Changes in Unit Capital during the year 2024-25* 

(488.07' 

Changes in Unit Capital during the year 2023-24* 

(479.86' 

Particulars Attributable to the unit holders of the Trust Non- Controlling 

Retained Earnings Other Total Interest 

Comprehensive 

Income/ (Loss) 

Balance as at the beginning of the reporting year i.e. April 1, 2024 (1,705 .74) (0.09) (1,705.83) 4,045.17 

Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year 8.96 (0.65) 8.31 . 
Return on Capital# (651.17) . {651.17) -
Other Income Distribution# (1.42 - (1.42' 
Balance as at the end of the reporting year (2,349.37) (0.74} (2,350.11) 4,045.17 
i.e. March 31, 2025 

Balance as at the beginning of the reporting year i.e. April 1, 2023 (2,034.54) (0.15) (2,034.69) 4,045.17 
Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year 822.02 0.06 822.08 -
Return on Capital# (488.54) . (488.54) -
Other Income Distribution# (4.68 . (4.68' 
Balance as at the end of the reporting year (1,705.74) (0.09) (1,705.83) 4,045.17 

i.e. March 31 2024 

(INR in Crore) 

Balance as at 

31st March, 2025 
3 740.22 

(Rs. in Crore) 

Balance as at 

31st March, 2024 
4 228.29 

(INR In Crore) 

Total 

2,339.34 

8.31 
(6S1.17) 

(1.42] 
1,695.06 

2,010.48 
822.08 

(488.54) 
(4.68' 

2,339.34 

# Return on capital and other income distributed during the year as per NDCF duly approved by investment manager which include interest and other income. Refer NDCF Note 38. 

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 1-43 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity 

As per our report of even date 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No. 
117366W/W-100018 

Rajendra Sharma 

Partner 
Membership No. 119925 

Date: May 19, 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board 
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Akhil Mehrotra 
Managing Director of Encap Investment Manager Private 
Limited 
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PAN: AIGPB7900G 
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Investment Manager Private Limited 
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Date: May 19, 2025 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net Profit Before Tax as per Statement of Profit and loss 
Adjuste~ for: 

Depreciation and Amortisation 
Gain on sale of Current Investments (Net) 

Fair value (gain}/loss on valuation of Current Investments (Net) 
(Gain)/ Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 
Fair Value measurement loss on put option 
Fair Value measurement loss on call option 
Interest Income 
Finance Costs 

Operating profit before working capital changes 
Adjusted for: 
Trade and Other Receivables 
Inventories 
Trade and Other Payables 

Net Cash generated from Operating Activities 

Tax refund received 

Net Cash flow from Operating Activities 

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-in-progress and 

Intangibles 
Proceeds from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-in• 

progress and Intangibles 

Fixed deposits placed with Banks 
Fixed deposits with Banks redeemed 
Purchase of Current Investments 
Sale of Current Investments 
Interest Received 

Net Cash 11:enerated/ (used} from Investing Activities 

{Rs. in Crorel 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Audited Audited 

9.94 823.46 

921.35 917.04 
(37.44) (21.76) 

0.34 (2.13) 
(26.38) 0.02 

0.01 1.00 
18.00 14.46 

(51.53) (36.90) 
517.47 603.22 

1.341.82 1474.3S 
1,351.76 2,297.81 

(144.37) (156.56) 
(29.41) 29.13 

(8.631 (132.19) 
(182.41) 1259.62) 

1,169.35 2,038.19 

12.18 12.89 

1181.53 2,051.09 

(46.11) (56.77) 

82.04 0.07 

(3,57S.55} {9,322.31) 
3,687.64 9,415.36 

(5,283.21) (3,259.95) 
5,50S.29 2,889.79 

S2.20 38.63 

422.30 1295.181 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from Borrowings 

Repayment of Borrowings 
Return of Capital to Unit holders 
Return on Capital to Unit holders 
Distribution of other income to Unit holders 
Principal repayment on Lease liability 
Interest paid on lease liability 
Interest paid 

Net Cash used in Financing Activities 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 
{Refer Note 7) 
Refer Note 14.6 and 15.6 for Change In Liability Arising from Financing 
Activities 
See accomPanvinR Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

(Rs in Crorel 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Audited Audited 

- 6,452.00 
. (6,452.00) 

(488.07) (479.85) 
(6S1.17) (488.54) 

(1.42) (4.68) 
(2.81) (2.62) 
(1.46) (1.68) 

{414.74) (565.27) 

(1,559.67) (1542.64) 

44.16 213.26 

602.94 389.68 

647.10 602.94 

1-43 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

As per our report of even date 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No. 
117366W /W-100018 

Rajendra Sharma 

Partner 
Membership No. 119925 

Date: May 19, 2025 
Place : Navi Mumbai 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 
(formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager 
Private Limited) 
(as an Investment Manager of Energy Infrastructure Trust 

(formerlv known as India Infrastructure Trust) 

~ 
Akhil Mehrotra 
Managing Director of Encap Invest ment Manager Private 

Limited 
DIN: 07197901 

SU<hib~ e 
Chief Financial Officer of Encap Investment Manager Private 
Limited 
PAN: AIGPB7900G 

A~'!!! 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of Encap 
Investment Manager Private Limited 

ACS No. 36271 

Date: May 19, 2025 

Place : Navi Mumbai 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value and Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value 

Disclosures pursuant to Section Hof Chapter 3 of the SEBI Master Circular No, SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/44 dated 
May 15, 2024 issued under the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014. 

H) Consolidated Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value 

As at March 31, 2025 
Particulars Book Value Fair Value 
A. Assetl 13,659.91 14,090.80 
B. Liabilities 8,224.63 8,224.63 
C. Net Assets {A-8) 5,435.28 5,866.17 
D. Number of Units (No. in Crore) 66.40 66.40 
E NAV IC/ 0 ) (INR Per unit) 81.86 88.35 

Note 1. The book value and fair value of liabilities are as reflected in the Balance Sheet. 

I} Consolidated Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value 

Particulars 

Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) 
(As per the Statement of Profit and loss). 

Add/(less): Other Changes in Fair Value (if cost model is followed) not recognized 

in Total Comorehensive Income• 
Total Return 

IINR in Crorel lexceot oer unit datal 
As at March 31, 2024 

Book Value Fair Value 
14,683.80 14,689.55 

8,116.17 8,116.17 
6,567.63 6,573.38 

66.40 66.40 
98.91 99.00 

{Rs. in Crore) 
Vear ended Vear ended 

March 31 2025 March 31. 2024 
8.31 822.08 

425.14 (61.32) 

433.45 760.76 

#Fair value of assets and other changes in fair value for the year then ended as disclosed in the above tables are derived 
based on the fair valuation reports issued by the independent external registered valuer appointed under the lnvlT 
Regulations. 

The Trust has only one Project i.e. PIL. Hence separate project-wise breakup of fair value of assets are not given. 
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Energv Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value and Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value 

As per our report of even dat~ 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No. 
117366W/W-100018 

Rajendra Sharma 

Partner 
Membership No. 119925 

Date: May 19, 2025 

Place : Navi Mumbai 

For and on behalf of the Board 
Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 
(formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager 
Private llmitedl 
(as an Investment Manager of Energy Infrastructure Trust 

(formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 

~~ 
Akhil Mehrotra 
Managing Director of Encap Investment Manager Private 
Limited 
DIN: 07197901 

~ 
Suchibra~ ee 
Chief Financial Officer of Encap Investment Manager Private 
l imited 
PAN: AIGPB7900G 

~ 
A0,,i, 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of Encap 
Investment Manager Private Limited 
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Date: May 19, 202S 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust} 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

A. Group Information 

The Consolidated financial statements comprises of the financial statements of Energy Infrastructure Trust (Formerly 
known as India Infrastructure Trust) {"Trust"/"lnvlT") and its subsidiary Pipeline Infrastructure Limited ("PIL"/ "SPV") 
(collectively, the Group) for the year ended March 31, 2025. 

The Trust is registered as a contributory irrevocable trust set up under the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 on November 22, 
2018, and registered as an infrastructure investment trust under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, on January 23, 2019 having registration number IN/lnvlT/18-
19/00008. 

The registered office of the Trust is located at Seawoods Grand Central, Tower-1, 3rd Level, C Wing - 301 to 304, Sector 
40, Seawoods Railway Station, Navl Mumbai, Thane, Maharashtra - 400706, India. 

The name of the Trust changed from "India Infrastructure Trust" to "Energy Infrastructure Trust" w.e.f. November 18, 
2024 i.e. the date of unitholders' approval. Further, SE81 issued t he revised registration certificate giving effect to the 
name change on December 09, 2024. 

Effective April 1, 2020, the "Investment Manager" of the Trust is Encap Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly 
known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited). The name of the Investment Manager changed to 
Encap Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private 
Limited) w.e.f. June 21, 2024. The registered office of the Investment Manager has been changed from Unit 1, 4th 
Floor, Godrej BKC, Bandra Kurla Complex, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400051 India to Seawoods Grand Central, Tower-1, 
3rd Level, C Wing - 301 to 304, Sector 40, Seawoods Railway Station, Navi Mumbai, Thane, Maharashtra - 400706, 
India effective April 29, 2024. 

The investment objectives of the Trust are to carry on the act ivities of an infrastructure investment trust, as 
permissible under t he SEBI (Infrastructure investment Trusts) Re.gulations, 2014, as amended and the circulars issued 

thereunder (HSEBI lnvlT Regulations") by raising funds and making investments in accordance with the SEBI lnvlT 
Regulations and the Trust Deed. The lnvlT has received listing and trading approval for its Units w.e.f. March 20, 2019 
from the Stock Exchange vide BSE notice dated March 19, 2019. 

On March 22, 2019 Trust acquired 100% controlling interest in Pipeline Infrastructure Limited ("PIL" or "SPV" or 
"Subsidiary") from Reliance Industries Holding Private Limited (RIHPL). • 
Pll owns and operates the ~1,480 km natural gas transmission pipeline, including dedicated lines, (together with 
compressor stations and operation centres} (the "Pipeline") from Kakinada in Andhra Pradesh to Bharuch in Gujarat. 

B. Material Accounting Policies 

B.1 Basis of Accounting and Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Energy Infrastructure Trust (Formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
comprises the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, the Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Unitholders' Equity for year ended March 31, 2025 and a summary of material accounting policies and 

other explanatory Information and Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows {NDCFs) at Trust (lnvlT) and SPV (PIL) 
Level for the year ended March 31, 2025. 

Additionally, it Includes the Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Total Returns 
at Fair Value for the year ended March 31, 2025 and other add!tional disclosures as required by Paragraph 4.6 of 

Chapter 4, Section A of the SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/44 dated May 15, 2024 ("the 
SEBI Master Circular"). 

The Consolidated Financial Statements were authorized for issue in accordance with resolutions passed by the Board 

of Directors of the Investment Manager on behalf of the Energy lnfrast ruct ~---:;;,,, 2025. 



Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts} 
Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time read with the Paragraph 3.21 of Chapter 3 of the SEBI Master 
circular ("lnvlT RegulationsH}; Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 ('Ind AS'), to the extent not inconsistent with the lnvlT Regulations (refer note 11.5 
on presentation of "Unit Capital" as "Equity11 instead of compound instruments under Ind AS 32 - Financial 
Instruments: Presentation), read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India. 

The Trust's Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its functional currency and 
all values are rounded to the nearest Crore upto two decimal places, except when otherwise indicated. 

Statement of compliance to Ind AS: 

These Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2O2S have been prepared in accordance with 
Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 
('Ind AS'), to the extent not inconsistent with the lnvlT regulations as more fully described above and in Note 11.5 to 
the consolidated financial statements. 

8.2 Basis of consolidation 
The Group consolidates all entities which are controlled by it. The consolidated financial statements comprise the 
financial statements of the Trust and its subsidiary as at March 31, 2025. Control is achieved when the Group is 
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those 
returns through its power over the investee. 

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group 
loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during 
the period are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date 
the Group ceases to control the Subsidiary. 

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other 
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the 
consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjvstments 
are made to that group member's financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure 
conformity with the group's accounting policies. The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of 
consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the Trust, i.e., period ended on March 31, 2025. 

Consolidation Procedure: 
i) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its 
subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and 
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date. 

ii) Eliminate In full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions 

between entities of the Group (profits or losses resulting from in,tragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, 
such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full) . 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as lndla Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

B.3 Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation uncertainties 
The preparation of consolidated f inancial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles 
of Ind AS requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances 
of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the date of the consolidated financial statements and 
the reported amounts of income and expenses for the periods presented. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected. The Management believes 
that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Uncertainty about 
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount 
of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are in respect of useful lives 
of property, plant and equipment and impairment, valuation of deferred tax assets and fair value measurement of 

financial Instruments, these are discussed below: 

i) Property, plant and equipment, Goodwill and Intangible assets- useful life and impairment, Refer Note B.4 (a), (bl & 
(f) and Note 1. 
ii)Deferred tax liabilities, Refer Note B.4 (j) and Note 17. 
iii)Financial Instruments- Refer Note B.4 (t) and Note 36. 

B.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policies 
(a) Property, plant and equipment: 

i) Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, ii any. Such 

cost includes purchase price and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its 
intended use, net changes on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations 
attributable to t he property, plant and equipment. 

ii) Line pack gas has been considered as part of Property, plant and equipment. 
iii) Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost can 

be measured reliably. 

iv) Depreciation on the following class of assets is provided on straight line method over the useful life as per Schedule 

II to the Companies Act, 2013: 
1. Furniture and Fixtures - 10 years 
2. Office Equipments - 5 years 
In respect of the following assets, useful life is as per technical evaluation: 

Buildings - 4 to 20 years 
Plant and Machinery - 4 to 20 years 
Residual value of certain Plant & Machinery has been considered as Nil based on technical valuation. 
Any additions to above category of assets will be depreciated over balance useful life. Leasehold land is amortised over 

the period of lease; Line pack gas is not depreciated. In respect of additions or extensions forming an integral part of 
existing assets, including incremental cost arising on account of translatlon of foreign currency liabilities for acquisition 
of property, plant and equipment, depreciation is provided over the residual life of the respective assets. Freehold 

land is not depreciated. 

v) The estimated useful lives, residual values, depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, 
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 

vi) An Item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount 
of the asset. It is recognised in the statement of profit and I 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to the Consolidated Flnancial Statements 

{bl Intangible Assets 
Intangible Assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost includes purchase price (net of recoverable taxes, trade 
discount and rebates) and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its Intended 
use, net changes on foreign exchange cont racts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to 
the intangible assets are capitallsed. Amortisation is recognised on straight~ line basis over the estimated useful lives. 
The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of 
any changes in estimates being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that 

are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Computer software is amortised over 
a period of S years on straight line method except tor licenses with perpetual life which have been restricted to period 

of Pipeline Usage Agreement. 

Intangible Assets acquired in business combination: 
Intangible Assets acquired in business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised at 

their fair value at the acquisition date (which ls regarded as their cost), Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible 
assets acquired in business combination are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately. Rights under Pipeline 
Authorisation are amortized over a period of twenty years, being the economic useful life. 

(c) Finance Costs 
Finance costs, that are directly attributable to the acquisit ion or construction of qualifying assets, are capitalised as a 
part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready 

for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period for which 
they are incurred. 

(d) Inventories 
Items of Inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for obsolescence, if any. 
Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs including incidental expenses net 
of recoverable taxes incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. Cost of stores and 
spares, trading and other items are determined on weighted average basis, 

(e) Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of 
three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of 
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, as they are 
considered an integral part of the Group's cash management . 

(f) Impairment of Non - Financial Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment, Goodwill and Intangible Assets 
The Group assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any property, plant and 

equipment and intangible assets or group of assets, called cash generating units (CGU) may be impaired. If any such 
indication exists the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if 
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the 

recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of 
the asset exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year 
in which an asset is identified as impaired. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of 
disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value 
using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of t he time value of money and risk specific to the 
assets. The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting periods is reversed if there has been an increase in the 

recoverable value due to a change in the estimate, 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of business having an indefinite useful life is carried at cost as established at the 
date of acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any. This is not subject to amortization. For 
the purpose of assessing impairments, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately 
identifiable cashflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (Cash 
generating units). A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently 
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of CGU is less than its carrying 
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and 

then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment 
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in 
subsequent periods. On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in determination 

of profit or loss on disposal. 

(g) Leases 
(i) The Group's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for office premises. The Group assesses whether a 
contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right 
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether: {1) the contact 
involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset 
through the period of the lease and (3) the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of use asset (uROU") and a corresponding 
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less 
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Group ,recognizes the lease 
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Right-of-use assets are 
depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. 

ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they wilt be exercised. 

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of t he lease liability. The 
lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at t he present value of the future lease payments. The lease 
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the 
incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a 
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will 

exercise an extension or a termination option. 

(ii) Short term leases and leases of low value assets 
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use asset ("ROU") and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a 
lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The Group recognises the lease payments associated 
with these leases as expenses on a straight line basis over the lease term. 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust {formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

(h) Provisions and Contingent liabilities 
A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an 

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. 

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which 

will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within 

the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an 

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 

{i) Employee Benefits 
Employee benefits include contributions to provident fund, gratuity fund and compensated absences. 

Short Term Employee Benefits 
The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered 

by employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the services. 

Post-Employment Benefits 

Defined Contribution Plans 
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays specified contributions to 

a separate entity. The Group makes specified monthly contributions towards Provident Fund and Pension Scheme. The 
Group's contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the 

employee renders the related service. 

Defined Benefit Plans 
The liability in respect of defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits is calculated using the Projected 

Unit Credit Method and spread over the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from employees' 
services. 

Actuarial gains and losses in respect of post-employments are charged to the Other Comprehensive Income. They are 

included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. 

0) Tax Expense 
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, 

except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the comprehensive income or in equity. In this case, the tax 

is also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity. 

Current tax 
The current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in profit or loss 

because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes 

items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have 

been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

A provision is recognised for those matters for which the tax determination is uncertain but it is considered probable 

that there will be a future outflow of funds to a tax authority. The provisions are measured at the best estimate of the 

amount expected to become payable. The assessment is based on the judgement of tax professionals within the 
Group supported by previous experience in respect of such activities and in certain cases based on independent tax 

specialist advice. 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the 
liabllity is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at 
the end of each reporting period. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will 

be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax losses can be 
utilised. The Group uses judgement to determine the amount of deferred tax that can be recognised, based upon the 
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits and business developments. 

(k) Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation 
i) Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary 

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency closing rates of 
exchange at the reporting date. 

ii) Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and 
Loss. The exchange differences arising as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency borrowings that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets, are capitalized as cost of assets. 

iii) Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are .recorded using the 

exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on 
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on 
the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in 
OCI or Statement of Profit and toss are also recognised in OCI or Statement of Profit and loss, respectively). 

(I} Revenue Recognition 
The Group follows a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue rs to be 
recognised. Ind AS 115 provides for a single model for accounting for revenue arising from contract with customers, 
focusing on the identification & satisfaction of performance obligations. 

i) The Group earns revenue primarily from transportation of gas. Income from transportation of gas is recognised on 
completion of delivery In respect of the quantity of gas delivered to customers. In respect of quantity of gas received 
from customers under deferred delivery basis, income for the quantity of gas retained in the pipeline is recognised by 
way of deferred delivery charges for the period of holding the gas in the pipeline at a mutually agreed rate. Income is 
accounted net of GST. Revenue is recognized point in time or over a point of time, as applicable. 

ii} Amount received upfront in lumpsum under agreement from customers is recognised on capitalisation and when 
performance obligation is completed. 

iii) Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 

Trust and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to 
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the flnc1ncial asset to that asset's net ca rrying amount on 
initial recognition. 

iv) Contracted capacity payments received from a party and other billing ln excess of revenues, are classified as c;ontract 

/iabllitles (which we refer to as income received in advance), until the services are delivered to the customers. 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

(ml Current and non-current classification 
Assets and liabilities are presented in Balance Sheet based on current and non.current classification. Non•current 
assets and current assets, non-current liabilities and current liabilities are determined in accordance with Ind AS 1 
notified by MCA. 
An asset is classified as current when it is 
a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, 
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading, 
c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period. 
All other assets are classified as non·current. 
A liability is classified as current when it is 
a) Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, 
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading, 
c) Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 
period. 
All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

(n) Fair value measurement 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured 
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 

participants act in their economic best interest. 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate 
economlc benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 

would use the asset In its highest and best use. 
Valuation techniques used are those that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement as a whole: 
Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical 

assets or liabilit ies; 
Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that 
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or Indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and 

Level 3 fair value measurements are t hose derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for t he asset or 
liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs}. 

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded In the balance sheet cannot be measured based 
on quoted prices in active markets, t heir fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted 
Cash Flow model. The inputs to t hese models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not 
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs 
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in these factors could affect the reported 

fair value of financial instruments. The policy has been fu ----=:=::;:::::;,,.. Note 36. 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust {formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

(o) off-setting financial instrument 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally 
enforceable rights to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable rights must not be contingent on future events 
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, Insolvency or bankruptcy of the 
Group or counterparty. 

(p) Business Combination 
Acquisitions of the businesses are accounted for by using the acquisition method. Consideration transferred in a 
business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair values of the 

assets acquired by the Trust, liabilities incurred by the Trust to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity 
interest issued by Trust in exchange of control by the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Goodwill is measured at the excess of the sum of the consideration 
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously 
held equity Interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the 
reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Trust reports provisional amounts for the items for which the 
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period, or additional 
assets or liabilities are recognized, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as 
of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized as of that date. The measurement 
period is the period from the date of acquisition to the date Trust obtains complete information about facts and 
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date. The measurement period is subject to a maximum of one year 
subsequent to the acquisition date. 

(q) Earnings per unit 
Basic earnings per unit is computed using the net profit for the period attributable to t he unitholders' and weighted 
average number of units outstanding during the period. 

Diluted earnings per unit is computed using the net profit for the period attributable to unitholder' and weighted 
average number of units and potential units outstanding during the period, except where the result would be anti­
dilutive. Potential units that are converted during the period are included in the calculation of diluted earnings per 
unit, from the beginning of the period or date of issuance of such potential units, to the date of conversion. There are 
no dilutive units issued In the case of the Trust. 

{r} Consolidated Statements of Net Assets at Fair Value 
The disclosure of Consolidated Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value comprises of the fair values of the total assets 
and fair values of the total liabilities as reflected in the Balance Sheet, of individual Special Purpose Vehicle (PIL) and 
the Trust. The fair value of the assets are reviewed annually by Investment manager, derived based on the fair 
valuation reports issued by the independent valuer appointed under the lnvlT Regulations. The independent valuers 
are leading valuers with a recognized and relevant professional qualification as per lnvlT regulations and valuation 
assumptions used are reviewed by Investment Manager at least once a year. 

{s) Consolldated Statements of Total Returns at Fair Value 
The disclosure of Consolidated Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value comprises of the total Comprehensive Income 
as per the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Changes in Fair Value (e.g. in respect of property, 

property, plant & equipment) not recognized in Total Comprehensive Income. Other changes in fair value is derived 
based on the fair valuatlon reports issued by the independent valuer appointed under the lnvlT Regulations. 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

(t) Financial instruments 

i) Financial Assets 

A. Initial recognition and measurement: 
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. 

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities 

(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from 
the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. 

B. Classification and Subsequent measurement 

a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC) 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to 

hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 

specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a 

business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
Financial assets are measured at FVTPL unless they are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI on initial recognition. 

The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are immediately recognised in 

statement of profit and loss. Investments in mutual funds are measured at FVTPL. However, the trade receivables that 
do not contain a significant financing component, are measured at transaction price. 

d) Impairment of financial assets 
The Group recognises loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets measured at 

amortised cost. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an 

amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to 

the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those 

are measured at lifetime ECL The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss 

allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or 
loss in statement of profit and loss. 

ii) Financial liabilities 

A. Initial recognition and measurement: 

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is as held­
for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are 
recognised in Profit or Loss. 

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest 

expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Profit or Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is 
also recognised in Profit or Loss. 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

iii) Derecognition of financial instruments 

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or 
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another 
entity. The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged, 

cancelled or have expired. 

iv) Effective interest method 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating 
interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future 
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter 
nPrinrl 

v) Compound Ffnancial Instruments 
The component parts of compound financial instruments issued by the Group are classified separately as financial 
liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a 
financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount 
of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Group's own equity instruments is an equity instrument. 

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for 
similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recognised as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the 
effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument's maturity date. 

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the 
fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of income 
tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the conversion option classified as equity will remain in 
equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to 
other component of equity. When the conversion option remains unexercised at the maturity date of the compound 
financial instruments, the balance recognised in equity will be t ransferred to retained earnings. No gain or loss is 
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option. 

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the compound financial instruments are allocated to the liability and 
equity components in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity 

component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in the 
carrying amount of tne liability component and are amortised over the fives of the instrument using the effective 
interest method. 

(u) Net distributable cash flows to unit holders 
The Trust recognises a liability to make cash distributions to unit holders when the distribution is authorised and a 
legal obligation has been created. As per the lnvlT Regulations, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the 

Pipeline lnvlT Committee constituted by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager {upto December 12, 2023) 
and Board of Directors of the Investment Manager (w.e.f. December 12, 2023). A corresponding amount is recognised 
directly in equity. 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust {formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

NOTE 1. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSETS, CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT 

Description GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION 
Asat Additions Deductions/ Asat Asat For the year Deductions/ Asat 

01,04.2024 Adjustments 31.03.2025 
Property, Plant and E, uipment 

01.04.2024 Adjustments 31.03.2025 

Own Assets 
Freehold Land 94.85 . - 94.85 - - - -
Buildings 209.42 1.08 - 210.50 54.64 11.76 - 66.40 
Plant and Machinery 14,640.48 28.88 90.62 14,578.74 3,847.21 790.01 35.11 4,602.11 
Furniture and 3.01 0.01 0.01 3.01 1.55 0.20 0.01 1.74 
Office Equipment 24.62 6.73 5.36 25.99 10.51 5.45 5.21 10.75 
Line pack gas 78.13 . 78.13 - - - . 
Sub-Total 15 050.51 36.70 95.99 14.991.22 3 913.91 807.42 40.33 4 681.00 

Right-of-Use Assets 
Buildings 27.66 - - 27.66 12.01 2.98 - 14.99 
Leasehold Land 1.40 - - 1.40 0.09 0.02 - 0.11 
Sub-Total 29.06 - - 29.06 12.10 3.00 - 15.10 

Total IA) 15 079.57 36.70 95.99 
Intangible assets 

15020.28 3 926.01 810.42 40.33 4696.10 

Software* 31.72 3.68 - 35.40 11.89 11.09 - ZZ.98 
Pipeline 1,996.70 - - 1,996.70 501.65 99.84 - 601.49 

Total {BJ 2028.42 3,68 - Z,032.10 513.54 110.93 - 624.47 
TOTAL{A+B) 17107.99 40.38 95.99 17,052.38 4439.55 921.35 40.33 5 320.57 
Capital Work-in-Progress 

lntanl!ible Assets Under DeveloDment 
• Otherthan internally generated 

<f 

~P11 

(INR ·in Crore) l 
NET CARRYING AMOUNT 
Asat As at 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

94.85 94.85 
144.10 154.78 

9,976.63 10,793.27 

1.27 1.46 
15.24 14.11 
78.13 78.13 

10 310.22 11136.60 

12.67 15.65 
1,Z9 1.31 

13.96 16.96 

10 324.18 11153.56 

12.42 19.83 
1,395.21 1,495.05 

1A07.63 1514.88 
11 731.81 12,668.44 

41.88 46.59 
1.15 3.48 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to the Consolldated Financial Statements 

NOTE 1. PROPERTY, PlANT AND EQUIPMENT, GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSETS, CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENl 

Description GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT DEPRECIATION 'AMORTISATION 

As at Additions Deductions/ As at Asat For the year 

01.04.2023 Adjustments 31.03.2024 01.04.2023 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Ow n Assets 
Freehold Land 94.85 - . 94.85 . -
Buildings 20S.80 3.62 . 209.42 43.10 11.54 

Plant and Machinery 14,606.01 34.58 0.11 14,640.48 3,056.05 791.20 

Furniture and 2.81 0.20 0.00 3.01 1.36 0.19 
Office Equipment 23.92 2.3S 1.6S 24.62 7.10 S.04 
Line pack gas 78.13 - 78.13 - -
Sub-Total 15,011.52 40.75 1.76 15 050.51 3107.61 807.97 

Right-of-Use Assets 
Buildings 27.66 - - 27.66 9.03 2.98 
Leasehold Land 1.40 . . 1.40 0.07 0.02 
Sub-Total 29.06 - - 29.06 9.10 3.00 

Total {A) 15,040.58 40.7S 1.76 15,079.57 3116.71 810.97 
Intangible· assets 
Software 29.07 2.6S - 31.72 5.66 6.23 
Pipeline 1,996.70 . - 1,996.70 401.81 99.84 

Aut horisation 

Total (B) 2.025.77 2.65 - Z 028.42 407.47 106.07 
TOTAL{A+B) 17,066.35 43.40 1.76 17,107.99 3,524.18 917.04 

Capital Work-In-Progress 

lntan Rible Assets Under Develooment 
• Other than internally generated 
1.1 Building includes Rs. 49.45 Crore (Previous year Rs. 52.99 Crore) being building constructed on land not owned by the SPV. 
1.2 Refer Note 33 for capital commitments. 
1.3 Refer Not e 14.1 for properties mortgaged / hypothecated . 
1.4 The balance useful life as on March 31, 2025 for rights under pipeline authorisation is 13 years 3 months. 

Deductions/ 

Adjustments 

0.04 

-
1.63 

1.67 

-
-
-

1.67 

. 
-

-
1.67 

Asat 

31.03.2024 

-
S4.64 

3,847.21 

1.55 

10.51 

-
3913.91 

12.01 
0.09 

12.10 

3 926.01 

11.89 
501.65 

513.54 
4,439.SS 

(INR in Crore) 

NET CARRYING AMOUNT 
As at As at 31.03.2023 

31.03.2024 

94.85 94.8S 
154.78 162.70 

10,793.27 11,549.97 

1.46 1.45 

14.11 16.83 
78.13 78.13 

11136.60 11.903.93 

15.65 18.63 
1.31 1.33 

16.96 19.96 

11,153.56 11923.89 

19.83 23.41 
1,495.05 1,594.89 

1514.88 1618.30 
12,668.44 13,542.19 

46.59 36.73 

3.48 -

?4 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

NOTE 1. PROPERTY, PlANT AND EQUIPMENT, GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSETS, CAPITAL WORK-IN.PROGRESS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT 

Goodwill - - (INR in Crore) 
As at March 31 202S As at March 31, 2024 

Goodwill (Refer note 1.6) 
Opening Balance 40.40 40.40 
Add: Additions/ (Deletions) - -
Closing Balance 40.40 40.40 

1.5 Title deeds of Immovable Pro_e_erties not held in name of the Grou (INR in Crore) 

Description of the Property/ I GrosslHeld in the name of Group 
Relevant line item in the Balance Carrying Amt 

Whether 'Property held l Reasons for not being held in the name of the 
Promoter, since which datelGroup 

Sheet 

---

Freehold land 

Freehold Land 
Freehold Land 
Freehold Land 
Freehold Land 

Freehold Land 

Leasehold Land 
!Total 

Director or their 
relative or 
employee 

S9.85 I Reliance Gas Transportation Infrastructure Ltd (RGTIL) No 

0.16 Santosh Tukaram Dhage No 
0.18 Reliance Gas Transportation Infrastructure Ltd No 
0.14 Nandakumar Sonawane No 
0.05 Javed Gafur Munde, Uzer Ahemed Nazir, Asif Abdul Gatur No 

Munde, Mukthyar Abdul Gafur Munde. 

0.11 Mangiben Nathulal, Thakorbhai Nathubhai, Naginbhail No 
Nathubhai, Bhikhiben Nathubhai, Manjuben Soma, 
Kanubhai Somabhai, Manubhai Somabhai, Manjuben 
Chotubhai, Lakshmanbhai Chotubhai, Revaben 
Mathurbhai, Kokilaben Rathod, Kalidas Rathod, Revaben 
Mathurbhai, Laljibhai Mathurbhal, Thakorbhai 
Mathurbhai, Bhikhiben Rathod, Ramilaben Rathod,. 

Jhiniben Rathod, Prafulbhai Rathod, Geetaben Rathod, 
Savitaben Chauhan, Rajaben Chauhan, Ashokji Thakor, 

Ushaben Chauhan, Shailesh Chauhan, Kalpesh Chauhan. 

1.40 Reliance Gas Transportation Infrastructure Ltd. No 
61.89 

2018-19 

2018-19 
2018-19 
2018-19 
2018-19 

2018-19 

2018-19 

--- - --

The freehold lands are in the name of 

IRGTIL which is the erstwhile name of East West 

!

Pipeline Limited (EWPL) whose, freehold lands were 
transferred to PIL under the Scheme of Arrangement 
in July 2018. The name transfer of this freehold land 

is currently under process in the revenue records 
from RGTIL to PIL. 

I Transfer is in process 
Transfer is in process 

, Transfer is in process 
: Transfer is in process 

Transfer is in process 

Applied for transfer of L~as, 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

NOTE 1. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQ.UIPMENT, GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSETS, CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT 

1.6 As at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the recoverable amount was computed based on value in use, using the 

discounted cashflow method for which the estimated cashflows for the balance period of pipeline usage authorisation (i.e. 14 

years) were developed using internal forecasts and a discount rate of 21.91% (previous year 17.83%). The estimated cash flows 

have been considered for a period of 14 years considering the Pipeline Usage Agreement (PUA) with Reliance Industries Limited 

(RI L) is for the same tenure, which provides a high degree of certainty of cash flows. 

The Group has considered the levelized tariff rate as determined by PNGRB vide its order dated March 12, 2019 and the 

volumes as determined by the Management on the basis of inputs from technical experts in this area. 

The discount rate is the Cost of Equity, which is computed as risk free rate of return on the basis of zero coupon yield curve for 

government securities having maturity of 10 years, equity risk premium, beta and company specific risk premium. Cash flows 
have not been extrapolated using a growth rate beyond the projected period. Based on the above, no impairment was 

identified as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 as the recoverable value exceeded the carrying value. The management 

believes that any reasonable possible changes in the key assumptions would not cause the carrying amount to exceed the 

recoverable amount of cash generating unit due to guaranteed cashflows under Pipeline Usage Agreement (PUA). 

1.7 No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any benami property under the Benami 

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

1.8 Capital work-i!l-progress {CWIP) ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 

(INR in Crore) 

Particulars Amount In CWIP for a Df!riod of 
Less than 1 year 1-2 2-3 More than 3 Total 

years years years 

Projects in progress 33.79 7.02 1.07 - 41.88 

As at March 31. 2025 33.79 7.02 1.07 - 41.88 

Particulars Amount In CWIP for a =riod of 
Less than 1 year 1-2 2-3 More than 3 Total 

years years years 

Projects in progress 29.21 9.40 7.49 0.49 46.59 

As at March 31, 2024 29.21 9.40 7.49 0.49 46.59 

Note: The Group does not have any Capital-work•in progress which are suspended or whose completion is overdue or has 

exceeded its cost compared to its original plan. 
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NOTE 1. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSETS, CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT 

1.10 Intangible assets under development ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 

(INR in Crore) 

Particulars Amount in intangible assets under development for a period of 

Less than 1 year 1-2 2 -3 More t han3 Total 

years years years 

Projects in progress 1.15 . - . 1.15 

As at March 31 2025 1.15 . - . 1.15 

Particulars Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of 

Less than 1 year 1 - 2 2-3 More than 3 Total 

years years years 

Projects in progress 3.48 - - - 3.48 

As at March 31 2024 3.48 - - - 3.48 
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NOTE 2. NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 
Security Deposits 
Other Bank Balances (Refer Note 2.1) 
Fair Valuation of Put Option {Refer Note 2.2) 

TOTAL 

IINR in Crorel 
As at As at 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

1.98 1.97 
S.73 116.40 
1.41 1.42 

9.12 119.79 

2.1 Includes Rs. 5.73 Cro re (Previous year Rs. 5.20 Crore) bank deposits held as security against guarantee, DSRA 

requirements and other commitments. The balance is unrestricted. 

2.2 As per the terms agreed by the Trust, the Investment Manager, Pipeline Infrastructure Limited {PIL), Reliance Industries 

Holdings Private Limited (RIHPL) and Reliance Industries Limited (RIL), wherein the Trust has right, but not the obligat ion, to 

sell its ent ire stake of the Trust in PIL to RIL after a specif ic term or occurrence of certain events for a consideration of Rs. 50 

Crore or such other amount determined by the option valuer, whichever is lower. 

(INR in Crore) 
Asat Asat 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

NOTE 3. OTHR NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

Prepaid expenses 9.03 9.42 

TOTAL 9.03 9.42 

IINR in Crorel 
Asat Asat 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

NOTE 4. INVENTORIES 

Stock of Natural Gas and Fuel 89.88 46.52 
Stores and Spares 160.51 161.69 

TOTAL 250.39 208.21 

4.1 Inventories are measured at lower of cost or net realisable value. 
(INR in Crorel 

As at As at 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

NOTE 5. CURRENT INVESTMENTS 

Investments measured at Fair Value through Profit and loss 
In Mutual Funds.- Unquoted 229.90 414.85 

TOTAL 229.90 414.85 
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NOTE 6. TRADE RECEIVABLES 

(Unsecured) 
Trade Receivables (considered good) 
Trade Receivables (credit impaired) 
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 

TOTAL 

Of the above Trade Receivables amounts due from related parties are as 
below: 

Trade Receivables due from related parties 
less: Provision for doubtful debts 

Total Trade Receivables due from related parties (Refer Note 31) 

(INR in Crore) 
As at As at 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

182.0S 197.52 
15.07 15.07 
15.07 15.07 

182.05 197.52 

As at As at 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

8.93 9.10 
- -

8.93 9.10 

6.1 The credit period on transportation services provided to the customers is 4 business days from day of invoicing. In case of 

default, the customers are charged interest in accordance with the terms of the agreement with them. 

6.2 Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment. 

Particulars Not Due Less than 6 months 1-2 2-3 More than 3 years 
6 months -1 year years years 

Undisputed Trade 182.05 - - - - -

receivables -

considered good 

Disputed Trade - - - - - 15.07 
receivables - credit 

impaired 

182.05 - - - - 15.07 
Less: Provision for - - - - - (15.07) 
doubtful debts 

Total Trade 182.05 - - - - -
Receivables at 
March 31, 2025 

Particulars Not Due Less than 6 months 1-2 2 - 3 years More than 3 years 
6 months -1 year years 

Undisputed Trade 197.52 - - - - -

receivables -

considered good 
Disputed Trade - - - - - 15.07 
receivables - credit 

impaired 

197.52 - - - 15.07 
less: Provision for - -

doubtful debts 
- - - {15.07) 

Total Trade 197.52 - - - - -
Receivables at ---,.-;:::= March 31, 2024 /1/;st< -INs~~ 1/<-Y. ~ ,o u ~,u,,.~ 

(INR in Crore) 

Total 

182.05 

15.07 

197.12 
(15.07) 

182.05 

Total 

197.52 

15.07 

212.59 
(15.07) 

197.52 

l-- ~ \11 ff.::,~~ * ~ ~ M BAI ;:: ) 
o> CJ lt i l 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 
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NOTE 7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Balance with Banks 
- In current accounts 
- In deposit account (with original maturity of 3 months or less) 

TOTAL 

NOTE 8. OTHER BANK BALANCES 

Deposit account with original maturity of more than 3 months and 

balance maturity upto 12 months 

-To the extent held as security against guarantees and other 

commitments 

- Unrestricted fixed deposits 

TOTAL 

NOTE 9. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 

(Unsecured and Considered Good) 
Interest Accrued 
Other Receivables due from Related Parties (Refer Note 31) 

Other Receivables {Refer Note 9.1) 

TOTAL 

As at 
March 31, 202S 

129.36 
517.74 

647.10 

As at 
March 31, 202S 

22.01 

140.92 

162.93 

Asat 
March 31, 2025 

17.50 
2.35 

10.39 

30.24 

9.1 Other receivables include amount receivable towards lease rentals and shared services. 

As at 
March 31, 2025 

NOTE 10. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

(Unsecured and Considered Good) 
Balance with Goods and Service Tax Authorities 274.62 
Advance to vendors 10,30 
Prepaid expenses 11,36 

TOTAL 296.28 

(INR in Crore) 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

1.34 
601.60 

602.94 

(INR in Crore) 
As at 

March 31, 2024 

22.01 

142.35 

164.36 

(INR in Crorel 
As at 

March 31 2024 

18.23 
1.79 

9.94 

29.96 

llNR in Crorel 
Asat 

March 31, 2024 

121.01 
5.82 

10.23 

137.06 
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As at March 31, 2025 

No. of Units (INR in Crore) 

NOTE 11. UNIT CAPITAL 

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Unit Capital: 

Opening Balance 66,40,00,000 4,228.29 
Les.s: Distribution of Return of Capital to unitholders - (488.07) 

Closing Balance 66,40,00,000 3,740-22 

As at March 31, 2024 

No. of Units (JNR in Crore) 

66,40,00,000 4,708.15 
- (479.86} 

66,40,00 000 4,228.29 

11.1 Reconciliation of the units outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year : 

Particulars Asat As at 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

No. of Units No. of Units 

Units at the beginning of the year 66,40,00,000 66,40,00,000 
Issued during the year - -
Units at the end of the year 66,40,00,000 66,40,00,000 

11.2 Information on unitholders holding more than 5% of Unit Capital: 

Name of Unit holders Relationship As at March 31 2025 As at March 31 2024 
No. of Units I % held No. of Units I ¾held 

Rapid HoldinES 2 Pte. Ltd. Soonsor 49,so oo ooo I 75% 49 so oo ooo I 75% 

11.3 The details of Units held by the Sponsor 

No. of Units % held % Chan e durin the ear 
Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. ltd. 49,80,00,000 75% 0% 
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11.4 Rights and Restrictions of Unitholders 

The Trust has only one class of units. Each unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust. Each holder of 
unit is entitled to one vote per unit. The Unitholders have the right to receive at least 90% of the Net Distributable Cash 
Flows of the Trust at least once in each financial year in accordance with the lnvlT Regulations. The Investment Manager 
approves distributions. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of units held by the unitholders. The Trust 
declares and pays distributions in Indian rupees. The distributions can be in the form of return of capital, return on 
capital and Other income. 

A Unitholder has no equitable or proprietary interest in the Trust Assets and is not entitled to transfer Trust Assets (or 

any part thereof) or any interest in the Trust Assets (or any part thereof). A Unitholder's right is limited to the right to 
require due administration of Trust In accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed and the Investment Management 
Agreement. 

The unit holders(s) shall not have any personal liability or obligation with respect to the Trust. 

11.5 Under the provisions of the lnvlT Regulations, Trust is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than 90% of the net 
distributable cash flows of the Trust for each financial year. Accordingly, a portion of the Unit Capital contains a 
contractual obligation of the Trust to pay to its Unitholders cash distributions. Hence, the Unit Capital is a compound 
financial instrument which contains equity and liability components in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: 
Presentation. However, in accordance with the SEBI Master Circular, the Unit Capital have been presented as "Equity" in 

order to comply with the requirements of the Section H of Chapter 3 of the SEBI Master Circular dealing with the 
minimum presentation and disclosure requirements for key financial statements. Consistent with Unit Capital being 
classified as equity, the distributions to Unitholders is also presented in Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity 
when the distributions are approved by the Soard of Directors of Investment Manager. 
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Asat 
March 31, 2025 

NOTE 12. OTHER EQUITY 

Retained Earnings 
As at the begl nn ing of the year (1,705.74) 

Add: Profit/ (Loss} for the year 8.96 

Less: Distribution of Return on Capital to Unit (6S1.17) 
holders (Refer note 12.2) 

Less: Distribution of Other Income to Unit (1.42) (2,349.37) 
holders (Refer note 12.2) 

Other Comprehensive Income [OCIJ 

As at the beginning of the year (0.09} 
Movement in OCI (Net) during the year (0.65) (0.74) 

TOTAL (2 3S0.111 

12.l Debenture Redemption Reserve: 

ONR in Crore) 
As at 

March 31, 2024 

(2,034.54) 

822.02 

(488.54) 

(4.68) (1,705.74) 

(0.15) 
0.06 (0.09) 

{1 705.831 

Debenture Redemption Reserve (ORR) is not required to be created due to absence of profits available for payment of 

dividend in its subsidiary. The Group has accumulated losses as at March 31, 2025. 

12.2 Return on capital and other income as per NDCF is duly approved by investment manager. Refer Statement of Net 

Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) of Trust and PIL in Note 38. 
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As at 
March 31, 2025 

NOTE 13. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST 
0% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares 4,000.00 

0% Redeemable Preference Shares 45.17 
{Refer Note 14.4) 

TOTAL 4.045.17 

13.1 0% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares rccPSl 

{IN R in Crore) 

As at 

March 31 2024 

4,000.00 

45.17 

4,045.17 

(a) Reconciliation of the CCPS outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year: 

As at As at 

March 31 2025 March 31 2024 
No. of Shares No. of Shares 

CCPS at the beginning of the year 4,00,00,00,000 4,00,00,00,000 
Add: Issued during the year - -
CCPS at the end of the vear 4,00,00,00,000 4,00,00,00,000 

(b) The details of CCPS holders holding more than 5% shares 

Name of holders of CCPS As at March 31 2025 As at March 31 2024 
No. of Shares %held No. of Shares % held 

Reliance Strategic Business Ventures 4,00,00,00,000 100% 4,00,00,00,000 100% 
Limited 

(c) Every 254 CCPS shall be converted into 1 (One) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each on the expiry of 20 years from date of 

allotment i.e. March 22, 2019 of CCPS. 

(d) Rights and Restrictions to CCPS 
In the event of liquidation or winding-up of the SPV, the CCPS shall immediately convert into Equity Shares in the 

manner set out above, which Equity Shares shall rank pari passu with the other Equity Shares issued by the SPV at such 

point in time. 

The CCPS holders will not have voting rights. 

13.2 CCPS and RPS are not held by the promoters of the SPV. 
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As at March 31. 202S 
Non Current 

NOTE 14. NON- CURRENT BORROWINGS 

DEBENTURES· AT AMORTISED COST 
(A) Secured - Listed 

Non Convertible Debentures- Amortised Cost 6,452.00 
(Refer Note 201 

LIABILITY COMPONENT OF COMPOUND FINANCIAL 
INSTRUMENTS 
(A} 0% Redeemable Preference Shares 8.44 

(Refer Note 13.2) 
TOTAL 6 460.44 

14.1 Debentures: 

INR in Crore 
As at March 31 2024 

Non Current 

6,452.00 

7.69 

6AS9.69 

The Listed Secured, Redeemable Non - Convertible Debentures (NCDs) referred to above are secured by way of 

first ranking charge (pari passu) in favour of the Debenture Trustee (for benefit of the Debenture holders): 

(a) Assignment of the Pipeline Usage Agreement {"PUA") and Operation & Maintenance Contract; 

(b) First ranking charge by Llsted NCDs on al/ assets of the SPV, including all rights, title, interest, and benefit of the 

SPV in respect of and over the 'East West Pipelirie', the escrow account of the SPV and all receivables of the SPV 

(including under the PUA); 

(c) The security creation and perfection on the movable and immovable assets as specified in the Deed of 

Hypothecation, the Indenture of Mortgage along with Memorandum of Entry has been completed. 

(d) The Security cover exceeds hundred percent of the principal amounts of the said NCDs. 

14.2 Coupon rate of7.96% payable quarterly. 

14.3 Maturity Profile (Refer Note 36} 
Series 1- Listed Debentures 
Series 2- Listed Debentures 
Series 3- Listed Debentures 

14.4 0% Cumulat ive Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each (RPS): 

March 11, 2027 
March 11, 2028 
March 11, 2029 

(a) Reconciliation of the number of RPS outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year: 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
No. of Shares No. of Shares 

RPS at the beginning of the year 5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000 
Add: Issued during the year - -
RPS at the end of the vear S 00,00.000 5 00 00.000 

(b) The details of RPS holders holding more than 5% shares 

Name of holders of RPS As at March 31 202S As at March 31 2024 
No.of %held No. of %held 

C:h:u;>~ Sharp~ 
Reliance Strategic Business Ventures Limited s.oo 00 000 100% 5 00 00 000 100% 

5 0000 000 100% 5 00 00 000 100% 

(c) RPS have term of 30 years from date of allotment i.e. February 11, 2019 and shall be redeemed at par. Further 

10% of such RPS shall be redeemed per year from 2 ---..;:::::=::=:;:::::._.... a proportionate basis. 
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{d) Rights and Restrictions to RPS: 
(i) RPS of the Subsidiary nave priority over the Equity Shares of the Subsidiary in proportion to their holding for 

repayment of capital, in the event of liquidation of the SPV. 

(ii) The RPS will have the right to surplus assets either on winding up or liquidation or otherwise. Any payment to 

the RPS Holder shall be made subject to the payments t o be made to the Parties pursuant to the NCD Terms or the 

Specified Act ions as per the Agreement. 

(ii i) The RPS holders will not have voting rights. 

{e) The RPS has been issued for consideration other than cash as part consideration, out of total consideration of 

Rs. 650 Crore, for acquisition of pipeline from EWPL pursuant to scheme of arrangement. 

14.S The Trust had obtained a Corporate Credit Rating ("CCR") from CRISIL Ratings Limited ("CRISIL"), w hich had 

assigned "CRISIL AANStable" (pronounced as CRISIL Triple A rating with Stable outlook) to the Trust. The aforesaid 
rating has been re-affirmed by CRISIL on March 11, 2025 which was reviewed by CRJSIL on April 15, 2025. 

The Trust had also obtained a Credit Ratings from CARE Ratings Limited ("CARE"), which had assigned "CARE 

AANStable" to the Trust on February 26, 2024. The aforesaid rating has been re-affirmed by CARE on January 24, 

2025, which was reviewed by CARE on April 21, 2025. 

Further, SPV had obtained Credit ratings of "CRISIL AANStable" from CRISIL Ratings Limited and "CARE 
AAA/Stable" from CARE Ratings limited for its Listed Non-Convertible Debentures issued on March 11, 2024. As on 

date, CRISIL Ratings Limited and CARE Ratings Limited have reaffirmed the rating on March 11, 202S and October 

23, 2024, respectively. There is no revision in the credit ratings. 

14.6 Chane:es in liabilit ies arising from financing activities· ONR in Crorel 
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Opening balance of Borrowings 6,487.27 6,459.01 
Cash Movement: 
Repayment during the year - (6,452.00) 
Proceeds from borrowings - 6,452.00 
Finance cost paid during the year (414.74} (S65.27) 
Non Cash Movement : 
Finance cost accrued during the year 514.54 593.53 
Closing balance of Borrowines 6,587.07 6 487.27 

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities now also Includes the Liability Component of Compound 

Financial Instrument relat ing to 0% Redeemable Preference Shares. Correspondingly, movement in the previous 

year is also updated. The impact of this change is immaterial on the financial statements. 

ONR In Crorel 
As at March 31 2025 As at March 31 2024 

NOTE 15. LEASE LIABILITIES 

Lease Liabilities 13.91 16.96 

TOTAL 13.91 16.96 

15.l At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group has recognized a right-of use asset ("ROU") and a 
corresponding lease liab!llty for all lease arrangements. 
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15.2The following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets (building). 

For the year ended March 
31, 2025 

Balance as at the beginning of the year 1s:6s 
Additions -
Deletions/ Adjustments -
Depreciation (2.98) 
Balance as at the end of the year 12.67 

15.3 The following is the movement in lease liabilities: 

For the year ended March 
31,2025 

Balance as at the beginning of the year 19.78 
Additions -
Finance cost accrued during the year 1.46 
Deletions/ Adjustments -
Payment of lease liabilities (4.27) 
Ba lance as at the end of the year 16.97 

15.4 The following is the break-up of lease liabilities based on their maturities: 

As at March 31 2025 
Non-Current Lease Liabili ties 13.91 
Current Lease Liabilities 3.06 

TOTAL 16.97 

15.S Contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis is as below: 

As at March 31 2025 
Less than one year 4.29 
One to five years 15.87 
More than five years . 

TOTAL 20.16 

15.6 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities· 
Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

Opening balance of Lease Liability 19.78 
Cash Movement: 
Repayment during the year (2.81) 
Finance cost paid during the year (1.46) 
Non Cash Movement: 
Finance cost accrued during the year 1.46 
Deletions/ Adjustments -
Closing balance of Lease l iability 16.97 

(INR in Crorel 
For the year ended March 

31,2024 

18.63 
-
-

(2.98) 
15.65 

(INR in Crore) 
For the year ended March 

31, 2024 
22.40 

-
1.68 
-

(4.30) 
19.78 

(lNR in Crorel 
As at March 31 2024 

16.96 
2.82 

19.78 

IINR in Crorel 
As at March 31 2024 

4.29 
20.15 

-
24.44 

IINR in Crorel 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

22.40 

(2.62) 
(1.68) 

1.68 
-

19.78 
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NOTE 16. OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Call Option with RIL for PIL Shares (Refer Note 16.1) 

TOTAL 

IINR in Crore: 
Asat Asat 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

115.26 97.26 

115.26 97.26 

16.l As per the terms agreed by the Trust, the Investment Manager, Pipeline Infrastructure Limited (PIL), Reliance Industries 
Holdings Private Limited (RIHPL) and Reliance Industries Limited (RIL), wherein RIL has the right, but not the obligation, to 
purchase the entire equity stake of the Trust in PIL after a specific term or occurrence of certain events for a consideration 
of Rs. 50 Crore or such other amount determined by the option valuer, whichever is lower. 

I INR in Crore 
Asat Asat 

March 31 202S March 31 2024 
NOTE 17. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) 

The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows: 
At the start of the year - -
Charge/ (credit) to Statement of Profit and Loss 0.01 -
At the end of the vear 0.01 -

17.1 Component wise movement of Deferred tax liabilities/ (asset) for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024. 

( INR in Crore 
Particulars As at April 01, Recognised in the As at March 

2024 Statement of Profit and 31, 2025 
Loss during the year 

Property, Plant and Equipment 1,276.86 22.13 1,298.99 
Intangible Assets 308.14 (8.85) 299.29 
Goodwill 10.17 (0.00) 10.17 
Investment 0.74 (1.51) (0.77} 
Trade Receivables (3.79) (0.00) (3.79) 
Provision for Gratuity (0.06) (0.16) (0.22} 
Provision for compensated absences (0.29) (0.06) (0.35) 
ROU asset and lease liability (1.04) (0.04) (1.08) 

Unabsorbed depreciation (1,590.73) (11.50) (1,602.23) 

(recognised to the extent of deferred tax liability) 
- O.Dl 0.01 
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Particulars As at April 01, 

2023 

Property, Plant and Equipment 1,219.91 
Intangible Assets 310.82 
Goodwill 10.17 
Investment 0.05 
Trade Receivables (3.79) 
Provision for Gratuity (0.06) 
Provision for compensated absences (0.23) 
ROU asset and lease liability (0.95) 
Unabsorbed depreciation (1,535.92} 

(recognised to the extent of deferred tax liability) 
TOTAL -

(INR in Crorel 
Recognised in the As at March 

Statement of Profit and 31, 2024 

Loss during the year 

56.95 1,276.86 
(2.68) 308.14 
. 10.17 

0.69 0.74 
0.00 {3.79) 
0.00 (0.06) 

(0.06) (0.29) 
(0.09) (1.04) 

(54.81} (1,590.73) 

- -

17.2 The Group has recognized deferred tax assets majorly on unabsorbed depreciation to the extent there is corresponding 

deferred tax liability on the difference between the book balances and the written down value of property, plant and 
equipment, intangible assets and Investments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 
17.3 Deferred Tax on unrecognised deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, unabsorbed depreciation. 

(INR in Crore) 

Particulars Asat As at 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax 

credits for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised are 

attributable to the following: 
Unabsorbed depreciation 463.97 331.80 
Business Loss 55.44 55.44 

519.41 387.24 

17.4 Unrecognized deferred tax assets related to unabsorbed depreciation, as disclosed above, can be carried forward 

indefinitely and business losses, as disclosed above, can be carr ied forward upto financial year 2028-29. 

NOTE 18. OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Income Received In Advance 
Other Contract Liability 

TOTAL 

As at 
March 31, 202S 

11.17 
15.04 

26.21 

INRinCrore 
As at 

March 31, 2024 

0.75 
21.77 

22.52 
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NOTE 19. TRADE PAYABLES 

Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small enterprises (Refer 

Note 19.1) 
Others 

TOTAL 

Of the above Trade Payables amounts due from related parties are as 
below: 

Trade Payables due to related parties (Refer Note 31) 
Total Trade Payables due to related parties 

Asat 
March 31, 2025 

0.78 

107.52 

108.30 

As at 
March 31 2025 

21.19 
21.19 

19.1 Dues to micro, small & medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006. 

llNR in Crore) 
As at 

March 31, 2024 

1.39 

162.79 

164.18 

As at 
March 31 2024 

12.52 
12.52 

The Group does not have any over dues outstanding to the micro, small & medium enterprises as defined in Micro, Small 

and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. The identification of micro and small enterprises is based on informat ion 

available with the management. 

Particulars As at 
M,.rd, 31 ?n?S 

al Princioal amount overdue to micro and small enterorises -
b) Interest due on above -
c) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the -
MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the 

supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year. 

d) The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making -
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 

year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 

2006. 
e) The amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of -

eac;h accounting vear. 
f) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the -
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 

actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disa/lowance as a 

deductible exoendlture under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006. 

19.2 Trade Payables Ageing 

OutstandinJ! for followim oeriods from due date of oavment 
Asat Not due* Less than 1-2 year 2-3year More than 
March 31, 2025 lyear 3year 

MSME 0.78 - - - -
Others 54.31 49.57 3.27 0.22 0.15 

As at Not due* Less than 1- 2 year 2 - 3year More than 
M ::arrh 31 ,n,.ll 1 uo:u 3 uo::ar 

MSME 1.39 - - - -
Others 57.18 98.28 6.71 0.49 0.13 
* Includes unbilled amount of Rs. 47.18 Crore (Previous year Rs. 36.52 Crore payable to other creditors) 

19.3 Relationship with struckoff companies. 

0NR in Crorel 
As at 

M::irch l 1 ?0?.4 

-
-

-

-

-

-

IINR in Crorel 
Total 

0.78 
107.52 

Total 

1.39 
162.79 

During the year, the Group has no transactions with companies struck off as per section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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NOTE 20. CURRENT BORROWINGS 

Current maturities (Interest payable) on Secured, Listed NCDs 
(Refer Note 20.1) 

TOTAL 

126.63 27.58 

126.63 27.58 

20.1 Current maturities (Interest payable) on Secured, Listed NCDs includes interest payable on Listed NCDs, which was 
earlier presented under 'Other Current Financial Liabilities'. Correspondingly, interest outflow amounting to Rs. 27.58 Crore 
has been re-classified from Cash Flow from Operating Activities to Cash Flow from Financing Activities. The impact of this 

reclassification is immaterial on the financial statements. 

NOTE 21. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Security deposits received 
Other Contractual Liability (Refer Note 21.1) 
Other Financial Liability 

TOTAL 

19.02 
1,281.04 

2.90 

1302.96 
21.1 Other contractual liability represents amount payable under Pipeline Usage Agreement. 

As at 

NOTE 22. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Income Received In Advance 7.83 
Contract Liability 8.83 
Statutory Dues 31.11 
Other payables (Refer Note 22.1) 17.83 

TOTAL 6S.60 

19.71 
1,229.71 

1249.42 

INR in Crore 
As at 

8.10 
5.56 

57.44 
3.26 

74.36 

22.1 This includes surplus on account of invoicing under Unified Tariff Structure as notified by Petroleum and Natural Gas 
Regulatory Board ("PNGRB") amounting to Rs. 1459 Crore as at March 31, 2025 (Nil as at March 31, 2024}, which will be 

paid to other pipeline operators based on settlement advices to be received from the settlement committee of PNGRB. 
Further, this includes Imbalance and Overrun Charges (As per sub-regulation (10} of regulation (13} of notification no. G.S.R. 

541E dated 17th Aug, 2008 issued and ~mended from time to time by PNGRB); that the SPV collects the charges from 
customers and are paid to PNGRB on a quarterly basis. 

NOTE 23. PROVISIONS 

Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 27 (iii)) 
Provision for compensated absences (Refer Note 27) 

TOTAL 

0.87 
1.38 

2.25 

INR in Crore 
As at 

0.24 
1.14 

1.38 
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NOTE 24. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Income from Services 
Income from Transportation of Gas 
Other Operating Income 
Parking and Lending Services 
Others 

TOTAL 

3,783.82 

107.64 
1.47 

3 92.93 

3,551.98 

102.71 
11.67 

3 666.36 

24.1 PIL derives revenues primarily from operation of its Pipeline comprising of Income from transportation of gas and Other 

Operating Income Le. Parking and Lending Services and others. 

NOTE 25; INTEREST 

Interest Income 
From Fixed Deposits 

From Income Tax Refund 
From Others (Refer note 2S.1) 

TOTAL 

Sl.37 
1.30 
0.16 

S2.83 

INR in Crore 
For the year ended 

34.12 
1.71 
1.47 

37.30 

25.l lnc/udes interest received on late payments by customers and interest Income on security deposit for lease. 

NOTE 26. OTHER INCOME 

Unrealised Gain on Mutual Fund 
Gain on sale of Gas Generators 

Other Non-Operating Income 

TOTAL 

NOTE 27. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 
Contribution to Provident Fund, Gratuity and other Funds 
Staff welfare expenses 

TOTAL 

2.39 

26.99 

29.38 

For the year ended 
March 31, 202S 

30.72 
1.28 
2.71 

34.71 

2.73 
99.11 
16.81 

118.65 

(INR in Crorel 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

31.12 
1.23 
3.66 

36.01 
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27.1 Disclosure as per Indian Accounting Standard 19 "Employee Benefits" are given below: 

Defined Contribution Plan 
This includes Provident fund contributions amounting to Rs. 0.91 Crore (Previous year Rs 0.88 Crore) and gratuity expenses 

amounting to Rs. 0.37 Crore (Previous year Rs. 0.30 Crore). 

Defined Benefit Plan 

The Group operates post employement benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial 

valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of 

employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. 

Gratuity 

The Group makes contributions under the Employees Gratuity scheme to a fund administered by Trustees covering all 

eligible employees. The plan provides for lump sum payments to employees whose right to receive gratuity had vested at the 

time of resignation, retirement, death while in employment or on termination of-employment of an amount equivalent to 15 

days salary for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months. Vesting occurs upon completion of five 

years of service except in case of death. 

The details in respect of the status of funding and the amounts recognised in the Group's financial statements for 

the year ended March 31, 2025, for these defined benefit schemes are as under: 

i) Reconcillation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obllsation 

Particulars 

a. Defined Benefit Obligation at beginning of the year 
b: Current Service Cost 
c. Interest Cost 

d. Liability Transferred In/ (Transferred Out) 
e. Actuarial loss/ (gain) 
f. Benefits paid 
g. Defined Benefit Obligation at end of the year 

ii) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of Plan Assets 

Particulars 

a. Fair value of Plan Assets at beginning of the year 
b. Interest Income 
c. Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) 
d. Assets Transferred In/ (Transferred Out) 
e. Employer Contributions 
f. Benefits pa id 
g. Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 
h. Actual Return on Plan assets 

For the year ended 
2 
3.11 
0.36 
0.22 

0.68 
0.14 
4.23 

For the year end-ed 
M=1rch ~1 20,,; 

2.87 
0.22 
0.03 
-

0.24 
-

3.36 
0.25 

2.69 
0.28 
0.20 

(0.06) 

3.11 

IINR in crorel 
For the year ended 

M<1rch 31 , nn 
2.44 
0.18 
0.01 
-

0.24 
-

2.87 
0.19 
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iii) Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations 

Particulars 

a. Fair value of Plan Assets at end of the year 
b. Present value of Obligation as at end of the year 

c. Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet 

ISurolus / (Deficit ll 

iv) Expenses recognised during the year 

Particulars 

a. Current Service Cost 
b. Interest Cost 
c. Interest Income 

d. Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 
e. Expense.s recognised during the year 

v) Investment Details 
Particulars of Investments • Gratuity(%) 

IINR In rrn,,.1 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 202S March 3i, 2024 

3.36 2.87 
4.23 3.11 

{0.87) (0.24) 

IINR in Crorel 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

0.36 0.28 
0.22 0.20 

(0.22) (0.18) 
0.65 (0.07) 
1.01 0.23 

The Gratuity Trust has taken Gratuity Policies from life Insurance Corporation of India. 

vi) Actuarial Assumptions 
Mortality Table (IALM) 
Particulars Gratultv 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Discount Rate 6.85% 7.20% 
Salary escalation 7.00¾ 6.00% 
Employee turnover 10.03% 3.00% 

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary conS"ldered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, 

promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The discount rate is based on 

prevailing market yields of the government bonds at the valuation date for the expected term of obligation. 

vii) Expected Contribution during the next annual reporting period 
The Group expects to make a contribution of Rs. 1.28 Crore (Previous year Rs. 0.54 Crore) to the defined benefit plans 

during the next financial year. 

viii) Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation 

Particulars 

Weighted average duration (based on discounted cashflows} 
Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis): 

1 year 
2 to s years 
6 to lOyears 
More t han 10 ears 

INR in Crore 
For the year ended for the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

8years 

0.86 
1.10 
1.83 
5.04 

7 years 

0.81 
1.05 
1.57 
2.55 
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ix) Sensitivity Analysis 

Significant Actuarial Assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary 
increase and employee turnover. The sensitivity analysis below, have been determined based on reasonably possible 
changes of the assumptions occurring at end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The 
result of Sensitivity analysis is given below: 

IJNR in Crore) 
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31. 2024 
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase 

Change in discounting rate (delta effect of - (0.19) 0.17 (0.11) 0.11 

/+0.5%) 
Change In rate of salary increase (0.17) 0.19 (0.11) 0.12 

(delta effect of -/+ 0.5%) 

Change in rate of Attrition rate (delta effect (0.01) 0.01 (0.01) 0.01 

of-/+ 25%} 
Change in rate of Mortality rate (delta (0.00) 0.00 (0.00) 0.00 
effect of -/+ 10%) 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as 
It is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be 

correlated. Furthermore, In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has 
been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied 
in calculating the defined benefit obligation Jiabllity recognized In t he balance sheet. 

These plans typically expose the Group to actuarial risks such as: interest rate risk, liquidity risk, salary escalation risk, 
demographic risk, regulatory risk, asset liability mismatching or market risk and investment risk. 

Interest Rate risk: The plan exposes the Group to t he risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an 
increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (as 

shown in financial statements). 

Liquidity Risk: This is the risk that the Group is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non 

availabilty of enough cash / cash equivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in t ime. 

Salary Escalation Risk: The present value of defined obligation plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate 
of plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from rate of increase in 
salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability. 

Demographic Risk: The Group has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the llability. The Group is 
exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumption. 

Regulatory Risk: Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as 
amended from time to time}. There is a risk of change in regulations requfring higher gratuity payouts. 

Asset Liability Mismatching or Market Risk: The duration of the liabilty is longer compared to duration of assets, exposing 
the Group to market risk for volatilities/fall in interest rate. 

Investment Risk: The probability or li~ellfi9.9 rrence of I 
' .... s investment. -<"' ~ 

MU 
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Leave encashment plan and compensated absences: 
The Group provides for leave encashment / compensated absences based on an independent actu~rial valuation at the 

balance sheet date, which includes assumptions about demographics, early retirement, salary increases, interest rates and 

leave utilisation. The actuarial assumptions on compensated absences considered are same as the table (vi) above. 

IINR in Crorel 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

NOTE 28. FINANCE COSTS 

Interest Expenses 517.26 596.65 
Other Borrowing Costs 0.21 6.57 

TOTAL 517.47 603.22 

IINR in Crore1 

. For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

NOTE 29. OTHER EXPENSES 

OPERATION AND MAINTAINANCE EXPENSES 

Stores and Spares 107.88 117.65 
Electricity, Power and Fuel 460.52 525.96 
Other Operational Expenses (Refer Note 29.1) 66.48 68.12 

ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES 

Rent - 0.27 
Rates and Taxes 2.94 2.39 
Contracted and others services 4.91 3.60 
Travelling and Conveyance 11.75 9.65 
Professional Fees 13.38 12.60 
Letter of credit and bank charges 0.90 3.31 
Upside as per PUA (Refer Note 29.3) 1,671.51 472.79 
General Expenses (Refer Note 29.4) 34.24 25.77 

TOTAL 2 374.51 1 242.11 

29.1 Includes maintenance charges of Rs. 58.20 Crore (Previous year Rs. 57.43 Crore) 
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29.2 Breaku of Audit Fees 

Audit Fees 

(a) Auditor 
Statutory Audit Fees# 
Tax Audit Fees 
Other Audit Fees* 

(bl Certification Fees 
(c) Expenses reimbursed 
TOTAL 

2.17 
0 .12 
1.42 
0.13 
0.03 
3.87 

INR in Crore 
For the year ended 

2 

2.89 
0.10 
1.36 
0.10 
0.04 
4.49 

# In the previous year, statutory audit fees include an amount of Rs. 0.75 Crore for the audit of special purpose and general 

purpose financial statements. 

*Represents audit fees paid for audit of group reporting package as per group referral instructions under the PCAOB auditing 

standards. 

29.3 Pertains to RIL upside expense ('RIL Upside') payable to Reliance Industries Limited (RIL), in respect of financial years 

when the revenue earned by SPV from transport of gas is more than the contracted capacity payment and subject to 

availability of free cash flows, in lieu of RIL providing certainty of cash flows in accordance with the terms of the Pipeline 

Usage Agreement ('PUA'). 

29.4 General expenses mainly include licence fees and other miscellaneous expenses. 
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NOTE 30. EARNINGS PER UNIT (EPU) 

i) Net Profit as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Unit 

Shareholders (INR in Crore) 
ii) Weighted Average number of units 
iii) Weighted Average number of potential units 
iv) Total Weighted Average number of units used as denominator for 

calculating Basic/ Diluted EPU 

v) Earnings per unit of unit value of Rs.56.3288 each 

(Previous year unit value Rs. 63.6792 each) 

- For Basic {Rs.) 
- For Diluted (Rs.l 

NOTE 31. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31 2025 March 31 2024 

8.96 822.02 

66,40,00,000 66,40,00,000 

- -
66,40,00,000 66,40,00,000 

0.13 12.38 
0.13 12.38 

As per SEBI lnvlT regulations and as per Ind AS 24, disclosure of transactions with related party are given below. 

List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and 
relationships: 

I. List of Related Parties as per the requirements of Ind AS 24 - "Related Party Disclosures" 
a) Ultimate Controlling Party 

Brookfield Corporation 
b) Parent and Sponsor 

Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd. 
c) Members of same group with whom there were transactions 

Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited 
d) Joint Venture of Parent with whom there were transactions 

Pipeline Management Services Private Limited 

e) Post-employment benefit plan 
Pipeline Infrastructure Limited Employees Gratuity Fund 

f) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Investment Manager (Encap Investment Manager Private Limited) 
Ms. Pooja Aggarwal - Chief Executive Officer (from June 01, 2023 to December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Darshan Vora - Chief Financial Officer (from June 01, 2023 to December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Akhil Mehrotra - Managing Director (effective December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Suchibrata Banerjee - Chief Financial Officer (effect ive December 12, 2023) 

g} Key Managerial Personnel of the SPV (Pipeline Infrastructure Limited) 
Mr. Akhil Mehrotra - Managing Director (MD) (redesignated from MD & Chief Executive Officer to MD w.e.f. November 

07, 2023) 

Mr. Mahesh Iyer- Chief Financial Officer 
Ms. Neha Jalan -Company Secretary (upto September 9, 2023) 
Ms. Astrid Lobo- Company Secretary (from November 7, 2023 to May 22, 2024) 
Ms. Suneeta Mane- Company Secretary (effective May 23, 2024) 

II. List of additional related parties as per Regulation 2(1) (zv) of the SEBl lnvlT Regulations 
a) Parties to Energy Infrastructure Trust (Formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) with whom there were 

Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd. (Sponsor) (as per Paragraph 4 of SEBI (lnvlT) Regulations, 2014, as amended) 
Encap Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) 

(Investment Manager) (as per Paragraph 4 of SEBI (lnvlT) Regulations, 2014, as amended) 
ECI India Managers Private Limited. (Project Manager) (as per Paragraph 4 of SEBI (lnvlT) Regulations, 2014, as amended) 

Axis Trustee Services Limited (Trustee) (as per Paragraph 4 of SEBI (lnvlT} Regulations, 2014, as amended) 
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bl Promoters of parties to Energy Infrastructure Trust (Formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) with whom there 
were transactions 
Axis Bank limited (Promoter of Axis Trustee Services Limited) 

c) Directors ofthe parties to the Trust specified in ii(a) above 
(i) ECI India Managers Private Limited 

Mr. Darshan Vora 
Ms. Sukanya Viswanathan (from August 26, 2022 to August 11, 2023) 
Ms. Megha Ashok Dua (from August 10, 2023 to July 10, 2024} 
Ms. Puja Tandon (effective July 10, 2024) 

(ii) Encap Investment Manager Private Limited (formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) 

Mr. Sridhar Rengan (upto December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Chetan Desai (upto May 31, 2023) 
Mr. Narendra Aneja (upto May 31, 2023} 
Ms. Swati Mandava (from June 28, 2022 to May 25, 2023) 
Mr. Prateek Shroff (Effective May 26, 2023) 
Ms. Radhika Harlbhakti (from June 01, 2023 upto December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Jagdlsh Kini (from June 01, 2023 upto December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Arun Balakrishanan (Effective June 01, 2023) 
Ms. Rinki Ganguli (from June 1, 2023 upto December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Akhil Mehrotra (Effective December 12, 2023) 

Mr. Chaitanya Pande (Effective December 12, 2023) 
Mr. Varun Saxena (Effective December 12, 2023) 

Ms. Kavita Venugopal (Effective December 12, 2023) 

(iii) Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd. 
Mr. Liew Yee Foong 
Ms. Ho Yeh Hwa (Upto November 18, 2024) 
Mr. Tan Aik Thye Derek 
Ms. Tay Zhi Yun 
Ms. Talisa Poh Pei Lynn 
Tan Jin Li, Alina (Effective November 18, 2024) 

(iv) Axis Trustee Services Limited 
Ms. Deepa Rath (upto February S, 2025) 
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Dahiya (upto January 15, 2024) 
Mr.Ganesh Sankaran (upto Jan.uary 15, 2024) 

M r. Sumit Bali (from January 16, 2024 to August 16, 2024) 
Mr. Prashant Joshi (effective January 16, 2024) 
Mr. Arun Mehta (effective May 3, 2024) 
Mr. Parmod Kumar Nagpal (effective May 3, 2024) 
Mr. Rahul Choudhary (effective February 06, 2025) 

d) List of additional related parties as per Section 2(76)(iv) of the Compa,nies Act, 2013, with whom there were 
tra nsactlons: 
Private company in which a director or his relative is a member or a director 
Sanmarg Projects Private Limit ed 
India Gas Solutions Private Limited 
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Ill) Transactions during the year with related parties : 

Sr. Particulars Relationship 
No. 

1 Trustee Fee 
Axis Trustee Services Limited Trustee 

2 Investment management fee (Refer note 31,1 
below) 
Encap Investment Manager Private Limited Investment manager 

3 

(formerly known as Brookfield India 
Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) 

Legal/Professional fees/reimbursement of 

expenses 
Encap Investment Manager Private Limited Investment manager 

4 

(formerly known as Brookfield India 
Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) 

Project Management fee (Refer note 31.2 

below) 
ECI India Managers Private Limited Project Manager 

S Return on Unit Capital 
Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd. Sponsor 

6 Return of Unit Capital 
Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd. Sponsor 

7 Other Income Distributed 
Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd. Sponsor 

8 Pipeline Maintenance Expenses 
Pipeline Management Services Private Limited Joint Venture of Parent 

9 Income from Support Services 
Pipeline Management Services Private limited Joint Venture of Parent 

10 Rental and O&M reimbursement Income 
Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited Members of same group 

11 Income from Support Services 
ECI India Managers Private Limited Members of same group 

12 Bank charges paid 
Axis Bank Limited Promoter of the Trustee 

13 Interest on NCDs 
Axis Bank Limited 

14 Purchase of gift cards 
Axis Bank Limited 

15 Arranger Fees 
Axis Bank Limited 

Promoter of the Trustee 

Promoter of the Trustee 

Promoter of the Trustee 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

0.21 

2.83 

0.72 

1.77 

488.38 

366.05 

1.06 

58.20 

4.73 

0.30 

o.os 

0.06 

1S,90 

(INR in Crorel 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

n 

0.21 

2.83 

1.75 

1.77 

366.40 

359.88 

3.51 

57.43 

4.48 

0.19 

0.05 

0.04 

83.10 

0.07 

10.17 

~ § 

~~ 
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Sr. Particulars 
No. 

16 Purchase of natural gas 

17 

India Gas Solutions Private limited 

Income from gas transportation 
India Gas Solutions Private Limited 

18 Other Income 
India Gas Solutions Private Limited 

19 Repairs & maintenance expenses 
Sanmarg Projects Private Limited 

20 Contribution to Gratuity Fund 
Pipeline Infrastructure Limited Employees 

Gratuity Fund 

21 Income from Support Services 

Relationship 

Private company in which a 

director or his relative is a 

member or a director 

Private company in which a 
director or his relative is a 

member or a director 

Private company in which a 

director or his relative is a 
member or a director 

Private company in which a 

director or his relative is a 
member or a director 

Post-employment benefit 

plan 

Encap Investment Manager Private Limited Investment manager 

(formerly known as Brookfield India 

Infrastructure Manaller Private Limited) 

22 Salary cost reimbursement (for KMPs} 
Encap Investment Manager Private 

(formerly known as Brookfield 

Infrastructure Manaeer Private Limited) 

Limited Investment manager 

India 

23 

24 

Repayment of Listed NCDs 
Axis Bank Limited 

Issue of Listed NCDs 
Axis Bank Limited 

25 Managerial Remuneration 
Akhil Mehrotra 

Mahesh Iyer 

Neha Ja/an 

(ResiRned w.e.f. Sept.ember 9. 2023) 
Astrid Lobo 

(from November 7, 2023 to Mav 22. 2024) 
Suneeta Mane 

Promoter of the Trustee 

Promoter of the Trustee 

Key Managerial Personnel 

ofSPV 
Key Managerial Personnel 
ofSPV 
Key Managerial Personnel 

ofSPV 
Key Managerial Personnel 

ofSPV 
Key Managerial Personnel 

V 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

121.59 

200.13 

12.20 

0.24 

0.10 

2.54 

4.30 

1.99 

0.29 

INR in Crore 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

125.99 

207.45 

0.01 

10.08 

0.24 

900.00 

1,000.00 

3.69 

2.02 

0.59 

0.04 
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Sr. Particulars Relationship 
No. 
26 Sitting Fees 

Mr. Arun Balakrishnan Independent Director of 

SPV 
Mr. Chaitanya Pande Independent Director of 

SPV 
Ms. Radhika Haribhakti Independent Director of 

SPV 
M s. Kavita Venugopal Independent Director of 
(Aonnintorl w o f A110 11~ t C) 2n,~l c;pv 

IV) Balances as at end of the year 

Sr. 
No 

l 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

Particulars 

Reimbursement of Expense payable 
Encap Investment Manager Private 

(formerly known as Brookfield 

Infrastructure Manae:er Private Limited! 

Units value 
Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd. 

Other Current Financial Assets 

Relationship 

Limited Investment Manager 

India 

Sponsor 

Pipeline Management Services Private Limited Joint Venture of Parent 

Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited Members of same group 

Sundry Creditors 
Pipeline Management Services Private Limited Joint Venture of Parent 

Sanmarg Projects Private Limited 

India Gas Solutions Private Limited 

Encap Investment Manager Private limited 

(formerly known as Brookfield India 

Infrastructure Manaeer Private Limited\ 

Sundry Debtors 
India Gas Solutions Private Limited 

NCDs principal payable 
Axis Bank Limited* 

Private company in which a 

director or his relative is a 

member or a director 

Private company In which a 

director or his relative is a 

member or a director 
Investment Manager 

Private company in which a 

director or his relative is a 

member or a director 

Promoter o f Trustees 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

0.15 

0.14 

-
0.14 

As at 
March 31, 2025 

2,805.16 

1.95 

0.40 

16.44 

1.18 

3.39 

0.18 

8.93 

75.00 

(INR in Crorel 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

0.10 

0.08 

0.03 

0.07 

IINR in Crorel 
As at 

March 31, 2024 

0.69 

3,171.22 

0.62 

1.17 

4.43 

0.52 

6.87 

9.10 

650.00 
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31.1 Pursuant to Investment Management Agreement, the Investment Manager is entitled to an Investment Management fee of 

Rs. 0.20 Crore per month, exclusive of GST. Investment Manager is also entitled to reimbursement of'any cost incurred in 

relation to activity pertaining to Trust such as administration of Trust, appointment of staff, director, transaction expenses 

incurred with respect to investing, monitoring and disposing off investment of Trust. 

31.2 Pursuant to Project Management Agreement, the Project Manager is entit led to an Project Management fee of Rs. 0.125 

Crore per month, exclusive of GST. 

* Axis Bank ltd had subscribed to NCDs of Rs.1,000 Crore on March 11, 2024. Axis Bank Ltd held NCOs of Rs. 75 Crore as at 

March 31,2025 (Rs. 650 Crore as at March 31, 2024). 

NOTE 32. TAXATION 
CINR in Crorel 

Tax Expenses For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Current Tax 0.97 1.44 
Deferred Tax 0.01 -
Total Tax E>rnenses 0.98 1.44 

Reconciliation of tax expenses and book profit multiplied by Tax rate: 
(INR in Crorel 

Particu.lars For the year ended For t he year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 9.94 823.46 
Tax at the rates applicable to respective entitles {2.04) 199.73 
Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible/ (taxable) in calculating 
Tax impact of interest cost on loan to SPV (138.1S) (143.85) 
Utilisation/credit of unrecognised tax losses, unabsorbed depreciation and - (72.05) 

other tax ben eflts 

Deferred tax assets not recognised because realisation is not prob~bfe 132.17 -
Effect of non-deductible expenses 9.00 17.61 

Income Tax exoense 0.98 1.44 

Note: 
In accordance with section 10 (23FC) of the Income Tax Act, the income of business Trust in the form of interest received 
or receivable from Project SPV is exempt from tax. Accordingly, the Trust is not required to provide any current tax 

liability. However, for the income earned by the Trust, it will be required to provide for current tax liability. 

The rate of Income tax for a domest ic company as per t he section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 ("the Act") is 

25.168%. The same is applicable to PIL i.e. SPV for the assessment year 2025-26 (FY 2024-25) and 2024-25 (FY 2023-24). 

The total income of a Business Trust is taxed at the rate 42.74% i.e. maximum marginal rate (MMR) as per the section 

115 UA(2) of the Act. 

NOTE 33. CONTINGENT LIABILITITIES AND COMMITMENTS 

Contingent liabilities 

Commitments (to the e>ctent not provided for) 
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 

(net of advances) and not provided for 

As at 

2.85 

(INR in Crore) 

As at 

15.42 
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NOTE 34. SEGMENT REPORTING 

The Group's activities comprise of transportation of natural gas through pipeline in certain states in India. Based on the 

guiding principles given in Ind AS 108 on "Segment Reporting", since this activity falls within a single operating segment, 

segment-wise position of business and its operations is not applicable to the Group. 

Revenues from three customer represents more than 10% of the Group's revenue for the year 

Partlculars 

Customer A 
CustomerB 
CustomerC 

NOTE 35. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

As at 

1,003.78 
790.69 
508.72 

INR in Crore 

861.39 
-673.4S 
612.14 

The Group adheres to a robust Capital Management framework which is underpinned by the following guiding principles; 

a) Maintain financial strength to ensure AAA or equivalent ratings at individual Trust and SPV level. 

b) Ensure financial flexibility and diversify sources of financing and their maturities to minimize liquidity risk while 

meeting investment requirements. 

c) Leverage optimally in order to maximize unit holder returns while maintaining strength and flexibility of the Balance 

sheet. 
This framework is adjusted based on underlying macro-economic factors affecting business environment, financial market 

conditions and interest rates environment. 

The gearing ratio at end of the reportirg year was as follows: 
(INR in Crore) 

As at As at 

March 31, 2025 March 31. 2024 
Borrowings 6,587.07 6,487.27 
Cash and Marketable Securities* 877.00 1,017.79 
Net Debt (A) 5,710.07 5,469.48 
Total Equity (As per Balance Sheet) (B} 5,435.28 6,567.63 
Net Gearing (A/B) 1.05 0.83 
* Cash and Marketable Securities include Cash and Cash equivalents of Rs. 647.10 Crore (Previous year Rs. 602.94 Crore) 

and Current Investments of Rs. 229.90 Crore (Previous year Rs. 414.85 Crore). 

The SPV is regular in complying with debt covenants. 
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NOTE 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS· FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURE 

Financial Assets and Llabilities 
The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair value of each category of flnanclal assets and liabilities as on March 31, 

2025 and M arch 31, 2024. 

(INR in Crore) 

Particulars As at March 31 2025 As at March 31 2024 
Carrving Value Fair Value Carrving Value Fair Value 

Eimmclill Ai~ilti 
Measured at amortised cost" 
Other Non Current Financial 7.71 7.71 118.37 118.37 

Assets 
Trade Receivables 182.05 182.05 197.52 197.52 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 647.10 647.10 602.94 602.94 
Other Bank Balances 162.93 162.93 164.36 164.36 
Other Current Financial 30.24 30.24 29.96 29.96 

Assets 
Measured at FVTPL 
Investments 229.90 229.90 414.85 414.85 
Fair value of put option 1.41 1.41 1.42 1.42 

FiDiltlcial Liabiliti!l~ 
Measured at amortised cost 
Borrowings (including 6,587.07 6,914.05 6,487.27 6,487.27 

interest accrued)** 
Lease Liabilities* 16.97 16.97 19.78 19.78 
Trade Payables" 108.30 108.30 164.18 164.18 
Other Current Financial 1,302.96 1,302.96 1,249.42 1,249.42 

Liabilities• 

Measured at FVTPL 
Fair value of call option 115.26 115.26 97.26 97.26 

•Fair value approximates the carrying value as per management . 

.,. These borrowings include li.sted non-convertible debentures {NCDs} measured at amortised cost amounting to Rs. 6,578.63 as at 

March 31, 2025 {Rs. 6,479.58 as at March 31, 2024). The fair values of these NCDs as at March 31, 2025, are based on discounted 

cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified as level 2 fair values in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of these 

NCDs as at March 31, 2024 approximates the carrying value because the NCDs were issued close to Balance Sheet date {on March 

11, 2024}. 
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Fair Value Measurement Hierarchv 

Particulars As at March 31 2025 
carrying Level of 

Amount j .. n11+ u c ...4 h 

Level 1 Levell Levet3 

Financial assets measured at 
fair value: 
lnvestme nts 229.90 229.90 
Other Financial Assets - Put 1.41 1.41 

option on PIL shares 

Financial liabilities measured 

at fair value: 

Other Financial Assets - Call 115.26 115.26 

option on PIL shares 

Financial liabilities measured 

at amortised cost, for which 

fair value is different than 
carrying value: 

Listed non-convertible 6,578.63 6,905.61 

Debentures 

(INR in Crore) 

As at March 31 2024 
Carrying Level of 

Amount inn• •t ',ren i n 

Level 1 Level 2 Level3 

414.85 414.85 
1.42 1.42 

97.26 97.26 

6,479.58 6,479.58 
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The financial instruments are categorized into three levels based on the inputs used to arrive at fair value measurements as 

described below: 
Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable 

for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices); and 

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not 

based on observable market data {unobservable inputs). 

Fair value measurements using unobservable market data (level 3): 

Options Valuatlon: 
The following table presents the changes in level 3 items related to Options Valuation for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 

31,2024 

Call option 

Particulars IINR In Crorel 
As at April 1, 2024 97.26 
Add: Fair Value loss recognized in Profit & loss 18.00 
As at March 31 2025 115.26 

Particulars (INR in Crorel 

As at April 1, 2023 82.80 
A.dd: Fair Value Loss recognized in Profit & Loss 14.46 
As at March 31 2024 97.26 

Put option 

Particulars IINR in Crorel 
As at April 1, 2024 1.42 
Less: Fair Value loss recognized In Profit & Loss (0.01) 
As at March 31, 2025 1.41 

Particulars (INR in Crorel 

As at April 1, 2023 2.42 

Less: Fair Value Loss recognized in Profit & Loss (1.00) 
As at March 31 2024 1.42 

The fair value of call option and put option written on the shares of SPV is measured using Black Scholes Model. Key Inputs used in 

the measurement are: 

{i) Stock Price: It is estimated based on the stock price as of the date of the transaction (March 22, 2019) of Rs. 50 Crore, as increased 

for the interim period between March 22, 2019 and March 31, 2025 by the Cost of Equity as this would be expected return on the 

investment for the acquirer. 

(ii) Exercise Price: Rs. 50 Crore 

(iii} Option Expiry: 20 years from March 22, 2019 i.e., March 22, 2039. 

(iv) Risk free rate as on date of valuation 6.7% (previous year 7.1%) and cost of equity 17.9% (previous year 17.9%). 

The significant assumption considered in the valuation is volatility of comparable company as per Black Scholes Model. The valuation 
of Call and Put Option is computed using the volatility of comparable company as 33%. (Previous year 32.4%) 

Call Option: If the volatility of comparable company increases by 5% then fair value of the Call option will increase.by Rs. 1.08 Crore 
(previous year increase by Rs. 1.05 Crore}, if the volatility of comparable company reduces by 5% then fair value of the Call option 

will decrease by Rs. 0.78 Crore (previous year decrease by Rs. 0.78 Crore). 

Put Option: If the volatility of comparable company increases by 5% then fair value of the Put option will increase by Rs. 1.08 crores 

(previous year increase by Rs. 1.05 Crore), if the volatility of comparable company reduces by 5% then fair value of tfie Put option 

will decrease by Rs. 0.78 Crore (previous year decrease by Rs. 0. 78 Crore). 

--=_:;:? 
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NOTE 37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK MANAGEMENT 
Foreign Currency Risk 
The following table shows foreign currency exposures in USO, EUR and GBP on financial instruments at the end of the reporting year. 

Tile exposure to foreign currency for all other currencies are not material. 

Foreign Currency Exposure 
Pa rti cul a rs As at March 31, ·2025 

USO EUR GBP 
lrade and Other Payables 0.66 3.50 0.07 

Net Exposure 0.66 3.50 0.07 

Sensitivity analysis of 1% change in exchange rate at the end of reporting year 
Foreign Currency Sensitivity 

P articu la rs As at March 31, 2025 
USO EUR GBP 

Sensitivity to a 1% decrease 
inlNR 

Impact on Equity 
Impact on P&l (0.01) (0.03) (0.00) 
Total (0.01} (0.03) (0.00) 

Sensitivity to a 1% increase in 

INR 
Impact on Equity 
Impact on P&L 0.01 0.03 0.00 
Total 0.01 0.03 o.oo 

Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk sensitivity - Listed NCDs 

(INR in Crore) 
As at March 31, 2024 

USO EUR GBP 
3.05 32.35 0.01 

3.05 32.35 0.01 

(INR in Crore) 
As at March 31, 2024 

USO EUR GBP 

(0.03) (0.32) (0.00) 
{0.03) {0.32) (0.00) 

0.03 0.32 0.00 
0.03 0.32 0.00 

Since Interest rate is fixed till the date of maturity of all the t hree t ranches of the Listed NCDs i.e. upto March 2029, interest rate 

sensitivity is not applicable. 

Credit Risk 
Credit risk Is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to perform or pay the amounts due causing 

financial loss to the Group. Credit risk arises from Group's activities in investments and outstanding receivables from customers. 

The Group has a prudent and conservative process for managing its credit risk arising in the course of its business activities. 

Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk arises from t he Group's inability to meet its cash flow commitments on time. Group's objective is to, at all times, 

maintain optimum levels of 11quidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Group closely monitors its liquidity position 

and deploys a disciplined cash management system. 
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Maturitv Profile of Flnanclaf Liabilities at Amortised Cost, as on March 31 2025 
Particulars Carrying Below3 3,-6 6-12 1-3 3.5 

Value Months Months Months YP~rs Years 
listed NCos• 6,578.63 254.68 129.45 256.09 2,940.02 4,786.96 
Liability component of 8.44 . . . - -
Compound Financial 
Instrument 
Trade payables 108.30 108.30 . . - -
Lease Liabilities• 16.97 0.74 0.75 1.56 8.09 5.83 
Other current Financial 1,302.96 1,285.85 17.14 - . . 

Liabilities 
"Including interest 

Maturitv Profile of Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost as on March 31 2024 
Particulars Carrying Below 3 3-6 6-12 1-3 3-5 

V::.l11t> 11.Al-~~L- o.•~ ... thc Months Years Years 
Listed NCDs* 6,479.58 155.62 129.45 256.09 2,022.80 6,212.81 
Liability component of 7.69 - - - - -
Compound Financial 

Instrument 

Trade payables 164.18 164.18 - - - -
Lease Liabilities* 19.78 0.69 0.70 1.44 6.86 10.09 
Other Current Financial 1,249.42 1,232.25 17.17 . . . 

Liabilities 
"Including interest 

{INR in Crorel 

Above Total 
5 Years 

. 8,367.20 
50.00 50.00 

- 108.30 
- 16.97 
. 1,302.99 

(INR in Crore) 

Above Total 
5 Years 

- 8,776.77 
50.00 50.00 

- 164.18 
- 19.78 
- 1,249.42 

The only financial liability at Fair Value through Profit and Loss is in respect of Call Option with RIL for PIL shares, amounting to Rs. 

115.26 Crore as at March 31, 2025 (Previous year Rs. 97.26 Crore as at March 31, 2024). Maturity profile is not relevant for this 

financial liability. Refer note 16.1. 
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NOTE 38. STATEMENT OF NET DISTRIBUTABLE CASH FLOWs (NDCFs) AT SPV LEVEL (PIL): 
Net Distributable Cash Flows (NOCF) pursuant to guidance under SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-PoO/P/CIR/2023/184 

dated December 6, 2023 (Refer Note 4 below) 

IINR in Crorel 
Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2025 

Cash flow from operating activities as per Cash Flow Statement of SPV 1,215.03 
Adjustments:-
Add: Treasury income/ income from investing activities (interest income received from FD, tax refund, 84.69 

any other income in the nature of interest, profit on sale of Mutual funds, investments, assets etc., 

dividend income etc., excluding any Ind /l5 adjustments. Further clarified that these amounts will be 

considered on a cash receipt basis). 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure Investments, infrastructure assets or shares of SPVs or 82.04 

Investment Entity adjusted for the following 

• Applicable capital gains and other taxes 

• Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds 

• Directly attributable transaction costs 
• Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7) of lnvlT Regulations or any 

other relevant provisions of the lnvlT Regulations. (Refer Note 3) 

Less: Finance cost on Borrowings, excluding amortisation of any transaction costs as per Profit and (513.58) 

Loss Account and any shareholder debt/ loan from Trust. 

Less: Debt repayment (to include principal repayments as per scheduled EMl's except if refinanced -
through new debt including overdraft facilities and to exclude any debt repayments/ debt refinanced 

through new debt, in ;my form or equity ra ise as well as repayment of any sh9reholder debt / loan 

from Trust). 

Less: any reserve required to be created under the terms of, or pursuant to the obligations arising in -
(i). loan agreement entered with banks/ financial institution from whom the Trust or any of its . 
SPVs/ HoldCos have availed debt, or 

(ii). terms and conditions, covenants or any other stipulat ions applicable to debt securities issued by . 
the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or 

(iii). terms and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable to external commercial . 
borrowings availed by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, 

(iv). agreement pursuant to which the SPV/ Holdco operates or owns the infrastructure asset, or (197,62) 

generates revenue or cash flows from such asset (such as, concession agreement, transmission 

services agreement, power purchase agreement, lease agreement, and any other agreement of a 

like nature, by whatever name called); or (Refer Note 1 & 2) 
(v}. statutory, judicial, regulatory, or governmental stipulations; or -

Less: any capital expenditure on existing assets owned/ leased by the SPV or Holdco, to the extent not (46.11) 

funded by debt/ equity or from reserves created in the earner years. 

Net Distributable Cash Flows 624.45 
Ad.d: 10% NDCF withheld in line with Regulations in earlier years 392.47 
Net Distributable Cash Flows including Surplus cash at SPV t:evel 1,016.92 

Notes: 
1. The retention amount of Rs. 197.62 Crore comprises of Rs. 672.94 Crore upside payable by PIL to Reliance Industries Limited 

(RIL} under the Pipeline Usage Agreement (PUA). in lieu of RIL providing certainty of cash flows to PIL ("RIL Upside") and Rs. 31.42 

Crore towards Expenditure Component Sweep to be paid to the Trust as per the terms of the Debenture Trust Deed. The 

retention amount is net of amount retained in previous year ended March 31, 2024 of Rs. 506.74 crore, which has been utilised 

during the current year. 

2. The net distributable cash flows available to the Trust and consequently to the unitholders is after considering the RIL Upside 

amount payable in accordance with the PUA. 
3. This pertains to proceeds on sale of Property, plant and equipment. 
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4. In order to promote standardisation of framework for computing NDCF, a revised framework was defined by SEBI vide circular 
no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-PoD/P/CIR/2023/184 dated December 6, 2023 ("Revised NDCF Framework") (earlier SEBI Master 

Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 6, 2023). Energy Infrastructure Trust (lnduding the SPV) has 
computed the NDCF for the year ended and March 31, 2025 as per the Revised NDCF Framework applicable with effect from 

April 01, 2024. Comparative Information have been provided as per the framework applicable for the previous year. 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoO-
2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 6, 2023 

Particulars 

Profit /(loss) after tax as per Statement of profit and loss (standalone) (A) 
Adjustments:-
Add: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation as per statement of profit and loss. In case of 
impairment reversal, same needs to be deducted from profit and loss. 
Add: Interest and Additional Interest (as defined in the NCD terms) debited to Statement of profit and 
loss in respect of loans obtained / debentures issued to Trust (net of any reduction or interest 

chargeable by Project SPV to the Trust). 

Add/ (Less}: Increase/ decrease in net working capital deployed in the ordinary course of business. 

Add/ (Less): Net Contracted Capacity Payments (CCP) 
Less; Capital expenditure, if any 
Add/ {Less): Any other item of non-cash expense/ non cash income (net of actual cash flows for these 

items), if deemed necessary by the Investment Manager, including but not limited to 

(a) Any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in statement of profit 
and loss and expenditure on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value 

(b) Interest cost as per effective interest rate method (difference between accrued and actual paid) 
( c) Deferred tax 

/dl Lease rent recognised on straight line basis. 
Less: Amount reserved for expenditure / payments in the intervening period till next proposed 
distribution, if deemed necessary by the Investment Manager, invested in permitted investments 

including but not limited to 
(a) Amount reserved for major maintenance which has not been provided in statement of profit and 

Joss. 
(b) Amount retained /reserved for specified purposes including working capital requirements 

Total Adjustments (B) 
Net Distributable Cash Flows (Cl=IA+Bl* 

!INR in Crorel 
Year ended 

March 31, 2024 
(239.12) 

905.31 

591.53 

586.00 

(824.97) 
(56.77) 
533.82 

(506.74) 

1,228.18 
989.06 

*The difference between SPV NDCF and the Cash flows / Proceeds received by Trust from SPV is primarily on account of 

utilization of opening Funds at the SPV level for the year ended 31 March 2024. 

Amount oaid bv SPV to lnvlT is as =r table below: IINR in Crorel 
Particulars Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 202S March 31, 2024 

Amount paid to lnvlT towards principal repayment of debentures 360.97 341.75 
Amount paid to lnvlT towards Advance 127.10 138.10 
Amount oaid to lnvlT towards Interest 528.85 591.53 
Total 1016.92 1071.38 
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STATEMENT OF NET DISTRIBUTABLE CASH FLOWs (NDCFs) OF TRUST 
Net Distributable Cash Flows {NDCF) pursuant to guidance under SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-PoD/P/CIR/2023/184 
dated December 6, 2023 (Refer note 4 in section A above) 

Particulars 

Cashflows from operating activities of the Trust 

(+) cash flows received from SPV's / Investment entities which represent distributions of NDCF 
computed as per relevant framework" 
(+) Treasury income/ income from investing activities of the Trust {interest income received from FD, 

any investment entities as defined in Regulation 18(5), tax refund, any other income in the nature of 

interest, profit on sale of Mutual funds, investments, assets etc., dividend income etc., excluding any 

Ind AS adjustments. Further clarified that these amounts will be considered on a cash receipt basis). 
{+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure investments, infrastructure assets or shares of SPVs/Holdcos 

or Investment Entity adjusted for the following: 

• Applicable capital gains and other taxes. 
• Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds. 
• Directly attributable transaction costs. 
• Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7) of lnvlT Regulations or any 

other relevant provisions of the lnv/T Regulations. 

{+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure investments, infrastructure assets or sale of shares of SPVs/ 
Hold cos or Investment Entity not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest as per Regulation 

18(7) of lnvlT Regulations or any other relevant provisions of the lnvlT Regulations. if such proceeds 

are not intended to be invested subsequently. 
(-) Finance cost on Borrowings, excluding amortisation of any transaction costs as per Profit and Loss 

account of the Trust. 
(-) Debt repayment at Trust level (to include principal repayments as per scheduled EMl's except if 
refinanced through new debt including overdraft facilities and to exclude any debt repayments / debt 

refinanced through new debt in any form or funds raised through issuance of units). 

{·) any reserve required to be created under the terms of, or pursuant to the obligations arising in 

accordance with, any: 
{i). loan agreement entered with financial institution, or 

(it). terms and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable to debt securities issued by 
the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or {iii). terms and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations 
applicable to external commercial borrowings availed by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or 

{Iv). agreement pursuant to which the Trust operates or owns the infrastructure asset, or generates 

revenue or cashflows from such a·sset (such as, concession agreement, transmission services 
agreement, power purchase agreement, lease agreement, and any other agreement of a like nature, 

by whatever name called); or 

{v). statutory, judicial, regulatory, or governmental stipulations; or, 

(-) any capital expenditure on existing assets owned/ leased by the lnvlT, to the extent not funded by 

debt/ equity or from contractual reserves created in the earlier years. 

NDCF at Trust Level 

Particulars 
Net Distributable Cash Flows of Trust (as calculated above) 

Add: 10% of NDCF withheld in line with the Regulations in earlier year 

Add : Surplus Cash on account of maturity of deposits# 

Net Distrlbutable Cash flows including Surplus Cash at Trust Level 

(INR in Crore) 

Year ended 
March 31, 202S 

(12.20) 

1,016.92 

2.28 

1,007.00 

Year ended 
1,007.00 

90.31 

45.04 

1,142.35 
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# These deposits were restricted upto March 22, 2024, pursuant to loan covenant of debt raised by SPV. These restrictions were 

removed subsequent to debt refinancing at SPV in year ended March 31, 2024. Further, these deposits were not made out of any 

debt raised at lnvlT or SPV level. 

Net Distributable Cash Flows {NDCF} pursuant to guidance under SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-Po0-

2/P /CIR/2023/115 dated July 6, 2023 

!INR in Crorel 
Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2024 

Cash flows received from Portfolio Assets in the form of interest 591.53 

Any other income accruing at the Trust level and not captured above, including but not limited to 5.10 

interest/return on surplus cash invested by the Trust. 

Cash flows/ Proceeds from the Portfolio Assets towards the repayment of the debt issued to the 479.85 

Portfolio Assets by the Trust• 

Total cash flow at the lnvlT level IAI 1,076.48 
Less: Any payment of fees, interest and expense incurred at the Trust level, including but not limited to (12.74) 

the fees of the Investment Manager, Trustee, Project Manager, Auditor, Valuer, credit rating agency 

and the Debenture Trustee. 

Less: Income tax (if applicable) at the standalone Trust level and payment of other statutory dues. (1.19) 

Total cash outflows/ retention at the Trust level IBI 113.931 
Net Distributable Cash Flows (Cl= (A+B) 1,062.55 

* Includes advances from Pipeline Infrastructure Limited (SPV) 
IINR in Crorel 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Advance from SPV 127.10 138.10 

Expenditure Component Sweep (ECS} is the amount being paid to Energy Infrastructure Trust by the SPV as an advance in 

accordance with the Debenture Trust Deed and is adjusted against Non Convertible Debentures, which is measured at FVTPL. 
This will be adjusted from the future NCD payments to lnvlT along with interest at the rate of 6.04%. 

The Net Distributable Cashflows (NDCF) as above is distributed as follows in the respective manner: 

(INR in Crore) 

For the year ended March 31, Return of Capital Return on Capita! Miscellaneous Income Total 
2021; 

April 18, 2024 128.14 248.05 1.42 377.61 
Julv 16, 2024 106.63 171.05 - 277.68 
For the half year ended 234.77 419,10 1.42 655.29 
Seotember ~ zo,4 lal 

October 16, 2024 127.24 145.38 - 272.62 
Januarv 15. 2025 126.06 86.69 - 212.75 
For the half year ended March 253.30 232.07 - 485.37 
:u ,025 fbl 

Total for the year ended March 488.07 651.17 1.42 1,140.66 
31 '>n-JS l:a+bl 
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For the year ended March 31, Return of Capital Return on Capital 

2024 

April 18, 2023 121.74 138.15 
Julv 19 2023 119.17 144.08 
For the half year ended 240.91 282.23 
- b<>• -:in ?n-,3 '21 

October 18, 2023 118.21 143.78 
Januarv 17. 2024 120.72 62.53 
For the half year ended March 238.93 206.31 
I ':11 -,n-,,1 /hi 

Total for the year ended March 479.84 488.54 
l':l1 -,n-,,t /a+hl 

NOTE 39. LONG TERM CONTRACT 

(INR in Crore) 

Miscellaneous Income Total 

- 259.89 

- 263.25 

- 523.14 

- 261.99 
4.68 187.93 
4.68 449.92 

4.68 973.06 

The Trust has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year 
end, the Trust has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under any law / accounting standard has been 
made in the books of accounts. 

NOTE 40, OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION 

(i) The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), includ!ng foreign entities 
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary sha11: 

- Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

- Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(ii) The Group have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the 
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall: 

-Directly or indirectly lend or Invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

- Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(iii) The Group does not have any such t ransaction which is not recorded in t he books of account that has been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

(iv) The provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder are applicable to the SPV for FY 2024-
25 and 2023-24. However, the SPV was not required to make any expenditure towards CSR activity during the years under review 

due to negative average net profit of the preceeding three financial years. Being a responsible corporate citizen, and pursuant to 
the approval of its Board, the SPV had provisioned Rs. 2 Crore and Rs. 1.15 Crore to be utilized towards the CSR initiatives by the 

SPV during FY 2024-25 and FY 2023-24, respectively. SPV's CSR activities were mainly focused towards health and sanitation, 
education, sustainable livelihood and rural development. These provisions are not applicable t o the Trust. 

(v) The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which could impact the contributions by the SPV 

towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social 

Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by 
the Ministry. Based on an initial assessment by the SPV, the additional impact on Provident Fund contributions and Gratuity 

liability/contributions by the SPV is not expected to be material. The SPV will complete their evaluation once the subject rules are 
notified and will give appropriate impact in the financial statements In the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the 

related rules to determine the financial impact are published. 
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NOTE41. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

On a review of the Business operations of the Group, review of minutes of meetings, review of the Trial Balance of the period 
subsequent to March 31, 2025, there are no subsequent events that have taken place requiring reporting In the financials for the 

year ended March 31, 2025, other than as disclosed be/ow. 

The Net Distributable Cashflows (NDCF) is distributed as follows In the respective manner after March 31, 2025: 

Particulars Return of CaDftal Return on CaDital Miscellaneous Income Total 
April 16, 2025 134.27 136.31 - 270.58 

134.27 136.31 . 270.58 

NOTE42. 

The previous year figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to make them comparable with those of current year. 

NOTE43. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager to the Trust in 

its meeting held on May 19, 2025. 
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For and on behalf of the Board-
Encap Investment Manager Private Limited 
(formerly known as Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager 
Private limited\ 
(as an Investment Manager of Energy Infrastructure Trust 

(formerly known as India Infrastructure Trust) 

~~ 
Akhil Mehrotra 
Managing Director of Encap Investment Manager Private 
Limited 
DIN: 07197901 

3/ 
Suchlbrata 8t3nerjee 
Chief Financial Officer of Encap Investment Manager Private 
limited 
PAN: AIGPB7900G 

Y2 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of Encap 
Investment ManaRer Private limited 
ACS No. 36271 

Date: May 19, 2025 
Place: Navl Mumbai 
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Energy Infrastructure Trust (''the Trust") 

EnCap Investment Manager Private Limited ("the Investment Manager") 

Valuation as per SEBI (Infrastructure Investment 
Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended 

Fair Enterprise Valuation of the SPV: 

Valuation Date: 31st March, 2025 

Report Date: 19th May, 2025 

Mr. S Sundararaman, 
Registered Valuer, 
IBBI Registration No - IBBI/RV/06/2018/10238 



S. SUNDARARAMAN 
Registered Valuer 
Registration No - IBBl/RV/06/2018/10238 

RV/SSR/R/2025/PIU001 

Date: 19th May, 2025 

The Board of Directors 
The Investment Manager 
EnCap Investment Manager Private Limited 
(Erstwhtre Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) 
Seawoods Grand Central, 
Tower-1, 3rd Level, C Wing - 301 to 304, 
Sector 40, Seawoods Railway Station, 
Navi Mumbai • 400 706, 
Thane, Maharashtra, India. 

Energy Infrastructure Trust 
(Erstwhile India Infrastructure Trust) 
Acting through Axis Trustee Seivices Limited 
(In its capacity as the Trustee of the Trust) 
Seawoods Grand Central, 
Tower-1, 3'" Level, C Wing - 301 to 304, 
Sector 40, Seawoods Railway Station, 
Navi Mumbai - 400 706, 
Thane, Maharashtra, India. 
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Sub: Valuation as per Sf;:BI {Infrastructure l~ent Trusbl Regulations, 2014. as amended {"the SE~ 
lnvlr Regulations".} 

Dear Sir(s) / Madam(s), 

I, Mr. S. Sundararaman {"Registered Valuer" or "RV" or "I' or "My" or "Me") bearing IBBI registration number 
IBBI/RV/06/2018/1 0238, have been appointed vicle letter dated 1 •1 April, 2025 as an independent valuer, as defined 
under the SEBI lnvlT Regulations, by EnCap Investment Manager Private Limited ("the Investment Manager" 
or "EIMPL"), acting as the Investment manager for Energy Infrastructure Trust {erstwhile India Infrastructure 
Trust} ("the Trust" or "lnvlT" or "the client") for the purpose of enterprise valuation of the Special Purpose Vehicle 
{"the SPV") of the Trust as per the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Board of India {Infrastructure 
Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended ("SEBI lnvlT Regulations"). 

The Trust operates & maintains the SPV named Pipeline Infrastructure Limited ("PIL" or "lnvlT Asset") which 
owns & operates a cross-country, natural gas pipeline with a 48-inch diameter and a length of 1,480 km including 
spur lines (together with compressor stations and operation centres), that stretches from Kakinada, Andhra 
Pradesh to Bharuch, Gujarat. 

The SPV was acquired by the Trust and is to be valued as per Regulation 21 (4) contained in the Chapter V of the 
SEBI lnvlT Regulations. 

As per Regulation 21 (4) of Chapter Vof the SEBI lnvlT Regulations, 

"A full valuation shall be conducted by the valuer not less than once in every financial year: Provided that such full 
valuation shall be conducted at the end of the financial year ending March 31o1 within two months from the date of 
end of such year" 

In this regard, the Investment Manager and the Trust intend to undertake the fair enterprise valuation of the lnvlT 
Asset as on 31'1 March 2025. ("Valuation Date") 

I have relied on the explanations and information provided to me by the Investment Manager. Although, I have 
reviewed such data for consistency, those are not independently investigated or otherwise verified the accuracy of 
such explanation &/or information provided by the Investment Manager. My team and I have no present or planned 
future interest in the Trust, the SPV or the Investment Manager except to the extent of this appointment as an 
independent valuer and the fee for this Valuation Report ("Report") which is not contingent upon the values 
reported herein. The valuation analysis should not be construed as an investment advice, specifically, I do not 
express any opinion on the suitability or otherwise of entering into any financial or other transaction with the Trust. 

Mr. S Sundararaman, Registered Valuer 
Registered Valuer Registration No - IBBI/RV/06/2018/10238 
50/25, Vedanlha Desikar Street, Mylaporc, Chcnnai- 6(X)(]04 India 
E-mail ID: chennajssrl@gmai) com 



S. SUNDARARAMAN 
Registered Valuer Sbictly Private and Confidential 
Registration No - IBBJ/RV/06/2018/10238 

I am enclosing the Report providing opinion on the fair enterprise value of the lnvfT Asset on a going concern basis 
as at the Valuation date. 

Enterprise Value ("EV') is described as the total value of the equity in a business plus the value of its debt and 
debt related liabilities, minus any cash and cash equivalents to meet those liabilities. The attached Report details 
the valuation methodologies used, calculations performed and the conclusion reached with respect to this 
valuation. 

The analysis must be considered as a whole. Selecting portions of any analysis or the factors that are considered 
in this Report, without considering all factors and analysis together could create a misleading view of the process 
underlying the valuation conclusions. The preparation of a valuation is a complex process and is not necessarily 
susceptible to partial analysis or summary description. Any attempt to do so could lead to undue emphasis on any 
particular factor or analysis. 

The information provided to me by the Investment Manager in relation to the SPV included but not limited to 
historical financial statements. forecasts/projections, other statements and assumptions about future matters like 
forward-looking financial information prepared by the Investment Manager. The forecasts and projections as 
supplied to me are based upon assumptions about events and circumstances which are yet to occur. 

I have not tested individual assumptions or attempted to substantiate the veracity or integrity of such assumptions 
in relation to the forward-looking financial information, however, I have made sufficient enquiry to satisfy myself 
that such information has been prepared on a reasonable basis. 

Notwithstanding anything above, I cannot provide any assurance that the forward looking financial information will 
be representative of the results which will actually be achieved during the cash flow forecast period. 

The valuation provided by RV and the valuation conclusion are included herein and the Report complies with the 
SEBI lnvlT Regulations and guidelines, circular or notification issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India ("SEBI") thereunder. 

Please note that all comments in the Report must be read in conjunction with the caveats to the Report, which are 
contained in Section 11 of this Report. This letter and the Report and the summary of valuation included herein 
can be provided to Trust's advisors and may be made available for the inspection to the public and with the SEBI, 
the stock exchanges and any other regulatory and supervisory authority, as may be required. 

This letter should be read in conjunction with the attached Report. 

Yours. faithfully, 

S. Sundararaman 
Registered Valuer 
I8BI Registration No.: IBBI/RV/06/2018/10238 
Place: Chennai 
UDIN: 25028423BMOMXK7786 

Mr. S Sw,darararnan_. Registered Valuer 
Registered Valuer Registration No - IBBl/RV/06/2018/10238 
50125. Vedantha Desikar Street, My la pore, Oiennai - 600004 India 
E-mail ID, cheruµissrl@gm;,j) mro 
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Definition, abbreviation & glossary of tenns 

Abbreviations Meaning 
--ElMPi. ______ E_n_C_a_p-lnvestme-nt-M- an_a_g_e_r -P-ri-11at_e_ L-im- it_e_d __ ----------

Capex CapitafExpenditure 
-···· -··········· ···-·· 

CCP Contracted Capacity Payment 
CCPS • 0% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares 
bcF Discounted Casti Flow 
DTD Agreement --- beberiture Tiust Deed dated February 29, 2024 between PIL And ID.Bl 

Trusteeship Services Limited 
DLiPL 
c:ivPi. 
EBITDA 

EV 
EWPPL 
FCFE 
FCFF 

FY ' Financial Year 
Framework Agreement 

GSPC 

Dahej~Ur'an=Panvel Pipeline 
Dahef\/iJ8IPUr Gas· ~iiPtilille .......... ·-· ····-····· 

Earnings Beforefnterest: Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization 

-~ n_l~ ~PJi~~ y_a~ue _ _ 
East West Pipeline Private Limited . - - . - ·-
Free Cash Flow to Equity 

·- --- ... 
Free Cash Flow to the Firm 

·----- - -·-· - . -- . -·· 
Financial Year Ended 31'1 March 
The-framework agrt:iemerit-ttated August 2a, 261a: entered amorigst-Reifaiice 
Industries Holding Private limited, Rapid Holdings 2 Pie Ltd., Penbrook Capital 
Advisors Private Limited and Pll 
Gujarat State Petroieum Corporation 

GSPL Gujarat State Petrone! Limited 

GTA Gas Tr~nsporiation Agr~ement 
Ind.AS Indian Accounting Standards 
Infrastructure Sharing Infrastructure Sharing Agreement dated February 11, 2019 tieiween Corifractor, 
Agreement Sub-Contractor and Pll 
INR Indian Rupee 
Investment Manager or Entap Investment Manager Private Limited (Erstwhile Brocikfieid India 
IM Infrastructure Manager Private Limited) 
lnv1T or Trust ••••• Energylnfrastructure Triist (Erstwhiie India Infrastructure Trust) 
lnvlT Asset or Pipeline or The cross-=country pipeiine (including - spurs)--b-etween -- Kakrn·ada in Andhra 
Initial Portfolio Asset Pradesh and Bharuch in Gujarat owned and operated by PIL 
lnvlT NCDs or Unlisted, Secu'red, Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures of face value of I NR 
Shareholders' Debt _ 1,0_~~ ~ac~_a_ggregaling issued by Pll to t_he Trust. _ 
IVS ICAI Valuation Standards 2018 
Joint Venture Agreemeni 

KG Basin 
Kms 
Listed NCDs 

LNG 

Management 
Mn 
IVlmblu 

Mmscmd 
NAV 

NCA 
NCDs 

O&M 
O&M Agreement 

·the jointVenture Agreement i:iated February 11, 2019, entered into between ECI 
India Managers Private limited, RIL and Rutvi Project Managers Private Limited 
and amendments thereto 
Krishna Godavari Basin 
Kilometres 

--Listed, Redeemable Nori-convertible Debentures of face value of INR 1,000 each 
aggregating to INR 64,520 Mn, issued in 3 series (Refer Section 7.6 for details} 
Liquefied Natural Gas •••••• -- • 

Management of PIL and IM 
Million 
Metric Million British Thermal Units 

• Million Metric Standard Cubic Meter Per Day 
Net Asset Value Method 

Net Current Assets Excluding Cash and Bank Balances 
Non-Convertible Debeniures issued by PIL 
Operation & Maintenance 
Operations and Maintenance Agreement, daled-Februaiy 11, 2019 amongst PIL, 
ECI India Private Limited and Rutvi Project Managers Private limited 
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Abbreviations 

O&M Sub-Contractor 
Agreement 

Pll 

PIL SHA 

• Pipeline Business 

PNGRB 
Project -Manager 

P'iJA 
RGPL 

-RIHPL 

RiiHL 
-RJL 

-RIL Upside Share -

ROCE 
-- RSBVL 

RV 

Scheme/ Scheme of -
Arrangement 

SEBI 

SEBI lnvlT Reiiulalions 
-Shared Services --­

Agreement 
SPA-

··sPv·· 

Sponsor 
SSA-

Sub-Contractor -

SUG 

Total NCDs 

Transaciion Documents 

Trustee 

Meaning 

Operations and Maintenance Sub-Contractor Agreement, dated February 11, 
2019 amongst PIL, Rutvi Project Managers Private Limited and Reliance Gas 
Pipelines Limited 

Pipeiine ·Infrastructure Limited (Prev,ousiy known as Pipeline Infrastructure 
Private Limited) 
Shareholdeis and Options Agreement dated February 11 ,' 2019 amongst PiL, 
East West Pipeline Limited, RIL, Penbrook Capital Advisors Private Limited and 
the Trust and amendments thereto 

The entire a.ctivitie;s and ciperalions historically car'ried oi.it by EWPPL with respect -
to transportation of natural gas through the Pipeline and related activities, as a 
going concern, which was acquired by PJL with effect from the Appointed Date, 
as further defined in the Scheme 
Petroleum "and.Natural Gas Regulatory Board ••• 

ECI India ·Managers -Private Limited --

Pipeline Usage Agreement datecTf;;farch 1s: 2019 ·amongst PIL and RIL, ··-·-· , .. ___ ., 

Reliance Gas Pipelines Ltd 
Reliance· industries. Holding Private limited 

Reliance industrial investments··and Holdings Limited 
Retia-nce lnd-ustries Limited -

As -per ·c1ause·12:3 of ttie PUA, Rli..-Upside Share shall be equal ici the amou-nt 
of free cash flows available with PIL after meeting all payment obligations on the 
!:J.C.Ps inclLJding ln\/"IT Upside Sha!!!, _ 
Return on Capital Employed 

•• Reliance Strategic Business Ventures 1..iiniieci 
RegistE;rec:i"Valuer ·- • - • 

The scheme of arrangement between EWPPL {as the demerged entity), PIL arid 
their respective creditors and shareholders under Sections 230 to 232 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements 
and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time, for the demerger of the 
Pipeline Business from EWPPL to PIL 
Securities an'd Exchange Board of i ndia., 

SEBI (Infrastructure -Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended 
Tlie siiared services Agreement dated Fetirua-ry -1 < 201 s entered amongst Rt C 
PIL and Rutvi Project Managers Private Limited and amendments thereto 
Share Purchase-Agreement dated ---February 11, -201 ff- among-st ihe Trust, 
Penbrook Capital Advisors Private Limited, Reliance Industries Holding Private 
Limited and PIL and amendments thereto 
Special Purpose Vehicle 

Rapid Holdings 2 Pie, Ltd . 

• PIL Share • Subscription Agreement dated February 11, 2019 amongst p"ji_, 
Reliance Industrial Investments and Holdings Private Limited and the Trust 
·Reliance Gas Pipeiines Ltd - -- -- --- ··- -- - - ---- - - -- ••••• 

System Use Gas ... .. .. 
Total NCDs issued by PIL (i.e. Listed NCDs + Shareholders' Debi) 
Transaction documents. shall mean the Framework Agreement, the Scheme of 
Arrangement, the Joint Venture Agreement, the PIL SHA, the SPA, the O&M 
Agreement, the O&M Sub-Contractor Agreement the Pipeline Usage Agreement, 
Shared Services Agreement, SSA, Infrastructure Sharing Agreement and DTD 
Agreement and amendments to these agreements 
Axis.Trustee Services· Limited • 
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1. Executive Summary 

1.1. Background 

The Trust 

1.1.1. Energy Infrastructure Trust [erstwhile India Infrastructure Trust] ('1he Trust'') was established on 22nd 

November 2018 as a contributory irrevocable trust under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882. The 
Trust is sponsored by Rapid Holdings 2 Pie. Lid. The Trust is registered with Securities and Exchange Board 
of India ("SEBI") pursuant to the SEBI {Infrastructure Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014 ("SEBI lnvlT 
Regulations"). The units of the Trust are listed on BSE Limited since 20th March 2019. The Trust was 
registered on 23rd January 2019 under the SEBI lnvlT Regulations having registered number Reg No. -
IN/lnvlT/18-19/00008. 

1.1.2. The investment objective of the Trust is to carry on the activity of an infrastructure investment trust, as 
permissible under the SEBI lnvlT Regulations, by initially acquiring the Initial Portfolio Asset in the first 
instance and to make investments in compliance with the provisions of the SEBI lnvff Regulations. 

The Initial Portfolio Asset of the Trust is a pipeline system used for the transport of natural gas The Pipeline 

is a cross-country, natural gas pipeline with a pipeline length of -1 ,480 km including spur lines (together with 
compressor stations and operation centres), that stretches from Kakinada, Andhra Pradesh, in the east of 

India, to Bharuch, Gujarat, in the west of India, traversing adjacent to major cities in the states of Andhra 

Pradesh, Telangana, Karnataka, Maharashtra and Gujarat ("Pipeline"}, owned by Pipeline Infrastructure 
Limited ('"PIL" or "lnvlT Asset" or "SPV"), the only Special Purpose Vehicle of the Trust. In addition to such 

lnvlT Asset, the Trust also holds other assets as on the Valuation Date as per the provisional financial 
statements as under: 

a. Cash & Cash Equivalents - INR 1.52 Mn 
b. Investment in Mutual Funds- JNR 15.50 Mn 

c. Prepaid Expenses - INR 0.10 Mn 

d. Assets for Current Tax- lNR 2.00 Mn 

e. Other Financial Assets {Put Option) - INR 14.1 O Mn 

1.1.3. Unit Holders of the Trust as on 31 ' 1 March. 2025 is as under: 

Sr.no. ______ Partlcu!ars 
1 _ Sponsor & Spons'?r gre>up 
2 Mutual Funds 
3 Financial Institutions or Banks -- ··- ·· .. . . ..... .. 
4 ... __ lnsurc111<:(;l(~e>111panie!. __ 
6 -~on::-\~~~tu~i!)_n_al in.~estors 

Total 
Source.· BSE Umi!ed 

The Sponsor 

rfa. of Units o/. 
_ 49,~0.00,Q00 75.00% 

~,?3,~~ .. Q9_9 .... ··- ?:.6)% 
1,4§,9..0,00_Q _ 2.20% 

68,00,000 ________ .. 1:.0:2~ _ 
. ___ 12,72,75,ooo . . _!9- l7-.% 

66,40,00,000 100.00% 

1.1.4. Rapid Holdings 2 Pte. Ltd. ("the Sponsor") is a wholly owned subsidiary of Rapid Holdings 1 Pie. Ltd. ("Rapid 
1 "), a company incorporated in Singapore. The Sponsor is an entity forming part of the Brookfield Group (i.e. 
the entities which are directly or indirectly controlled by Brookfield Corporation, formerly known as Brookfreld 
Asset Management, Inc.). 

Shareholding of the Sponsor as on 31st March 2025 is as under: 
-~!:-!!.O..:. ________ _ ______ Partlculam . ___ -------~o'._of .Shart.s_____ '1/* ____ _ 

2 

2 

Equity Shares 
R_ijiid H~ldings 1 _ Pte Ltd, $ingapore 

CIBC Melton Trust Company (ATF 
S?n~rio PoVl'er Generation Inc. P~n!.[o_n Fun~). Canada 
Total 
Preference Shares 
Rapid)jold_ings 1 P,te Ud.,~irigapore 

CIBC Mellon Trust Company (ATF 

... ~6,49<i 
3,600 

1,00,000 

40,44, 15,804 

1,51,02,053 
Ontario Power Generation Inc. Pension Fund) Canada 

____ Totai ·_ • • . - __________ _ 41L95,17,B57 
Source: Investment Manager 

.96.4()% 

3.60% 

100.00% 

96.40% 

3.60% 

100.00¾ 
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Investment Manager 

1.1.5. EnCap Investment Manager Private Limited [erstwhile Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private 
Limited] ("the Investment Manager" or "EIMPL") is an investment management company and is the 
Investment Manager of the Trust. The Investment Manager has over five years of experience in fund 
management. Further, the Investment Manager has appointed a Project Manager to (directly or indirectly) 
undertake operations and management of the SPV. 

Shareholding of the I nveslment Manager as on 31 51 March, 2025 is as under: 

Sr.no. ?a:1icu1ars 
1 BIF Ill Rapid IM ljoldco. Pte Ltd ____ _ 

- -- 2 - • BIF IV Jarvis IM Holdco. Ple Ltd* 
----- Total --- - -- ----

No, of Shares ¾ 
83,39,557 100.00% 

- - •• - 1 0.00% 

83 39 558 100:00¾ 
~Holds one share as a nominee of BIF Ill Rapid JM Holdco. Pie Ltd 
Source: Investment Manager 

1.1.6. Financial Asset to be Valued 

Enterprise Value ("EV') is described as the total value of the eq uHy in a business plus the value of its debt 
and debt related liabilities, minus any cash and cash equivalents lo meet those liabilities. The financial asset 
under consideration to be valued at Enterprise Value is as follows:-

Sr. No. Nam&Qfthe SPV 

Pipeline Infrastructure Limited 

Structure of the Trust as at 31" March 202S: 

-Sp:qnsor 
(Riapi~' 11◊1d ings 2 

Pte.'Ltd) 75% 

' 

Infrastructure 
Trust 

Acquisition Date 
INRMn 

Acquisition Cost 

500 22nd March 2019 

Other Unit Holder$ 

25% 

f Trustee 
(Axis Trustee ~ces Ltd) 

~ I 
Energy 

100% Equity ~ P roJeet Manager it, v.A1$.tment Man ager stake 
(,RnC'ap investment ~ (ECI India Managers Private 

Limited) 
Manager Privc11e SPY' 

i Limited) (Pipeline 
I nfrastr uclu re 

C1;1~tor tpipeline 
Limited) Manage!l'll;!nl services P riv a~ 

Limited) 

*Reliance Strategic Business Ventures Limited ("RSBVL") holds Redeemable preference shares of 
INR 50 Crores and Compulsory Convertible Preference shares of INR 4,000 crores in the SPV. 
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1.2. Purpose and Scope of Valuation 

Purpose of Valuation 

1.2.1 . As per Regulation 21 (4) of Chapter V of the SEBI lnvlT Regulations, 

"A full valuation shall be conducted by the valuer not less than once in every financial year: Provided that 
such full valuation shall be conducted at the end of the financial year ending March 31st within two months 
from the date of end of such year. " 

In th is regard, the Investment Manager intends to undertake a fair enterprise valuation of the SPV as on 31 ' 1 

March 2025. 

1.2.2. In this regard, the Investment Manager have appointed Mr. S. Sundararaman (''Registered Valuer" or "RV" 
or "I" or "My" or "Me") bearing IBBI registration number IBBI/RV/06/2018/10238 to undertake the fair valuation 
at the enterprise level of the SPV as per the SEBI lnvlT Regulations as at 31st March 2025. Enterprise Value 
("EV'') is described as the total value of the equity in a business plus the value of ~s debt and debt related 
liabilities, minus any cash or cash equivalents to meet those liabilities. 

1.2.3. Registered Valuer declares that: 

i. The RV is competent to undertake financial valuation in terms of SEBI lnvlT Regulations: 

ii. The RV is independent and has prepared the Report on a fair and unbiased basis; 

iii. RV has valued the SPV based on the valuation standards as specified/ applicable as per the SEBI lnvlT 
Regulations. 

iv. The RV has an experience of more than 5 years in valuation of infrastructure assets (Refer Appendix 6 
for Brief details about the Valuer) 

1.2.4. This Report covers all the disclosures required as per the SEBI lnvlT Regulations and the valuation of the 
SPV is impartial, true and fair and in compliance with the SEBI lnvlT Regulations. 

Scope of Valuation 

1.2.5. Nature of the Asset to be Valued 

The RV has been mandated by the Investment Manager to arrive at the Enterprise Value ("EV") of the SPV. 

Enterprise Value is described as the total value of the equity in a business plus the value of its debt and debt 
related liabilities, minus any cash and cash equivalents to meet those liabilities. 

Valuation Base 

Valuation Base means the indication of the type of value being used in an engagement. In the present case, 
RV has determined the fair value of the SPY at the enterprise level. Fair Value Bases defined as under: 

Fair Value 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the valuation date. Fair value is the price that would be received 

to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) 

market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether 
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. Fair value or Market value is 

usually synonymous to each other except in certain circumstances where characteristics of an asset translate 
into a special asset va!ue for the party (ies) involved. 

1.2.6. Valuation Date 

Valuation Date is the specific date at which the value of the assets to be valued gets estimate□ or measured. 
Valuation is time specific and can change with the passage of time due to changes in the condition of the 
asset to be valued. Accordingly, valuation of an asset as at a particular date can be different from other 
date(s). 

The Valuation Date considered for the fair enterprise valuation of the SPV is 31'1 March 2025 ("Valuation 
Date"). 
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The attached Report is drawn up by reference to accounting and financial infonnation as on 31" March 2025. 
The RV is not aware of any other events having occurred since 31•1 March 2025 till date of this Report which 
he deems to be significant for his valuation analysis. 

1.2. 7, Premise of Value 

Premise of Value refers to the conditions and circumstances how an asset is deployed. In the present case, 
RV has determined the fair enterprise value of the SPV on a Going Concern Value defined as under: 

Going Concem Value 

Going concern value is the value of a business enterprise that is expected to continue to operate in the future. 
The intangible elements of going concern value result from factors such as having a trained work force, an 
operational plant, necessary licenses, systems, and procedures in place etc. 

«This space is intentionally left blank» 
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1.3. Summary of Valuation 

I have assessed the fair enterprise value of the SPY on a stand-alone basis by using the discounted cash 
flow method under the income approach. Following table summarizes my explanation on the usage or non­
usage of dFfferent valuation methods: 

Valuation Valuation 
Approach Methodology 

Cost Approach Net Asset 
Value 

Income Discounted 
Approach Cash FIO'.v 

Market Price 

Market Comparable 
Approach Companies 

Comparable 
Transactions 

Used 

No 

Yes 

No 

No 

No 

Explanation 

NAV does not capture the future earning potential of the 
business. Hence, NAY method has been considered for 
background reference only. 

In present scenario, the true worth of the business would 
be reflected from its potential to earn income in the future 
and therefore, DCF method under the income approach 
has been considered as an appropriate method for the 
purpose of valuation. 

The equity shares of the SPV are not listed on any 
recognized stock exchange in India. Hence, 1 was unable 
to apply the market price method. 

In the absence of any exactly comparable listed companies 
with characteristics and parameters similar to that of the 
SPV, I am unable to consider this method for the current 
valuation. 

In the absence of adequate details about the Comparable 
Transactions, I was unable to apply the CTM method. 

Under the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) Method, Free Cash Flow to Equity (FCFE) has been used for the 
purpose of valuation of the SPV. In order to arrive at the fair EV of the SPY under the DCF Method, I have 
relied on theauditedfinanciatstalements of PIL as at 31st March, 2025 prepared in accordance with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and the financial projections of the SPY prepared by the Investment Manager 
as at the Valuation Date based on their best judgement. The discount rate considered for the purpose of this 
valuation exercise is based on the Cost of Equity for the SPV. 

The SPV owns a natural gas pipeline that stretches from Kakinada (Andhra Pradesh) to Bharuch (Gujarat). 
The SPY provides transportation Services to customers for transportation of gas from any particular entry 
point to any exit point and the terms of service are agreed in the Gas Transportation Agreement ("GTA"). 

Further, the SPV has entered into Pipeline Usage Agreement ("PUA") with RIL wherein RIL will reserve 
capacity, including of transportation, storage or other capacity, of up to 33 Mmscmd ("Reserved Capacity") 
in the Pipeline for a period of 20 years. 

Based on the methodology and assumptions discussed further, the Fair Enterprise Value of the SPV as on 
the Valuation Date is as under: 

Sr. No, SPV Projection Period COE Fair EV 
(JNRMn) 

PIL ~ !~YEl_f!rs 21.91% 1,24,440* 
Total 1,24,440 

• Note: The financial projections considered in the present enterprise valuation exercise as on March 31, 2025 

considers RIL Upside Share being paid by PIL to RIL in terms of the PUA as a tax deductible business 

expend~ure for PIL based on a written tax opinion dated April 4, 2025 obtained by PIL from an exlemal 

consultant supplemented by e-mail dated 16th April, 2025. Further, PIL has also claimed deduction of RIL 
Upside Share as a tax deductible business expense in its income tax return for AY 24-25 and refund for such 

year has been received on 29th January2025 from the Income Tax Department pursuant intimation u/s 143(1) 

dated 9111 December 2024. It may be noted that in the enterprise valuation for previous years, such RIL Upside 

Share had not been considered as tax deductible for PIL. Had RIL Upside Share not been considered as tax 
deductible item in the present valuation exercise, Enterprise Value of PIL as on the Valuation Date would 
have been INR 1, 19,241 Mn vis*a-vis the current Enterprise Value of INR 1,24,440 Mn. 
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2. Procedures adopted for current valuation exercise 

2.1. I have performed the valuation analysis, to the extent applicable, in accordance with the ICAI Valuation 
Standards 2018 ("IVS") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India read with SEBI lnvlT 
Regulations. 

2.2. In connection with this analysis, I have adopted the following procedures to carry out the valuation analysis: 

2.2.1. Requested and received financial and qualitative information relating to the SPY; 

2.2.2. Obtained and analyzed data available in public domain. as considered relevant by me; 

2.2.3. Discussions with the Investment Manager on: 

• Understanding of the business of the SPV - business and fundamental factors that affect its earning­
generating capacity including strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats analysis and historical and 
expected financial performance; 

2. 2.4. Undertook industry analysis: 

• Research publicly available market data including economic factors and industry trends that may impact the 
valuation; 

• Analysis of key trends and valuation multiples of comparable companies/comparable transactions, if any, 
using proprietary databases subscribed by me; 

2.2.5. Analysis of other publicly available information; 

2.2.6. Selection of valuation approach and valuation methodology/(ies), in accordance with IVS, as considered 
appropriate and relevant by me; 

2.2.7. Conducted physical site visit of the assets of the SPV; 

2.2.8. Determination of fair EV of the SPY. 

«This space is intentionally left blank>> 
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3. Overview of the Inv IT and the SPV 

The Trust 

3.1 . The Trust is registered with Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBl'1 pursuant to the SEBI 
(Infrastructure Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014 ("SEBI lnvlT Regulations"). The Trust was established 
on 22nd November 2018 by Rapid Holdings 2 Pie. Limited ("Rapid Holdings" or "the Sponsor"). II was 
established to invest in infrastructure assets primarily being in the natural gas sector in India. The units of the 
Trust are listed on BSE Limited since 20'~ March 2019. 

3.2. The Initial Portfolio Asset of the Trust comprises of only one asset being a pipeline system used for the 
transport of natural gas ("Pipellne" or the "lnvlT Asset"). The Pipeline is a cross-country, natural gas pipeline 
with a pipeline length of -1,480 km including spur lines (together with compressor stations and operation 
centres), that stretches from Kakinada, Andhra Pradesh, in the east of India, to Bharuch, Gujarat, in the west 
of India, traversing adjacent to major cities in the states of Andhra Pradesh, Telangana, Karnataka, 
Maharashtra and Gujarat, owned by Pipeline Infrastructure Limited ('PIL" or "the Company") the only Special 
Purpose Vehicle ('SPV') of PIL. 

3.3. On 22nd March 2019, the Trust acquired 100% controlling interest in the SPV from Reliance Industries Holding 
Private Limited ("RIHPL") which was not a related party transaction. As on 31'1 March 2025, the Trust (along 
with its 6 Nominees holding 1 share each) holds 100% of the issued equity shares of the SPV. 

3.4. On 22°0 March 2019, the SPV had issued and allotted 12,95,00,000 Unlisted, Secured, Redeemable Non• 
convertible Debentures of face value of INR 1,000 each aggregating to INR 12,950 Crore, al par, to the Trust, 
on private placement basis ("NCDs"), from which the Trust derives interest income. The said NCDs have 
been issued for a tenn of 20 years from the dale of allotment. On 23«1 April 2019, PIL has redeemed 
6,45,20,000 NCDs of INR 1,000 each aggregating to INR 6,452 Crore, al par, out of the aforesaid 
12,95,00,000 NCDs issued on 22nd March 2019. As on 31'1 March 2025, in line with the terms of issuance of 
the aforesaid NCDs, the SPV had made payment of an aggregate amount of INR 1,801.53 Crore, from time 
to time, towards partial principal re-payment of the remaining 6,49,80,000 NCDs of INR 1,000 each, thereby 
proportionately reducing the face value of NCDs. Accordingly, as on 31'1 March 2025, the principal amount of 
the remaining 6,49,80, 000 NCDs has been reduced to INR 4,696.47 Crore having a face value of INR 722. 76. 

3.5. Further, the total cumulative interest bearing Expenditure Component Sweep ("ECS") paid by PIL to the Trust 
is INR 1,006.50 Crore as on 31" March 2025 which is treated as advance and will be settled against the future 
repayments of the principal of NCDs as per the agreemenl(s). Further, interest is recoverable by the company 
from future interest payments on Shareholders' Debt lo the Trust as per agreement. 

3.6. During the year ended 31'1 March 2025, the Trust has eamed INR 548.85 Crore as net interest income from 
PIL as reflected in the financial statements. 

Pipeline Infrastructure Limited (PIL or the SPV or the Company) 

3.7. The principal business of the SPV is to operate a pipeline for transportation of natural gas. The Pipeline was 
put into commercial operation in April 2009, and prior to the effectiveness of the Scheme of Arrangement, 
was owned and operated by East West Pipeline Private Limited ("EWPPL"). 

3.8. With a length of ~1,480 km, PIL has the sole pipeline connecting the East coast of India to the West coast. 
The erstwhile promoter of PIL, EWPPL, had designed, constructed, and commissioned the pipeline after the 
discovery of natural gas reserves in the KG-D6 gas block in the Krishna Godavari {KG) basin. The Pipeline 
is also critical for transporting gas from the KG-D6 basin to customers and ensures the availability of natural 
gas to markets along Eastern and Western India and lo consumers along the route. PIL has connectivity with 
pipelines of other operators such as GAIL India Limited and Gujarat State Petrone! Limited, which also 
provides delivery of gas to other parts of India. Being the only major pipeline al source, Pl L holds significant 
importance for companies sourcing gas at the KG-D6 basin. 

3.9. As at 31st March 2025, 

i. The Pipeline includes a network of 11 compressor stations and two operation centers, which 
incorporate modern telecommunication, emission control and operational systems for safe and 
efficient operations. 

ii. Total 37 Mainline Sectionalizing Valve stations are installed along the pipeline route so as to allow 
isolation of a section of pipeline in event of an emergency and/or repairs. 

iii. The compressor stations houses the facilities like gas turbine compressors, gas engine generators, 
gas after coolers, pigging receiver and launchers, electrical sub.station and other utilities like diesel 
generators, firefighting equipment and storage etc. 
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3.1 o. The Pipeline connects certain supply hubs and demand centres located in the eastern and western India 
which acts as an important link in the development of India's national natural gas grid. It connects a number 
of domestic gas sources including the KG-D6 gas block and GS PC's natural gas fields on the east coast and 
the HLPL LNG terminal at Hazira, Gujarat, with existing markets in the eastern, western and northern regions 
of India, as well as to consumers along the rollte. 

3.11. The Pipeline has interconnects for receipt and delfvery of gas connecting lo source and other cross-country 
pipelines such as DVPU DUPU GSPL-HP & KG Basin networks. Metering and regulating stations are located 
at these inter-connects and at customer locations. Tap-offs are also provided for new connections at regular 
intervals. 

3.12. For managing the operations of the pipeline, main operation centre is located at CS01 Gadimoga, Andhra 
Pradesh and backup operations centre is located at the Head Office (Seawoods Grand Central, Mumba~, 
Thane. Local Control Centre has been provided at every Compressor Stations en-route the pipeline. 
Maintenance bases along with warehouse facilities nave been set up at CS 03 and CS-08 apart from first 
level maintenance facilities provided at each of the compressor station en-route the pipeline. 

3.13. The SPV provides transportation Services lo customers for transportation of gas from any particular entry 
point (i.e. source/ upstream pipeline) to any exit point (i.e. customer point/downstream pipeline). 

3.14. PIL and Reliance Industries Limited ("RIL") have signed a Pipeline Usage Agreement ("PUA"), enabling RIL 
to reserve transportation, storage, or other capacities in the pipeline, for a period of 20 years starting from 
23r<1 March 2019. As per the PUA, during the contract tenure, RIL has agreed to pay quarterly contracted 
capacity payments ("CCPs") determined for four blocks of five years each, towards the annual contracted 
capacity. The obligation of RIL to pay the CCP is adjusted according to payments made for actual capac~ies 
contracted by RIL or third-party customers pursuant to the gas transportation agreements ("GTAs"). RIL 
ensures the payments regardless of whether they utilize the natural gas capacity of the pipeline. CCPs have 
been formulated in coherence with the operational expenditure and debt servicing requirements of PIL. 

3.15. The Pipeline usage capacity is booked by the customers for which a Framework Gas Transportation 
Agreement (FGTA) is entered into between customers and PIL. FGTA provides for framework of general 
terms and conditions for transportation services rendered by PIL. After execution of FGTA, Gas 
Transportation Agreement (GTA) is entered into between customers and PIL for each of the specific 
transaction of transportation. GTA incorporates the terms of the FGTA by reference. 

3.16. The transportation of gas through Irie pipeline is regulated by the Petroleum and Natural Gas Regulatory 
Board (PNGRB), which has established rules for determining the tariffs for the transportation of natural gas. 
PNGRB reviews the tariffs at five-year intervals and the revised tariff is applied prospectively. 
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3.17. Following is Pll Pipeline Route Map: 

3.18. 
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Source: Management 

Key terms of GTA are as follows 
----------------------- --- - ---

Sr. No. ?-atticulars Key Terms M GTA 
I Tariff 

II 
Ill 

IV 

v· 
VI 

VII 

Terms 
•• Ship or Pay 

Payment Terms 

Payment Se.curity 

PiL Liabir,iy cap· 

Planned Maintenance 

Tariff Rate in IN-R/~m- m- b-tu_a_s- approved by PNGRB 
---· ---·-····· -- -----·.. ""•-··-···--· ········· ·-· ......• -- . ··-· . 

As mutually agreed between parties 

- F ortn ig ht ly Invoicing 
- Payments within 4 days of invoice 
• Disputed amount will be paid in full, pending dispute settlement 

• 56% otA11r1ua1·rra11sportai1onci,:;irges 

·:withoui liability for ship or.payanii'liquidated damages 
-Total of 10 days annually allowed for transporter. -------------------

Tariff Determination as per Tariff Regulations 

3.19. PNGRB has been authorized to regulate the tariff for transportation of gas based on the tariff submitted by 
the transporters and the regulations prescribed for such determination. 

3.20. The tariff for gas transportation is divided into various zones of 300 km along the route of the natural gas 
pipeline from the point of entry till the point of exit as per the contract. 
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3.21. The key factors considered while determination on tariff as follows: 

SRN factor$ 
Tim,$ .... _________________ _ 

2 

3 
4 

----
Economic Life 30 years (as amended Nov'20) 

•• tariff Mettiac1 - •• Dci=,RbcE @123/~ posttax •• 

Capex&Opex Lower of Normative/Actual 
Working Capital 30 days apex and 18 days- receivables 

5 System Use ·Gas -(Gas price+ Tariff} x aiia"ntity 
6 •••• Volume for.Tariff Fixation • Higher c:if' Normaiive or Actual. 

Normative Volumes are determined as under-
• ·~ ,n - "M ····- ·-·~----·-·--·-· ··- -·-- ... _· •• 1 ~5 .:;e·ars·:· 60%, i6%;86o/o:-90% ·, f o'Oo/~" Of i5y0/4 Of ·capaCi~- " 

-- -~- -· -- ~. Year 6 onv~:aftrctS':M~7s01;or-capacity•oTr firm Contracted volumes 
··-----••M-- - ·--~ ··whiCh"eVe-iTs hiQ.her ··· ·····- - -- · · ~- -- ······ 

7 Capacity 
8 fa riff Overview 

Source: Tariff Order 2019 

.... ····---- -· -·· - ·-
As determined by PNGRB under relevant guidelines 
ln~ial Tariff for first year 
First regular iariff for next five years •• 

Subsequently fixed and reviewe<l"every five years 
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3.22. Site Visit Details: 

We have conducted physical site visit of the Compressor Station No. 8 located near Kalyan (CS-08) on Dec 

17, 2024 and Compressor Station No. 1 located near Kakinada on April 23, 2025. Following are the pictures 
of the site visit conducted: 
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3.23. Overview of the Transaction Documents 

3.23.1. Framework Agreement:-

PIL. RIHPL, the Investment Manager and the Sponsor entered into a Framework Agreement, dated August 
28. 2018 (the "Framework Agreement'), which records the understanding among the parties for, among 
others; 

(1) transfer of the entire issued equity share capital of PIL to the Trust: 

(2) subscription by the Trust to the PIL NCDs; 

(3) transfer of the Pipeline Business from EWPPL to PIL pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement for a net 
consideration of INR 6,500 million, payable through cash consideration of INR 6,000 million and 
issuance and allotment of 50,000,000 Redeemable Preference Shares to EWPPL by PIL. 

(4) repayment of the unsecured liability of 164,000 million ("Outstanding Payables"), owed by EWPPL in 
relation to the Pipeline Business, and transferred lo PIL pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement. 
Accordingly, through the Scheme of Arrangement, the Pipeline Business has been demerged from 
EWPPL to PIL for an asset value of INR 170,500 million along with the Outstanding Payables, i.e. for 
net consideration of INR 6,500 million. 

3.23.2. Share Purchase Agreement :-

PIL, RIHPL, the Trust (acting through its Trustee) and the Investment Manager have entered into a share 
purchase agreement, dated February 11, 2019 (the "Share Purchase Agreement") for the purchase of 100% 
of the equity share capital of PIL by the Trust from RIHPL, for a purchase consideration of INR 500 million. 

3.23.3. Share Subscription Agreement:-

PIL, Reliance Industrial Investments and Holdings Limited ("RIIHL") and the Trust have entered into a share 
subscription agreement dated February 11, 2019 (the "Share Subscription Agreement"). RIIHL has (either by 
itself or through one or more members of the RIL group) agreed to subscribe to 4,000 million compulsorily 
convertible preference shares of~ 10 each of PIL aggregating to INR 40,000 million (the "CCPS") on the date 
when the PIL NCDs are allotted to the Trust ("Transfer Date"). Further, RIIHL has transferred the CCPS to 
Reliance Strategic Business Ventures Limited ("RSBVL") with effect from September 13, 2019. 

3.23.4. Shareholders' & Options Agreement:-

PIL, EWPPL, RIL, the Trust and the Investment Manager have entered into the PIL SHA to set out their rights 
and obligations in relation to PIL. The rights and obligations under the PIL SHA include those of the Trust as 
the equity shareholder of PIL and the holder of the PIL NCDs, of the holders of the Preference Shares and of 
Reliance and the Trust in relation to the purchase and transfer of the equity shares of PIL. 

The parties to the Pl L SHA have agreed that the cash flows of Pl L shall be distributed in the manner stipulated, 
such that distributions would be made to the holders of the PIL NCDs, followed by the equity shareholders 
from the cash available to PIL at the discretion of the Trust. 

3.23.5. Pipeline Usage Agreement:-

PIL and RIL have entered into a pipeline usage agreement, the form of which has been agreed between the 
parties, on the Completion Date {the "Pipeline Usage Agr~ment"), which set out the terms for RIL to reserve 
transportation, storage or other capacity in the Pipeline for a period of 20 years. Under the Pipeline Usage 
Agreement, RIL will agree to reserve a capacity of up to a maximum of 33 mmscmd in the Pipeline for a period 
of 20 years, pursuant to which RIL shall pay PIL Contracted Capacity Payments determined for four blocks 
of five years each in the manner specified and calculated with reference to the Benchmark Rate i.e. Annual 
Interest rate, and subject to certain adjustments. 

3.23.6. O&M Agreement :-

PIL, the Contractor and the Project Manager have entered into an operations and maintenance agreement, 
dated February 11, 2019 ("O&M Agreement"}, in order to set out the terms for delegation of obligations by the 
Project Manager to the Contractor, towards the operation and maintenance of the Pipeline. The O&M 
Agreement includes budget plans for the cost of operating and maintaining the Pipeline facilities, for a period 
of 20 years, as well a process of drawing up annual budgets and provides for the manner of dealing with 
amounts in excess of or less than actual amounts spent towards operation and maintenance of the Pipeline. 
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3.23. 7. O&M Sub contract Agreement :-

PIL, the Contractor and the Sub-Contractor have entered into an operations and maintenance subcontract, 
dated February 11, 2019 ("O&M Sub-Contract Agreement"), in order to set out the terms for delegation of 
certain obligations by the Contractor to the Sub-Contractor for a certain portion of the Pipeline, i.e., from 
compressor station 8 lo compressor station 10. 

3.23.8. Infrastructure Sharing Agreement:-

PIL, the Contractor and RGPL have entered into an infrastructure sharing agreement dated February 11, 
2019 ("Infrastructure Agreement") in order to set out the terms for permitting RGPL non-exclusive access to 
certain facilities of RGPL which are laid on the Pipeline's right of usage area and are co-located with the 
Pipeline facilities. 

3.23.9. Shared Services Agreement:-

PIL, RIL and the Contractor have entered into an shared services agreement, dated February 11, 2019 
{"Shared Services Agreement"), in order to set out the terms for RIL to provide PIL and the Contractor with 
certain identified services in connection with the Pipeline Business, for a period of three years, in order to 
enable business continuity, seamless operations and an effective cost structure of the Pipeline Business, 
pursuant to the demerger of the Pipeline Business from EWPPL to PIL. 

3.23.10. Performance of PIL: 

Historical Volumes: 

(!nMMSCMD) 
Particulars f'Y:lO. FY 21 FY 22 Fi' 23 FY 24 f'Y ~ 

~------------~-- .-.. ~ ---·--.. -------~ ·~------- ''' - -.-··-~--~---·-
Volumes Transported 18.78 11.99 20.56 23.68 33.11 35.45 

Financial Performance: 

INRMn 
Partlcular11 Fi' 20 FY 21 Fl' 22 FY23 FY24 FY:;:5 -~----· 
Re11enue. from OP.~rations 24,071 17,917 25,920 27,440 3~,663 38,929 
Qlher Income (Net) 330 296 385 584 1,!~0 1,411 
Fair Value iiainl(loss) on NCD (18,}!7) (76~ - - 375 5,173 __ _(5,338) (2,988), _ 
Tobi Income ___ 6.,2:14 17,450 26,680 33,1n 33,0.(;$ 37_~~~-
~m!)!oyee Eleiwfit Expenses 201 281 307 346 360 347 
Transm_ission Charges B,676 5,?63 1,~23 248 3 

__Q!tler Expenses iss5 2,421 3,875 6,326 14,346 25,248 
• Reported_~~TDA ·--·• (5.2(.18} 9,4e4 20,57:S 26.258 18,346 11,757 

EBITDA ¾ (84%) 54% n% 79% 56% 31% 
Depreciation & Amortisation 8,314 8,446 8,714 9,349 9,053 9,09~ 

R!!~ed EBIT --·-------- 113,52i) 1,03!! 11,861 16,909 9,293 ~ ... 6,L 
EBIT¾ (217%) 6% 44% 51% 28% 7% 

Finance Costs ·---· __ 12,092 12,946 12,166 11,899 ·- --11 ,664 10,663 
Re~rted EST ________ (25,614\ j11 l1ll7l (305) 5,010 (2,.'.l!l1) (7,998) 
EE!T¾ (412%} (iJ8%i (1%) 15% (7%f ___ 

(21%1 
Source: Management 
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4. Overview of the Industry 

4.1 Introduction 

4.1 .1 The history of gas in India's energy system has a mixed track record, with periods of rapid expansion followed 
by episodes of decline. After steep demand declines in the wake of the 2022 global energy crisis, total gas 
consumption in India in 2023 was only slightly higher than in 2011. However the gas use in India has reached 
an inflection point and is on course to increase substantially between 2023 and 2030. This growth would be 
driven by three major trends: the rapid expansion of India's gas infrastructure, a rebound in domestic natural 
gas production and an expected easing of global gas market conditions. 

4.1,2 Supportive government policies have & shall further pave the way for increased natural gas consumption 
through 2030 as the government targets to increase the share of natural gas in the country's energy mix to 
15% by 2030 (up from the 2022 level of 6.4%).This target provides a clear growth signal for India's natural 
gas sector and has set the direction for a range of supportive government policies aimed at increasing gas 
use in India's energy economy. This ambitious target is supported by government policies promoting natural 
gas adoption in various sectors, including power, industrial, and city gas distribution (CGD). Despite 
challenges such as high LNG prices and limited domestic production, efforts are underway to enhance natural 
gas infrastructure and supply reliability. The government's commitment to creating a gas-based economy is 
evident from the numerous initiatives and investments focused on improving natural gas availability and 
connectivity. 

4.1.3 Natural gas consumption in India is projected to grow significantly, driven by rapid expansion of CGD 
networks, industrial demand, and increased utilization of gas-fired power plants. Key factors include 
infrastructure improvements, cost advantages over liquid fuels, and supportive policy measures. The growth 
trajectory of natural gas in India reflects the government's long-term vision of reducing dependence on coal 
and oil, while also meeting increasing energy demand in a sustainable manner. 

4.1.4 As per the latest available data, total natural gas consumption (including internal use) for the month of 
February, 2025 was approximately 5,789 million metric standard cubic meter ("MMSCM") - a 0.6% increase 
over February 2024. Cumulative consumption for the fiscal year up to February 2025 reached 66,975 MMSCM 
- a 9.1 % increase as compared to the corresponding period in the previous year. 

4.2 Overview of the Indian Natural Gas Sector 

4.2.1 Historical Evolution and Key Milestones 
During the period 2000 to 2022, India's energy demand grew rapidly due lo economic development, 
urbanization, and industrialization, leading to a 2.4-fold increase in primary energy consumption. Despite this 
growth, coal and oil remained the dominant sources, accounting for around 70% of the energy mix. Significant 
natural gas discoveries, especially in the Krishna-Godavari (KG) Basin, marked the beginning of a gas-based 
economy. However, environmental challenges emerged as greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions increased, 
positioning India as the world's third-largest emitter. 

Between 201 O and 2020, India made substantial commitments to cleaner energy solutions. As part of its 
climate goals, India pledged to achieve net-zero emissions by 2070 and reduce carbon intensity by 45% by 
2030 compared to 2005 levels. To increase natural gas usage, the government targeted raising its share in 
the primary energy mix to 15% by 2030 from 6.4% in 2022. LNG regasification capacity was planned to 
expand from 17.3 Million Metric Tonnes Per Annum ("MMTPA") in 2012-13 to 83 MMTPA by 2030. 
Additionally, City Gas Distribution (CGD) networks were developed rapidly, promoting the use of CNG and 
PNG in various sectors. Despite these initiatives, challenges persisted, including high LNG prices and limited 
pipeline connectivity. 

From 2020 to 2025, India focused on accelerating the transition lo a gas-based economy through policy 
support and infrastructure development. By 2024, the country had seven operational LNG terminals with a 
combined capacity of 65 Billion cubic metres ("bcm") per year, with more terminals planned to increase 
capacrty to 83 bcm by 2030. The pipeline network expanded to around 28,000 km with a design capacity of 
721 Metric Standard Cubic Meter Per Day ("MMSCMD"J. Key policy reforms, such as the unified pipeline tariff 
system in 2023, aimed to reduce gas transportation costs. However, LNG prices above USD 5.5 per Metric 
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Million British Thermal Unit ("mmbtu") continued to challenge the competitiveness of gas-based power 
generation compared to coal and renewables. 

Looking ahead, India is focused on achieving a 15% share of natural gas in its primary energy mix by 2030. 
LNG imports are projected to more than double, reaching 64 bcm per year by 2030, driven by increased 
demand from city gas distribution and industrial sectors. To support this, new LNG terminals and pipeline 
infrastructure are being established to enhance supply security and connectivity. Strategic efforts include 
diversifying LNG sources, forming long-term supply agreements, and integrating gas with renewable energy 
to stabilize the grid. Addressing challenges related to high LNG prices and regional disparities in gas 
availability remains crucial lo realizing the long-term vision of a gas-based economy. 

4.2.2 Regulatory Framework and Institutional Developments 

The PNGRB serves as the principal regulatory authority for the natural gas market. Its responsibilities include 
tariff setting, project approvals, and ensuring adherence to industry standards. Complementing the PNGRB, 
the PPAC publishes regular analytical reports and monthly consumption data. Together, these agencies 
ensure that market operations are transparent and supported by publicly available data. 

4.3 Demand-Side Analysis 

4.3.1 India's natural gas consumption has more than doubled since 2000, reaching over 65 bcm by 2023, driven 
primarily by rapid urbanization, industrial growth, and a shift towards cleaner energy. 

4.3.2 As natural gas consumption continues to rise, the need for extensive and reliable pipeline infrastructure 
becomes critical. The rapid growth in CGD networks and industrial gas usage necessitates enhanced pipeline 
connectivity to ensure efficient and uninterrupted supply. 

4.3.3 Looking ahead, natural gas consumption is projected to grow by nearly 60% between 2023 and 2030, 
reaching approximately 103 bcm per year. This surge will be driven primarily by the CGD sector and heavy 
industries such as iron and steel. The power generation sector is also expected to witness healthy growth, 
with an average annual increase of 8%, supported by the revival of gas-fired power plants and the expansion 
of captive power generation. To accommodate this rising demand, significant investments in pipeline 
expansion and network optimization will be essential. 

4.3.4 Sectoral Breakdown of Natural Gas Consumption in India 

Fertilizer Production; The fertilizer sector remains the largest gas-consuming sector in India, accounting 
for nearly one-third (21 bcm) of the total natural gas demand in 2023. Natural gas is primarily used as a 
feedstock for ammonia-based urea production, which is crucial for the country's agriculture and food 
security. However, the sector heavily relies on imported LNG, covering 85% of its gas needs as of 2023, 
due to declining domestic gas allocations. 

• Power Generation: India's gas-fired power generation capacity stood at 24 GW by the end of 2023, 
generating 29 TWh of electricity with an average load factor of 14%. Despite challenges related to high 
LNG prices and limited gas availability, the sector consumed 8.8 bcm of natural gas in 2023. Gas use in 
power generation is projected to grow by nearly 70% by 2030 which shall be primarily on account of 
expected declining LNG price towards the end of the decade and the introduction of a high-price day­
ahead electricity market. 

• Oil Refining: India is one of the world's largest oil refining hubs, with a capacity of 5.8 million barrels per 
day ("MMbbl/d") as of 2023, Natural gas consumption in oil refining reached 5.1 bcm in 2023 (a 25% 
increase over previous year), supported by rising domestic gas production and improved gas connectivity. 
Gas use in refining is projected to grow at nearly 9% annually, reaching over 9 bcm per year by 2030, 
driven by capacity expansions and new refinery projects. 

• Petrochemicals: Natural gas consumption in the petrochemical sector reached 2.6 bcm in 2023, 
recovering from a low of 2.0 bcm in 2022 amid high LNG prices. However, gas consumption remained 
about 25% below the 2017-2021 average as operators increasingly relied on ethane and NGL-based 
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feedstocks. By 2030, gas demand in the petrochemical sector is expected to grow to around 3.5 bcm per 
year representing a 5% annual increase from 2023. 

• City Gas Distribution (CGD): India's city gas sector includes four traditional end-use segments -
residential, commercial, small industries, and CNG for vehicles - and a nascent new one, LNG for heavy­
duty transport. As of 2023, CNG was the dominant segment, accounting for nearly 60% of CGD 
consumption. Residential and commercial users together accounted for only about 10% of CGD demand, 
while small industries connected to the low-pressure distribution grid contributed a little over 30% to CGD 
gas use. Between 2023 and 2030, city gas demand is expected to increase by close to 70% (9 bcm/yr), 
achieving a CAGR of almost 8%. Most of the growth will come from the CNG sector (5.8 bcm/yr) and small 
industries (2.8 bcm/yr), with residential and commercial users adding approximately 0.5 bcm/yr through 
2030. 

4.3.5 Snapshot of Natural Gas Consumption in India for FY 2024-25 (Apr-Jan) is as under: 

Month Apr May Jun Jul Aug 
-,~ .. ·-

2,907 3,059 2,945 3,030 2,999 

Sept Oct 
·-· 

2,936 3,073 

Nov 

2,936 

- - --"-(l_n MMSCM) 

Jan Total Dec 

3,026 Net Production 
LNG import 

-----···-· -------
3,025 29,935 

3,on 31,in 2,499 3,516 3,460 3,689 3,056 2,787 3,626 2.712 2,829 
·---·--··-· ····-·----w~--•••~• •----• ••- -•• • 

Total 5,407 6,575 6,406 6,719 6,055 5,722 6,699 5,648 5,854 6,102 61,187 source: mclfata· ... ---·- .... ····-··---·. ··· ·- ----- -- - ---

Graphical representation of natural gas consumption during FY 24-25 is as under: 
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4A Supply-Side Analysis 

4.4.1 Domestic Production and Key Players 

Dec Jan 

India's upstream natural gas sector is predominantly controlled by state-owned entities like ONGC (Oil and 
Natural Gas Corporation) and Oil India, alongside private companies led by Reliance Industries in partnership 
with Bharat Petroleum. In 2023, total net gas production stood at approximately 35 bcm, meeting around 50% 
of the country's total gas demand. 

Majority of the natural gas production comes from the Mumbai offshore, Assam, Tripura, and Cambay basins, 
primarily from nomination blocks that were granted to national oil companies before the implementation of the 
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New Exploration Licensing Policy (NELP). Despite the maturity of these fields, efficient management has 
helped maintain production levels, with nomination blocks accounting for over 60% of India's gas production 
as of 2024. 

4.4.2 Recent Growth and Key Proj&ets 

After nearly a decade of declining domestic production, the sector witnessed a revival beginning in 2021, 
driven by new deep water developments, particularly in the Krishna-Godavari (KG) basin. The KG-D6 block, 
operated by Reliance-BP, contributed significantly to the production increase, supported by key fields such 
as R Cluster. Satellites Cluster, and MJ. These fields are expected to produce a combined 85 bcm over their 
lifetime and accounted for nearly 25% of India's gas production in 2024. Additionally, coal bed methane (CBM) 
projects, particularly from companies like Reliance, Essar, ONGC, and GEECL, have marginally boosted 
production, although CBM output remained under 1 bcm in 2024. 

4.4.3 Current Production Trend 

Gross natural gas production in February 2025 stood at 2,749 Million Standard Cubic Metre ("MMSCM") - a 
6.7% decrease as compared to February 2024. Further, the cumulative production for the current financial 
year up to February 2025 reached lo 33,125 MMSCM, showing a slight decrease of 0.5% compared with the 
corresponding period of the previous year. 

4.4.4 Government Initiatives and Policy Support 

The Indian government has introduced various incentives to boost domestic gas production, including royalty 
holidays, concessional royalty rates, and fiscal incentives for early monetization offields. The 2016 gas pricing 
reforms, allowing higher prices for undeveloped deepwater and high-pressure high-temperature fields, 
facilitated key investments like the second phase of Reliance-BP's KG-D6 project and ONG C's KG-D5 Cluster 
2 development. Additionally, the introduction of a 20% increase in gas prices for new wells and workovers in 
legacy fields supplying APM-priced gas to priority sectors in 2024 enccuraged investments to offset base 
decline rates. 

4.4.5 Future Production Outlook 

Despite recent growth, the long-term outlook for domestic gas production remains moderate, with projected 
increases driven by onshore CBM and discovered small fields (DSF) developments. Offshore production is 
expected to see limited growth, primarily from additional supplies from ONGC's deepwater KG-D5 project 
between 2025 and 2030. However, plateauing output from the KG-D6 fields and declining production from 
legacy Mumbai offshore fields are likely to constrain overall growth. Upside potential may emerge from 
enhancing production in the relatively underexplored north eastern bas ins, including Assam and Tripura, 
which collectively account for 47% of onshore production and 13% of total gas supply. 

4.5 Natural Gas Transmission Infrastructure 

4.5. 1 Expansion of Gas Pipeline Network 

As of mid-2024, India's operational natural gas pipeline network spans approximately 23,500 km. Under the 
"One Nation, One Gas Grid" initiative, the Petroleum and Natural Gas Regulatory Board (PNGRB) has 
approved around 33,600 km of pipeline projects to create a unified national gas grid. 

Upon completion of all ongoing and planned projects, the total length of the high-pressure gas grid is expected 
to reach 35,200 km by 2030 as shown below: 
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4.5.2 Accelerated Growth (2020-2024) 

India's gas transmission network saw significant growth between 2020 and 2024, expanding by over 7,000 
km (a 40% increase). This was driven by PNGRB approvals, new LNG terminals at Ennore, Mundra, and 
Dhamra, and the expansion of the Dahej terminal. Major projects included the 3,500 km Jagdishpur-Haldia­
Bokaro-Dhamra pipeline, enhancing connectivity to underserved north eastern states. 

4.5.3 Key Upcoming Projects 

Significant pipeline projects in development include the Mumbai-Nagpur~Jharsuguda pipeline (around 1,750 
km} and the North East Natural Gas Grid (around 1,650 km), which are expected to further enhance national 
connectivity and support the gas grid strategy. 

4.5.4 Market Reforms and Infrastructure Efficiency 

Efforts to liberalize the gas sector include GAIL's capacity booking portal for third-party access and a simplified 
pipeline tariff structure. However, progress toward unbundling transport and marketing operations has been 
slow, indicating the need for a more competitive and efficient market structure. 

4.5.5 Snapshot of Natural Gas Pipeline as on 30th Sep, 2024 

'Nature of pipeline GAIL GSPL Pll !OCL AGCL RGPL Others Total 
•• __ __,._________ -- - ------· -· .. ·-·--------... ·--

Length 10,996 2,722 1,483 143 107 304 139 16,894 
~--------•-• •••-••• •~• •-• -•- -" •••• •••••~••-•- -•• - HM••- ----••-•----•--•••• Operational 
Capacity 233 43 85 20 2 4 12 

Partially Length ___ ,, ~~~~-----------· __ 1,~~~---- ______ ----~·6-~~- 7,679 
commissioned Capacity 

Total operational lellgth 

Under Length 
construction Capacity 

15,929 

2,605 

26 

2,n2 1,4s3 

100 

3 

1,223 

65 

1 

101 

Total length 18,534 2.,822 1.4t13 1,288 107 
sOU,ce:7,ttps:llppac.gOV]iiliiatursJ-q8s/pipeline-structure - --- -· ~---·­
Length in KMs 
Capacity in MMSCMD 

Source: International Energy Agency - India Gas Market Reporl Outlook to 2030. 
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5. Valuation Methodology and Approach 

5.1. The present valuation exercise is being undertaken in order to derive the fair enterprise value of the SPV. 

5.2. The valuation exercise involves selecting a method suitable for the purpose of valuation, by exercise of 
judgment by the valuers, based on the facts and circumstances as applicable to the business of the company 
to be valued. 

5.3. There are three generally accepted approaches lo valuation: 

(a) "Cost' approach 

(b) "Market'' approach 

(c) "Income" approach 

s.4. cost Approach 

5.5. 

The cost approach values the underlying assets of the business to determine the business value. This 
valuation method carries more weight with respect to holding companies than operating companies. Also, 
cost value approaches are more relevant to the extent that a significant portion of the assets are of a nature 
that could be liquidated readily if so desired. 

Net Asset Value /"NAV"\ Method 

The NAV Method under Cost Approach considers the assets and liabilities, including intangible assets and 
contingent liabilities. The Net Assets, after reducing the dues to the preference shareholders, if any, represent 
the value of a company. 

The NAV Method is appropriate in a case where the main strength of the business is its asset backing rather 
than its capacity or potential to earn profits. This valuation approach is also used in cases where the firm is 
to be liquidated, i.e. ii does not meet the "going concern" criteria. 

As an indicator of the total value of the entity, the NAV method has the disadvantage of only considering the 
status of the business at one point in time. 

Additionally, NA V does not properly take into account the earning capacity of the business or any intangible 
assets that have no historical cost. In many aspects, NAV represents the minimum benchmark value of an 
operating business. 

Market Approach 

Under the Market approach, the valuation is based on the market value of the company in case of listed 
companies, and comparable companies' trading or transaction multiples for unlisted companies. The Market 
approach generally reflects the investors' perception about the true worth of the company. 

Comparable Companies Multiples ("CCM") Method 

The value is determined on the basis of multiples derived from valuations of comparable companies, as 
manifest in the stock market valuations of listed companies. This valuation is based on the principle that 
market valuations, taking place between informed buyers and informed sellers, incorporate all factors relevant 
to valuation. Relevant multiples need to be chosen carefully and adjusted for differences between the 
circumstances. 

Comparable Transactjons MvlliPles i"CTM") Method 

Under the CTM Method, the value is determined on the basis of multiples derived from valuations of similar 
transactions in the industry. Relevant multiples need to be chosen carefully and adjusted for differences 
between the circumstances. Few of such multiples are EV/Earnings before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation & 
Amortization ("EBITDA") multiple and EV/Revenue multiple. 

Market Price Method 

Under this method, the market price of an equity share of the company as quoted on a recognized stock 
exchange is normally considered as the fair value of the equity shares of that company where such quotations 
are arising from the sl,ares being regularly and freely traded. The market value generally reflects the investors' 
perception about the true worth of the company. 
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Income Approach 

The income approach is widely used for valuation under "Going Concern" basis. It focuses on the income 
generated by the company in the past as well as its future earning capability. The Discounted Cash Flow 
Method under the income approach seeks lo arrive at a valuation based on the strength of future cash flows. 

Discounted Cash flow ("DCF"l Method 

Under DCF Method value of a company can be assessed using the Free Cash Flow to Firm Method (''FCFF") 
or Free Cash Flow to Equity Method ("FCFE"). Under the FCFF method, the business is valued by discounting 
its free cash flows for the explicit forecast period and the perpetuity value thereafter. The free cash flows 
represent the cash available for distribution to both, the owners and creditors of the business. The free cash 
flows in the explicit period and those in perpetuity are discounted by the Weighted Average Cost of Capital 
("WACC"). The WACC, based on an optimal vis-a-vis actual cap~al structure, is an appropriate rate of 
discount to calculate the present value of future cash flows as it considers equity-debt risk by incorporating 
debt-equity ratio of the firm. 

The perpetuity (terminal) value is calculated based on the business' potential for further growth beyond the 
explicit forecast period. The "constant growth model'' is applied, which implies an expected constant level of 
growth for perpetuity in the cash flows over the last year of the forecast period. 

In case of free cash flows to equity ("FCFE"}, the cash available for distribution to owners of the business is 
discounted at the Cost of Equity and the value so arrived is the Equity Value before surplus/non-operating 
assets. 

The discounting factor (rate of discounting the future cash flows} reflects not only the time value of money, 
but also the risk associated with the business' future operations. The EV (aggregate of the present value of 
explicit period and terminal period cash flows) so derived, is further reduced by the value of debt. if any, (net 
of cash and cash equivalents) to arrive at value to the owners of the business. 
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6. 

6.1. 

6.2. 

Conclusion on Valuation Approach 

II is pertinent to note that the valuation of any company or its assets is inherently imprecise and is subject to 
certain uncertainties and contingencies, all of which are difficult to predict and are beyond my control. In 
performing my analysis, I have considered numerous assumptions with respect to industry performance and 
general business and economic conditions, many of which are beyond the control of the SPV. In addition, this 
valuation will fluctuate with changes in prevailing market conditions. and prospects, financial and otherwise, 
of the SPV, and other factors which generally influence the valuation of companies and their assets. 

The goal in selection of valuation approaches and methods for any financial instrument is to find out the most 
appropriate method under particular circumstances on the basis of available information. No one method is 
suitable in every possible situation. Before selecting the appropriate valuation approach and method, I have 
considered various factors, inter-alia, the basis and premise of current valuation exercise, purpose of valuation 
exercise, respective strengths and weaknesses of the possible valuation approach and methods, availabi6ty 
of adequate inputs or information and its reliability and valuation approach and methods considered by the 
market participants. 

cost Approach 

The existing book value of EV of the SPV comprising of the value of its Net fixed assets, Net intangible assets 
and working capital based on the audited financial statements as at 31" March 2025 as under: 

Particulars - - - - -
Net Fixed Assets 

ROU Assets 

_C!!Jilal VI/If". ... . . . . . . . ....... _. . _ 
.. Intangible Assets. ___ _ _ .. 

other Non-current Assets 
Total Non-Current Assets (A) 
Total Current Assets 

INRMn 

31-Mar-25 

1,00,703 -- - -- - •• -
140 

419 

13,343· 

384 

1,14,989 

7,590 

Total Current Liabilities 15,025 

Net Current Assets (Bl (7,435) 
Lease Liabilities ___ _ 170 

F.nterprlso Value 1,07,384 
'Includes Gooclwi/1 of JNR 2,820 Mn, Other Intangible Assets of INR 10,512 Mn ~ nd 
Intangibles Under Development of INR 12 Mn. 

In the present case, the SPV operates and maintains the gas pipeline in accordance with the terms and 
conditions under the relevant regulations. The amount of tariff that they may collect are notified by the relevant 
government agency, in this case the PNGRB, which are usually revised from time to time as specified in the 
relevant tariff order notifications. In such scenario, the true worth of the business is reflected in its future 
earning capacity rather than the cost of the project. Accordingly, I have not considered the cost approach for 
the current valuation exercise. 

Market Approach 

The present valuation exercise is to undertake fair EV of the SPV engaged in the Natural Gas Infrastructure 
projects for a predetermined tenure. Further, the tariff revenue and expenses are very specific to the SPV 
depending on the nature of their geographical location, stage of project, terms of profitability. In the absence 
of any exactly comparable listed companies with characteristics and parameters similar to that of the SPV, I 
have not considered CCM method in the present case. In the absence of adequate details about the 
Comparable Transactions, I was unable to apply the CTM method. Currently, the equity shares of the SPV 
are not listed on any recognized stock exchange of India. Hence, I was unable to apply market price method. 
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Income Approach 

In the present case, we have used the Discounted Cash Flow ("DCF") method, to determine the enterprise 
value of the company. Under the FCFE method, cash flows available to the equity holders of the company 
after all expenses including debt repayment is calculated. The value then discounted to its present value using 
the Cost of Equity (''COE") to determine the equity value of the company. Further, Enterprise Value ("EV) is 
then computed as the total value of the equity in a business plus the value of its debt and debt related liabillties, 
minus any cash or cash equivalents to meet those liabilities. The surplus assets/ non-operating assets are 
also adjusted. 
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7. Valuation of the SPV 

7.1. 

I have estimated the EV of the SPV using the DCF Method. While carrying out this engagement, I have relied 
extensively on the information made available to me by the Investment Manager. I have considered projected 
financial statement of the SPV as provided by the Investment Manager. 

Qualification and Kev Assumptions 
Cash Flows: 

• As per Pipeline Usage Agreement (PUA), RIL has reserved capacijy (including of transportation, storage 
or other capacity) of up to 33 mmscmd ("Reserved Capacity") in the Pipeline for a period of 20 years 
commencing from the Completion Date ("PUA Term") in accordance with the said agreement. In 
consideration for this, RIL shall pay, on a quarterly basis, amount of Contracted Capacity Payments 
(CCPs) of ~INR 2,090 Crs annually as specified in the PUA and which may vary at the beginning of 
every block of 5 year. 

7.2. Projection PeriodfTerminal Value: 

• As per the PIL SHA, RIL has the right, but not the obligation, to purchase the entire equity slake of the 
Trust in the SPV after a specific term or occurrence of certain events for a consideration of JNR 500 Mn. 
("Call Option'} Correspondingly, the Trust has the right, but not the obligation to sell its entire equity 
stake in the SPV after a specific term or occurrence of certain events for a consideration of INR 500 Mn 
("Put Option") or value determined by valuer, whichever is lower. 

• The Investment Manager expects that the option shall trigger at the expiry of 20 years from the date on 
which the completion occurs in accordance with the SPA (Option Exercise Event}. Further, on the Option 
Exercise Event, the Investment Manager expects that Call Option shall be exercised by RIL and hence, 
I have limited the projection period to the Option Exercise Event i.e. 20 Years from the Completion Date 
as per the SHA. 

• As per the PUA, at the option trigger date, RI L will be able to acquire the equity shares of SPV from the 
Trust by paying a consideration of INR 500 Mn or value determined by valuer, whichever is lower. 

• Hence, I have considered the present value of INR 500 Mn as the terminal period value for the Trust. 

7.3. Volumes: 

• The gas transportation volume is based on !he projections provided by the Management by estimating 
the production of natural gas that could be transported through the Pipeline. 

• I have.also referred on the technical report titled "KG Basin Gas Supply Assessment" ("'Technical 
Report') dated November 28, 2023 issued by Wood Mackenzie. The Technical Report provides w~h the 
estimations of gas volumes expected to be extracted from the discovered and undiscovered basins. 

• The primary source of production of natural gas is from the KG basin discovered resources. Additionally, 
estimates of production volumes from yet to be found resources, LNG volumes expected to be flown in 
the PJL pipeline from west coast terminals and also some additional technical reserves in KG Basin are 
also considered. It is assumed that there would be new gas exp/orations in KG 06, etc. fields in the east 
coast of India. 

• The Volumes (in MMBTU) expected by the Management to be transmitted through the Pipeline for the 
forecasted period are as follows : 
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The above Volumes have been approved by the Management of SPV and also approved by the 
Investment Manager by way of a Management Representation Letter. 

7.4. Gas Transportation Tariff: The Pipeline operations and business adhere to an established regulatory and 
statutory framework set out by the PNGRB Act 2006, the PMP Act 1962 and the regulations issued 
thereunder. 

As per the PNGRB Order dated 1:zth March, 2019, the present levelized GTA tariff is Rs 71.66 mmbtu and the 
corresponding realized tariff of PlL for FY 2024-25 was - Rs. 79 mmbtu. We understand from the Investment 
Manager that as per PNGRB regulation, levelized GTA Tariff is due for revision after every 5 years from the 
previous Tariff Order. The Investment Manager has informed that Pll has filed an application for tariff revision 
and the same is under review with PNGRB. We understand from the Investment Manager that the forecasted 
levelized tariff is expected to increase lo ~Rs. 75/ MMBtu i.e. a corresponding realized tariff of -Rs. 86 per 
mmbtu with effect from 1'1 April, 2026 in line with the expected tariff revision order from PNGRB 

Natural Gas Price Assumption: 

The Management has provided us wjth the expected LNG prices for the foracasted period as given in S&P 
as below: 

R..;gion West Coast India, 
Currency USO 

UOM ··---· MMBtu 

__ ...;Ac,:;s~o'='f'--------=2=4-~:~--
2025 13.68 
2026 12.28 
2027 
2028 

··202e· 

.2030 

.2031 
2032 
2033 
2034 
2035 
2036 
2037 
2038 
2039 

9.50 
9.21 
9,31 
i:i:03 

10.09 
11.03 
12.26 
12.81 
13,02 
1345 
14.03 
14.49 
14.85 
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Further, the relationship of gas and crude oil prices i.e. the viability of use of gas is economically viable during 
the forecasted period. In this connection, we have also been represented by the Investment Manager that the 
global crude price movement forecast is in sync with the above assumption. 

Refer Appendix 5 for details of revenue projected for the forecasted period. 

7.5. Operation & Maintenance Expenses: PIL, Pipeline Management Services Private Limited (the Contractor) 
and the Project Manager have entered into the O&M Agreement, in order to delegate obligations to the 
Contractor for the operation and maintenance of the Pipeline. The O&M Agreement includes budget plans for 
the cost of operating and maintaining the Pipeline facilities, over certain categories, for the balance life of the 
Pipeline Asset. Certain expenses are to be incurred directly by PIL, while others are to be incurred by the 
Contractor and then reimbursed by PIL. The cost of operating and maintaining the Pipeline facilities included 
in the O&M Agreement are based on agreed projections and estimates between the parties to the O&M 
Agreement. 

System Use Gas is referred to as the quantity of gas used by the transporter for the operation & maintenance 
of the Pipeline. It constitutes for -50% of the total expenses excluding RIL upside expenses incurred by the 
SPV. The Other Expenses considered as a part of O&M are: 

i. Employee Benefit Expenses 

ii. Stores & Spares 

iii. Power & Fuel Expenses 

iv. Repairs & Maintenance 

V. Insurance Expenses 

vi. Professional Fees 

vii. Rent. Rates & Taxes 

Refer Appendix 5 for details of operating expenses projected for the forecasted period. 

7.6. Interest, Principal Repayment of Debt and ECS: 

• As per the PIL SHA, payment of interest component will be at the Annual Interest Rate ("AIR") which will 
be computed on the outstanding principal of Total NCDs (i.e. Shareholders' Debt + Listed NCDs). For 
the first block of a period of 5 years from March 22, 2019 to March 22, 2024, the AIR was fixoo at 9.70%. 
For the second block from March 23, 2024 the AIR is fixed at 9.50%. The AIR shall be subject to a 
minimum of 9.50% and a maximum of 10.50%. Accordingly, the coupon rate for balance period is 
considered to be 9.50% for each 5-year block post March 22, 2029. The AIR is grossed-up with a factor 
of 1.004 in accordance with the PIL SHA. 

• From such interest component, first the payment will be made for interest payable to the Listed NCDs 
and balance interest shall be paid to Shareholders' Debt. On 11 111 March 2024, the Management of PIL 
has refinanced its listed NCDs, which involved restructuring them into three series: Series I, Series IJ, 
and Series Ill NCDs. Here are the detailed particulars regarding the refinancing of the NCDs: 

Series Face\!aiue Total Amount 
Coupon Rate Repayment Term 

tlNR) {!NR Mn) {Years) 
I 1,00,000 10,000 7.96%* 3 
fl 1,00,000 10,000 ·7.96%* 4 
Ill 1 00.000· 44 520 • 7.963/;• 5 

¾per annum payable quarterly. 

• The repayment of the Listed NCDswill occur through refinancing at the end of their respective repayment 
terms for Series I, 11, and Ill. As represented by the Management, the refinancing rates for Series I, 
Series II and Series Ill are expected to be at 7.44% p.a., 7.42% p.a. and 7.41% p.a. respectively which 
results in an interest rate of 7.24%, 7.22% and 7.21% respectively compounded quarterly. 

• Similar approach is adopted for payment of principal portion of the Total NCDs where first the payment 
will be made for principal payable to Listed NCDs and balance principal portion shall be paid to 
Shareholders' Debt. 
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• ECS payment/ repayment to the Trust has been considered as per the PIL SHA. 

7.7. Capital Expenditure: I have considered the maintenance capex for the projected period as represented by 
the Investment Manager. Based on the discussions with the Management, I understand that for better 
upkeeping and productivity of the Pipeline, the yearly capital expenditure has been forecasted and will be 
incurred as long term and short term operating expenditure which shall be annual in nature. 

7.8. Working Capital: The Investment Manager has represented the working capital requirement of the SPV for 
the projected period. 

For the purpose of current Enterprise Valuation, working capital of PIL as on the Valuation Date 
basis the audited financial statements has been considered as under: 

INRMn 
Part.!culars Mar-2~ 

Current.Ass~ --- ------------- --·· 

Security Deposit 
inventories - Stocks & Spares 
Trade.Receivables •• -- - - •• 

···curienffaxAssets iNetj­
Gsr Recoverable -·· ---

Advance to vendors 
interesi on FD receivable 
Other Current Assets 
Total Current Assets 
Current Liabilities 
Trade Payables_ 
Payable to Reliance 
Other Financial Liabilities .... ·- -- - -·- ----- .. -- .. 
other Current Liabilities 
Short Term Provisions 
Total Current Liabilities 
Working Capital 

20 
2,504 
1,821 
274. 

2,746 
103 
302 
204 

7,974 

_ 1,~57 
12,810 

220 
915 
23 

15,025 
(7,051) . 

• The amount of inventory is estimated lo be maintained at the same level as existing on 31st March 
2025. 

• The working capital days outstanding estimation for key items are as follows: 
(a) Debtors - 15 days of annual revenue 
(b) Gas Consumption & Other Operating Expenses - 90 days of annual expenses 

• CCP has been considered as a part of working capital in line with PUA agreement. 

7.9. Direct Tax: As per the discussions with the Investment Manager, the new provision of Income Tax Act, 1961 
(Section 1158AA) has been considered for the projected period of the SPY, which inter alia does not provide 
benefits of additional depreciation and Section 80..IA and Sec 115 JB. Accordingly, the base corporate tax 
rate of 22% (plus applicable surcharge and cess) is considered. 

7.10. Cost of Equity: 

Cost of Equity (CoE) is a discounting factor to calculate the returns expected by the equity holders depending 
on the perceived level of risk associated with the business and the industry in which the business operates. 

For this purpose, I have used the Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM), which is a commonly used model to 
determine the appropriate cost of equity for the SPY. 

K(e} =Rf+ [ERP*Beta] + CSRP 
Wherein: 
K{e) = cost of equity 
Rf = risk free rate 
ERP= Equity Risk Premium 
Beta= a measure of the sensitivity of assets to returns of the overall market 
CSRP = Company Specific Risk Premium 
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For valuation exercise, I have arrived at adjusted cost of equity of the SPV based on the above calculation. 
For comparison, the previous valuation as of March 2024 used Cost of Equity of 17.83%. 

(Refer Appendix 1 for detailed workings) 

7.11. RlskFreeRate: 

I have applied a risk free rate of return of 6.55% on the basis of the zero coupon yield curve as on 28111 March 
2025 for government securities having a maturity period of 10 years, as quoted on the website of Clearing 
Corporation of India Limited ("CCIL"). For comparison, the previous valuation as of March 2024 used a risk­
free rate of 6.97%. 

7 .12. Equity Risk Premium ("ERP"): 

Equity Risk Premium is a measure of premium that investors require for investing in equity markets rather 
than bond or debt markets. The equity risk premium is estimated based on consideration of historical realised 
returns on equity investments over a risk-free rate as represented by 1 0 year government bonds. 

For my estimation of the ERP. I have considered rolling historical returns of 10, 15 & 20 year of Nifty 50 index 
from year 2000 to March 2025. The 10 year rolling return, 15 year rolling return and the 20 year return for 
several periods were calculated. I have computed equity risk premium by averaging the above rolling returns 
for each period and accordingly I have arrived at ERP which averages to approximately 7.0%, On the basis 
of above, a 7% Equity Risk Premium is considered appropriate for India. (Valuer analysis based on data from 
NSE Website}. For comparison, the previous valuation as of March 2024 used an Equity Risk Premium of 
7%. 

7.13. Beta: 

Beta is a measure of the sensitivity of a company's stock price to the movements of the overall market index. 
In the present case, I find it appropriate to consider the beta of companies in similar business/ industry to that 
of the SPV for an appropriate period. Based on my analysis of the listed lnvJTs and other companies 
Infrastructure sectors, I have considered the companies which are in the business of gas transmission and 
regassification service which makes their business more closely aligned to that of PIL for the calculation of 
Beta. Thus, I have considered the beta of Gujarat Stale Petro net Ltd ("GSPL"), Gail India Ltd, Mahangar Gas 
Ltd, lndraprastha Gas Ltd., Gujarat Gas Ltd, and Petrone! LNG Ltd., for an appropriate period as all such 
companies are engaged in gas transmission business. (Refer Appendix 1 ). 

7.14. Company Specific Risk Premium: 

Discount Rate is the return expected by a market participant from a particular investment and shall reflect noi 
only the time value of money but also the risk inherent in the asset being valued as well as the risk inherent 
in achieving the future cash flows. In the present case, I found it appropriate to consider 5% as CSRP. 

7.15. Debt:EqultyRatio: 

In present valuation exercise, I have considered debt: equity ratio of 50:50 based on the average debt: equity 
ratio of the SPV projected over its life and have considered the same weightage to arrive at the COE of the 
SPV. For comparison, the previous valuation as of March 2024 used a Debt-Equity Ratio of 50:50. 

7.16. RIL Upside I Amount Accruing to Rll: 

RIL shall be entitled to the RIL Upside share in respect of financial years when the actual GTA Capacity 
charges received by PIL in a Financial Year are higher than the Contracted Capactty Payments payable 
during the financial year. "RIL Upside Share" shall be equal to the amount determined in the following manner: 

All Free Cash Flow available with PJL for the relevant Year after meeting all the payment obligations on the 
Non-Convertible Debentures namely: 

• Equated Yearly Instalments ("EYI") 
Expenditure Component Sweep ("ECS") 
Interest on ECS & EYJ Sweep 

• Upside Share belonging to the lnvlT 
• Any over-run of operating cost vis-a-vis planned operating costs as per SHA 

Such RIL Upside is accounted for as an expense and charged to Profit & Loss Account of PIL. Further, RIL 
Upside paid by PIL has been considered as a lax deductible business expenditure basis a tax opinion dated 
4th April, 2024 obtained from an external tax consultant supplemented by e-mail dated 1611, April, 2025. 
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8. Valuation Conclusion 

8.1. The current valuation has been carried out based on the discussed valuation methodology explained herein 
earlier. Further, various qualitative factors, the business dynamics and growth potential of lhe business, 
having regard to information base, Management perceptions, key underlying assumptions and limitations 
were given due consideration. 

8.2. I have been represented by the Investment Manager that there is no potential devolvement on account of the 
contingent liability as of Valuation Date; hence no impact has been factored in to arrive at EV of the SPV. 

8.3. Based on the above analysis, the EV as on the Valuation Date of the SPV is as mentioned below: 

SPV ______ .. --~xplicit Proj9ctlon period ___ ~_ Enterprise Value 
·-------___,,.:=Ec.:n.=.d.;;:Dc::a;.;;te'---------:e::.::a;..:;la::;;n.:.:c""e...:.P...:;ec.:.,;ti"'o-=d--~-----U.;._;_1NR_Mn_~) __ _ 

22"d March 2039 ~14 y~ars 1,24,440* PIL 

Total of the SPV 1,24,440 
(Refer Appendix 2 for detailed computations) 

*Note: The financial projections considered in the present enterprise valuation exercise as on March 31, 2025 
considers RIL Upside Share being paid by PIL to RIL in terms of the PUA as a tax deductible business 
expenditure for PIL based on a written tax opinion dated April 4, 2025 obtained by PIL from an external 
consultant supplemented by e-mail dated 161" April, 2025. Further, PIL has also claimed deduction of RIL 
Upside Share as a tax deductible expense in its income tax return for AY 24-25 and refund for such year has 
been received on 29111 January 2025 from the Income Tax Department pursuant intimation u/s 143(1) dated 
Ql• December 2024. It may be noted that in the enterprise valuation for previous years, such RIL Upside Share 
had not been considered as tax deductible for PIL. Had RIL Upside Share not been considered as tax 
deductible item in the present valuation exercise, Enterprise Value of PlL as on the Valuation Date would 
have been INR 1, 19,241 Mn vis-a-vis the current Enterprise Value of INR 1,24,440 Mn. 

8.4. EV is described as !he total value of the equity in a business plus the value of its debt and debt related 
liabilities, minus any cash and cash equivalents to meet those liabilities. 

8.5. The fair EV of the SPV is estimated using DCF method. The valuation requires Investment Manager to make 
certain assumptions about the model inputs including forecast cash flows, discount rate, and credit risk. 

8.6. Valuation is based on estimates of future financial performance or opinions, which represent reasonable 
expectations at a particular point of time, but such information, estimates or opinions are not offered as 
predictions or as assurances that a particular level of income or profit will be achieved, a particular event will 
occur or that a particular price will be offered or accepted. Actual results achieved during the period covered 
by the prospective financial analysis will vary from these estimates and the variations may be material. 

8.7. Accordingly, I have conducted sensitivity analysis on volume assumptions, the results of which are indicated 
below: 

Volume Sensi!1!Jty _____ _::E"'-n'-'tec.:..;rpc,c..r;.;;is..:.e...:V-=a"-'lu::..cec..__ 

\((?lum~ decna_a~~ ~ 5_% _1,2_~. 1~?- __ 
Volume decreas,_e_s by 3% 

Volume decreases by 1% 

Ba's€Volume 

'J<Jl~m~increases by 1% __ _ 

_Volume incre_asE:?s by 3% . 

_yolume increases ~y ~~ _ 

1,22,490 

1,23,790 

1,24,440 

1,25, 109 

1,26,519 

1,27,655 
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9. Additional Disclosures as required by SEBI and lnvlT Regulations 

9.1. The Schedule V of the SEBI Inv IT Regulations prescribes the minim um set of mandatory disclosures to be made 
in the valuation report. In this reference, the minimum disclosures in valuation report may include following 
information as well, so as to provide the investors with the adequate information about the valuation and other 
aspects of the underlying assets of the lnvlT. 

The additional set of disclosures, as prescribed under Schedule V of lnvlT Regulations, to be made in the 
valuation report of the SPV are as follows: 

A. Purchase price of the Project by the lnvlT: The Trust had acquired 100% of equity share capital of the 
SPV for an amount of INR 500 Mn on 22nd March 2019. Further, PIL has issued NCDs of INR 1,29,500 Mn 
as on 22nd March, 2019 to the Trust out of which 6,49,80,000 NCDs of face value INR 722. 76 aggregating 
to INR 46,965 Mn remains outstanding as on the Valuation Date. 

B. Valuatlon of lnv/T Asset in the past: 

Sr. No. Name of the SPV Valuat!on Date Enterprise Value 
of lnvlT Assets 

Pipeline Infrastructure Limited 
31-Mar-22 
31-Mar-23 
31-Mar~24 

1,32,419 
1,24,530 
125.354 

C. List of one-time sanctions/approvals which are obtained or pending: The list of such sanctions/ 
approvals obtained by the SPV or pending till 31 ' 1 March 2025 is provided in Appendix 3. Further, as 
represented by the Investment Manager, there are no pending sanctions or approvals as on the Valuation 
Date. 

D. List of up to date/ overdue periodic clearances: The Investment Manager has confirmed that the SPV 
are not required to take any periodic clearances and hence there are no overdue periodic clearances as on 
31•1 March 2025. 

E. Statement of assets Included: 

The details of assets of the SPV as at 31 ' 1 March 2025 are as mentioned below: 

Sr. 
No. SPV 

PIL 

Net fixed 
Assets 

1,00,843* 
·•includes ROU Asset of/NR 140Mn 

Net Intangible 
Assets 

Other Non­
Current Assets 

860*'* 

INRMn 

Current 
Assets 

17,972 

.. Includes Goodwill of INR 2,820 Mn, Other Intangible Assets of /NR 10,512 Mn and Intangibles Under Development of 
INR12Mn 
,, .. Jm;/udes Capital work-in-progress of JNR 419 Mn 

F. Estimates of already carried as well as proposed major repairs and improvements along with estimated time of 

completion.· As per discussions with the Management, we understand that no major repairs have been done 
in the past to the Pipeline. Following is the estimate of already carried as well as proposed major repairs of 
the SPV: 

Historical major repairs 

INRMn 
SPV FYW FY 21 FY 2.2 FY 23 FY 24 FY 25 
PIL 367 412 669 682 1,407 959 

Source: Investment Manager 

Forecasted major repairs 
INRMn 

SPV FY 26 FY 27 FY28 FY29 FY30 FY 31 FY 32 FY 33 FY34 
PIL 825 971 786 803 810 1,334 1,414 1,381 1,234 

SPV FY 35 . FY 36 FY 37 FY 38 FY 39 
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PIL 1,394 1,330 _1.;_,4_6_3 __ 1..;..,3_3_4 __ 1,326 

Source: Investment Manager 

G. Revenue pendencies including local authority taxes associated with lnvrr asset and compounding 

charges, If any: PIL owns land bearing survey no. 19/6B at Ambeshiv Budruk, (Vaholi), Maharashtra. 

Reliance Gas Pipelines Ltd ("RGPL") in understanding with PIL had installed ML V-25 for its Oahej -
Nagothane Ethane Pipeline ("DNEPL") project. Tehsildar, the Revenue Dept. demanded payment of 75% 

of the land cost for not obtaining the prior permission of the collector before purchasing the agricultural land 

by Reliance Gas Transportation Infrastructure Limited. The Tehsildar without considering the merits passed 
an order dated July 22, 2019 ("Tehsildar's Order") converting the said land into Government land. Against 

this action PIL and RGPL together; filed an appeal with the Maharashtra Revenue Tribunal (MRT) 

challenging the Tehsildar's Order and the action taken thereby contending that land was used for bonafide 
industrial purpose which is valid under Maharashtra Tenancy and Agricultural Lands Act. MRT vide order 

dated 27.09.2022 set aside the Tehsildar's order. Pursuant to MRT's order PIL requested Tehesildar to 

undertake changes in revenue records by reinstating PIL's name. The Tehesildar called for a hearing and 

PIL and RGPL represented its case before Tehesifdar. However, Tehsildar disregarding directions of the 
MRT again and representations made during the hearing, issued a demand order dated 11.04.2023 

reiterating their earlier stand and directed PIL to deposit 75% of the land cost as penalty, i.e., Rs.36.00 
lakhs. PIL exchanged various communications with Tehesildar's office to withdraw the said demand note, 

however the Tehsildar did not withdraw the demand note and did not reinstate PIL's name on revenue 

records. With no response from the Tehesildar, PIL on 13.08.2024 filed an application before MRT primarily 

to execute MRT's order of 27.09.2022 and set aside the impugned orders of Tehsildar. Matter is posted on 
14.07.2025. 

Investment Manager has informed me that there are no other material dues including local authority taxes 
(such as Municipal Tax, Property Tax, etc.} pending to be payable to the government authorities with respect 
to the SPV (lnvlT assets) as on the Valuation Date. 

H. On.going material litigations including tax disputes in relation to the assets, If any: As informed by 

the Investment Manager, the status of ongoing litigations are updated in Appendix 4. The Investment 

Manager has informed us that it expects majority of the cases to be settled in favour of SPV. Further, 

Investment Manager has informed us that majority of the cases are having low risk and accordingly no 
material oulflow is expected against the litigations. As represented by the Investment Manager, the RIL 

would indemnify the Trust and its SPV against any financial losses suffered or incurred in connection with 

any pending or threatened claims against the Trust or SPV made prior to the transfer of the assets to the 
Trust. 

I. Vulnerability to natural or Induced hazards that may not have been covered in town planning/ 
building control: Investment Manager has confirmed lo me that there are no such natural or induced 
hazards which have not been considered in town planning/ building control. 

J. Date of site inspection and latest pictures of the project: Refer Section 3.22 

Limitations 

9.2. This Report is based on the information provided by the Investment Manager. The exercise has been 
restricted and kept lim ~ed to and based entirely on the documents, records, files, registers and information 
provided to me. I have not verified the information independently with any other external source. 

9.3. I have assumed the genuineness of all signatures, the authenticity of all documents submitted to me as 
original, and the conformity of the copies or extracts submitted to me with that of the original documents. 

9.4. I have assumed that the documents submitted to me by the representatives of Investment Manager in 
connection with any particular issue are the only documents related to such issue. 

9.5. I have reviewed the documents and records from the limited perspective of examining issues noted in the 
scope of work and I do not express any opinion as to the legal or technical implications of the same. 
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10. Sources of Information 

For the purpose of undertaking this valuation exercise, I have relied on the following sources of information 
provided by the Investment Manager: 

10.1. Audited financial statements of the SPV for period ending March 2020, March 2021, March 2022, March 2023, 
March 2024 

10.2. Audited financial statements of the SPV as on 31 st March 2025; 

10.3. Provisional financial statements of the Trust for the year ended 31st March, 2025; 

10.4. Shareholding pattern of the Trust, the Sponsor and the Investment Manager as at 31" March, 2025; 

10.5. Projected financial information for the remaining period of the SPV (1't April, 2025 to 22nd March, 2039) i.e. 
projected revenue, volumes, tariff, revenue expenditure, capital expenditure and working capital requirement 
for operations of Pl L; 

10.6. Tariff Order by PNGRB dated 121h March 2019; 

10.7. Income tax Return (ITR) of PIL for AY 2024-25 and intimation u/s 143(1) dated 9th December, 2024 received 
from the Income Tax Department for AY 2024-25; 

10.8. Details of brought forward losses (as per Income Tax Act) of the SPV as at 31•t March, 2025; 

10.9. Details of Written Down Value (WDV) (as per Income Tax Act) of assets as at 31'1 March, 2025; 

10.10. Details of Actual/ Estimated Volumes transported by PIL from 1•t April, 2020 till 22nd March, 2039, 

10.11. Framework Agreement amongst RIHPL, the sponsor, Penbrook Capital Advisors Private Limited and PIL 
dated August 28, 2018; 

10. 12. Scheme of Arrangement between EWPPL and PIL and their respective shareholders and creditors for transfer 
of Pipeline Business from Elfl/PPL to PIL. 

1 O. 13. The Joint Venture Agreement dated February 11, 2019, entered into between ECI India Managers Private 
Limited, RIL and Rutvi Project Managers Private Limited and amendments thereto; 

10.14. PIL SHA dated February 11, 2019 amongst PIL, East West Pipeline Lim~ed, RIL, Penbrook Capital Advisors 
Private Limited and the Trust second Amendment Agreement dated April 22, 2019 to the Pl L SHA. 

10.15. SPA dated February 11, 2019 amongst RIHPL, Trust, IM and PIL and Amendment Agreement dated April 22, 
2019 to SPA. 

10.16. SSA dated February 11, 2019 amongst PIL, RUHL and Trust. 

10.17. Deed of adherence dated April 13, 2018 amongst RIIHL and RSBVL. 

10.18. Operations and Maintenance Agreement, dated February 11, 2019 amongst PIL, ECI India Private Limited 
and Rutvi Project Managers Private Limited 

10.19. Operations and Maintenance Sub-Contractor Agreement, dated February 11, 2019 amongst PIL, Rutvi 
Project Managers Private Limited and Reliance Gas Pipelines Limited 

10.20. PUA executed between PIL and RIL on March 19, 2019, Amendment Agreement dated April 22, 2019, to the 
PUA and Clarificatory note to PUA dated December 24, 2019. 

10.21. Shared Services Agreement dated February 11, 2019 entered amongst RIL, PIL and Rutvi Project Managers 
Private Limited and amendments thereto: 

10.22. Debenture Trust Deed dated February 29, 2024 between PIL and IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited; 

10.23. Estimated EYI, ECS and their interest for the period starting from April 1, 2025 to March 22, 2039. 

10.24. Copy of tax opinion dated 4th April, 2025 obtained from an external consultant on allowability of RIL Upside 
as a tax deductible business expenditure under the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 followed by e-mail of 
the external consultant dated 16th April, 2025 supplementing the tax opinion. 

10.25. Technical Report titled "KG Basin Gas Supply Assessment" dated November 28, 2023 issued by Wood 
Mackenzie. 

10.26. List of licenses/ approvals, details of tax litigations, civil proceeding and arbitrations of the SPV; 
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10.27. Details of historical and projected Repairs and Capital Expenditure (Capex); 

10.28. Management Representation Letter by the Investment Manager dated 19111 May, 2025: 

10.29. Relevant data and information about the SPY provided to us by the Investment Manager either in written or 
oral form or in the form of soft copy; 

10.30. Information provided by leading database sources, market research reports and other published data. 

The information provided to me by the Investment Manager in relation to the SPV included but not limited to 
historical financial statements, forecasts/projections, other statements and assumptions about future matters 
like forward-looking financial information prepared by the Investment Manager. The forecasts and projections 
as supplied to me are based upon assumptions about events and circumstances which are yet to occur. 

By nature, valuation is based on estimates ar,d the actual figures in future may differ from these estimates 
which may have a significant impact on the valuation of the SPV. 

I have not tested individual assumptions or attempted to substantiate the veracity or integrity of such 
assumptions in relation lo the forward-looking financial information, however, I have made sufficient enquiries 
to satisfy myself that such information has been prepared on a reasonable basis. 

Notwithstanding anything above, I cannot provide any assurance that the forward looking financial information 
will be representative of the results which will actually be achieved during the cash flow 
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11. Exclusions and Limitations 

11.1 . My Report Is subject to the limitations detailed hereinafter. This Report is to be read in totality, and not in 
parts, in conjunction with the relevant documents referred to herein. 

11.2. Valuation analysis and results are specific to the purpose of valuation and is not intended to represent value 
at any time other than the valuation date of 31•1 March 2025 {"Valuation Date") mentioned in the Report and 
as per agreed terms of my engagement. It may not be valid for any other purpose or as at any other date. 
Also, it may not be valid if done on behalf of any other entity. 

11.3. This Report, its contents and the results are specific to (i) the purpose of valuation agre€d as per the terms 
of my engagements; (ii} the Valuation Date and (iii} are based on the financial information of the SPV till 31 51 

March 2025 . The Investment Manager has represented that the business activities of the SPV have been 
carried out in normal and ordinary course between 31" March 2025 and the Report Date and that no material 
changes have occurred in the operations and financial position between 31st March 2025 and the Report date. 

11.4. The scope of my assignment did not involve me performing audit tests for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the fairness or accuracy of any financial or analytical infonnation that was provided and used by 
me during the course of my work. The assignment did not involve me to conduct the financial or technical 
feasibility study. I have not done any independent technical valuation or appraisal or due diligence of the 
assets or liabilities of the SPV or any of other entity mentioned in this Report and have considered them at 
the value as disclosed by the SPV in their regulatory filings or in submissions, oral or written, made to me. 

11.5. In addition, I do not take any responsibility for any changes in the information used by me to arrive at my 
conclusion as set out herein which may occur subsequent to the date of my Report or by virtue of fact that 
the details provided to me are incorrect or inaccurate. 

11.6. I have assumed and relied upon the truth, accuracy and completeness of the information, data and financial 
terms provided to me or used by me; I have assumed that the same are not misleading and do not assume 
or accept any liability or responsibility for any independent verification of such information or any independent 
technical valuation or appraisal of any of the assets, operations or liabilities of the SPV or any other entity 
mentioned in the Report. Nothing has come to my knowledge to indicate that the material provided to me was 
misstated or incorrect or would not afford reasonable grounds upon which to base my Report. 

11.7. This Report is intended for the sole use In connection with the purpose as set out above. It can however be 
relied upon and disclosed in connection with any statutory and regulatory filing in connection with the provision 
of SEBI lnvlT Regulations. However, I will not accept any responsibility to any other party to whom this Report 
may be shown or who may acquire a copy of the Report, without my written consent. 

11.8. II is clarified that this Report is not a fairness opinion under any of the stock exchange/ listing regulations. In 
case of any third party having access to this Report, please note this Report is not a substitute for the third 
party's own due diligence/ appraisal/ enquiries/ independent advice that the third party should undertake for 
his purpose. 

11.9. Further, this Report is necessarily based on financial, economic, monetary, market and other conditions as _in 
effect on, and the information made available to me or used by me up to, the date hereof. Subsequent 
developments in the aforementioned conditions may affect this Report and the assumptions made in 
preparing this Report and I shall not be obliged to update, revise or reaffirm this Report in such case. 

11.10. This Report is based on the information received from the sources as mentioned in Section 9 of this Report 
and discussions with the Investment Manager. I have assumed that no information has been withheld that 
could have influenced the purpose of my Report. 

11.11. Valuation is not a precise science and the conclusions arrived at in many cases may be subjective and 
dependent on the exercise of individual judgment. There is, therefore, no indisputable single value. I have 
arrived at an indicative EV based on my analysis. While J have provided an assessment of the value based 
on an analysis of information available to me and within the scope of my engagement, others may place a 
different value on this business. 

11.12. Any discrepancies in any table / appendix between the total and the sums of the amounts !isled are due to 
rounding-off. 

11.13. Valuation is based on estimates of future financial performance or opinions, which represent reasonable 
expectations at a particular point of lime, but such information. estimates or opinions are not offered as 
pre-dictions or as assurances that a particular level of income or prof~ will be achieved, a particular event will 
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occur or that a particular price will be offered or accepted. Actual results achieved during the period covered 
by the prospective financial analysis will vary from these estimates and the variations may be material. 

11.14. I do not carry out any validation procedures or due diligence with respect to the information provided/extracted 
or carry out any verification of the assets or comment on the achievability and reasonableness of the 
assumptions underlying the financial forecasts, save for satisfying ourselves to the extent possible that they 
are consistent with other information provided to me in the course of this engagement. 

11. 15. My conclusion assumes that the assets and liabilities of the SPV, reflected in their respective latest balance 
sheets remain intact as of the Report date. 

11. 16. Whilst all reasonable care has been taken to ensure that the factual statements in the Report are accurate, 
neither myseH, nor any of my associates, officers or employees shall in any way be liable or responsible either 
directly or indirectly for the contents stated herein. Accordingly, f make no representation or warranty, express 
or implied, in respect of the completeness, authenticity or accuracy of such factual statements. l expressly 
disclaim any and all liabilities, which may arise based upon the information used in this Report. I am not liable 
to any third party in relation to the issue of this Report. 

11.17. The scope of my work has been limited both in terms of the areas of the business & operations which I have 
reviewed and the extent to which I have reviewed them. There may be matters, other than those noted in this 
Report, which might be relevant in the context of the transaction and which a wider scope might uncover. 

11.18. For the present valuation exercise, I have also relied on information available in public domain; however the 
accuracy and timelines of the same has not been independently verified by me. 

11.19. In the particular circumstances of this case, my liability (in contract or under any statute or otherwise) for any 
economic loss or damage arising out of or in connection with this engagement, however the loss or damage 
caused, shall be limited to the amount of fees actually received by me from the Investment Manager, as laid 
out in the engagement letter for such valuation work. 

11.20. In rendering this Report, I have not provided any legal, regulatory, tax, accounting or actuarial advice and 
accordingly I do not assume any responsibility or liability in respect thereof. • 

11.21. This Report does not address the relative merits of investing in Inv IT as compared with any other alternative 
business transaction, or other alternatives, or whether or not such alternatives could be achieved or are 
available. 

11.22. I am not an advisor with respect to legal, tax and regulatory matters for the proposed transaction. No 
investigation of the SPV's claim to title of assets has been made for the purpose of this Report and the SPV's 
claim to such rights have been assumed to be valid. No consideration has been given to liens or 
encumbrances against the assets, beyond the loans disclosed in the accounts. Therefore, no responsibility 
is assumed for matters of a legal nature. 

11.23. I have no present or planned future interest in the Trustee, Investment Manager or the SPV and the fee for 
this Report is not contingent upon the values reported herein. My valuation analysis should not be construed 
as investment advice; specifically, I do not express any opinion on the suitability or otherwise of entering into 
any financial or other transaction with the Investment Manager or SPV. 

11.24. I have submitted the draft valuation report to the Trust and Investment Manager for confirmation of accuracy 
of the factual data used in my analysis and to prevent any error or inaccuracy in this Report. 

11.25. Limitation of Liabilities 

• It is agreed that, having regard to the RV's interest in limiting the personal liability and exposure to litigation 
of its personnel, the Sponsor, the Investment Manager and the Trust will not bring any claim in respect of any 
damage against any of RV personally. 

• In no circumstances RV shall be responsible for any consequential, special, direct, indirect, punitive or 
incidental loss, damages or expenses (including loss of profits, data, business, opportunity cost, goodwill or 
indemnification) in connection with the performance of the services whether such damages are based on 
breach of contract, tort, strict liability, breach of warranty, negligence, or otherwise, even if the Investment 
Manager had contemplated and communicated to RV the likelihood of such damages. Any decision to act 
upon the deliverables (including this Report) is to be made by the Investment Manager and no communication 
by RV should be treated as an invitation or inducement to engage the Investment Manager to act upon the 
deliverable( s). 
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• It is clarified that the Investment Manager will be solely responsible for any delays, additional costs, or other 
liabilities caused by or associated with any deficiencies in their responsibilities, misrepresentations, incorrect 
and incomplete information including information provided to determine the assumptions. 

• RV will not be liable if any loss arises due to the provision of false, misleading or incomplete information or 
documentation by the Investment Manager. 

You rs faithfully, 

S. Sundararaman 

Registered Valuer 

IBBI Registration No.: IBBI/RV/06/2018/10238 

Place: Chennai 

UDIN: 25028423BMOMXK7786 
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Appendix 1 - Cost of Equity 

Appendix 1.1: Calculation of Cost of Equity as on 31st March 2025 

Particulars Mar-25 Remarks 

Risk free rate ( Rf) 6.55% 
Risk Free Rate has been considered based on zero coupon yield curve as at 28th March, 2025 of Govermn-ent 
Securities having maturity period of 10 years, as quoted on CCIL's website 

Equity Risk Premium (ERP) 7% 
Based on.historicaf.reaiized returns· on e-quity fnvesiments -ovei- a risk -tree-raferei,resented -by. 16 years ­
government bonds, a 7% equity risk premium considered appropriate for India 

.......... ······-·•··- ... _,. 

Beta (Re-levered_) __ 1.48 Re-levered Beta (Refer Appendix 1.2 and Appendix 1.3 for detailed computation) • 
Cost of Equity 16.91¾ Adjusted Ke = Rf {ERP)*~ 
Company Specific Risk Premium 5.00% Evaluated Based on operational & financial parameters 
Revised Cost of Equity 21.91% Adjusted Ke= Rf IERP)*~ + CSRP 

Appendix 1.2; Calculation of Unlevered Beta as on 31'1 March 2025 

Par\ic1t1~rs Sector Raw 
Sela 

Debt to Market Efffletive Tax Unlevered 
----~----· ----- ----- Capitalisation Rate Beta 

GAIL India Ltd 

Gujarat State Petronet Ltd 

Mahanagar Gas Ltd 

lndraprastha Gas Ltd 

Gujarat Gas Ltd 

Petrone! LNG Ltd 

Median 

11 is engaged in the production and transmission of liquefied natural gas 
and liquefied petroleum gas. It owns and operates a network of natural 0.88 19% 25.17% 

. _gas pip~lines ac!~~th~_CC>_un~ry.:. ____ ........ ___ ... __ .. _______ _ 
GSPL is engaged in developing natural gas transportation infrastructure in 
Gujarat and Daman thereby connecting natural gas supply sources to 0.74 5% 25.17% 
~~j~~ ga~_~o~S~l)lin~ 1":_~i9_~: ______ -· ___________ ,, __________________________________ _ 
Mahanagar Gas is a leading PNG and CNG supplier that supplies natural 
gas to residential and industrial_customers ... ····- _ ...... _ __________ _________ _ 
lndraprastha Gas is dedicated in providing safe and uninterrupted gas 
supply to transport, domestic, commercial and industrial consumers 

0.91 1% 

through its extensive distribution netwoM<.. ___ ----··--····· .. ··· . ____ -· ...... ______ .. -----------------
Gujarat Gas Ltd is engaged in the distribution of Natural Gas to domestic, 

0 64 

0.81 0% 

1% 

25.17% 

25.17% 

25.17% commercia_l: indu~rial an~~~~~SP?.~~e~~r_c_u~).?_rn_er~_in ~ndi~-- ______ __ _: .. __ 
Petrone! LNG is engaged in the importing and regasification of liquefied 
natural gas. Its customers include entities engaged in the business of Oil 

•••• ··- ------------
0.58 

and Gas, Petrochemical an<I Power Generation. 
9% 25.17% 

Source: Bloomberg I NSE I Internal Workings I Comparable Companies' Financial Statements 

Where, Un levered Beta= Levered Beta I [1 +(Debt/Equity)• (1 - t)] 

~ 

0.77 

0.71 

0.90 

0.81 

0.63 

0.55 

0.74 
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Appendix 1.3: Calculation of Re-levered Beta as on 31st March 2025 

Particulars 

UnJevered Beta 

Debt-Equity Ratio Considered 

Effective Tax Rate of SPV 

Re-levered Beta 
Source: Bloomberg I NSE I Internal Workings 

PIL 
0.74 
1.00 

0.00% 

1.48 

Where, Re-levered Beta = Unlevered Beta • [1 + (Debt/Equity)* {1 - t)] 

cp__ 
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Appendix 2-Valuation of the SPVas on 31'1 March 2025 under DCF Method 

Appendix 2.1 - Computation of Enterprise Valuation 

~.,~.eog111&M!Y • 21.ml 
• -~----- •. INRMn 

p~ fY2' N2T FY ll fY.29 .. ·n:it fVJf f:!.}l FYll FY34 N35 FY~ NSF· R'll l'l'lt •.NG· 
-R4lt'l&~U(!'_· _ . 39,a42 ___ 4I,BJ.L _48,508 .. 51,883 . 52,714 .48,3Jt __ _42.935 .. 40.411 36.107 . 35-420 :J~ .. 48~ 34,5:J.t · 31.693 ___ ,29.236 '._500 

~ = c - --~---~= 
. E,BtTOA __ _ ----·---- _ 21,688 __ 15;321 1$,481 . 21,19i _ 22,453;:H'.S13 .. 14,976 14;293_ 12',3511 11,752._ 11,.f.51 11;064 10,342_ 8,057 · .... 500 . 

-~.dJ.~ts ,~ ___ --·---· .. -----·- - ___ ,_, ::::;--- -,,; .... ___ --~---.. ·---------·-.- ' ·--•----- ·--•-----·-- ·--··-----

~~~~:~:=9Captat= .. ~.=-··---- --· ~;~~ 4~ __ 1~ _ ~ : __ 3~ ~ J~). __ ;ti) . ~= {1;;} .. . J1~):~ :: (#) . :~:-~~ ~~ 1~·-· .·~(1~l-~ • -· 
Taxaiion • • • - - • • - - • • • • 

-~~~e~~~~~Jft~;;:~i~et~;~~CDs - _ _ _ - • S,: 3&=
5

'~
29

~ ~~ : - ~:~ u~=J!~~-~~-~~~ - ~~~·=3:~~i ~:i:~~~-:~·7,;:t 5.~~~-~- _ : _____ ____ _ 
Intern st BG.CIU.!!ll•iind du~ to Lisied.NC •• . 1.26& • • • • · 

C1l>lhF- ..,...._ll>ilwff 10 • 1 ffl i.1181 8 1·930 • J,~ l ·~ 

~~~~ c';h;~~arest ~aim,ent. ·:·= ·~:: . .:.-. ~~~=.-.-~ =-=-=- 4;976 4,58a. • 4;.?2S ... 4.0aL ___ (166_ .. ~.666 .:-:.:3.287 := 2,933·.=2,s n1 = 1,999 = i ,432 .. 846 -=:.~262 _ . ·(924C ~-- -

·}::~gg~-:-~~tte~¥ffle)1!L ... ·- ··1~ ': _ -n~ ·-U~~--3_,: ,-~ .-· - V'::-)--··11:~;;•c(l~:r--::{~~;~r~/i'.~k --J:i:~)- {;:!~~)--(~:~g~c ',3:¾~5- ---
lrr.ff'NCDs - lll'/IT upsid&Shllle • • ·s.S13 7.002 51112 2,892 2;177 .656 319 . 285 71· 1613} . (1;296) 
1- 10.JJ5 »J.59 1,011 U.-tM n.m e ,058· • ·.~ ~.OJ.t i111 1.po ~ffl 1,50f 4.111 yp: 
Cash Accrual Factor •• 
!)iscou_!lling f.acto,-

:.NPV ofExp!ii:itf~ri~!ifcr§:qiiiiy _ ·· ·--·-·- . . ________ : ..... 
.. NPV ofl::er;ru!'~JPe~!!~fn•_~<j'!ttl'_ _ -- ·---- -, .... ~ .. 
Gss~ & Cash Eotiyal~nts 10.-440 
E.gu11v \iii!wa 11u1-e 
. l;J,.1emal Oebt_(htste_!J NCQ~L . _ .... -'-- ----·~--- _ _ 65_,5211: 
_Shiif~.t\~l°d:~fl?_a ~!Jlnyl1_" t1q )~) _(Ref!,f; ~P.JlJ»\,!l.:i{ ?,~) __ .. ~ ; lH 9 _ 

: hJterest accrued and du~ to)isfed NCO • .1,265 
Less':eash.:& Cash€ gyivslenti .. ....... .. - - -----··c10:«01 

fnterpme \r'.!tfue -llMT~ t).t.«O 

~ 

13.50 
0.07 
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Appendix 2.2 - Fair Value of Shareholders' Debt 

! Oi!JCollfltll'l1J Factor 
INRMn 

PalUculars - FY26 F'V:27 -FY23 FY29 FY30 -f'T31·-7:Y32-----yi3·3 FY34 FY35 ·FY3$- ··j::y37-------i;y:j3 FYl$ 
Interest on N'"'C"'o:-,·s- n&t-,----,of Interest on Sweeps 4.976·- -:r,ses 4,229 --·4.os·s--4~ 166 3,666 3,287 2.933 2,501 1,999 1,432 •• 846 2e'i --(924) 
RepayinentcfNCO's • • • •• - - (fas-- ··4.529- - ff3e- ···3_499·· -·14s- •• ·6i3- . eif- 1,:i1°1 .. ···i.ffii- -i 2ss• .. T;ss --i.s20--·s:s3ii 13;149 
ecs - • -·· ·- • • .. .. ·- 1.m·-·· ,:142-· fos2 ···ooa··- ··867' _ .. ·(7'ae)· ··(, :333)_ ·(1.44e')- <1.5ss)-· i:.,:s17f -<1:19sf-1i.935) -Tz:oon- (2.10~_ 
Frn Cash Flow~ 10, 33!1 18,259 7,017 8,545 S, 179 2,94& 2,645 2,857 3,06~_ 2.610 2,820 2,431 4,725 9,519 
Cash Accrual Factor 0.50 1.50 2.50 3.50 4.50 5.50 6.50 7.50 8.50 9.50 10.50 11.50 12.50 13.50 
Discounting Factor ---- ·- -· - ---- 0:96 ··· o.89 0~82 ° 0.75 ·0.10-···;fi;f ·o:gg-- ""ojf ··o.so "· ··o:47·- ~ 0.43" '" "-0.40-· f3i' -o:34 

Prnent v .. lu& of Cash Flow" _ _ ___ 9,927 9,0S3 s;faa &,447 3,605 1,89Z 1.568 1,&62 1,544 1,2n 1,211 964 t,728 3,212-
NPV of Explicit Period 49,?08 • - - • ~-·· -- ~ 

ln\it Upside (Refer Appeiidix 2,'3) - - 8,91 i 
Fulr Value oflnvlT NCDs 58,a'l!i 

Appendix 2.3 - Fair Value of lnvlT Upside 

@:reountfng factor 21.91~~ 
INRMn 

Veu Endlng FY 2' FY 27 FY 2~ FY 29 FY 30 FY 31 FY J2 FY 33 FY 34 FY 35 FY 36 FY a? F~~ 
ln-.tUpside _ ___ 5,913 7,002 5,112 2,692 2,177 656 319 285 71 (613) {1,296) 
Cash Accrual Factor - - o.so· - 1.50 •• • 2.50 3.50- - 4.So • • s.so ·- 6.so - • · 1.50 - a.so ·--- 9.SO - 10.so·- ·11.so··- 12.so • • 13.so· 
Discounting Factor • • 0.91 0.74 0.61 0.50 0.41 0.34 0.28 0.23 0.19 0.15 0.12 0.10 0.08 O.ffl 

Total - -....,,.,e-,-,---- :!.,958 2,872 1,720 7SS 493 122 49 36 7 (52) {89) 
Slml or PrHentV11lu11 &.911 · - - · - -····· ------·-----

£__ 

Page45 of 58 



Strictly Private and Confidential 

Appendix 3 - Business permission and approvals (1/5) 

-----·------------------------- -
Sr No. D.~Er!E!i_on of the permits __ 

Final terms and conditions for acceptance of central government authorization to lay, 
build, operate or expand the east west natural gas pipeline network as common 
carrier pipeline network issued under regulation 17(1) of the PNGRB Authorizing 

____ -~E:!gulations: .. __ .. _____________ ------····-···· 

2 Right of use in the land for laying the pipeline under section 6 of the PMP Act 

.. ~!!'_i_nJ.!_Authority Current Status 

PNGRB ACTIVE 

Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas ACTIVE 

In-principle approval for renunciation of the authorization granted to EWPPL for the 
Pipeline, in favour of PIL dated September 27, 2018. This approval is subject to 
certain terms and conditions. 

-•-•«•• - -· ·--- --·-··- -----

3 

4 

5 

PNGRB 

--Certificate· ofregistraiion un<ler-SE-Bllnvit Regulations, for registralion·ofthe Trust •• ··--· - -- ·-;~~
1
- ----·-·--·-···--·. 

as an infrastructure investment trust. 
Approval for the sc~ein:e of arrangement ("Scheme') beiweeri EWPPL arid PiL, for---·-- NCLT ~~~ed;b~d-& Mumbai 
the transfer of the Pipeline Business from EWPPL to PIL ' 

6 -Approval in relation to the acquisition of the.entire eq.uity shareholding of PIL. by ihe 
. ___ ~s_t datt:!d §eptem~r 1_1, ?Q1_8 __ .. Competition Commission of India 

~ 

ACTIVE 

ACTIVE 

ACTIVE 

ACTIVE 
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Appendix 3 - PIL : Summary of approval and licences {2/5) 

, Sr No. Type of approval Acts or Rules under which requirement 
s~cified Facility for which pennit obtained 

Environmenial Clearance 
~ ... ··-- - ··-- .. ----·------ , ______ _____ __ EIA_Rules,2006 ·-.. ···- -···-·· ·····-··- · -· GTICL_KakinadaHyderabad and Ahemdabad _ 

The Forest Conservation Act, 1980 & The Indian 2 Forest Clearances 

3 CRZ Clearance ••• 
East West Pipeline Private Limited Forest Act, 1928 

·- 4_. Public Liabititf Insurance Policy . - •••• , .. _ - ~-=- CRZ Notification - ---- .... ···-- - -EasiWesf Pipellne"'Privaie Lim~ed 
•• - - ••••• .. ·Pu~]~. Liabili\}' ·I'i1surance)i:ct,199 f - --·= .. -- - -- Pipeline Infrastructure Liml'tecl'- - -__::_ __ 

5 

6 

7 

Consent to Establish & operate 

Consent to Operate & Hazardous Waste Authorization 

Factory Licenses 

Waler Act, 1974 &Air Act, 1981 

Water Act, 1974, Air Act 1981, Hazardous Waste 
(M&TM) Rule,2016 

- ----·--·---------

Factories Act, 1948 

CS01-CS02 
CS03to CS04 
• • csos .. • 

--cso6to csos 
~ - • • - -- - - CS09 . 

-- CS10 
••• .... ---- • csoi ~ c~fo2--

cso3 to CSO•f csos- - • 
•• csosfo cso8 

-- • • --CS09 
·-· cs10· • •• • • ---- -

M&R47 Kunchanapalli _____ _ 
_ CS01 .fact Ary under_ RJ..L ~emises _ .. 

CS02 
· - ··-- ··--·cso3 _____ · · · ··· 

- .... .. -- - -·- - C-S◊4-····· .. - - -- -- -

• • csos 
-----·· CS06-- ·--------· 

CS07 
·- ·csos -

CS09 
CS10 ______ ,, ____ ,,_____ '""·"'---·-·-· •·--•----·----_____ ,, _______ .,_., ... _____ ,. ___ _ 

~ 
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Appendix 3 - PIL : Summary of approval and licences (315) 

-Sr 
No. 

8 

9 

Type of approval 

NOC for withdrawal of ground water 

CCoE Approval for laying pipeline 

-Acts or Rules under which requirement __ _ 
~citied 

CGWARules 

Petroleum and Explosives Safety Organization 
(PESO) 

------ -------------···---
Facility for which pennit obtained 

CS02 
CS03 - -------

CS04 
-------~CS~05 • 

____ CS06 
CS07 

•- •·- --· ·csos-· -
-- - - CS09 • - • 

--- cso,· - -
CS10 - -----------

- .Approval for Laying Kakinada- Hyderabad­
Ahmedabad NG pipeline 

Approval for laying of 7 KM 30" Dia NG 
Pipeline from Kanjanhari to GSPL 

__________ ~ sectionali_?:!ng valve atAtakpar(ji v~!iag~_C.:_~_09 

~ 
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Appendix 3 - PIL : Summary of approval and licences (4/5) 

Sr 
No. Type of approval 

10 CCoE Permission for commissioning pipeline 

11 Fire NOCs 

12 Building pfan-approvais·--- •••• 

~~ts ~:ule~ u;;:1;7:Jch requirement --~~~~~wh1ch pennit obtained 

Petroleum and Explosives Safety Organization 
(PESO) 

Kakinada-Hyderabad Ahmedabad pipeline 158 
................ KMst!:~lch (EWPL) CS0E5 - cso7 ....... . 
Kakinada-Hyderabad Ahmedabad Stretch 761 

KM (EWPL) CS01 - CS06 
• East Godavari Spur Line (URSPL) 

-~-- ---uraiispur Gne {i.JRSPL> • • 
Kakinada-Hyderabad Ahmedabad pipeline 166 

______ . K_M_ ~_tretch (E_\11/PL) ~S08 ::-_G§~ .... . .. 
Kakinada-Hyderabad Ahmedabad pipeline 130 
-- _ KM stretch _ _(EWPL) CS09-CS10 __ ... -­

Kakinada-Hyderabad Ahmedabad pipeline 156 
_ ___ KM stretch (EWPL) CS07 - CS08 _ _ _ 

7 KM 30" Dia NG Pipeline from Kanjanhari to 
GSPL sectionalizing valve at Atakpardi village 

_______ .......... _ (S9LJ§P_L} C~O.~·-· _________ _ 
____ NTPC Kawas_spurline(KWSPL) CS10_ ..... 

28" NG spur line from M&R 22 at Dhamka to 
HLPL {SH_!:LL connectivity) {KWSPL) CS10 

16" NG spur line from Tap Off point al 
Chevuturu village (Krishna Dist. AP) to M&R 

________ .. Lan co_ KondapaUi (!..KSP)__. __ . 
Andhra Pradesh Fire Service Ac1, 1999 and 

Andhra Pradesh Fire and Emergency Operations 
. _ . . . _a_n<I Lery of F.~ Rul~s, 20Q.L . ___ _ _ _ 

AP state Disaster Response and Fire Services 
Department 

Telarigana-staie· Disaster· Response and Fire· 
_____ - - · . Services~p!!_'lmenl 

CS01 

·------ - ·------- -----·· 

CS02 

CS03 

CS04 
Telangana state Disaster Response and Fire 

Services Department 
Karnafaka State Fire and E·me-rgenqi·services--·. •• ••• • •• --- ••• CSO5 

Directorate Maharashtra Fire Services CS06 
Directorate Maharashtra Fire Services CS07 
Directorate Maharashtra Fire Services •• •• • CS08 

_ :.-:: -----~uja_r~}Fi~ -~ervi_i:~:=-:---:~-:- ~ .... __ -· -···· - -- •• . _C:s"O!J-=--=-~- ~-~--~---~~----= 
_ ___ _ _ ____ _Q11j~at':jre Se_rvices ____ ····---·· ·-· ...... . CS10 .... _______ __ 

DISH (Dir~ct~ral~ ?f Ind ustria_[ ~afety and H~a.lth__ _ _ CS02 - CS10 

~ 
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Appendix 3 - PIL : Summary of approval and licences {515) 

Sr 
No. 

13 

14"' 

15 

17 

18 

Type of approval 

Structure Stability Certificate 

Acts or Rules under which requirement 
s£_ecified 

Factories Act, 1948 

Facility for whlt::h permit obtained 

CS01 
CS02 

__ - ·cso3 
CS04 
csos 

--- CS06 
•• ·cso1 -

--- --- ·· ·csos 
- · ··-- c~fog ------- ------... - ....... -... 

- • - - CS10 - --· 
Cori sent io Engage Contractl.abour·- -- - - -- ------_-----·contract La6o"urregulaiioriaiid°AbolTifo_n_,Ac-ct-,---,-1s=7=0-_ -- -- .. - -- ·cs-01 to CS1 o --- - - ------
Wireless Station License by GOVERNME-NT OF iNDiA, Ministry. • u d ~~ ;~~-- -~ 

1 
- - h-~~-~ 8~~ • • • --·· •• ·--- -- - - - --- ••• - • • ••• - • -- --

of Communications and Information Technology _ n er n ian e egrap 
Pipeline Authorization - ·-- - - - - - - =--------- ------ - - -- -~N~~B~ct,-2006 - - ·=-__::=: ·_·-- Eastj.lesf_p)pe~_~fEi-~a_ie·u~it_e] -_-~=--

CS01 to CS10 

CS10 cso;j· 
CS05 

Biomedical Waste Authorization 
--·-· • -- ·cs()? 

- CS09 PCB 
--- • CS08 

----·· -------- - - CS06 ___ _____ _ 

CS03 ------
- ·--- - - -- • · • - ··cso:z 

19 Registration of establishment 
The ·Maharashtra"sfioi,s" a-nd Establ1shmerits 
(Regulation of Employment and Conditions of 

S~ryic:et ~ct, 2017 __ 

PIL- Registered office 
PMSPL- Corporate office 

~ 

Page 50of 58 



Strictly Private and Confidential 

Appendix 4: Summary of Ongoing Litigations {1/6) 

Company Court 

PIL District Court 

PIL Supreme Court 

PIL Supreme Court 

' -. - ·~•,.- '--·~ - -~ .. , 

PIL District Court 

PIL District Court 

PIL District Court 

PIL Distlict Court 

PIL District Court 

PIL District Court 

Claulficatlon 

ROU 

RegulatOl'j 

ROU 

c.aae No. 

Punar.Alokan / 
SR/2612021 

Cillil Appeal 377 & 378 
012022 

Dial'/ No. 28130 of 
2021 

Dia°ryNo.·15349·01 
2023 

- _ · - SLP(C) 8363 of2023 .. 

ROU RCS No. 64 of 2023 

ROU C'-AA.16 of 202 0 

ROU 
Cillil Misc Application 

(DC) 32 of 2021 

ROU Ci1nl Msc .Application 
(DC) 33 of 2021 

ROU Chai Msc Application 
(DC) 34 of2021 

_________ ,._ -----
ROU Civil Misc Application 

(DC) 35 of 2021 
------• 

Rnaneial Claim 
{INRMn) 

Brief Summary of the- facts of the matter 

Toe Teheslldar of Shirur has called CA of RGTIL lo make 
submissions w.r.t to Applicants application 1i:Jr striking RGTIL's 
name from "other rights• column in 7/12 extract. 
.PNGRB appealed tietore su-preme- coi.irtagairistAPTEL's onierot 
15.11.2019 & 16.07.2021. 
Supreme Court passed Interim order dtd 12.01.2022 staying the 
General Directions passed by /1.PTEL llide order dtd 16.07.2021 
against the functionality, reporting etc. of PNGRB. 
PIL filed replyto PNGRB's appln on addn Question of Law. 
PIL also filed IA seeking directions against PNGRB not to decide 
tariff of PIL pipeline without considering the capacity for the 
pre1'i?u~~a_rs ~-s per ~!~L or~erdt ~~:~7 :20f1 : 

Challenged 1118 Order 27.03.2023 of Bombay HC 
Claiming compensation under New LAAR A::tfor RoU .Acquisition 

Plaintiff filed declaratory suit against members oftimlly claiming 
right to property. Plaintitf prays 1br non disposal and non creation 
of third partyrights of suit property including SN 41/1B in which 
ROU is. ac.~~i~d 

0.12 EhnacementofCompensation 

Current Statu. of the 
matblr 

Reply of CA filed. 

/Ill the Ci,,;1 ~peals will be 
listed before Supreme 

Court in normal course. 

For Jliguments 

PIL filed Vakalat 

•• ···· iiioiice to opponents. 
·-- RG!!!:.,~~I a p_arty: 

21 74 
To detennine fair compensation brlaying pipeline. (this is actually P 

0 • matter pertaining to DNEPL and PIL will not be the right party rooess to pponent 

79 96 
To determine fair compensation for laying pipeline. (this is actually p t 

O 1 • matter pertaining to DNEPL and PIL will not be the right party rocess O pponen 
--- -· - -- -- ---~ -- -~-

214 37 To determine fair compensation forla)ing pipeline. {this is actually P 
0 • matter pertaining to DNEPL and PIL will not be the right party rocess to pponent 

67 76 To determine fair compensation for laying pipeline. (this is actually P 
0 • matter pertaining to DNEPL and PIL will not be the right party rocess to pponent 
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Appendix 4: Summary of Ongoing Litigations (216) 

Company Court 

PIL District Court 

- --
PIL District Court 

- ~ .. ~ ............ -
PIL District Court 
--- - · 
PIL District Court 

·--- - · ~~ ~---~ 

PIL District Court 
----

PIL Disl!ict Court 

PIL District Court 

PIL District Court 

PIL District Court 

PIL District Court 

PIL District Court 

PIL District Court 

PIL District Court 

PIL District Court 

PIL District Court 

Pll District Court 

Class !fie ation 

ROU 

ROU 

case No. 

Ci~I Msc Application 
(DC) 31 of2019 

Financial Clalm 
(INRMn) Brief Sumn1$ry of the facts of tile matter 

> RoU acquired in Block No. 113, Sy. No. 107, adm. 2302 sqm. in 
Goja Village, Surat~deAward dated 02.11.2010. 
> The Applicant filed the suit seeking direction to ascertain the 
location of pipeline and the emct RoU in the land. 

Curr& nt Status of the 
matter 

Hearing 

Msc.No. • 15 00 Application filed under Section 10 of PMP Pct br enhancement of F ts . IA 
10/2023, • compensation orargumen m 

ROU ---- =Mi' sc.No. 4 00 Application filed under Section 10 of PMP Pct for enhancement of F ts . IA 
11/2023, • compensation -~-c">-....,... orargumen m 

ROU Misc.No. 1 20 
.Application filed under Section 1 O of PrvP Pct for enhancement of - F • • _ IA 

28/2022, _____ • compensation .,.......,,....._- or arguments in 

RO~ • Misc.No. 5 00 .Application filed under Section 10 of PMP Pct for enhancement of F - ts_ IA 
29/2022, • compensation ..,----~--or argumen in 

ROU • • • • • Misc.No. • 1 40 .Application filed under Section 1 O of PMP Pct for enhancement of ~ • • . IA 
30/2022, ------ . compensation or arguments m 
Msc.No. 4 80 Application filed under Section 1 O of PMP Act br enhancement of F ts . IA 
31/2022, • compensation orargumen 111 

Misc.No. 10 00 .Application filed under Section 10 of PM? Act for enhancement of F . IA 
32/2022, • compensation or arguments m 

ROU 

ROU 

ROU Misc.No. 1 50 .Application filed under Section 10 of PlvP Pct for enhancement of • . IA 
33/2022, • compensation For arguments m 

ROU Misc.No. 120 ~plication filed under Section 10 of PMP Pct.for enhancement of F • . IA 
3412022, compensation orarguments m 

Msc.No. 8 00 ~plication filed under Section 1 O of PMP Pct for enhancement of F • • . IA 
1/2023, • compensation or arguments m 

Misc.No. · - 150 .Application filed under Section 10ofPrvPPctibr enhancement of F . IA 
2/2023, • compensation or arguments m 

Misc.No. • 0 30 ~plication filed under Section 10 of PMP Pct for enhancement of F . IA 
3/2023, • compensation or arguments m 

Msc.No. 2 80 Application filed under Section 10 ofPMP Pct foi- entiancementof - F . 
1 412023, --- • compensation or arguments m A 

Msc.No. 1 40 Application filed under Section fo of PMP Pct for enhancement of F ts. IA 
5/2023, • compensation orargumen m 

Misc.No. 0 50 .Application filed under Section 10 of PM? Pct.for enhancement of F ts. IA 
6/2023, • compensation orargumen m 

ROU 

ROU 

ROU 

ROU 

ROU 

ROU 
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Appendix 4: Summary of Ongoing Litigations (3/6) 

. . Rna neial CIII Im Current Status of tht1 
Company Court Cla!lsificatlon Case No. (INR Mn) Brkn Summary of the fact& of the matter rnatter 

Misc.No. - 2 40 
Application filed under Section 10 of PlillP kt for enhancement of PIL 

PIL 

PIL 

PIL 

PIL 

PIL 

PIL 

PIL 

District Court ROU For arguments in IA 712023, • compensation 
ROU • Misc.No. 2 60 

Application filed under Section 10 of PlvP Act for enhancement of 
8/2023. • compensation 

District Court For arguments in IA 

District Court ROU 
-----y~------ -· ---··--

Mis·c:t-fo. 
9/2023, 
1v1sc~Nii. 

5 00 P-flplication filed under Section 10 ofPMP kt for enhanoementof F • . IA 
• compensation -:---:::c--::-- or arguments m 

0 20 Application filed under Sectlon 10 of PMP kt for enhancement of F • . IA 
• ti' or arguments m compensa on 

Encroacii_m_e_n_,t.,..ls-s-ue-at Rcf1Tareaiii"5v_ No-:-s°6([cs:;j 

District Court ROU 
2?1?022, -·----~----

District Court ROU OP 3/2021 

--- ---
Civil WP No 9560 of 

2019 (stamp) 
WP 1815of2023 

High Court ROU (Reg) 
Two ~ filed bearing 

1,411 30212023 & 
IN130312023 

c61..tv1ERC1AL -- • 
ARBITRATION 

High Court Arbitration PETITION NO. (L) 9453 
OF2023 
Reg No. 

CAABP/335/2023 
• - - - ••- - •--• - • - - -~~- •-• v - • • 

High Court ROU \/VP No. 12938 of 2022 
--- -~--

lss t1ed Urgent Notice against Respondents. 
Amendment Petition filed. R2 Filed cot1nter. R1 will file 
Yaklatnama. Neat copy filed. The said Amendment petitions were 
dismissed under objection and filed fresh ~ to Im plead the 
Respondent Company. __ _ Call with IAS. __ 

'NP filed by owner of land claiming payment of Award amount 
2.56 dedared by CA. which were paid to cultivators of land and no 

payment were made to the Petitioner being the landowner. 

NFCL filed appeal against Arbitral Award did 02.012023. 

Counters filed by 
Respondents 
For evidence 

Reply filed by CA. las filed 
by legal heirs of petitioner. 

Matterto be listed in due 
course 

3 07 WP filedtfemancling!he compe.nsation for acquiring the RoU in • F ..,. . . -- -
• d II db .. p iii or,..,_.m1ss1on thelan __ a egedlyowne_ yt,,e et oners-'-·------------

!2-
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Appendix 4: Summary of Ongoing Litigations (4/6) 
-----

Compa11y Court 

PIL High Court 

PIL High Court 

PIL High Court 

PIL High Court 

Class Jflcatlon 

ROU 

ROU 

ROU 

ROU 

case No. 

WP 13948 of2023 

Wr 13930 of 2023 

V\f' 7817 of2024 
(,/lppeal from CM/\ 
16112011 and LAR. 
Dkst No. 41/2020) 

WP 7812 of2024 
(Appeal from CMA 

17 4/2011 and LAR. 
Dkst No.2512020) 

Financial Claim 
jlt.!RMn) 

1.92 

Brief Summary of ttte fatts of the matter 

WP filed by Peititioner aggrie-.ed by the Decree passed by Dist 
Judge, Latur in Civil Misc ,llppln 16112011. Decree passed for Rs. 
2 .39.731/- + irit@ 6% p.a. from date of application 23.08.2011, 
whereas his claim is for Rs. 19 lakhs. 
Note: PIL satisfied the decree by depositing the decreetal amount. 

IAfJ filed by Peititioner aggriewd by !he Decree passed by Dist 
Judge, Latur in Cillil !vise Apptn 160/2011. Decree passed for Rs. 

Current Status of the 
mattar 

Awaiting admission from HC 

1.42 1,39,216/- + int@ 6% p.a. from date of application 23.08.2011, Awaiting admission from HC 

0.18 

0.20 

whereas his claim is for Rs. 14 lakhs. 
Note: PIL satisfied the decree by depositing the decreetal amount. 

The petiiioner-iiifliated a laws uii before the-Dis tiict court of Latui,· 
which had partially increased the compensation amount. The 
District Court failed to consider the petitioner's request for crop 
compensation 01er2-3 years.Additionally, despite oral e\idence 
presented by the petitioner's wi1ness indicating an expenditure of 

• approl<im ately Rs. 1.5 .lakhs for land restoration (which lacked 
-documentary support) tne court arbitrarily awarded only Rs. 
10.000/-. The current writ petition seeks compensation for !he 
crops and damages incurred. 
Note: The writ petition om its the crucial detail that an execution 
petition was filed by him and the decreed amount was paid byPIL 
and same was withdraw an by him and an order was drawn for 
satisfaction of decree. 

Awaiting admission from 
HC 

Awaiting admission from 
HC 

- - ~ --·-··---- -----------·----·-···---·~--------· 

PIL District Court ROU RCS 173 of2023 

> Received notice from Applicant, Dilip B Bhailume that land in Gal 
No. 83 in Village Ambijalgaon, Tai Karjat, Dist Ahmed nagaris 
owned with his brother Rahul B Bhailume equally. 
> Claims that RGTIL has acquired RoU in SN 63 and indilliduals 
Kalyan and Ravindra Dattatrya Anarse illegally obtained NOC from 
concerned department and started retail outle of Nayara 
Company. Now suit is filed by Rahul B Bhailume againstAnarse 
brothers as partition suit and injunction suits. 
(Summons received on 04.03.2025 from RIL dispatch} 

<ii--

ForWS and Say 
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Appendix 4: Summary of Ongoing Litigations (5/6) 

• Company 

PIL 

PIL 

PIL 

Court era ss Ifie a ti on 

High Court ROU 

High Court ROU 

case No. 

WP 7818 of2024 
(Appeal from CMA 

183/2011 and L/>R. 
Dkst No.36/2020) 

financial Clnim 
{INR Mn) 

0.62 

Brief Summary ofthe facts of the matter 

WP 7819 of 2024 The petitioner initiated a lawsuit before the Dis1rict Court oflatur, 
{Appeal from CMA 

7 
which had pamallyincreased the compensation amount. The 

172/2011 and LAR. o.9 District Court failed to consider the petitioner's request for crop 
Dkst No.34/2020) _______ compensation over2-3 years.Additionally,despite oral el.idence 

---·-------·--- ·- \M>"7/fio ot20i4 • ·presented by the petitioner's wi1ness indicating the expenditure 

High Court ROU (Appeal from CMA incurred for land restoration (which lacked documentary support) 
178/2011 and LAR. 

0
•
99 

the court arbitrarily awarded only Rs. 10 ,000/-. The current writ 

Current Status of the 
matter 

Awaiting admission from 
HC 

Awaiting admission from 
HG 

Awaiting admission from 
HC 

DkstNo.32/2020) _ _______ petition seeks compensation for the crops and damages incurred. 
·-- - ---- ,.VVP 78f1of 2024 Note: The writ petition omits the crucial detail that an executiori ---~----------

PIL High Court 

PIL High Court 

ROU (Appeal from CMA petition was filed by him and 1he decreed amount was paid byPIL 
17712011 and L/>R. 

0
•97 and same was withdrawan by him and an order was drawn for 

Dkst No.40/2020) satisfaction of decree. 
- WP 7825 of2024 -- · 

(Appeal from CMA 
ROU 

180/2011 and LAR. 

____ Dkst No.33/2020) ----

1.00 

£--

Awaiting admission from 
HG 

Awaiting admlssion ii-om 
HC 
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Appendix 4: Summary of Ongoing litigations (6/6) --------- --------------- -----·------------
Company Court Classlflcatlon 

PIL High Court ROU 

Case No. 

WP 7830 of 2024 
{Appeal from CMA 

171/2011 and LAA. 

Fina rn.: ia I Claim 
,!!!!R Mn) 

0.22 

Dkst No.3712020) 
·- -----··Vii>-183Tof202:r --- -· 

PIL High Court ROU 

PIL High Court ROU 

PIL High Court ROU 

PIL High Court ROU 

·-- ---· 

(Appeal from CMA 
16812011 and LAR. 
Dkst No.23/2020) 
vw··1e24 of2024 
(Appeal from ClvlA 

196/2011 and LAR. 
Dks t No.3312020) 
WP 1s22012024 • 
(Appeal from CMA 

17512011 and LAA. 
Dkst No.35/2020) 
1M' 7832 of 2024 
(Appeal from CMA 

173/2011 and LAR. 

.. Dks!No.29/2020)_ __ - - - · 

0.70 

1.45 

0.26 

0,21 

Brief Summary of the facui of the matter 

The petitioner initialed a lawsuit before the Dis bict Court of Latur, 
which had partiallyincreased the compensation amount. The 
District Court failed to consider the petitioner's request for crop 
compensation 01.er 2-3 years. Additionally, despite oral e,..;dence 
presented by the petitioner's witness indicating the expenditure 
incurred for land restoration (which lacked documentary support) 
the court arbitrarily awarded only Rs. 1 0 ,000/-. The current writ 
pefilion seeks compensation for the crops and damages incurred. 
Note: The writ petition omits the crucial detail that an execution 
petition was filed by him and the decreed amount was paid byPIL 
and same was withdrawan by him and an order was drawn for 
satisfaction of decree. 

~ 

Current Status of the 
matter 

Awaiting admission from 
HC 

Awaiting admission from 
HC 

Awaiting admission from 
HC 

Awaiting admission from 
HC 

Awaiting admission from 
HC 
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Appendix 5: Summary of Operating Revenue & Expenses 

~ -!l~J~-:'
0

"
5 

- Ft' 26 FT }7 F1' 28 ~ 29 fY .:Ii N l1 --W-,2 FY 33 h ji---J'.Y" FY Jg ' FY j,---,:y J8 ::~~. 
Income from Transportation of Gas ' 18.042 __ 46.091.__ 46.708 _ .50,083 • ... ___ 5dA914 • 46

1
569 41,135 __ 38,611 _____ 34.307 .. _ .33;620 .. __ 33.68(1 _ )2.737 ___ 29.1.893 ____ 27..:136 _ 

Par'l<in9Simic~s ________ ... i,ooo __ 1.000_ t.Oo~_ 1.ooo __ _JJ)00 ____ 1,ooo ___ 1.oqo _ ___ 1,000 ___ t ooo _ _ t ;000 __ 1.000_ 1,000. _ 1.ooa __ ___ 1.ooo. 
Otlier Income aoo 800 81\0 800 800 800 800 800 &10 800 800 800 800 800 
RiMlllue from Operiltlons 391842 47,~1 48.508 51,883 52.714 48.369 42,935 MM11 36,101 35,QO 35.,480 34c_531 31,693 29,2lt_ 
_Y~Y lncrHM>/JOecreas1r) ··-· _ ... .. ·----· 20% . -·-·--· 1%' ___ 7% ____ 2% ___ , .. . C8%) _{11~1 . _ j6%). ___ (/1;¼L . ( 2%, _ _ 0% _____ (3%] __ .(/Wo)_ ·-·- (8'$% 
Note: As raprei:ien\ed by the mimagement, the reaso!l fOI'. increase in Revenue projeetioos·from FY26 and FY27 is attributable to (i) increase in GTA tariff from Rs. 78.97 to 86.01 par mmbtu fur which 
PlL has already filed a.J?!llicirlion for tariff re,,;silin with PNGRS ,md the revised t·a.ri!J order is expiJC!ed to .be raceived by encl of Sep'25 & {tt}.incresse in Gas \-Otum,;s from 35.68 mmscmd in FY26 to 
39.68 m=cmil in fY2r, This increase in ma:rily c!ue to ~p of production from ONGC - Mallavaram fields . 

• ~!'!'I_E~f!!,n_se_.! __ • ---~ --,----------------------·---·------·. . . , ·--·-·-~-•---.. !N_~-~.!!. Partl:cldara FY 26- n 21 FY 18 n , 29 Fl 30 fY )1 fl' 32 FY ll fY 34 f)' l!J FY 3G FY 31 FY lit FY 39 
~ i se~Expen~~s _ .. ... .. __ _7~ _ ____ 811}_ __ _ f.43 -~---~?..- _ _ 9?_a ____ _!!69 . _. 1.01~ .. __ _ 1,oss __ _..1.1as ___ 1.~~- ___ 1.ios ... ___ 1,.?SL . .. 1,319 ____ 1,J1s_ 
Ston,ssnd Spares ___ ___ _ __ ___ , ... ..... 1,2b8 ____ . _ 967 _____ _ 581 ____ 810 ___ 518 -·-· 1.1.74 __ 1,705 ... .... 1.622 .. -··-1,407 _____ t400 ____ _,1.527 . 992_ .. _. ___ .550 __ . . _ 559 . 
System Usage Gas ______ .............. Ji.593 ____ 6,242 ... --6,22&. ____ 6.197 ~--~194 .. _ . 4,873 _ __ 4,745. __ 4,214 ____ _ 4,270 __ .... 4,,333 ___ __ 4.450 4,443 ~ 3.812 ___ . 3.670 _ 
Repair& - Machi~ery ··••-···---·· .... . _825' ..... _971 . .. ... J 86 ___ _ ,. _ ~03 __ 810 • 1,334 ___ 1.414 __ J ,381 _____ 1¼234 ___ 1.394 .... ,. 1.330 ___ 1,46J ,.1.l34 __ 1,326 _ 
_ RIL Up!iide_.. __ _ .. -------·- ·- ····----T.1s·9 _ 21,3~8 _ _ 22,907 _ 20J33. __ 20,965 .. . 20,282 ___ 17.072 . _ 15,737 __ 13,535 __ 13,089 • _ 13.111_ 12.806 ___ 11.718 _ 11.309 . 
OtherExpenses __ - -·--· · · -· ___ 1:552 ___ 1.689 ____ 1,684_ 1,762 __ J.&41 _ _ . 1,924 __ .. 2.011 .... 2,101 ____ 2.196 ___ 2.295 _ 2,398_ ... 2.506 . . . 2.619 ... _ 2.7J7 .. 
Total o&M Ell~- 1M5!> 32.010 3);027 30,693 30,256 30,556 27,~0 26,113 23,749 23,668' 2t,024 23,473 '21,352 __ 21,180 
Y-o-'(!J.1~11e.~{Q~~ ~ ·-·•·····- . ·- -~----·--!'!.~- - -· 3% (7!'i!f:.._, _ __ fL~J· :1% •·· ~ J_ ____ ('(.~l- _ .f9%J /~) • 2% _(2~·-···-·cml- .. , .... /t¾J: 

S'/SbUYCe·GKlqleilses 
-~---~ Rlf "3- fY27 fYJI F'fB Ff.JO FY!L,_ftL _ _f!R_, ___ r,)f fl'lS FYli rnr FYll _ ·-r,~ -~ 
Clt)'MMSCMu· ·-- ---·· - A _____ ,.J.!'6 ___ ,_., 0.5} !t53 _ _ 051 0'42 ___ 039 ___ ·-· ~.31._._, ... . 0.~2 ____ 0.32 ···-~-0.ll 032. _____ . 031 ___ ,_ 0'.2&. _____ Jd.5. 
usoraie con1~e1«1 as.H ss.w gu1 93.32 97.44 100.50 m.02 105.46 ,om 1,0.-12 112,si 11H 3 117.9~ ·20.41 
Qt1J!K!nJf~ l.fr, ll•t.•115 1.~ 7~ i .~ 7.10 5.71 S:23- 4.99 4.35 ~01 417 .u;i . lc19 3.52- 3:0 
i~~ t • a3?,W 8~6-1 eoe.ss 015.55 ~U& 88~2S W1.43 %22.78 941.21 -r.5.U SoS.07 1.010.:-.0 1,031.92 1,'J:-m 

-~;q::~ft .RJAo} · - ·-· 0-:-e _____ S,~: ••••• 51;: ·-·- !i.: •. _, S~--~:: __ ~rw-·-- 4.~~ ·---- 4,~~ --" 4~~~ ~~~ _ :~---3f,i _ l.~~; --~ 

Sl!G&l!llil!t!.14w (111RM•l • 2 D•E f-593 1,2◄2 1,225 6"11!!7 5,194 4.873 ~l~6 4,,214 4.270 4,lll Wo 4,«J 3;112 l,~ 

~ 
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Appendix 6; Brief Details about the Valuer 

Professional Experience 

• Mr. S. Sundararaman is a fellow member from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Graduate member of the Institute of Cost and Works Accountants of India, 
Information Systems Auditor (DISA of ICAI) and has completed the Post Qualification Certification courses of ICAI on IFRS, Valuation. 

• He is a registered Insolvency Professional and a Registered Valuer for Securities or Financial Assets, having been enrolled with the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Board of India 
(IBBI) after passing the respective Examinations. 

• He possesses more than 30 years of experience in servicing large and medium sized clients in the areas of Corporate Advisory including Strategic Restructuring, Governance, 
Acquisitions and related Valuations and Tax Implications apart from Audit and Assurance Services. 

• His areas of specialization include valuation for various Infrastructure Companies including valuation for Investment Infrastructure Trusts (lnvlTs). 

Professional Qualifications & Certifications 
• FCA 
• GradCWA 
• Certificate Courses on Valuation 
• Certificate Course on IFRS 
• Jnformation Systems Audit (DISA of ICAI) 
• Insolvency Professional 
• IBBI Registered Valuer 

Contact Details: 

Name: Mr. S. Sundararaman IBBI Registered Valuer 
Mobile: +91 97909 28047 
Email: chennaissr@gmail.com 

Registation Details 
IBBI Registration No• IBBI/RV/06/2018/10238 

~ 

Page 58 of 58 


		2025-05-19T16:46:49+0530
	ANKITHA VAIBHAV JAIN




